
      

City CouncilCity Council  

AgendaAgenda
City HallCity Hall

225 Fifth Street225 Fifth Street
Springfield, Oregon 97477Springfield, Oregon 97477

541-726-3700541-726-3700
Online at www.springfield-or.govOnline at www.springfield-or.gov

 
Mayor
Sean VanGordonSean VanGordon  

City Council
Michelle Webber, Ward 1Michelle  Webber, Ward 1
Steve Moe, Ward 2Steve Moe, Ward 2
Kori Rodley, Ward 3Kori Rodley, Ward 3
Beth Blackwell, Ward 4Beth Blackwell, Ward 4
Victoria Doyle, Ward 5Victoria Doyle, Ward 5
Alan Stout, Ward 6Alan Stout, Ward 6

City Manager:City Manager:
Nancy Newton 

City Recorder:City Recorder:
Allyson Pulido
541-726-3700

These meetings will be available via phone, internet using Zoom and in person. Members of the public wishing to attend these
meetings electronically can call in or attend virtually by following the directions below. This information can also be found on the
City's website.

 
The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 hours' notice prior
to the meeting. For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a "Personal PA Receiver" for the hearing impaired is available, as well

as an Induction Loop for the benefit of hearing aid users.
To arrange for these services, call 541-726-3700.

Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council.Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council.

All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

March 3, 2025
Monday 

_______________________________ 
6:00 p.m. Work Session
Council Meeting Room

or
Virtual Attendance

Registration Required:
Attend from your computer, tablet or smartphone:

Zoom
Meeting ID: 833 2239 3306

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_bEZ6ENT3Sxa8dsBNjdErNw
To dial in using your phone in Listen Only Mode:

Dial 1 (971) 247-1195
Toll Free 1 (877) 853-5247

Oregon Relay/TTY: 711 or 800-735-1232 
 

(Council work sessions are reserved for discussion between Council, staff and consultants; therefore, Council will not receive public input
during work sessions. Opportunities for public input are given during all regular Council meetings)
 
      
CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL --ROLL CALL -- Mayor VanGordon___, Councilors Webber___, Moe___, Rodley____, Blackwell___, Doyle ___, and
Stout___.
 

1. Housing Related Code and Plan Update
[Haley Campbell] (30 mins)

 

 

ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT
 

_________________________________ 
AMENDED: to add attachment to Public Hearing, "Glenwood Riverfront Annexations" 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
Council Meeting Room 

or 

 



Virtual Attendance 
Registration Required: 

Attend from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
Zoom

Meeting ID: 833 2239 3306 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_bEZ6ENT3Sxa8dsBNjdErNw 

To dial in using your phone in Listen Only Mode: 
Dial 1 (971) 247-1195 

Toll Free 1 (877) 853-5247 
Oregon Relay/TTY: 711 or 800-735-1232 
__________________________________

 

CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL ROLL CALL -- Mayor VanGordon___, Councilors Webber ___, Moe___, Rodley____, Blackwell ____, Doyle ___, and
Stout____.
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCEPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

SPRINGFIELD UPBEATSPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
 

1. Women in Construction Week Proclamation 2025  
 

CONSENT CALENDARCONSENT CALENDAR
 

1. ClaimsClaims  
 

2. MinutesMinutes  
 

3. ResolutionsResolutions  
 

a. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to award contracts exceeding $100,000 and approve amendments to public
contracts exceeding levels in Springfield Municipal Code section 2.706(3) in conformance with all other applicable
requirements of the Springfield Municipal Code and Oregon Public Contracting Law during the period commencing
March 4, 2025, and continuing through April 6, 2025, while the Common Council is on spring recess.

 

 

4. OrdinancesOrdinances  
 

a. Annexation Of Territory To The City Of Springfield - Annex Approximately 26.6 Acres Of Vacant Property In South
Glenwood Located On The East And West Sides Of Franklin Boulevard Between The Central Oregon Pacific Railroad
Bridge And 5470 Franklin Boulevard.
 

 

 

5. Other Routine MattersOther Routine Matters  
 

a. Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee Appointment  
 

b. Award For Harbor Drive Pump Station Consultant Contract, C3828.  
 

c. October 2024 Disbursements For Approval  
 

d. November 2024 Disbursements For Approval  
 

e. December 2024 Disbursements For Approval  
 

f. January 2025 Disbursements For Approval  
 

g. Contract Approval - Peoplesoft / Oracle Managed Services  



 

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDARMOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDARITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS -PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to speak cards are available at the entrance.Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to speak cards are available at the entrance.
Please present cards to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.Please present cards to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

 

1. Glenwood Riverfront Annexations
[Tom Sievers] (25 mins)

An ordinance annexing certain territory (Map 17-03-34-41, TLs: 400, 500, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1300, & 1500; Map
17-03-34-42, TLs: 100, 200, 300, 400, 500, 501, 502, 503, 504, 600, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1200, 1300, 1400, 1500,
1600, 1700, 1800, 1900, 2000, & 2100) to the City of Springfield; withdrawing the same territory from the Glenwood
Water District and the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District; adopting a severability clause; and
providing an effective date (first reading).

NO ACTION REQEUSTED, FIRST READING ONLYNO ACTION REQEUSTED, FIRST READING ONLY

 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE -BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request toLimited to 20 minutes. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to
speak cards are available at the entrance. Please present cards to Cityspeak cards are available at the entrance. Please present cards to City
Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

 

COUNCIL RESPONSECOUNCIL RESPONSE
 

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONSCORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS
 

BIDSBIDS
 

ORDINANCESORDINANCES
 

RESOLUTIONSRESOLUTIONS
 

1. Resolution Of Necessity: Filling In The Gaps-- Safe Routes To School (Srts) Capital Improvement Project (P21147).
[ Jeremy Sherer] (10 mins)

RESOLUTION NO. 1 RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN PURSUANT ORS
35.600 THROUGH 35.625 CONCERNING ACQUISITION OF PERMANENT RIGHT OF WAY AND
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS NECESSARY FOR THE FILLING IN THE GAPS -- SAFE
ROUTES TO SCHOOL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (Project No. P21147)

MOTION: ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 1MOTION: ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 1

 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCILBUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL
 

1. Planning Commission Appointment
[Sandy Belson] (5 mins)

 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGERBUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEYBUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY
 

ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT
 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Work Session
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Haley Campbell/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No: 541-726-3647
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 30 Minutes
Council Goals: Council Goals: Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel while

Focusing on Livability and Environmental Quality

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Housing Related Code and Plan Update

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Staff is introducing the project to City Council and asking for input on engagement.
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Purpose of the Housing Related Code and Plan Update is to continue the ongoing work of Springfield's
Housing Strategy and help the City come into compliance with all state housing-related statutes and rules, as well as
alignment with the City's goals for facilitating housing production, affordability, and choice by reducing regulatory
barriers. Particular attention will be focused on amending the City's Development Code to include clear and objective
standards for Mixed-Use Districts as expressed in Springfield City Council Resolution No. 2023-28.
 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
BackgroundBackground  
Staff last presented this upcoming work to the City Council when they adopted the Housing in Non-Residential
Areas Code Amendments in 2024. Public comments had inquired about amendments to the Mixed-Use districts.
Staff noted that while that was outside of the scope of the Housing in Non-Residential Areas work, the mixed-use
districts would be explored with support from consultants funded and managed by the Department of Land
Conservation and Development as part of this project.  

DiscussionDiscussion
At this meeting, staff will introduce the project and ask the City Council to provide direction on engagement
strategies. Staff anticipates incorporating Council's feedback into the Community Engagement Plan that will go to
the Committee for Citizen Involvement (the Planning Commission) on March 18, 2025, for approval.

The Community Engagement Plan will need to be finalized based on input from the Council and the Planning
Commission acting in its capacity as the Committee for Citizen Involvement (CCI). Following the CCI's approval of
the engagement plan, staff will be presenting the results of the code and plan audit at work sessions with Council and
the Planning Commission. Any recommendations from those work sessions will guide the work on the code and
plan concepts and amendments phases of the project. 
 
Next StepsNext Steps
Staff will continue to conduct work sessions with Council as necessary to inform them of the progress being made
on the drafts of the code and plan amendment sections. The goal is to complete the public hearing drafts by the end
of the year, to facilitate starting the public hearing process in 2026.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
2. Presentation Slides

https://springfield-or.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/HousingStrategyHandout_Fall22.pdf


Springfield Housing-Related Code and 
Plan Update
City Council Work Session

March 3, 2025

Attachment 2
1 of 10 



OVERVIEW

Ensuring that City code and 
plans are compliant with 
state housing-related 
statutes and rules.

Streamlining regulations to 
boost housing production, 
affordability, and choice.

MAJOR TASKS

Project 
Management

Community 
Engagement

Code and Plan 
Changes

● Biweekly meetings ● Community 
engagement plan

● Advisory 
Committee?

● Governance 
Committee?

● PC/CC

● Code and Plan Audit

● Code and Plan 
Concepts

● Code and Plan 
Amendments

Attachment 2
2 of 10 



CC

Code and Plan 
Changes

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Code and Plan Audit

Code and Plan 
Concepts

Code and Plan 
Amendments

Adoption 
Support

DRAFT FINAL

FINALDRAFT

Council on 
Break=PC CC PC PC CC PC

Community 
Engagement

Community 
Engagement 

Plan Select AC 
and/or GC

Community 
Engagement 

Rd. 1

Community 
Engagement 

Rd. 2

Attachment 2
3 of 10 



Does Council want to form a Governance Committee to 
guide this project?

For Phases 1 and 2 of the Development Code 
Update Project there was a Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) and a 
Governance Committee.

TACs role was to provide staff with the 
support necessary to develop code revisions.

Governance Committees role was to identify 
key issues and provide direction on areas of 
focus to the project team.

Governance Committee has not reconvened 
for Phase 3 of the ongoing code updates.

Community 
Engagement

Code and Plan 
Changes

Should the Governance Committee be reestablished for 
this project or will the scheduled work session/update 
meetings be sufficient?

Attachment 2
4 of 10 



Code and Plan Audit

Review DLCD Key 
Housing Statutes 
& rules 

Review Springfield 
Devp. Code, Comp. 
Plan and 
Refinement Plans

Redline code and 
plan sections that 
are non-compliant 
or needing change

ORS 197 and 197A, ORS 227, ORS 92, OAR 660
1| State Statute Compliance

2| Policy Driven Changes
MUR, MUC, Glenwood RMU, Glenwood CMU, MRC, NC, CC, BKMU, Glenwood EMU

Review Comp. Plan 
Goals, Housing Plans, 
and Policy Audits to
identify existing or 
past pro-housing 
strategies. 

Update checklist 
and take inventory 
of potential code 
barriers 

Select housing 
types to test 
development 
feasibility 

Flag code sections that 
trigger specific 
development barriers 
or issues 

Scan comp plans, 
refinement plans and 
flag conflicts with 
selected pro-housing 
strategies.

Code and Plan 
Changes

Attachment 2
5 of 10 



Review DLCD Key 
Housing Statutes 
and OARs

Review 
Springfield’s code 
(including Comp. 
Plan and 
Refinement Plans)

Redline code and 
plan sections that 
are non-compliant 
or needing change

1| State Statute Compliance

ORS 197 and 
197A

Comprehensive Land Use 
Planning – such as allowed 
housing types, procedural 
requirements, and clear and 
objective standards.

ORS 227 City Planning and Zoning -
Permitting and review

ORS 92 Subdivisions and Partitions

OAR 660 DLCD’s administrative rules

Process:

*Review majority of findings internally with 
City by mid-March

Code and Plan AuditCode and Plan 
Changes

Attachment 2
6 of 10 



Clear and Objective Standards (ORS 197A.400)

Code and Plan AuditCode and Plan 
Changes

State law requires cities to adopt clear and 
objective standards, conditions, and 
procedures when regulating the development 
of housing.

Applies to all standards that apply to housing 
and residential uses such as:

● Design criteria
● Setbacks, height, etc
● Land use application criteria (partitions, 

subdivisions, site reviews, conditional use 
permits and planned unit developments) 
that will provide housing

Not clear and objective: “The ground floor windows and 
entrances shall provide a high level of transparency”.

Clear and objective: “The ground floor must include 
transparency/glazing (glass windows or glass doors) totalling 
a minimum of 40% of the ground level wall area including the 
ground level wall area up to 10 feet above finished grade.”

Example (SDC 3.4.275)

Example (SDC 3.3.1025)

Not clear and objective: “Massing. Break up uninteresting 
boxlike forms into smaller, varied masses. Avoid single 
monolithic forms that are not relieved by variations in 
massing.”

Clear and objective: “Buildings shall incorporate at least two 
of the following massing techniques for any façade longer 
than 50 feet”

Attachment 2
7 of 10 



2| Policy Driven Changes

Code and Plan AuditCode and Plan 
Changes

Using the compact development building types from the CFEC Walkable Design Standards Guidebook as 
a reference, evaluate whether existing zoning districts support these development types in alignment 
with the land use requirements of OAR 660-012-0330 (i.e. CFEC land use requirements to support 
walkable design standards in commercial and residential zones that must be adopted by Dec. 2029)

Knowing that Springfield is undergoing code changes to comply with the CFEC program, how 
permissive are the city’s multifamily and mixed-use districts in allowing the development types 
CFEC promotes? Attachment 2

8 of 10 



2| Policy Driven Changes

Code and Plan AuditCode and Plan 
Changes

● Are use regulations too 
restrictive?

● Are densities too low?

● Are maximum heights 
too restrictive?

● + more

Will inform code concepts 
later in the project

Attachment 2
9 of 10 



Planning Commission and City Council Meetings

Approval Body Date Objective

City Council March 3 Introduce the purpose and timeline of the project and ask about formation of a 
Governance Committee

CCI (Planning Commission) March 18 Introduce the purpose and timeline of the project, take community engagement 
plan to the CCI for approval, solicit input for the advisory committee formation

City Council April 28 Present a summary of the key findings of the Code and Plan Audit, solicit feedback

Planning Commission/CCI May 20 Present a summary of the key findings of the Code and Plan Audit, solicit feedback 
on, appoint AC members

Planning Commission Aug 19 Solicit and share feedback on the Draft Code and Plan Concepts

City Council Sep 8 Solicit and share feedback on the Draft Code and Plan Concepts

Planning Commission Dec 2 Present and solicit feedback on the Public Review Draft of the Code and Plan 
Amendments

Attachment 2
10 of 10 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/202503/03/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:SUBJECT:
Women in Construction Week Proclamation 2025

AttachmentsAttachments
Women in Construction Proclamation 2025



 

Women in Construction Week Proclamation 
March 2 - 7, 2025 

 

 

WHEREAS, The National Association of Women in Construction (NAWIC) was 
founded by 16 women working in the construction industry in 1953, and was 
established in 1955 in Fort Worth, Texas; and  

WHEREAS, The work done by NAWIC Chapter 77 has benefited the state through 
community development and educational programs; and 

WHEREAS, The Eugene/Springfield chapter has unceasingly promoted the 
employment and advance of women in the construction industry; and  

WHEREAS, The construction community, represented by NAWIC Chapter 77, has 
been a driving force in fostering community development through renovation and 
beautification projects; promotion of skilled trade careers; and a positive vision of 
the future; and 

WHEREAS, The NAWIC Chapter 77 has sought to achieve successful results for Lane 
County in a cooperative spirit with other organizations;  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Sean VanGordon, Mayor of Springfield, Oregon, do hereby 
recognize NAWIC Chapter 77 and its many dedicated volunteers who work on 
behalf and support women in construction and proclaim March 2 - 7, 2025 as 
Women in Construction Week.   

 

 

 
      _________________________________ 
      Sean VanGordon 
      Mayor 

 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Jessica Mumme/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Financially Responsible and Stable Government

Services

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to award contracts exceeding $100,000 and approve amendments to public
contracts exceeding levels in Springfield Municipal Code section 2.706(3) in conformance with all other applicable
requirements of the Springfield Municipal Code and Oregon Public Contracting Law during the period commencing
March 4, 2025, and continuing through April 6, 2025, while the Common Council is on spring recess.

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Adopt/Not Adopt the following Resolution: A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to award contracts
exceeding $100,000 and approve amendments to public contracts exceeding levels in Springfield Municipal Code
section 2.706(3) in conformance with all other applicable requirements of the Springfield Municipal Code and
Oregon Public Contracting Law during the period commencing March 4, 2025, and continuing through April 6,
2025, while the Common Council is on spring recess. 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
During the City Council's spring recess, the City will need to award contracts that exceed the City Manager's
signature authority and may need to approve amendments to public contracts where the amendment cost exceeds the
limits imposed by Springfield Municipal Code section 2.706(3). These actions are normally approved by the
Council. To allow City business to proceed as usual during the recess, the Council may want to authorize the City
Manager to approve such actions. 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The Springfield Municipal Code sets administrative limits on the City Manager's signature authority to make
purchases and award contracts. Council authorization is required for amounts greater than the intermediate threshold.
Section 2.706(3) of the Springfield Municipal Code prohibits amendments to public contracts where the amendment
cost exceeds certain limits imposed by the Code except in certain cases of City Council approval. For the duration of
the Council's 2025 spring recess, staff suggests that the Council authorize the City Manager to approve competitive
bid contracts that exceed the intermediate procurement threshold, Requests for Proposals, other personal services
contracts exempt from bidding requirements under the purchasing regulations, and to approve amendments to public
contracts where the amendment cost exceeds the limits imposed by section 2.706(2)(c) without Council approval. All
expenditures have been budgeted and all purchasing provisions of the Springfield Municipal Code are to be
followed. City Manager authorization will allow projects to stay on schedule, public service to continue
uninterrupted, and limit the City's exposure. 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Contracts Over Spring Recess
2. Resolution Contracts Over Spring Recess



 

Project Name Approximate Dollar Value Department Contact

Estimate of when 
contract will be 

ready for award:

The following is a list of contract awards currently anticipated during spring recess. Other contracts or amendments may come up during recess which 
will need to be actioned. Council recess is March 11, 2025 through April 6, 2025.

Currently, there are no contracts anticipated. 

  Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1



  
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AWARD CONTRACTS 
EXCEEDING $100,000 AND APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO PUBLIC CONTRACTS 

EXCEEDING LEVELS IN SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.706(3) IN 
CONFORMANCE WITH ALL OTHER APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 

SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE AND OREGON PUBLIC CONTRACTING LAW 
DURING THE PERIOD COMMENCING MARCH 4, 2025 AND CONTINUING THROUGH 

APRIL 6, 2025 WHILE THE COMMON COUNCIL IS IN SPRING RECESS. 
 
WHEREAS, Springfield Municipal Code (SMC) section 2.704(1)(a), “Contracting Authority and 
Responsibilities,” limits the City Manager’s authority to make purchases and award contracts to 
those less than $100,000, without additional authorization from the City Council acting as the 
local contract review board;  

 
WHEREAS, SMC 2.706(3) and 2.706(4) prohibit amendments to public contracts where the 
amendment cost exceeds certain limits, except when approved by the City Council acting as the 
local contract review board;  

 
WHEREAS, delaying approval for all purchases and agreements until the Council meeting on 
April 7, 2025 may waste valuable time, increase the City’s exposure to delays, increase costs, 
and reduce public service;  

 
WHEREAS, there may occur the need to execute contracts exceeding $100,000 for which 
funds have been budgeted and that for reasons of public welfare, safety, and cost effectiveness 
need to be awarded during the Council’s spring recess commencing March 4, 2025 and 
continuing through April 6, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, there may occur the need to amend contracts where the amended cost exceeds 
certain specified limits during the Council spring recess commencing March 4, 2025 and 
continuing through April 6, 2025, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SPRINGFIELD AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to award the following contracts 

and contract amendments for which funds have been budgeted, and that for reasons of public 
welfare, safety, and cost effectiveness need to be awarded during the Council’s spring recess, 
provided that all other applicable requirements in the Springfield Municipal Code and Oregon 
Public Contracting Code are followed:  

 
A. Contracts in excess of $100,000 based on competitive sealed bids or competitive 
sealed proposals; 
 
B. Contracts in excess of $100,000 that are otherwise exempt from being awarded 
based on competitive sealed bids or competitive sealed proposals by applicable 
provisions of the Springfield Municipal Code or Oregon Public Contracting Code; and  
 
C. Amendments to contracts that exceed the monetary limits imposed by SMC 
2.706(3).   
 

Attachment 2
Page 1 of 2



  
 

Section 2:   The authorization provided in Section 1 supplements and is in addition to, 
and not in lieu of, the City Council’s authority. 

 
Section 3:  This Resolution will take effect on March 4, 2025 and continue through 

April 6, 2025. 
 
Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this 3rd day of March 2025 by 

a vote of _____ for and _____ against. 
 
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Allyson Pulido, City Recorder 
 

Attachment 2
Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Andy Limbird/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Annexation Of Territory To The City Of Springfield - Annex Approximately 26.6 Acres Of Vacant Property In
South Glenwood Located On The East And West Sides Of Franklin Boulevard Between The Central Oregon Pacific
Railroad Bridge And 5470 Franklin Boulevard.

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a second reading and adopt/not adopt the following ordinance: An Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory
(Four Vacant Parcels comprising approximately 26.6 acres in south Glenwood and identified as Assessor's Map 18-
03-02-32, Tax Lot 3800; Map 18-03-02-33, Tax Lot 5100; and Map 18-03-03-40, Tax Lots 300 & 700) to the
City of Springfield and the Willamalane Park & Recreation District; Withdrawing portions of said territory from the
Glenwood Water District and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District; Adopting a Severability Clause; and
providing an Effective Date (Second Reading).

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City Council is requested to consider adopting an Ordinance to annex approximately 26.6 Acres of real property
in south Glenwood. The proposed annexation is intended to facilitate future construction of a public water utility
installation on the property.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The annexation request was initiated by owner consent and the territory includes portions of the Hillside Overlay
District and mapped Flood Hazard area of the Willamette River.  The City Council conducted a quasi-judicial public
hearing for the annexation request at the regular meeting on February 18, 2025 in accordance with SDC
5.7.115(A).  The applicant's representative testified in support of the proposed annexation and no other written or
verbal testimony was received.  In accordance with SDC 5.7.155 and ORS 222.040, 222.180 and 222.465, if
approved at the regular meeting on March 3, 2025 the annexation will become effective 30 days following ordinance
adoption and signature by the Mayor or upon acknowledgment by the state, whichever date is later.  The subject
property meets the standards and provisions of SDC 5.7.100 and applicable state statutes for annexation; Council is
requested to conduct the second reading and consider adopting the Ordinance annexing the property to the City and
Willamalane Park & Recreation District and withdrawing portions of the territory from the Glenwood Water District
and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District.

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Location Maps
2. Annexation Application
3. Ordinance
3a. Ordinance Exhibit A: Maps and Legal Descriptions
3b. Ordiance Exhibit B: Staff Report and Recommendations



LOCATION OF PROPERTY PROPOSED FOR ANNEXATION 



 SITE 

Attachment 1
1 of 2



811-24-000309-TYP4 – PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF  
VACANT INDUSTRIAL PARCELS ON FRANKLIN BOULEVARD  

(MAP 18-03-02-32, TL 3800; MAP 18-03-02-33, TL 5100; AND MAP 18-03-03-40, TL 300 & 700)  
SITE CONTEXT MAP 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED 
ANNEXATION  

AREA 

2
1

s
t  
S

tr
e

e
t 

 

Attachment 1 
2 of 2



Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 8 of 17 

City of Springfield 

Development & Public Works 

225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, OR 97477 

Annexation Application Type IV 

Application Type (Applicant:  Check one) 

Annexation Application Pre-Submittal: □ 
Annexation Application Submittal: □ 
Required Proposal Information (Applicant:  Complete This Section) 

Property Owner:       Phone:       

Address:        Fax: 

E-mail:  

Owner Signature: 

Owner Signature: 

Agent Name:       Phone

:
      

Company:       Fax: 

Address:  E-mail  

Agent Signature: 

If the applicant is other than the owner, the owner hereby grants permission for the applicant to act in his or her behalf, except 
where signatures of the owner of record are required, only the owner may sign the petition. 

ASSESSOR’S MAP NO:       TAX LOT NO(S):       

Property Address:       

Area of Request: Acres:     Square Feet: 

Existing Use(s) 

of Property: 
      

Proposed Use 

of Property: 
      

Required Property Information (City Intake Staff:  Complete This Section) 

Case No.: Date: 
Reviewed By: 

(initials)  

Application Fee: Postage Fee: Total Fee: 

3 

18-03-02-33, 5100
18-03-03-40, 300, 700

Vacant and undeveloped, residential

Eugene Water & Electric Board

4200 Roosevelt Blvd., Eugene OR, 97402

541685-7000

Multiple
McVay Highway and Interstate 5

Colin McArthur, AICP 541-485-7385

cmcarthur@cameronmccarthy.com

Cameron McCarthy

160 E Broadway, Eugene OR, 97401

Laura.Farthing@EWEB.org

25.00 1,089,000

Water Treatment Plant

`

Attachment 2 
1 of 240



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 9 of 17 

Owner Signatures 
   

This application form is used for both the required pre-submittal meeting and subsequent 

complete application submittal.  Owner signatures are required at both stages in the application 

process. 

 

An application without the Owner’s original signature will not be accepted.  

 
 

Pre-Submittal 
 

 

The undersigned acknowledges that the information in this application is correct and 

accurate for scheduling of the Pre- Submittal Meeting. If the applicant is not the 

owner, the owner hereby grants permission for the applicant to act in his/her behalf.  

I/we do hereby acknowledge that I/we are legally responsible for all statutory 

timelines, information, requests and requirements conveyed to my representative.  

Owner:  

Date:       

Signature 
 

      

 

Print 

 
 

Submittal 
  

 

I represent this application to be complete for submittal to the City.  Consistent with the completeness check 
performed on this application at the Pre-Submittal Meeting, I affirm the information identified by the City as 
necessary for processing the application is provided herein or the information will not be provided if not otherwise 
contained within the submittal, and the City may begin processing the application with the information as 
submitted.  This statement serves as written notice pursuant to the requirements of ORS 227.178 pertaining to a 
complete application. 
 Owner:  

Date:       

Signature 
 

      

 

Print 
 

Laura Farthing, P.E.

Attachment 2 
2 of 240

EW2336
Text Box
12/13/2024



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 10 of 17 

APPLICANTS SHOULD COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING STEPS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING AN 

APPLICATION.  APPLICATIONS NOT HAVING ALL BOXES CHECKED WILL BE RETURNED 

TO THE APPLICANT AND WILL THEREFORE DELAY THE APPLICATION REVIEW 

PROCESS.  

 

□ Application Fee  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(15)] 

Refer to the Development Code Fee Schedule for the appropriate fee calculation formula.  Fees 

are based upon the area of land being annexed.  Copies of the fee schedule are available at the 

Development & Public Works Department.  Fees are payable to the City of Springfield. 

 

□ Petition/Petition Signature Sheet  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(2)] 

To initiate an annexation by consents from property owners as explained below, complete the 

attached Petition Signature Sheet (refer to Form 1). (Photocopies may be submitted @ Pre-

Submittal, with original copies @ time of application submittal). 

 

Consent by Property Owners  [ORS 222.170(1)] 

If the proposal is to be initiated by the owners of at least one-half of the land area, land 

value, and land ownership, complete Form 2.  To give consent for a particular piece of 

property, persons who own an interest in the property, or who are purchasers of property 

on a contract sale that is recorded with the county, must sign the annexation petition.  

Generally, this means that both husband and wife should sign.  In the case of a corporation 

or business, the person who is authorized to sign legal documents for the firm may sign the 

annexation petition. Please provide evidence of such authorization.  To ensure that the 

necessary signatures are obtained, please complete the attached worksheet (Form 2). 

(Photocopies may be submitted @ Pre-Submittal, with original copies @ time of 

application submittal). 

 

□ Certification of Ownership  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(5)] 

After completing the attached Petition Signature Sheet (Form 1), have the Lane County 

Department of Assessment and Taxation certify the ownerships within the proposed annexation 

area. (Photocopies may be submitted @ Pre-Submittal, with original copies @ time of 

application submittal). 

 

□ Owners Worksheet 

Information on the Petition Signature Sheet can also be found on Form 2, Owners and Electors 

Worksheet. (Photocopies may be submitted @ Pre-Submittal, with original copies @ 

time of application submittal).   

 

□ Supplemental Information Form  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(1) and (11)] 

Form 3 (attached) provides additional information for the proposed annexation that is not 

requested on the Annexation Application Type IV form, such as special districts that currently 

provide services to the proposed annexation area. (Photocopies may be submitted @ Pre-

Submittal, with original copies @ time of application submittal). 

 

□ Copy of the Deed (required at application submittal) 

 

□ Copy of Preliminary Title Report (required at application submittal) 

Title Report has to be issued within the past 30 days documenting ownership and listing all 

encumbrances. 

 

 

 
Attachment 2 

3 of 240



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 11 of 17 

 

□ Annexation Description  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(9)] 

A metes and bounds legal description of the territory to be annexed or withdrawn must be 

submitted electronically in Microsoft Word or a compatible software program.  A legal description 

shall consist of a series of courses in which the first course shall start at a point of beginning.  

Each course shall be identified by bearings and distances and, when available, refer to deed 

lines, deed corners and other monuments.  A lot, block and subdivision description may be 

substituted for the metes and bounds description if the area is platted.  The Oregon Department 

of Revenue has the authority to approve or disapprove a legal description.  A professionally 

stamped legal description does not ensure Department of Revenue approval. 

 

□ Cadastral Map  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(10)] 

Three (3) full-size paper copies and one (1) digital copy (in .pdf format) of the Lane County 

Assessor’s tax map that shows the proposed annexation area in relationship to the existing city 

limits.  If Digital Copy (in.pdf format) is not available, Nine (9) full-size paper copies and one (1) 

reduced size redline map at 8 ½ x 11 are required. Paper copy maps must be printed to scale. 

 On all submitted maps the annexation area shall be outlined in redline with survey courses and 

bearings labeled for cross-reference with the metes and bounds legal description. If the 

annexation area extends across more than one tax map, sufficient copies of each affected tax 

map must be provided.  Please be aware that annexation redline closures must avoid creating 

gaps or overlaps, and may not necessarily correspond with the property legal description. 

Cadastral maps can be obtained from the Lane County Assessment and Taxation Office. 

 

□ ORS 222.173 Waiver Form  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(8)] 

Complete the attached waiver (Form 4).  The waiver should be signed by each owner within the 

proposed annexation area. 

 

□ Public/Private Utility Plan  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(12)] 

A plan describing how the proposed annexation area can be served by key facilities and services 

must be provided with the Annexation Agreement.  Planning and public works staff will work with 

the applicant to complete the Annexation Agreement. 

 

□ Written Narrative addressing approval criteria as specified below.  All annexation requests 

must be accompanied with a narrative providing an explanation and justification of response with 

the criteria stated in the application (also stated below).  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(13) and (14)] 

 

A. The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s portions of the urban 

growth boundary and is contiguous to the city limits or separated from the City limits 

only by a public right–of-way or a stream lake or other body of water; 

B.  The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Metro Plan and in 

any applicable refinement plan or Plan Districts; 

C.  The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key 

urban facilities and services as defined in the Metro Plan can be provided in an orderly 

efficient and timely manner; and 

D.  Where applicable fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through a signed 

Annexation Agreement or other mechanism approved by the City Council. 

 

□ Three (3) copies of the previously required information. 

 

 

ALL PLANS AND ATTACHMENTS MUST BE FOLDED TO 8½” BY 11” AND BOUND BY 

RUBBER BANDS. 

N/A

Attachment 2 
4 of 240



 

 

 

 

   

 

   

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Springfield 

 
EWEB 

Glenwood Second Source 
 

ANNEXATION APPLICATION 
 

December 11, 2024

Attachment 2 
5 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL INDEX 

INDEX 

LAND USE APPLICATION FORMS  

• Annexation Submittal Form 

WRITTEN STATEMENT  

1.0 Project Information  ......................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 Description of Proposal  ................................................................................................. 3 

3.0 Existing Conditions ......................................................................................................... 7 

4.0 Submittal Requirements ............................................................................................... 10 

5.0 Approval Criteria and Standards .................................................................................. 13 

EXHIBITS  

Petition/Petition Signature Sheet  ............................................................................................ A 

Owners Worksheet  ................................................................................................................... B 

Supplemental Information Form  .............................................................................................. C 

Deeds ......................................................................................................................................... D 

Preliminary Title Report  ........................................................................................................... E 

Legal Description....................................................................................................................... F 

Cadastral Map ........................................................................................................................... G 

Vicinity Map................................................................................................................................ H 

Waiver Forms .............................................................................................................................. I 

 

 

Attachment 2 
6 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 1 

1.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

 
Applicant’s Request: Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) requests Annexation 

approval to enable the construction of a second source water 
intake facility and treatment plant to increase system resiliency 
and to better serve local public utility customers. 

 
Property Owner: Eugene Water and Electric Board (EWEB) 

4200 Roosevelt Blvd. 
Eugene, OR 97402 
  

Applicant: Laura Farthing, PE 
 Senior Engineer, Water Division 

Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB) 
 4200 Roosevelt Blvd. 

Eugene, OR 97402 
 541.685.7464 

Laura.Farthing@EWEB.org 
 
Applicant’s Representative: Colin McArthur, AICP 
 Principal Planner 
 Cameron McCarthy 
 160 E. Broadway 

Eugene, OR 97401 
 541.485.7385 
 cmcarthur@cameronmccarthy.com 
 
Project Name:  Glenwood Second Source 
 
Subject Property:   Assessor’s Map, Tax Lot Number 
 

18030233, 05100  
1.32 acres (57,499 square feet) 
 
18030340, 00300  
7.74 acres (337,154 square feet) 
 
18030340, 00700 
15.94 acres (694,346 square feet)  

 
Location:     McVay Highway and Interstate 5 

Geographic Coordinates 
 
18030233, 05100 
X 4256760 Y 870762 (State Plane X,Y) 
Latitude: 44.0283° Longitude: -123.0268° 
 
18030340, 00300 
X 4256106 Y 872419 (State Plane X,Y) 

Attachment 2 
7 of 240

mailto:Laura.Farthing@EWEB.org
mailto:cmcarthur@cameronmccarthy.com


EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 2 

Latitude: 44.0328° Longitude: -123.0295° 
 
18030340, 00700 
X 4256387 Y 871313 (State Plane X,Y) 
Latitude: 44.0298° Longitude: -123.0283° 

 
Property Size: 25.00 acres (1,089,000 square feet)   
 
Plan Designation:  Employment Mixed Use 
 
Plan Overlay Designation: None 
 
Zoning Designation: Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District 

Employment Mixed-Use Zoning District 
 
Zone Overlay Designation:  Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District (UF-10) 
  

Upon Annexation: 
 Drinking Water Protection Overlay District (/DWP) 
 Willamette Greenway Overlay District (/WG) 

Floodplain Overlay District (/FP) 
 Hillside Development Overlay District (/HD) 
 
Development Issues Meeting: 811-23-00049-PRE, March 6, 2023 
 

  

Attachment 2 
8 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 3 

2.0 DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 

2.1  Overview 

The Eugene Water & Electric Board (EWEB), the “applicant,” requests Annexation approval to 
enable the construction of a second drinking water intake and treatment plant in Glenwood to 
increase system resiliency and to better serve local public utility customers.  This application 
requests Type IV Annexation approval to incorporate the following tax lots (TL) (Assessor’s Map 
No., Tax Lot No.), the designated locations of the EWEB second source facilities, within Springfield 
city limits to extend key urban services to the property.   

• 18030233, 05100 
• 18030340, 00300 
• 18030340, 00700 

 
2.2  Background 

Currently, EWEB’s only source of drinking water is the McKenzie River, with an intake and 
treatment facility near Hayden Bridge.  Having a single potable water source presents significant 
risks to EWEB residential, business, and institutional water consumers from service disruptions due 
to equipment failure, hazardous spills within the river, or natural disasters.  To diversify its water 
supply and improve resiliency, EWEB is proposing to develop its existing water right to surface 
water on the Willamette River below the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks. 

The proposed project includes an intake facility, water treatment and filtration facility, transmission 
piping to connect the new facilities to the existing water system, and associated infrastructure.  
EWEB plans to complete preliminary design and secure Plan and Code amendment and 
annexation approvals in 2025, with site-specific permit approvals and completion of final design 
between 2025-2026, construction in 2026-2027, and having the plant operational by 2027-2028. 

Given the risks of a single water supply source, EWEB began exploring options for a redundant 
source on the Willamette River in 2012.  This started with adding a diversion point to an existing 
EWEB water right on the river just below the confluence of the Middle Fork and the Coast Fork of 
the Willamette.  EWEB then acquired property at this location for a water intake facility following a 
Development Issues Meeting (DIM) with the City of Springfield (City) on October 9, 2014.1  EWEB 
evaluated several sites for the proposed water treatment plant with the criteria that they must be 
between the river intake and the point where treated water would enter EWEB’s water distribution 
system near the I-5 crossing of the Willamette River.  EWEB then acquired the preferred property 
after a DIM with the City on December 17, 2015.2  

The subject site is within Subarea D of the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP), adopted by the City 
and Lane County as a neighborhood refinement to the Metro Plan in 2012.  Subsequently, the 
Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District was incorporated into the Springfield Development 
Code as SDC 3.4-200.  While the GRP and Code allow certain “low impact public utility facilities,” 
there is no provision for “high impact public utility facilities” within the subject site’s Employment 
Mixed Use zoning district.  The proposed water treatment and filtration facility is considered a high-

 

1 811-14-000069-PRE, October 9, 2015 
2 811-15-000069-DIM, December 17, 2015 

Attachment 2 
9 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 4 

impact public utility facility.  The GRP text does not anticipate the size and type of water facilities 
proposed by EWEB.  Therefore, amendments to specific GRP text and the table for allowed uses in 
the SDC for the Glenwood Plan District are required for the planned project.  The proposed plan 
and code amendments are not necessary for annexation approval.   

Following plan and GRP code amendments, and Annexation, Site Plan Review and other 
associated site-specific land use applications (i.e., Willamette Greenway Overlay District, Floodplain 
Development Overlay, and Hillside Development Overlay District) are required for the project. 

  

Attachment 2 
10 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 5 

2.3 Location and Context 

The proposed second source site is between McVay Highway and Interstate 5 (I-5).  The subject 
site is below the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the Willamette River in Glenwood, 
within the southwest portion of the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary.  The site comprises the 
following five tax lots (Assessor’s Map No., Tax Lot No.): 

• 18030220, 03300  
• 18030232, 03800  
• 18030233, 05100 
• 18030340, 00300 
• 18030340, 00700 
 
TL 03300 and TL 3800 were annexed into the Springfield City Limits in 2009.3  The other three tax 
lots (in bold text) have yet to be annexed, are outside Springfield City Limits, and are the subject of 
this application.  Annexation application approval of TL 05100, TL 00300, and TL 00700 is required 
before development. 

SDC 5.7.140.A. requires that the affected territory proposed to be annexed be within the City’s 
urban growth boundary and contiguous to the City Limits or separated from the City only by public 
right-of-way or a stream, lake, or other body of water. 

• TL 05100 is contiguous to the City Limits at the west property boundary. 
• TL 00700 is contiguous to the City Limits at the east property boundary. 
• TL 00300 is separated from the City Limits at the north property boundary by right of way, is 

contiguous to TL 00700 at the south property boundary and will be contiguous upon annexation 
of TL 00700. 

 
EWEB owns these tax lots outright.  The tax lots are designated Employment Mixed Ues by the 
Metro Plan and Employment Mixed Use (M.U.) by the City of Springfield Zoning Map.   
 
Adjacent TL 0300 and 0700 are bounded to the north/northwest by land owned by SUB, to the west 
by I-5, to the east by the Union Pacific railroad and McVay Highway, and to the south by residential 
land with a single-family home.  Tax lot 5100 is bounded to the west by McVay Highway and to the 
east by the Union Pacific railroad.  Surrounding the property are designated Employment Mixed 
Use by the Metro Plan and Employment Mixed-Use by the GRP.   
 
2.4  Purpose and Need 

As noted previously, annexation application approval for the Glenwood Second Source site is 
required to extend key urban services to the subject property.  The need for an Annexation is 
evidenced by Metro Plan and Springfield Comprehensive Plan urbanization policies requiring 
annexation to extend key urban services to land outside of city limits boundaries.  
 
EWEB is planning the development of water intake and treatment facilities on property outside city 
limits.  Given the referenced Growth Management Policies, Annexation approval is required to 
facilitate the construction of the facilities.  As a whole, these facilities will protect residents, 

 

3 C-SP2009-LRP2009-000 

Attachment 2 
11 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 6 

businesses, and institutions who rely on EWEB for water from service disruptions due to equipment 
failure, hazardous spills within the river, or natural disasters.  The facilities will diversify EWEB’s 
water supply and increase community resiliency. 

2.5  Land Use Requirements  

The subject property is currently located outside the city limits of the City of Springfield.  As 
described above, this is a request for Type IV annexation approval as specified in SDC 5.7-100.  
The following action is necessary: 

• Type IV Annexation approval to enable the extension of city services to property currently 
outside city limits. 
 

Findings demonstrating consistency with applicable policies and approval criteria specific to the 
annexation request are provided in Section 5 Approval Criteria.  The attached materials and 
enclosed findings demonstrate compliance with all annexation application submittal requirements 
and criteria listed in SDC Sections: 

• 5.7-100 Annexations; and 
• 5.4-100 Development Applications.  
  

Attachment 2 
12 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 7 

3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 

3.1 Site 

Development 
The subject property is developed with a gravel drive access from McVay Highway/Franklin 
Boulevard and from other properties to the north and south.  TL 00300 contains a billboard and 
substation.  The remainder of the subject property is undeveloped.   

Natural Features 
There are four primary vegetation communities on the subject site: prairie-savanna, mixed oak-
conifer forest, mixed oak-conifer woodland, and mixed conifer-hardwood.  Of the primary vegetation 
communities, the subject property most closely resembles the mixed conifer-hardwood community.  
The site also has numerous invasive species.  No federally listed rare plant species have been 
found on the subject property. 

Soils 
The site is characterized predominantly by different classifications of loam, according to the Natural 
Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) soil database.  Hills and slopes are the most common 
landforms where loam is dominant and is a well-draining substrate. 

Table 1.  NRCS Soil Types 

Property Soil Map 
Unit# 

Soil Type Description % of 
Taxlot 

Ag 
Class 

Hydric % 

TL 05100 99H Ochrepts and Umbrepts, Very 
Steep 

53% 6 0 

TL 05100 108F Philomath Cobbly Silty Clay, 
12 to 45 Percent Slopes 

37% 6 0 

TL 05100 22 Camas Gravelly Sandy Loam, 
Occasionally Flooded 

5% 4 7 

TL 05100 43E Dixonville-Philomath-Hazelair 
Complex, 12 to 35 Percent 
Slopes 

4% 4 0 

TL 00300 108F Philomath Cobbly Silty Clay, 
12 to 45 Percent Slopes 

53% 6 0 

TL 00300 11D Bellpine Silty Clay Loam, 12 to 
20 Percent Slopes 

37% 3 0 

TL 00300 22 Camas Gravelly Sandy Loam, 
Occasionally Flooded 

10% 4 7 

TL 00300 97 Newberg-Urban Land 
Complex 

0% 2 0 

Attachment 2 
13 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 8 

TL 00700 108F Philomath Cobbly Silty Clay, 
12 to 45 Percent Slopes 

56% 6 0 

TL 00700 22 Camas Gravelly Sandy Loam, 
Occasionally Flooded 

24% 4 7 

TL 00700 11D Bellpine Silty Clay Loam, 12 to 
20 Percent Slopes 

20% 3 0 

 

3.2 Transportation 

Transportation 
As noted previously, the subject property is accessed by a gravel drive extending from McVay 
Highway/Franklin Boulevard and from other properties to the north and south.  Other than the 
gravel drive, there are no roads on the subject property.   

Springfield’s 2035 Transportation System Plan (TSP) identifies two potential future roadway 
projects in the vicinity of the subject property: R-20 and PB-18.  R-20 addresses improvements on 
McVay Highway/Franklin Boulevard from East 19th Avenue to I-5 and involves the construction of a 
two- or three-lane cross-section with sidewalks, bicycle facilities, and transit facilities consistent with 
the Main Street/McVay Highway Transit Feasibility study.  PB-18 addresses the construction of a 
new multiuse (pedestrian/bike) 12-foot-wide path from the Willamette River bridges to the UGB.  
The Springfield Conceptual Local Street Map does not show proposed new streets in the vicinity of 
the subject property.  The annexation agreement between EWEB and the City resulting from this 
application will address future transportation facilities.  

3.3 Urban Services 

Water Service 
EWEB is planning the construction of a second drinking water intake and treatment plant to 
increase system resiliency and to better serve local public utility customers.  The water treatment 
plant will generate water for the subject development.  Therefore, water service is not required for 
the development or is not a requirement of annexation approval.   

Wastewater Service 
There is an existing 8-inch wastewater main that increases to 12-inch located at TL 01200 
(18030340), owned by the City of Springfield, that is approximately 270 feet from the eastern edge 
of TL 00700.  Another 8 to 12-inch wastewater main is located in the Newman Street right-of-way 
that is approximately 150 feet from the eastern edge of TL 00300.  Connection to one or both 
facilities will require boring under the Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way or utilizing an existing 
culvert crossing.  The facility at TL 01200 is the most likely connection point, given the proximity to 
planned development.   

Stormwater Service 
There are existing stormwater facilities on TL 00500 (18030340) and TL 01200, located 
approximately 170 feet from the eastern edge of TL 00700.  Another 24-inch diameter stormwater 
trunk line is located in the Newman Street right-of-way approximately 170 feet from the eastern 
edge of TL 00300. 

Attachment 2 
14 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 9 

Electrical Service 
The Springfield Utility Board (SUB) provides electric services within the City of Springfield’s city 
limits under the authority of the Springfield City Charter.  SUB owns the properties directly to the 
west of the subject site, and owner service is available.   

Solid Waste Service 
Sanipac provides solid waste management services in conjunction with Short Mountain Landfill, 
which is administered by Lane County and has adequate capacity to serve the subject 
development.  Waste services are also provided by Lane Apex.     

Emergency Services 
Upon annexation approval, the subject property will be within the service response area of the 
Eugene Springfield Fire.  The subject site is currently within the Goshen Rural Fire Protection 
District and will be withdrawn from this district upon annexation approval.   
 
Police Services 
Currently, the City of Springfield police provide police services to the areas within the city limits 
adjacent to the subject property.  Following annexation, the City of Springfield police will provide 
police protection for the subject property. 
 
Communication Services 
Wire and wireless communication services are provided throughout Springfield, and the subject 
property can generally receive services from private providers.   

Education Services 
Springfield School District 19 provides K-12 educational needs in Springfield.  The subject property 
is within the service area boundaries of Centennial Elementary School, Hamlin Middle School, and 
Springfield High School. 

  

Attachment 2 
15 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 10 

4.0 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Following are each of the procedural and informational requirements necessary for the submittal of 
an Annexation application.  Findings of compliance with applicable policies and approval criteria are 
provided in Section 5. Approval Criteria.    

4.1  Annexation Submittal Requirements  

 .1  Application Fee [SDC 5.7-125(B)(15)] 
Refer to the Development Code Fee Schedule for the appropriate fee 
calculation formula.  Fees are based on the area of land being annexed.  
Copies of the fee schedule are available at the Development Services 
Department.  Fees are payable to the City of Springfield. 

The required filing fee is included with the pre-submittal.  The Annexation fee will be provided with 
the initial submittal. 

 .2  Petition/Petition Signature Sheet [SDC 5.7-125(B)(2)]: 
To initiate an annexation by consent from property owners as explained below, 
complete the attached Petition Signature Sheet (refer to Form 1).  Photocopies 
may be submitted at Pre-Submittal, with original copies at the time of 
application submittal.    

Consent by Property Owners [ORS 222.170(1)]: 
If the proposal is to be initiated by the owners of at least one-half of the land 
area, land value, and land ownership, complete Form 2.  To give consent for a 
particular piece of property, persons who own an interest in the property, or 
who are purchasers of property on a contract sale that is recorded with the 
county, must sign the annexation petition.  Generally, this means that both 
husband and wife should sign.  In the case of a corporation or business, the 
person who is authorized to sign legal documents for the firm may sign the 
annexation petition. Please provide evidence of such authorization.  To ensure 
that the necessary signatures are obtained, please complete the attached 
worksheet (Form 2). 

The signed Petition Signature Sheet (Form 1) and the updated Ownership Worksheet (Form 2) are 
included as Exhibits A and B.  

 .3  Certification of Ownership [SDC 5.7-125(B)(5)]: 
After completing the attached Petition Signature Sheet (Form 1), have the Lane 
County Department of Assessment and Taxation certify the ownerships within 
the proposed annexation area.  Photocopies may be submitted at Pre-
Submittal, with original copies at the time of application submittal. 

 
The County’s Certification of Ownership is provided on the Petition Signature Sheet (Form 1), 
included as Exhibit A.   
 
 .4  Ownership Worksheet: 

Information on the Petition Signature Sheet can also be found on Form 2, 
Owners and Electors Worksheet.  Photocopies may be submitted at Pre-
Submittal, with original copies at the time of application submittal. 

Attachment 2 
16 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 11 

 
The Ownership Worksheet is included as Exhibit B. 
  
 .5  Supplemental Information Form [SDC 5.7-125(B)(1) and (11)]: 

Form 3 (attached) provides additional information for the proposed annexation 
that is not requested on the Annexation Application Type IV form, such as 
special districts that currently provide services to the proposed annexation 
area.  Photocopies may be submitted at Pre-Submittal, with original copies at 
the time of application submittal. 
 

The Supplemental Information Form is included as Exhibit C. 

 .6  Copy of the Deed 
 
The deed pertaining to the subject site is included as Exhibit D. 

 .7 Preliminary Title Report 
 
The preliminary Title Report is included as Exhibit E.  

 .8 Annexation (Legal) Description [SDC 5.7-125(B)(9)]: 
A metes and bounds legal description of the territory to be annexed or 
withdrawn must be submitted electronically in Microsoft Word or a compatible 
software program.  A legal description shall consist of a series of courses in 
which the first course shall start at a point of beginning.  Each course shall be 
identified by bearings and distances and, when available, refer to deed lines, 
deed corners and other monuments.  A lot, block and subdivision description 
may be substituted for the metes and bounds description if the area is platted.  
The Oregon Department of Revenue has the authority to approve or 
disapprove a legal description.  A professionally stamped legal description 
does not ensure Department of Revenue approval. 

An electronic copy of the required legal description and hard copy are included as Exhibit F.  

 .9  Cadastral Map [SDC 5.7-125(B)(10)]: 
Three (3) full-size paper copies and one (1) digital copy (in .pdf format) of the 
Lane County Assessor’s tax map that shows the proposed annexation area in 
relationship to the existing city limits.  If Digital Copy (in.pdf format) is not 
available, Nine (9) full-size paper copies and one (1) reduced size redline map 
at 8 ½ x 11 are required. Paper copy maps must be printed to scale.  On all 
submitted maps the annexation area shall be outlined in redline with survey 
courses and bearings labeled for cross-reference with the metes and bounds 
legal description.  If the annexation area extends across more than one tax 
map, sufficient copies of each affected tax map must be provided. Please be 
aware that annexation redline closures must avoid creating gaps or overlaps, 
and may not necessarily correspond with the property legal description. 
Cadastral maps can be obtained from the Lane County Assessment and 
Taxation Office. 

Attachment 2 
17 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 12 

Three (3) print copies and one (1) digital copy (.pdf format) of the cadastral map are included as 
Exhibit G in accordance with the requirements.  

 .10  ORS 222.173 Waiver Form [SDC 5.7-125(B)(8)]: 
Complete the attached waiver (Form 4).  The waiver should be signed by each 
owner within the proposed annexation area. 

The waiver is not applicable to this application.  

 .11  Public/Private Utility Plan [SDC 5.7-125(B)(12)]: 
A plan describing how the proposed annexation area can be served by key 
facilities and services must be provided with the Annexation Agreement.  
Planning and Public Works staff will work with the applicant to complete the 
Annexation Agreement. 

The Public/Private Utility Plan will be provided with subsequent land use application approvals and 
is not a requirement of this annexation.  

 .12  Written Narrative addressing approval criteria as specified below.  All 
annexation requests must be accompanied with a narrative providing an 
explanation and justification of response with the criteria stated in the 
application (also stated below).  [SDC 5.7-125(B)(13) and (14)] 

 
A. The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s 

portions of the urban growth boundary and is contiguous to the city 
limits or separated from the City limits only by a public right–of-way or 
a stream lake or other body of water; 

 
B. The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the 

Metro Plan and in any applicable refinement plan or Plan Districts; 
 

C. The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the 
minimum level of key urban facilities and services as defined in the 
Metro Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely manner; 
and 

 
D. Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated 

through a signed Annexation Agreement or other mechanism approved 
by the City Council. 
 

The preceding written narrative explains the proposal and includes all information relevant to 
determining future action.  Findings of compliance with the applicable criteria are provided in 
Section 5.1 Annexation Approval Criteria.    

.13  Three (3) copies of the previously required information with all plans and 
attachments folded to 81/2” by 11” and bound by rubber bands.   

All copies of the previously required information are folded to 8.5“ by 11” and are bound by rubber 
bands.  
 

Attachment 2 
18 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 13 

5.0 APPROVAL CRITERIA  

Findings of compliance establishing the consistency of this request with applicable approval criteria 
are provided in Section 5.1.     

5.1 Annexation Approval Criteria (SDC 5.7-140) 

The request is subject to annexation approval in accordance with SDC 5.7-140 Annexation 
Approval Criteria.  The Applicant acknowledges the need to demonstrate the timing, 
appropriateness, legality, and availability of services, and the following narrative accompanying the 
Annexation Application Form provides such demonstration.    

(A) The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth 
boundary; and is 

(a) Contiguous to the city limits; or 
(b) Separated from the City only by a public right-of-way or a stream, lake or 

other body of water. 
 
The subject property is located outside the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan 
(Metro Plan) Boundary and within Springfield’s urban growth boundary (UGB).  As shown on 
Exhibits H (Vicinity Map) and G (Cadastral Map), the subject site is contiguous to the Springfield 
city limits.  The subject property consists of Map Number 18030233, Lot 05100; Map Number 
18030340, Lot 00300; and Map Number 18030340, Lot 00700.  The subject property is owned by 
EWEB. 
 
As noted previously and shown on Exhibit H Vicinity Map, Springfield’s city limits boundary is 
contiguous with the western boundary of TL 05100 and the eastern boundary of TL 00700.  TL 
00300 is adjacent to TL 00700 and will be contiguous with city limits upon annexation of TL 00700.  
Accordingly, this criterion is satisfied.   
 

(B) The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Metro 
Plan and in any applicable refinement plans or Plan Districts; 

The subject property is within the boundaries of the Metro Plan, Springfield Comprehensive Plan, 
and Glenwood Refinement Plan.  The following findings establish consistency with applicable 
policies in these documents. 

Springfield has previously adopted the following elements of its Comprehensive Plan: 

• Economic 
• Residential Land Use and Housing 
• Recreation  
• Transportation 
• Urbanization 

 
The Economic and Urbanization elements supplant the Economic and Urban and Urbanizable 

Attachment 2 
19 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 14 

Elements of the Metro Plan.4  The goals, policies, and implementation actions in the Springfield 
Residential Land and Housing Element are consistent and carry out the Residential Land Use and 
Housing Element.5  The policies in the Residential Land Use and Housing Element of the 
Springfield Comprehensive Plan supplement, refine, and support the Residential Land Use and 
Housing policies of the Metro Plan but do not replace those policies.6  The Recreation Element of 
the Springfield Comprehensive Plan is the Willamalane Park and Recreation Comprehensive Plan.7  
The Transportation Element of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan is the Springfield 2035 
Transportation System Plan.8  Based on the preceding findings, these Metro Plan elements do not 
apply to the proposed amendments.  All other Metro Plan elements and policies were evaluated 
concerning their applicability to the application, and none were determined to be applicable to the 
request.     

Springfield Comprehensive Plan 
The unincorporated land within the Springfield UGB is urbanizable and is considered part of 
Springfield’s land base for housing, employment, public facilities, and other uses.  Urbanizable 
lands exist in various areas of the Springfield UGB, including Glenwood and the subject property, 
and are designated for a variety of land uses.  The land use designation determines the applicable 
zoning, both before and after annexation.   

According to Table 1. Urbanizable Land Plan Designations & Application Zoning Districts, the 
subject site is within the Urbanizable Frings Overlay District (UF-10) and the Glenwood Riverfront 
Mixed-Use Plan District before annexation and will be within the Glenwood Employment Mixed-Use 
Zoning District after annexation. 

The Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urbanization Element retains the urbanization policy criteria 
for approving annexations: 

Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urbanization Element Policy 30: Unincorporated land within 
the Springfield UGB may be developed with permitted uses at maximum density only upon 
annexation to the City when it is found that key urban facilities and services can be provided 
to the area to be annexed in an orderly and efficient manner. Provision of these services to 
the area proposed for annexation is consistent with the timing and location for such 
extension, where applicable, in the City’s infrastructure plans — such as the Public Facilities 
and Services Plan; the Springfield Transportation System Plan; the City’s Capital 
Improvement Program; and the urbanization goals, policies and implementation strategies of 
this Element — or a logical time within which to deliver these services has been determined, 
based upon demonstrated need and budgetary priorities.   

Accordingly, conformance with Urbanization Element Policy 30 is provided under the findings for 
SDC 5.7140C.   

Policy statement UG-1 is relevant to the proposed annexation request: 

 

4  Metro Plan, p. II-E-1 and p. III-B-1. 
5  Springfield Residential Lane Use & Housing element, p. 27. 
6  Metro Plan, p. III-A-1. 
7  Springfield Comprehensive Plan, p. iv. 
8  Springfield Comprehensive Plan, p. iv. 

Attachment 2 
20 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 15 

Promote compact, orderly and efficient urban development by guiding future growth to 
vacant sites and redevelopment areas within the established areas of the city and to 
urbanize lands where future annexation and development may occur. 

The subject site is vacant, identified as an employment mixed-use development area, and is within 
an urbanization area.  The proposed request is for annexation approval.  Therefore, the proposal is 
consistent with Policy statement UG-1.  Of the implementation strategies, only one is relevant to the 
proposal: 

3.  Any development taking place within the City’s urbanizable area shall be designed to the 
development standards of the Springfield Development Code.   

Following approval of Annexation, Site Plan Review and other associated site-specific land use 
applications (i.e., Willamette Greenway Overlay District, Floodplain Development Overlay, and 
Hillside Development Overlay District) are required for the project.  Compliance with this strategy is 
ensured through approval of required site-specific land use applications.     

Glenwood Refinement Plan 
The subject site is within Subarea D of the Glenwood Refinement Plan (GRP), adopted by the City 
and Lane County as a neighborhood refinement to the Metro Plan in 2012.  Subsequently, the 
Glenwood Riverfront Mixed-Use Plan District was incorporated into the Springfield Development 
Code as SDC 3.4-200.  While the GRP and Code allow certain “low impact public utility facilities,” 
there is no provision for “high impact public utility facilities” within the subject site’s Employment 
Mixed Use zoning district.  The proposed water treatment and filtration facility is considered a high-
impact public utility facility.  The GRP text does not anticipate the size and type of water facilities 
proposed by EWEB.  Therefore, amendments to certain GRP text and to the table for allowed uses 
in the SDC for the Glenwood Plan District are required for the planned project.  The proposed plan 
and code amendments are not required for annexation approval. 

The GRP Urban Transition and Annexation chapter contains an objective and policies and 
implementation strategies directed toward supporting opportunities for compact growth, an efficient 
land use pattern, and a well-planned supporting street and infrastructure system.  The following 
object addressing annexation: 

Provide orderly and efficient conversion of land from urbanizable to urban in the Glenwood 
Riverfront through the annexation process based upon the availability of a minimum level of 
key urban facilities and services. 

This proposal fulfills the annexation process stated in the objective.  The findings SDC 5.7-140C 
demonstrate that a minimum level of key urban facilities and services are available to serve the 
site.9  None of the other policies and implementation strategies in the GRP are applicable to the 
proposal.  

The preceding findings demonstrate that the proposal is consistent with applicable policies in the 
Metro Plan, Springfield Comprehensive Plan, and Glenwood Refinement Plan.  This criterion is 

 

9  The Metro Plan defines the minimum level of key urban facilities and services as wastewater service, stormwater 
service, transportation, solid waste management, water service; fire and emergency medical services, police protection; 
citywide park and recreation programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools 
on a district-wide basis.   

Attachment 2 
21 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 16 

satisfied. 

(C) The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level 
of key urban facilities and services, as defined in the Metro Plan, can be 
provided in an orderly, efficient and timely manner; and 

The Metro Plan provides policy direction regarding requests for annexation approval.  By way of 
consistency with the Metro Plan and approval of land use applications and permits to fulfill the 
EWEB’s vision for the subject property, the minimum level of key urban facilities and services can 
be provided in an orderly and efficient manner within a logical timeframe.   

Pages III-G-1 through III-G-15 of the Metro Plan set forth the Plan’s Public Facilities and Services 
Element.  As stated on page III-G-1, “[t]he policies in this element complement Metro Plan Chapter 
II-A, Fundamental Principles, and Chapter II-C, Growth Management.”  The request addresses 
Chapter II-C, as the Applicant does not request to extend utility infrastructure outside the Springfield 
UGB or Springfield city limits.  Therefore, the request will allow Springfield and the entire 
metropolitan area to develop a “timely, orderly, and efficient arrangement of public facilities and 
services…”  The following policies that do not specifically address governmental action are 
potentially relevant to the subject request: 
 

Policy G.1: Extend the minimum level and full range of key urban facilities and services in an 
orderly and efficient manner consistent with the growth management policies in Chapter II-
C, relevant policies in this chapter, and other Metro Plan policies. 

 
Policy G.2: Use the planned facilities maps of the Public Facilities and Services Plan to 
guide the general location of water, wastewater, stormwater, and electrical projects in the 
metropolitan area.  Use local facility master plans, refinement plans, and ordinances as the 
guide for detailed planning and project implementation. 
 
Policy G.9: Eugene and Springfield and their respective utility branches, EWEB and SUB, 
shall ultimately be the water service providers within the UGB. 

 
The acknowledgment of pages III-G-1 through III-G-15 of the Metro Plan and page III-G-1, whereby 
“[t]he policies in this element complement Metro Plan Chapter II-A, Fundamental Principles, and 
Chapter II-C, Growth Management” demonstrates that all required development features will remain 
within the UGB in order to allow Springfield to develop a “timely, orderly, and efficient arrangement 
of public facilities and services…” as confirmed by the Existing Conditions Plan (Exhibit I).  The 
Applicant does not propose extension of water, sewer, or electrical service outside the UGB.  

The Vicinity Map (Exhibit H) shows the subject parcel in the southwest corner of Springfield and 
within the UGB.  The proposed second source site is between McVay Highway and Interstate 5 (I-
5).  The subject property is below the confluence of the Middle and Coast Forks of the Willamette 
River in Glenwood.  The property is accessed by a gravel road extending from McVay Highway to 
the east and through the SUB property to the west.   
 
The Metro Plan defines “minimum level of key urban facilities and services” as:  

“Wastewater service, stormwater service, transportation, solid waste management, water 
service, fire and emergency medical services, police protection, city-wide parks and 
recreation programs, electric service, land use controls, communication facilities, and public 

Attachment 2 
22 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 17 

schools on a district-wide basis (in other words, not necessarily within walking distance of all 
students served.” 
 

The following utility infrastructure and urban services are in the vicinity of the site or currently serve 
the site:    

Transportation 
Springfield’s 2035 Transportation System Plan (TSP) identifies two potential future roadway 
projects in the vicinity of the subject property: R-20 and PB-18.  R-20 addresses improvements on 
McVay Highway/Franklin Boulevard from East 19th Avenue to I-5 and involves the construction of a 
two- or three-lane cross-section with sidewalks, bicycle facilities, and transit facilities consistent with 
the Main Street/McVay Highway Transit Feasibility study.  PB-18 addresses the construction of a 
new multiuse (pedestrian/bike) 12-foot-wide path from the Willamette River bridges to the UGB.  
The Springfield Conceptual Local Street Map does not show proposed new streets in the vicinity of 
the subject property.  The annexation agreement between EWEB and the City resulting from this 
application will address future transportation facilities.  

Water Service 
EWEB is planning the construction of a second drinking water intake and treatment plant d to 
increase system resiliency and to better serve local public utility customers.  The water treatment 
plant will generate water for the subject development.  Therefore, water service is not required for 
the development or is a requirement of annexation approval.   

Wastewater Service 
There is an existing 8 to 12-inch wastewater main located TL 01200 (18030340), owned by the City 
of Springfield, that is approximately 270 feet from the eastern edge of TL 00700.  Another 8 to 12-
inch wastewater main is located in the Newman Street right-of-way that is approximately 150 feet 
from the eastern edge of TL 00300.  Connection to one or both facilities will require boring under 
the Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way or utilizing an existing culvert crossing.  The facility at TL 
01200 is the most likely connection point given the proximity to planned development.   

Stormwater Service 
There are existing stormwater facilities on TL 00500 (18030340) and TL 01200 located 
approximately 170 feet from the eastern edge of TL 00700.  Another 24-inch diameter stormwater 
trunk line is located in the Newman Street right-of-way approximately 170 feet from the eastern 
edge of TL 00300   

Electrical Service 
The Springfield Utility Board (SUB) provides electric services within the City of Springfield’s city 
limits under the authority of the Springfield City Charter.  SUB owns the properties directly to the 
west of the subject site and owner service is available.   

Solid Waste Service 
Sanipac provides solid waste management services in conjunction with Short Mountain Landfill, 
which is administered by Lane County and has adequate capacity, to serve the subject 
development.   

Emergency Services 

Attachment 2 
23 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL 18 

Upon annexation approval, the subject property will be within service response area of Eugene 
Springfield Fire.  The subject site is currently within the Goshen Rural Fire Protection District and 
will be withdrawn from this district upon annexation approval.   
 
Police Services 
Currently, the City of Springfield police provide police services to the areas within the city limits 
adjacent to the subject property.  Following annexation, the City of Springfield police will provide 
police protection for the subject property. 
 
Communication Services 
Wire and wireless communication services are provided throughout Springfield, and the subject 
property can generally receive services from private providers.   

Education Services 
Springfield School District 19 provides K-12 educational needs in Springfield.  The subject property 
is within the service area boundaries of Centennial Elementary School, Hamlin Middle School, and 
Springfield High School. 

Based on the above findings, Criterion “C” is satisfied.    

(D) Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an 
Annexation Agreement or other mechanism approved by the City Council. 
(6212) 

The City has the authority to require and specify mitigation through an Annexation Agreement or 
other mechanism.  If warranted under this criterion, the City can impose and condition an 
Annexation Agreement or other mechanism in conjunction with approval of the Applicant’s request.  
This provision notwithstanding, the enclosed findings and documentation submitted herewith 
demonstrate that the Applicant assumes the full cost of infrastructure and extension of services 
necessary to serve the site.  Therefore, mitigation of the cost of providing infrastructure to the site 
through an Annexation Agreement is not applicable to the request.  Any future mitigation 
requirements can be deferred and conditioned as part of subsequent land use approvals.  The 
above findings coupled with the City’s authority to mitigate for any fiscal impacts provide sufficient 
demonstration that Criterion “D” is satisfied.         

5.2 Conclusion 

Based on available information, supporting materials, and findings in Section 5.1, the annexation 
request is consistent with all applicable approval criteria, standards, and other provisions. 

Attachment 2 
24 of 240



EWEB 
Glenwood Second Source 
Annexation Application  December 11, 2024  
 
 

Cameron McCarthy INITIAL SUBMITTAL EXHIBITS 

 
 

EXHIBITS 
 

 

Attachment 2 
25 of 240



Attachment 2 
26 of 240



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ 14 of 17 

FORM 2 
 
 

OWNERSHIP WORKSHEET 
 

(This form is NOT the petition) 
 

(Please include the name and address of ALL owners regardless of whether they 

signed an annexation petition or not.   
 

OWNERS 
 

Property Designation 
(Map/lot number) 

 
Name of Owner 

 
Acres 

Assessed 
Value 

Imp. 
Y / N 

Signed 
Yes 

Signed 
No 

       

       

       

      

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

TOTALS:      

 
 

 

TOTAL NUMBER OF OWNERS IN THE PROPOSAL     

NUMBER OF OWNERS WHO SIGNED   

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERS WHO SIGNED    

TOTAL ACREAGE IN PROPOSAL    

ACREAGE SIGNED FOR    

PERCENTAGE OF ACREAGE SIGNED FOR    

TOTAL VALUE IN THE PROPOSAL  

VALUE CONSENTED FOR  

PERCENTAGE OF VALUE CONSENTED FOR  

18-03-02-33, 5100 
18-03-03-40, 300
18-03-03-40, 700 

Eugene Water & Electric Board

Eugene Water & Electric Board

Eugene Water & Electric Board

1
1

100

100

7.74
1.32

15.94

N
Y
N

25.00

25.00

25.00

$128,550

$128,550
100

Attachment 2 
27 of 240

cmcarthur
Text Box
$33,965

cmcarthur
Text Box
$500

cmcarthur
Text Box
$94,085

cmcarthur
Text Box
$128,550



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 15 of 17 

FORM 3 
 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FORM 
 

(Complete all the following questions and provide all the requested information.  Attach 
any responses that require additional space, restating the question or request for 

information on additional sheets.) 
 

Contact Person:         

E-mail:          

 

Supply the following information regarding the annexation area. 

 Estimated Population (at present):       

 Number of Existing Residential Units:       

 Other Uses:           

 Land Area:      total acres  

 Existing Plan Designation(s):           

 Existing Zoning(s):             

 Existing Land Use(s):            

 Applicable Comprehensive Plan(s):           

 Applicable Refinement Plan(s):           

 Provide evidence that the annexation is consistent with the applicable 

comprehensive plan(s) and any associated refinement plans.      

             

              

 Are there development plans associated with this proposed annexation?   

 Yes    No    

 If yes, describe. 

       

              

 Is the proposed use or development allowed on the property under the current 

plan designation and zoning? 

 Yes    No    

 

 Please describe where the proposed annexation is contiguous to the city limits 

(non-contiguous annexations cannot be approved under 5.7-140, Criteria).   

       

             

Laura Farthing, P.E.

Laura.Farthing@EWEB.org

0

0

N/A
25.00

Employment M.U.
Parks and Open Space

Vacant, residential
Metro Plan

Glenwood Refinement Plan

05100 is contiguous to City Limits at the west property boundary. 00300 is separated from City Limits
at the north property boundary by right of way, is contiguous to 00700 at the south property boundary, 
and will be contiguous upon annexation of 00700. 00700 is contiguous to City Limits at the east property boundary.

See application narrative

Water Treatment Plant

Attachment 2 
28 of 240



 

Revised 4/8/14 BJ Page 16 of 17 

Does this application include all contiguous property under the same ownership? 

 Yes     No    

 If no, state the reasons why all property is not included: 

              

              

 

 Check the special districts and others that provide service to the annexation 

area: 

   Glenwood Water District   Rainbow Water and Fire District 

   Eugene School District   Pleasant Hill School District 

   Springfield School District   McKenzie Fire & Rescue 

   Pleasant Hill RFPD   Willakenzie RFPD 

   EPUD   SUB 

   Willamalane Parks and Rec District   Other   __________________   

 
 Names of persons to whom staff notes and notices should be sent, in addition to 

applicant(s), such as an agent or legal representative. 
 

              

(Name)      (Name) 

              

(Address)      (Address) 

              

(City)    (Zip)   (City)     (Zip) 

              

(Name)      (Name) 

              

(Address)      (Address) 

              

(City)     (Zip)  (City)    (Zip) 

 

Laura Farthing, P.E.

Colin McArthur

Eugene 97402

4200 Roosevelt Blvd.

Eugene 97401

160 E Broadway

Attachment 2 
29 of 240



Attachment 2 
30 of 240



Attachment 2 
31 of 240



Attachment 2 
32 of 240



Attachment 2 
33 of 240



Attachment 2 
34 of 240



Attachment 2 
35 of 240



Attachment 2 
36 of 240



Attachment 2 
37 of 240



Attachment 2 
38 of 240



Attachment 2 
39 of 240



MAIN OFFICE 

675 OAK STREET, SUITE 100 

EUGENE, OREGON 97401 

PH:  (541) 687-2233 * FAX:  (541)485-0307  

FLORENCE OFFICE 

715 HWY 101 * FLORENCE, OREGON 97439 

MAILING: PO BOX 508 * FLORENCE, OREGON 97439 

PH:  (541) 997-8417 * FAX:  (541)997-8246  

VILLAGE PLAZA OFFICE 

4750 VILLAGE PLAZA LOOP, SUITE 100 

EUGENE, OREGON 97401 

PH:  (541) 653-8622 * FAX:  (541) 844-1626  

 

 
 

STATUS OF RECORD TITLE REPORT 
SUPPLEMENTAL 

 

 

EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC BOARD  Date:     SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 

ATTN:  TIM O'DELL  Our No:   CT-0338589 

500 EAST 4TH AVENUE  Your No:  -- 

EUGENE, OR  97440  Charge:   $300.00 

   

 

As requested, Cascade Title Co. has searched our tract indices as to the following 

described real property: 

 

( A T T A C H E D ) 

 

and as of:  SEPTEMBER 20, 2024 at 8:00 A.M., we find the following: 

 

Vestee: 

CITY OF EUGENE, OREGON, 

acting by and through the 

EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC BOARD, 

an Oregon municipal corporation 

 

Said property is subject to the following on record matters: 

 

1. Property taxes in an undetermined amount, which are a lien but not yet payable, 

including any assessments collected with taxes to be levied for the fiscal year 

2024-2025. 

 

2. Taxes, including the current fiscal year, not assessed due to Municipal Other 

Exemption. If the exempt status is terminated under the statute prior to the date 

on which the assessment roll becomes the tax roll in the year in which said taxes 

were assessed, additional taxes may be levied. 

 

3. Easement, including the terms and provisions thereof, granted to Mountain States 

Power Company, a Delaware Corporation, by instrument recorded April 9, 1947, 

Reception No. B345 P311, Lane County Oregon Deed Records. 

 

4. Easement, including the terms and provisions thereof, granted the United States of 

America, by instrument recorded February 19, 1952, Reception No. B454 P644, Lane 

County Oregon Deed Records. 

     Assignment of power line easements and electric facilities, including the 

terms and provisions thereof, from the United States of America, acting by and 

through the Department of Energy, Bonneville Power Administration, to the 

Springfield Utility Board, by instrument recorded August 2, 2002, Reception No. 

2002-058538, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

*0338589* 

Attachment 2 
40 of 240

https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/17451e1e5f5c4cbf72890e9ac040e8c8/B345%20P311.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/83b4e673e465d683f8b0fd21c04290b0/B454%20P644.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/ab48d7b8f1d4b39e6f6a42896b82fd28/2002-058538.pdf


Order No.  0338589  

Page 2 

 

 

5. Access Restrictions, including the terms and provisions thereof, contained in deed 

from John E. Parrott and Florence Mae Parrott, husband and wife, and Elmer S. 

Johnson and Wanda P. Johnson, husband and wife, to the State of Oregon, by and 

through its State Highway Commission, recorded September 14, 1953, Reception No. 

1953-012501, Lane County Oregon Deed Records. 

 

6. Access Restrictions, including the terms and provisions thereof, contained in deed 

from Gordon S. Travis and Verna Travis, husband and wife, to the State of Oregon, 

by and through its State Highway Commission, recorded July 8, 1955, Reception No. 

1955-060622, Lane County Oregon Deed Records. 

 

7. Access Restrictions, including the terms and provisions thereof, contained in deed 

from Mike M. Savelich and Thelma C. Savelich, also known as Thelma Savelich, 

husband and wife, to the State of Oregon, by and through its State Highway 

Commission, recorded November 23, 1960, Reception No. 1960-016196, Lane County 

Oregon Deed Records. 

 

8. Access Restrictions, including the terms and provisions thereof, contained in deed 

from Mike M. Savelich and Thelma Savelich, husband and wife, to the State of 

Oregon, by and through its State Highway Commission, recorded December 16, 1965, 

Reception No. 1965-029995, Lane County Oregon Deed Records. 

 

9. Easement, including the terms and provisions thereof, granted the City of Eugene, a 

municipal corporation, for the use and benefit of the Eugene Water & Electric 

Board, by instrument recorded September 22, 1967, Reception No. 1967-099249, Lane 

County Oregon Deed Records. 

 

10. Notice of Agreement, including the terms and provisions thereof, between US West/New 

Vector, and the City of Eugene, recorded March 15, 1995, Reception No. 1995-014753, 

Lane County Official Records. 

 

11. Unrecorded Lease, including the terms and provisions thereof, dated September 26, 

1994, between Edward L. Macauley, Lessor, and Eugene-Springfield Limited 

Partnership, Lessee, as evidenced by Memorandum of Option & Lease Agreement, 

recorded May 24, 1995, Reception No. 1995-029025, Lane County Official Records. 

 

12. Notice of Agreement, including the terms and provisions thereof, between AirTouch 

Cellular/US West/New Vector, and the City of Eugene, recorded May 28, 1997, 

Reception No. 1997-035823, Lane County Official Records. 

 

13. Unrecorded Lease, including the terms and provisions thereof, between AirTouch 

Communications, Inc., Sublessor, and American Tower Delaware Corporation, Sublessee, 

dated January 19, 2000, as evidenced by Memorandum of Sublease, recorded June 9, 

2000, Reception No. 2000-032924, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

14. Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan, including the terms and provisions thereof, recorded 

December 14, 2004, Reception No. 2004-095229, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

15. 20 foot wide ingress, egress and utility easement as disclosed by instruments 

recorded May 24, 1995, Reception No. 1995-029025, Lane County Official Records, and 

recorded June 9, 2000, Reception No. 2000-032924, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

16. Easement Deed by Court Order, including the terms and provisions thereof, recorded 

January 9, 2014, Reception No. 2014-000678, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 
41 of 240

https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2941f3201ae606c1964818373cabc580/1953-012501.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/b5e670ca253367e01ddacb0717449309/1955-060622.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/eb09ca4e7b1d03775b32dc694a7875e3/1960-016196.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/84faaba2d51932eb3175164a4412fa6c/1965-029995.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/4b6786c77a10f8f12fe7b78d3c8bf2ef/1967-099249.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/f95645b32ea3c7086568ad69417b59bc/1995-014753.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2778b868206c91ab07202a99589174da/1995-029025.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/191e7bec17c10e1aa416d972bf327461/1997-035823.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1df64f488bdc4514328313c2d38c20b1/2000-032924.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/7b42482babf7682fd2587da318ead091/2004-095229.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2778b868206c91ab07202a99589174da/1995-029025.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1df64f488bdc4514328313c2d38c20b1/2000-032924.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/50e83271e445003c36913e491e49affd/2014-000678.pdf


Order No.  0338589  

Page 3 

 

 

17. Unrecorded Option and Lease Agreement and Right of First Refusal, including the 

terms and provisions thereof, dated September 26, 1994, between Ed’s Big Pine LLC, 

Landlord, and Verizon Wireless (VAW) LLC d/b/a Verizon Wireless, Tenant, as 

evidenced by Memorandum of Lease, recorded October 28, 2016, Reception No. 2016-

053760, Lane County Deeds and Records.  

 

18. Unrecorded Sublease, including the terms and provisions thereof, between Verizon 

Wireless (VAW) LLC d/b/a Verizon Wireless, Lessor, and American Tower Delaware 

Corporation, Lessee, as evidenced by Memorandum of Lease, recorded October 28, 

2016, Reception No. 2016-053760, Lane County Deeds and Records.  

 

19. Access and utilities easements, including the terms and provisions thereof, as 

evidenced by Memorandum of Lease, recorded October 28, 2016, Reception No. 2016-

053760, Lane County Deeds and Records.  

 

20. Unrecorded Lease, including the terms and provisions thereof, between the City of 

Eugene, Oregon, acting by and through the Eugene Water and Electric Board, Lessor, 

and Verizon Wireless (VAW) LLC, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, Lessee, dated May 18, 2017, 

as evidenced by Memorandum of Lease, recorded June 14, 2017, Reception No. 2017-

028334, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

21. Transmission Line Easement Agreement, including the terms and provisions thereof, 

between City of Eugene, Lane County, Oregon, by and through the Eugene Water & 

Electric Board, a municipal corporation, and the City of Springfield acting by and 

through the Springfield Utility Board, a municipal corporation, recorded September 

13, 2021, Reception No. 2021-059416, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

22. Transmission Line Access Easement Agreement, including the terms and provisions 

thereof, between City of Eugene, Lane County, Oregon, by and through the Eugene 

Water & Electric Board, a municipal corporation, and the City of Springfield acting 

by and through the Springfield Utility Board, a municipal corporation, recorded 

September 13, 2021, Reception No. 2021-059417, Lane County Deeds and Records. 

 

23. Access Easement Agreement, including the terms and provisions thereof, between the 

City of Springfield acting by and through the Springfield Utility Board, a municipal 

corporation, and City of Eugene, Lane County, Oregon, by and through the Eugene 

Water & Electric Board, recorded September 13, 2021, Reception No. 2021-059422, Lane 

County Deeds and Records. 

 

NOTE:  The property address as shown on the Assessor's Roll is: 

 

  5310 Franklin Blvd 

  Eugene, OR 97403 

 

NOTE:  Taxes, Account No. 0583243, Assessor's Map No. 18 03 03 4 0, #300, Code 4-46, 

2023-2024, in the amount of $14.53, PAID IN FULL. 

  Taxes, Account No. 1898376, Assessor's Map No. 18 03 03 4 0, #300-901, Code 4-46, 

2023-2024, in the amount of $530.17, PAID IN FULL.  (Billboard) 

  Taxes, Account No. 1904497, Assessor's Map No. 18 03 03 4 0, #300-902, Code 4-46, 

2023-2024, in the amount of $267.69, PAID IN FULL.  (Billboard) 

  Taxes, Account No. 0583292, Assessor's Map No. 18 03 03 4 0, #700, Code 4-46, 

2023-2024, in the amount of $0.00, EXEMPT. 

  Taxes, Account No. 0583300, Assessor's Map No. 18 03 03 4 0, #700, Code 19-18, 

2023-2024, in the amount of $0.00, EXEMPT. 

 

NOTE:  This report is being supplemented to add new exception no. 1, remove prior 

exception no. 16, update the taxes and legal description. 

 

 

Attachment 2 
42 of 240

https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1b0b74864b04acc1964c093656a5cb8c/2016-053760.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1b0b74864b04acc1964c093656a5cb8c/2016-053760.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1b0b74864b04acc1964c093656a5cb8c/2016-053760.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1b0b74864b04acc1964c093656a5cb8c/2016-053760.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/1b0b74864b04acc1964c093656a5cb8c/2016-053760.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/6fd688cf01043d58f5e7171f5a70d1cd/2017-028334.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/6fd688cf01043d58f5e7171f5a70d1cd/2017-028334.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/bfc52ea88f4c77dadf80195390bcf261/2021-059416.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/63d8d587cf732c1ba71ece727d29e1e7/2021-059417.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/437d4b0112f66f455086ecb666b6d076/2021-059422.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2f24f9135c9e2c86ecab4f37e753d2c5/0338589-propmap-1.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2f24f9135c9e2c86ecab4f37e753d2c5/0338589-propmap-1.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2f24f9135c9e2c86ecab4f37e753d2c5/0338589-propmap-1.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2f24f9135c9e2c86ecab4f37e753d2c5/0338589-propmap-1.pdf
https://drs.cascadetitle.com/a60f974d4597f083b16d0d3f876d3560/2f24f9135c9e2c86ecab4f37e753d2c5/0338589-propmap-1.pdf


Order No.  0338589  

Page 4 

 

 

This report is to be utilized for information only.  This report is not to be used as a 

basis for transferring, encumbering or foreclosing the real property described. 

 

The liability of Cascade Title Co. is limited to the addressee and shall not exceed the 

premium paid hereunder. 

 

CASCADE TITLE CO., by: 

 

 

rh:  Title Officer: KURT BEATY 

Attachment 2 
43 of 240



Order No.  0338589  

Page 5 

 

 

 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

 

PARCEL 1: 

 

That part of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 63, Township 18 South, Range 3 

West of the Willamette Meridian, described as:  Beginning at a point on the Easterly 

line of the right of way for Primary State Highway No. 1, said point being North 2471.5 

feet and West 824.1 feet from the Southeast corner of Section 3, Township 18, South, 

Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence along a curve to the right of 1542.5 

feet radius a distance of 274.8 feet (the long chord of which curve bears South 22° 28’ 

East, 274.2 feet); thence on a spiral curve to the right a distance of 197.3 feet (the 

long chord of which curve bears South 14° 14’ East a distance of 196.9 feet); thence 

South 47° 57’ East, 153.9 feet; thence North 42° 03’ East, 291.0 feet; thence North 6° 

21’ West, 313.0 feet to the Westerly line of the Southern Pacific Railroad’s right of 

way; thence following the Westerly line of said railway right of way bearing 

Northwesterly a distance of 857 feet, more or less, to a point North of the point of 

beginning; thence South 734 feet to the point of beginning, in Lane County, Oregon. 

 

EXCEPT that certain tract conveyed to the State of Oregon by deed recorded July 8, 

1955, Reception No. 60622, Lane County Oregon Deed Records, in Lane County, 

Oregon. 

 

ALSO EXCEPT that certain tract conveyed to the State of Oregon by deed recorded 

November 23, 1960, Reception No. 16196, Lane County Oregon Deed Records, in Lane 

County, Oregon. 

 

 

PARCEL 2: 

 

Beginning at a point on the East line of the right of way of the Eugene to Goshen 

Highway opposite and 110 feet distant from the Highway Station 282.00 as described in 

that certain deed from C. A. Huntington, et ux, to the State of Oregon, recorded in Book 

249, Page 356, Lane County Oregon Deed Records, said point also being 539.2 feet North 

444.2 feet West of the Southeast corner of Section 3, Township 18 South, Range 3 West of 

the Willamette Meridian; and running thence Northerly along the Easterly line of said 

proposed highway to the beginning point of the third course of the description of the 

property conveyed to Elmer E. Stewart, et ux, to David Travis by deed recorded in Book 

325, Page 507, Lane County Oregon Deed Records; thence following the Southerly and 

Easterly line of said Travis property South 47° 57’ East, 153.9 feet, North 42° 03’ 

East, 291.0 feet and North 6° 21’ West, 313.0 feet to the Westerly line of the Southern 

Pacific Railroad right of way; thence Southeasterly along the West of said right of way 

to the intersection of the centerline of the County Road leading from Springfield 

Junction to Goshen (now known as U.S. Highway 99); thence following the centerline of 

said road in a Southerly direction to the Northeast corner of the property conveyed by 

Elmer E. Stewart, et ux, to J. F. Twohey by deed recorded in Book 315, Page 496, Lane 

County Oregon Deed Records; and thence following the Northerly line of said Twohey 

property North 35° 37’ West 69 feet and North 69° 53’ West 347.2 feet to the place of 

beginning, in Lane County, Oregon. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM those portions conveyed to the State of Oregon, by and through 

its State Highway Commission, by those Warranty Deeds recorded September 14, 1953, 

Reception No. 12501, recorded November 23, 1960, Reception No. 16196, and recorded 

December 16, 1965, Reception No. 29995, Lane County Oregon Deed Records, in Lane 

County, Oregon. 

 

 

Attachment 2 
44 of 240



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAP NO. 

18-03-03-40 

THIS MAP/PLAT IS BEING FURNISHED AS AN AID IN LOCATING THE HEREIN DESCRIBED LAND IN 

RELATION TO ADJOINING STREETS, NATURAL BOUNDARIES AND OTHER LAND, AND IS NOT A SURVEY 

OF THE LAND DEPICTED. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT A POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE IS EXPRESSLY 

MODIFIED BY ENDORSEMENT, IF ANY, THE COMPANY DOES NOT INSURE DIMENSIONS, DISTANCES, 

LOCATION OF EASEMENTS, ACREAGE OR OTHER MATTERS SHOWN THEREON. 

  

 

 

Attachment 2 
45 of 240



Attachment 2 
46 of 240



Attachment 2 
47 of 240



Attachment 2 
48 of 240



Attachment 2 
49 of 240



Attachment 2 
50 of 240



Attachment 2 
51 of 240



Attachment 2 
52 of 240



Attachment 2 
53 of 240



Attachment 2 
54 of 240



Attachment 2 
55 of 240



Attachment 2 
56 of 240



Attachment 2 
57 of 240



Attachment 2 
58 of 240



Attachment 2 
59 of 240



Attachment 2 
60 of 240



Attachment 2 
61 of 240



Attachment 2 
62 of 240



Attachment 2 
63 of 240



Attachment 2 
64 of 240



Attachment 2 
65 of 240



Attachment 2 
66 of 240



Attachment 2 
67 of 240



Attachment 2 
68 of 240



Attachment 2 
69 of 240



Attachment 2 
70 of 240



Attachment 2 
71 of 240



Attachment 2 
72 of 240



Attachment 2 
73 of 240



Attachment 2 
74 of 240



Attachment 2 
75 of 240



Attachment 2 
76 of 240



Attachment 2 
77 of 240



Attachment 2 
78 of 240



Attachment 2 
79 of 240



Attachment 2 
80 of 240



Attachment 2 
81 of 240



Attachment 2 
82 of 240



Attachment 2 
83 of 240



Attachment 2 
84 of 240



Attachment 2 
85 of 240



Attachment 2 
86 of 240



Attachment 2 
87 of 240



Attachment 2 
88 of 240



Attachment 2 
89 of 240



Attachment 2 
90 of 240



Attachment 2 
91 of 240



Attachment 2 
92 of 240



Attachment 2 
93 of 240



Attachment 2 
94 of 240



Attachment 2 
95 of 240



Attachment 2 
96 of 240



Attachment 2 
97 of 240



Attachment 2 
98 of 240



Attachment 2 
99 of 240



Attachment 2 
100 of 240



Attachment 2 
101 of 240



Attachment 2 
102 of 240



Attachment 2 
103 of 240



Attachment 2 
104 of 240



Attachment 2 
105 of 240



Attachment 2 
106 of 240



Attachment 2 
107 of 240



Attachment 2 
108 of 240



Attachment 2 
109 of 240



Attachment 2 
110 of 240



Attachment 2 
111 of 240



Attachment 2 
112 of 240



Attachment 2 
113 of 240



Attachment 2 
114 of 240



Attachment 2 
115 of 240



Attachment 2 
116 of 240



Attachment 2 
117 of 240



Attachment 2 
118 of 240



Attachment 2 
119 of 240



Attachment 2 
120 of 240



Attachment 2 
121 of 240



Attachment 2 
122 of 240



Attachment 2 
123 of 240



Attachment 2 
124 of 240



Attachment 2 
125 of 240



Attachment 2 
126 of 240



Attachment 2 
127 of 240



Attachment 2 
128 of 240



Attachment 2 
129 of 240



Attachment 2 
130 of 240



Attachment 2 
131 of 240



Attachment 2 
132 of 240



Attachment 2 
133 of 240



Attachment 2 
134 of 240



Attachment 2 
135 of 240



Attachment 2 
136 of 240



Attachment 2 
137 of 240



Attachment 2 
138 of 240



Attachment 2 
139 of 240



Attachment 2 
140 of 240



Attachment 2 
141 of 240



Attachment 2 
142 of 240



Attachment 2 
143 of 240



Attachment 2 
144 of 240



Attachment 2 
145 of 240



Attachment 2 
146 of 240



Attachment 2 
147 of 240



Attachment 2 
148 of 240



Attachment 2 
149 of 240



Attachment 2 
150 of 240



Attachment 2 
151 of 240



Attachment 2 
152 of 240



Attachment 2 
153 of 240



Attachment 2 
154 of 240



Attachment 2 
155 of 240



Attachment 2 
156 of 240



Attachment 2 
157 of 240



Attachment 2 
158 of 240



Attachment 2 
159 of 240



Attachment 2 
160 of 240



Attachment 2 
161 of 240



Attachment 2 
162 of 240



Attachment 2 
163 of 240



Attachment 2 
164 of 240



Attachment 2 
165 of 240



Attachment 2 
166 of 240



Attachment 2 
167 of 240



Attachment 2 
168 of 240



Attachment 2 
169 of 240



Attachment 2 
170 of 240



Attachment 2 
171 of 240



Attachment 2 
172 of 240



Attachment 2 
173 of 240



Attachment 2 
174 of 240



Attachment 2 
175 of 240



Attachment 2 
176 of 240



Attachment 2 
177 of 240



Attachment 2 
178 of 240



Attachment 2 
179 of 240



Attachment 2 
180 of 240



Attachment 2 
181 of 240



Attachment 2 
182 of 240



Attachment 2 
183 of 240



Attachment 2 
184 of 240



Attachment 2 
185 of 240



Attachment 2 
186 of 240



Attachment 2 
187 of 240



Attachment 2 
188 of 240



Attachment 2 
189 of 240



Attachment 2 
190 of 240



Attachment 2 
191 of 240



Attachment 2 
192 of 240



Attachment 2 
193 of 240



Attachment 2 
194 of 240



Attachment 2 
195 of 240



Attachment 2 
196 of 240



Attachment 2 
197 of 240



Attachment 2 
198 of 240



Attachment 2 
199 of 240



Attachment 2 
200 of 240



Attachment 2 
201 of 240



Attachment 2 
202 of 240



Attachment 2 
203 of 240



Attachment 2 
204 of 240



Attachment 2 
205 of 240



Attachment 2 
206 of 240



Attachment 2 
207 of 240



Attachment 2 
208 of 240



Attachment 2 
209 of 240



Attachment 2 
210 of 240



Attachment 2 
211 of 240



Attachment 2 
212 of 240



Attachment 2 
213 of 240



Attachment 2 
214 of 240



Attachment 2 
215 of 240



Attachment 2 
216 of 240



Attachment 2 
217 of 240



Attachment 2 
218 of 240



Attachment 2 
219 of 240



Attachment 2 
220 of 240



Attachment 2 
221 of 240



Attachment 2 
222 of 240



Attachment 2 
223 of 240



Attachment 2 
224 of 240



Attachment 2 
225 of 240



Attachment 2 
226 of 240



Attachment 2 
227 of 240



Attachment 2 
228 of 240



Attachment 2 
229 of 240



Attachment 2 
230 of 240



Attachment 2 
231 of 240



Attachment 2 
232 of 240



Attachment 2 
233 of 240



Attachment 2 
234 of 240



Attachment 2 
235 of 240



Attachment 2 
236 of 240



I-5

FRANKLIN BLVD

MCVAY HWY

24'' CC

420 0 420210
Feet

12/02/2022

Tax Lot 
300

Tax Lot 
700

±INFORMATION SHOWN IS FOR EWEB USE ONLY AND IS NOT WARRENTED TO BE ACCURATE FOR UNINTENDED PURPOSES.

EWEB Easement
EWEB Easement

EW
EB

 Ea
se

me
nt

TextProposed EWEB Water Intake 
and Pump Station Sites

Proposed EWEB Water 
Treatment Plant Site

Proposed EWEB 
Pipeline Intake to 
Treatment Plant

Proposed EWEB Transmission Main
to Knickerbocker Bridge

EWEB Glenwood Second Source Site Plan

Existing 24"
Transmission main

Attachment 2 
237 of 240



Attachment 2 
238 of 240



Attachment 2 
239 of 240



Attachment 2 
240 of 240



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON
ORDINANCE NO.

(SPECIAL)

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY (FOUR VACANT PARCELS COMPRISING
APPROXIMATELY 26.6 ACRES IN SOUTH GLENWOOD AND IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR’S MAP
18-03-02-32, TAX LOT 3800; MAP 18-03-02-33, TAX LOT 5100; AND MAP 18-03-03-40, TAX LOTS

300 & 700) TO THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD AND WILLAMALANE PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT;
WITHDRAWING PORTIONS OF SAID TERRITORY FROM THE GLENWOOD WATER DISTRICT AND

FROM THE PLEASANT HILL GOSHEN FIRE & RESCUE DISTRICT; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Springfield Development Code (SDC) Article 5.7.100 and
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 222 to accept, process, and act upon annexations to the City;

WHEREAS, a request to annex certain territory was submitted on December 17, 2024, said territory being
four vacant parcels on the east and west sides of Franklin Boulevard between the Central Oregon Pacific
Railroad bridge and 5470 Franklin Boulevard (Assessor’s Map Township 18 South, Range 03 West,
Section 02, Map 32, Tax Lot 3800; Assessor’s Map Township 18 South, Range 03 West, Section 02, Map
33, Tax Lot 5100; and Assessor’s Map Township 18 South, Range 03 West, Section 03, Map 40, Tax
Lots 300 and 700) which are generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this
Ordinance;

WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.125(A)(1) and ORS 222.111, the property owner of said territory
initiated the annexation action by submittal of the required application forms and petition for annexation;

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is within the Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urban
Growth Boundary and is contiguous to the City limits. (SDC 5.7.140(A));

WHEREAS, the annexation is consistent with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization
Element requiring annexation to the City of Springfield as the highest priority for receiving urban services;

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the provision of City services to the subject area is
necessary to facilitate future urban development of the property;

WHEREAS, all required urban services are immediately available or can be reasonably extended to
serve the site and the applicant will be responsible for the connection or extension of public facilities and
services to the property upon future urban development;

WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.150(A), upon annexation the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District
(UF-10) will cease to apply to the property and the underlying Glenwood Employment Mixed Use (GEMU)
zoning will be retained;

WHEREAS, a Staff Report (Exhibit B) was presented to the City Council with the Director’s
recommendation to concurrently annex the subject territory to the Willamalane Park and Recreation
District, as this special district is a service provider for the City (SDC 5.7.140(B)), and to withdraw portions
of the subject territory from the Glenwood Water District and other portions from the Pleasant Hill Goshen
Fire & Rescue District, as the Springfield Utility Board and the Eugene-Springfield Fire Department will
provide water and emergency response services directly to the area after it is annexed to the City;

WHEREAS, this action is consistent with the intergovernmental agreement between Lane County and
Springfield regarding boundary changes dated May 21, 2008; and

Attachment 3



WHEREAS, on February 18, 2025, the Springfield Common Council conducted a public hearing and is
now ready to take action on this application based on the recommendation and findings in support of
approving the annexation request as set forth in the aforementioned Staff Report to the Council,
incorporated herein by reference, and the evidence and testimony presented at this public hearing held in
the matter of adopting this Ordinance,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve annexation of
the following described territory to the City of Springfield and Willamalane Park and Recreation District,
said territory being generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance.

Section 2. Finding that it is in the best interest of the City of Springfield based on the foregoing
recitals and the findings incorporated herein, the Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby
approve withdrawal of the territory described as Parcel 1 in Exhibit A to this Ordinance from the Pleasant
Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District.

Section 3.  Finding that it is in the best interest of the City of Springfield based on the foregoing
recitals and the findings incorporated herein, the Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby
approve withdrawal of the territory described as Parcels 2 and 3 in Exhibit A to this Ordinance from the
Glenwood Water District.

Section 4. The City Manager is authorized to enter into an Annexation Agreement with the
applicant that addresses the timing and financial responsibility for provision of public facilities and
services consistent with the findings incorporated herein, to be recorded with Lane County deeds and
records.

Section 5. The City Manager or the Development & Public Works Director or their designee
shall send copies of this Ordinance to affected State and local agencies as required by SDC 5.7.155.

Section 6. Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion
of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof.

Section 7. Effective Date of Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after
signature by the Mayor, or upon the date of its filing with the Secretary of State as provided by ORS
222.180, whichever is later.

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield, this           day of    , 2025,
by a vote of _____ for and _____ against.

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this          day of                     , 2025.

ATTEST:
Mayor

Attachment 3



City Recorder

Attachment 3



LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS OF PARCELS TO BE ANNEXED 

**NOTE** 

These descriptions are only to be used for the annexation process and do not 
represent actual title of the parcels. 

PARCEL 1: (TL 18-03-03-40-00300 & TL 700 combined) 

Those parcels of land in the Southeast one-quarter of Section 3, Township 18 South, 
Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian as described as Parcels 1 and 2 in that certain 
Stipulated General Judgement deed recorded as instrument number 2017-028337 in 
the Lane County Oregon Deeds and Records being more particularly described as 
follows:   

Beginning at the northwest corner of Parcel 1 of the above listed deed as shown on 
that certain survey filed as county survey file number 44278 in the Lane County 
Oregon Surveyors Office, said point being approximately 2553 feet north and 821 feet 
west of the southeast corner of Section 3 and on the east right-of-way of Interstate 5 as 
shown on said survey; Thence along the following 17 courses: 

1) South 37°18’47” East along said east right-of-way, 134.82 feet; thence

2) South 09°23’05” East 1412.67 feet; more or less to the Southwest corner of that
parcel of land; thence 

3) South 04°07’21” West 269.38 feet; thence

4) Along a 5609.58 foot radius curve to the left (the long chord of which bears South
10°54’11” East 260.68 feet) a distance of 260.70 feet to the southwest corner of that 
Parcel 2 as described in that deed recorded as instrument number 2017-028337 in the 
Lane County Oregon Official Records; thence  

5) leaving said east right-of-way and along the south line of said Parcel 2, South
66°28’52” East 301.72 feet to the southeast corner of said Parcel 2 and on the west 
right-of-way of McVay Highway; thence 

6) Along said west right-of-way, North 00°44’24” West 131.81 feet; thence

7) North 14°51’55” West 114.40 feet; thence

8) North 12°07’12” East 63.49 feet; thence

9) North 12°03’06” East 199.42 feet; thence

10) North 11°56’03” East 136.72 feet; thence

11) North 33°09’02” East 160.28 feet; thence

12) Along a highway spiral curve to the left (a long chord of which bears North
09°48’46” East 110.05 feet) a distance of 110.05 feet; thence 

Exhibit A
1 of 9

Attachment 3



13) Northerly along said west right-of-way of McVay Highway along a 3749.72 foot 
radius curve to the right (the long chord of which bears North 06°22’03” East 351.24 
feet) a distance of 351.37 feet to the intersection of the west right-of-way of McVay 
Highway and the west right-of-way of the Southern Pacific Railroad; thence 

14) leaving said McVay Highway right-of-way and along the westerly right-of-way  of 
said railroad North 25°30’05” West 1511.86 feet; thence 

15) Northerly along said westerly right-of-way 147 feet +/- to a point 30 feet west of 
and right angle to railroad station 1149+79.5; thence 

16) Northerly along said right-of-way 123 feet +/- to the Northeast corner of Parcel 1 as 
shown on County Survey File Number 44278 as described above, said Northeast corner 
bearing North 02°11’06” East 674.32 feet from the point of beginning; thence  

17)  South 02°11’06” West 674.32 feet to the point of beginning, all in Lane County 
Oregon. 

Bearings herein based up County Survey file number 44278 as filed in the Lane County 
Oregon Surveyors Office. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 
2 of 9

Attachment 3



PARCEL 2:  TL 18-03-02-32-03800 

All of Parcel 2 as described in that certain Warranty Deed as recorded as instrument 
number 2015-046590 in the Lane County Oregon Deeds and Records and described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a point on the west boundary of Section 2 in Township 18 South, Range 3 
West of the Willamette Meridian, said point being South 1508.10 feet from the 
northwest comer of said Section 2; thence 

1.)  North 89°59'05'' West 8.76 feet to a point on the easterly right of way of McVay 
Highway 30 feet easterly of, when measured at right angles to, the centerline of McVay 
Highway as shown on ODOT Dwg. 1B-18-13; thence along the easterly right of way of 
McVay Highway the following 12 courses and distances numbered 2-13: 

2.)  South 6°38'45'' East 241.41 feet to a point opposite the angle point in the centerline 
of McVay Highway at engineer's station 107+00; thence continuing along the easterly 
right of way of McVay Highway 

3.)  South 5°41'45'' East 1300.25 feet to a point 30 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 120+00 P.O.T; thence 

4.)  North 84°18'15'' East 10.00 feet to a point 40 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 120+00 P.O.T.; thence 

5.)  South 5°41'45'' East 200.00 feet to a point 40 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 122+00 P.O.T.; thence 

6.)  North 84°18'15'' East 10.00 feet to a point 50 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 122+00 P.O.T.; thence: 

7.)  South 5°41'45'' East 200.00 feet to a point 50 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 124+00 P.O.T.; thence 

8.)  North 84°18'15'' East 10.00 feet to a point 60 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 124+00 P.O.T; thence 

9.)  South 5°41'45'' East 89.50 feet to a point 60 feet easterly of and opposite engineer's 
station 124+89.50 P.C.; thence  

10.)  along the arc of a 776.20-foot radius curve right (the chord of which bears South 
5°16'33'' East 11.38 feet) a distance of 11.38 feet to a point 60 feet easterly of and 
opposite engineer's station 125+00 P.O.C.; thence 

11.)  North 85°08'39'' East 10.00 feet to a point 70 feet easterly of and opposite 
engineer's station 125+00 P.O.C.; thence 

12.)  along the arc of a 786.20-foot radius curve right (the chord of which bears South 
3°35'57'' West 231.19 feet to a point 70 feet easterly of and opposite engineer's station 
127+11.4 P.T.; thence 

13.)  South 12°03'15'' West 140.66 feet to a point marking the intersection of the 
easterly right of way of McVay Highway and the easterly right of way of the Union 
Pacific Railroad, said point being 30 feet from; when measured at right angles to the 
centerline of the Union Pacific Railroad; thence 

Exhibit A 
3 of 9

Attachment 3



14.)  leaving the easterly right of way of the McVay Highway and running along the 
easterly right of way of the Union Pacific Railroad along the arc of a 985.04-foot radius 
curve right (the chord of which bears South 9°32'23'' East 255.72 feet) a distance of 
256.44 feet, said point being the True Point of Beginning; thence along the following 8 
courses numbered 15-22: 

15.)  leaving the easterly right of way of the Union Pacific Railroad and running South 
73°15'42'' East 103 feet more or less to a point on the low water mark of the left bank 
of the Willamette River; thence, 

16.)  in a Southerly direction upstream along the low water mark of the left bank of the 
Willamette River 930 feet more or less to a point marking the intersection of the low 
water mark of the left bank of the Willamette River and the easterly projection of the 
north boundary of the A. Coryell D.L.C. No. 59 in Township 18 South, Range 3 West of 
the Willamette Meridian; thence 

17.)  leaving the low water mark of the left bank of the Willamette River and running 
along the north boundary of the said A. Coryell D.L.C. No. 59 and its easterly 
projection WEST 69 feet more or less to a point marking the intersection of the north 
boundary of the said A. Coryell D.L.C. No. 59 and the easterly boundary of the Union 
Pacific Railroad right of way, said point being 30 feet from, when measured at right 
angles to the centerline of the Union Pacific Railroad; thence  

18.)  leaving the north boundary of the said A. Coryell D.L.C. No. 59 and running along 
the easterly boundary of the Union Pacific Railroad right of way along the arc of a 
924.93-foot radius curve right (the chord of which bears North 8°10’54'' East 328.85 
feet) a distance of 330.61 feet to a point opposite and 30 feet easterly of Sta. 
1179+67.8 C.C. 6° Lt.; thence continuing along the easterly boundary of the Union 
Pacific Railroad the following four (4) courses and distances. numbered 19-22, 

19.)  along a 2-3/4 taper curve right, the long chord of which bears North 19°28'27'' 
East 59.05 feet to a point opposite and 30.0 feet easterly of Sta. 1179+07.8 B.C. T2-3/4; 
thence 

20.)  North 20°13’14” East 130.40 feet to a point opposite and 30.0 feet easterly of Sta. 
1177+77.4 E.C.; thence 

21.)  along a 2-1/2 taper curve left, the long chord of which bears North 19°10'01” East 
91.41 feet to a point opposite and 30.0 feet easterly of and opposite Sta. 1176+87.4 
C.C. T2-1/2; thence 

22.)  along the arc of a 985.04 foot radius curve left (the chord of which bears North 
7°43’12” East 335.38 feet) a distance of 337.02 feet to the True Point of Beginning, all 
in Lane County Oregon. 

Bearing used hereon are based on C.S.F. No. 13114 on file in the office of the Lane 
County Surveyor. 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 
4 of 9

Attachment 3



PARCEL 3:  TL 18-03-02-33-05100 

All that parcel of land as described in that certain Warranty Deed recorded as 
instrument number 2016-026856 in the Lane County Oregon Deeds and Records and 
more particularly described as follows: 

 

That part of Section 2 and Section 3, Township 18 South, Range 3 West of the 
Willamette Meridian, lying between the Westerly right of way line of the Southern 
Pacific Railroad and the Easterly right of way of Pacific Highway No. 99 also known as 
McVay Highway, in Lane County, Oregon more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the west right-of-way of the Southern Pacific Railroad 
and the East right-of-way of State Highway 225 commonly known as McVay Highway; 
thence South along said west right-of-way of the Southern pacific Railroad 1090 feet 
more or less to a second point of intersection of said 2 rights-of-way, said point 
bearing northerly 220 feet more or less from the thew Southwest corner of Section 2, 
Township 18 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; Thence north along the 
East right-of-way of McVay Highway 1075 feet more or less to the point of beginning, 
all in Lane County Oregon. 

 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 
5 of 9

Attachment 3



(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
( (((((((

(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(((((((((

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ((

((((((((((

(

(

( ( ((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

((
(

(
(

(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
((

(
(
((

(
((

(
(
((

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(
( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(( ( (

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

((((((((((((((

(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

((((
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(((((

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(((((((((((((((((((

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
((((((((((

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

( ( ((
(
(

( ( ((( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

( ( (

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
((

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(((((((((((((((((((((

R

R

R

R

R R

55
0.1

4'
S0

°2
3'2

2"W

S89°45'E     596.64'

961.05'
S89°45'E

SE  COR
C B  SWEET
DLC 38

529.44'

N56°49'45"E

S06°41'30"E     481.05'

S0
0°

27
'30

"W
    

 14
72

.03
'

1435.73
S89°16'W     NORTH  LINE     A H CORYELL     DLC   NO 59

SW  COR
D  MCVAY
DLC  63

NO
RT

H
20

99
.05

'

S39°27'E
315.2'

R=1132.4'

200'
S42°33'W

64
7.4

8'
N0

0°
07

'30
"E

PACIFIC           HIGHWAY           NO   I-5
73

4'

31
3'

N0
6°

21
'W

291'
N42°03'E

153.90'S47°57'E

RAILROAD

ASHLAND

LINE

103.13'

125.24'

S83°32'W   399.9'

S83°32'W   (226' M/L)

450.23'

FR
AN

KL
IN

    
   B

LV
D

N84°32'E
151.60' 45

'
89

.5'

60' 60'

70' 70'

100'

S69°53'E   347.20'

WEST

40
'

55'

55'

32
'32

'

N79°25'W

CENTRAL
OREGON

PACIFIC

THIS PARCEL IS FROM THE STATE
AND THERE IS NO LEGAL DESC.
ONLY SQ FOOTAGE LEASE IS
FOR CHUCK KOEHN FRANKLIN PARK 

11050 SQ. FT.
STATE LEASE

1.15 AC.S
0.91 AC.S

S73°15'42"E246'

N73°15'42"W 103'

1100

20.01 AC

1.1 AC

0.64 AC

52.14 AC

17.7 AC

0.67 AC

0.6 AC

1.27 AC
3.08 AC1001

900

800

600

1000

700

400

200

300

500
1200

004-46

019-17

019-18

004-26
004-80

004-80

019-18

004-80004-58

004-41

SEE MAP
18030314

SEE MAP
18030313

SEE MAP
18030220

SEE MAP
18031010

SEE MAP
18030233

SEE MAP
18030300

SEE MAP
18030331

SEE MAP
18030232

SEE MAP
18031000

SEE MAP
18031100 SEE MAP

18031122

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY S.E.1/4 SEC. 3 T.18S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 200'

CANCELLED
901
1100

18030340
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
18030340

LCATJCG - 2024-04-09 13:26

REVISIONS
11/20/2009 - LCAT142 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
04/05/2016 - LCAT155 - CANC TL 1100; NTL 1200 OUT OF ODOT ROW
06/02/2021 - LCAT148 - LLA BETWEEN TL 1200 & 18030314 00500
06/02/2021 - LCAT148 - LLA BETWEEN TL 1200 & 18030314 00700
01/04/2024 - LCAT174 - CODE CHANGE TL 1001

  

Exhibit A 
6 of 9

Attachment 3

bobh
Highlight
300

bobh
Highlight
7.7 AC

bobh
Polygon

bobh
Highlight
18030340

bobh
Text Box
ANNEXATION MAP FOR TAX LOTS 300 AND 700 (PARCEL 1)

bobh
Text Box
         COURSES1. S37°18'47"E, 134.82'2. S09°23'05"E, 1412.67'3. S04°07'21"W, 269.38'4. S10°54'11"E, 260.68'5. S66°28'52"E, 301.72'6. N00°44'24"W, 131.81'7. N14°51'55"W, 114.40'8. N12°07'12"E, 63.49'9. N12°03'06"E, 199.42'10. N11°56'03"E, 136.72'11. N33°09'02"E, 160.28'12. N09°48'46"E, 110.05'13. N06°22’03”E, 351.24'14. N25°30’05”W, 1511.86'15. NORTH 147' +/-16. NORTH 123'+/-  17.  S02°11'06"W, 674.32'

bobh
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

bobh
Callout
1.

bobh
Callout
2.

bobh
Callout
3.

bobh
Callout
4.

bobh
Callout
5.

bobh
Callout
7.

bobh
Callout
6.

bobh
Callout
8.

bobh
Callout
10.

bobh
Callout
14.

bobh
Callout
16.

bobh
Callout
9.

bobh
Callout
11.

bobh
Callout
12.

bobh
Callout
13.

bobh
Callout
15.

bobh
Callout
17.



(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
( (((((((((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

((((((((((((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(

((
((

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

(((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

( ((
(

(
(
(

(

( (
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((((((((

( ( ( ( ((
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( (( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

R

R

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

17.21'

95'

S77°31'03"E

S81°50'25"W

100'

80'

S83°50'45"E

34.
44'

78.43'

60
'

S6 2°11 '12 "E

3

60'

7.7
5'

60.98'

1

NEPTUNE AVE

S86°30'09"E

THIRD     A
DDITION

7

S0
2°

01
'30

"E
    

 32
1.7

2'

S37°02'05"E

59
.16

'

10
6.1

3'

S87°41'15"W     214.64'

N87°00'40"W

25

1

66
.20

'

3

800

N2
9°2

6'3
5"E

S2
0°3

7'3
7"W

S0
2°

18
'45

"E

S69°22'22"E

10
0'

17'

PA
RC

EL
  E

32

10.59'

S0
7°

44
'13

"W

14

4

84
.24

'

35

33

60
'

10
0'

S81°53'03"E

L=52.24'

S75°40'E

3 4.44 '

11
5'

64.70'

N79°16'34"W

N82°19'39"W

10
5'

N0
2°

20
'W

36.52'

S0
7 °

32
' 22

"W
LC

=1
11

.7 2
'

60.94'

80'

43.26'

56
.36

'
60

'

N77°25'52"W

N45°29'20"W

N86°30'32"W

10
0'

N87°58'30"E

11
8.3

3'

PARCEL  A

103.67'

10
8.2

2'

3

94.52'

22

2

S1
7°0

1'0
4"W

88
.06

'

38

115'

41.83'

67.77'

17

107.12'

N87°41'15"E

30'

2

37.08' 27

36
.29

'

FILBERT       
    GROVE

10
1.4

6 '

7

57
.06

'

N69°30'37"W

11
1'

65.99'

95'
27

S82°56'19"E

15.65'

FIRST   ADDITION

28
.49

'

28.24'

30

15.84'

S77°26'26"E

139.1
9'

N87°58'30"E

R=16'

L=49.10'

97
.87

'

S87°58'30"W

36

60
'

60
'

N4
5°2

9'2
0"W

75.16'

60
'

88'

66.42'

N75°40'W

101.21'

122
.28

'

N83°50'45"W

75
'

S1
1°

19
'45

"W

60'

29

S81°51'45"E

N72°44'31"W

45

60
'

26

36.44'

S89°53'48"E

5900

60.22'

100'

80'

2.0'

N16°34'28"W

23

R=
28

8.3
1 '

S2
8°3

4'0
8"W

37

9

N86° 44'3 5"E

75
'

L=
66

.34
'

30'

39.94'

N33°41'52"W

3 71.94'

115'

10

S52°42'53"E

10
0.6

4'

10
0.0

5'

17.21'

17

S0
2°

14
'15

"W

62
'

31

105'

6

S0
9°

18
' 04

"W

67
.53

'

10
0'

LC=46.8'

S0
2 °0

2' 0
8 "W

79
.35

'

N82°32'57"E

PARCEL  B

31
.51

' 

11

60
'

S1
4°

20
'01

'W

110'

100'

57'

34
.44

'

N78°01'42"W

110'

75
'

2
11

6.0
1'

95'

90'

N87°05'13"W

60
'

10
0.2

6'

162.18'
12

.96
'

80'

100'

29.52'

N83°00'57"W

50'
N1

5°1
5 '2

2"E
12

1.3
5' N67 °27 '03 "E

S4
3°0

7'3
8"W

3

N87°58'30"E

N1
0°

00
'03

"E

S83°34'42"E

10
0.5

9'

81.41'

87.92'

N0
0°

42
'48

"W

S87°41'15"W     226.07'

23

6

26

40

8'

80.80'

N2
0°3

7'3
8"E

30.02'

4

36.52'

33

57
.37

'

147.08'

S0
2°

01
'30

"E
    

   1
26

7.5
6'

58.02'

20

60
'

10
0'

28

N89°40'W

5

10
0'

S0
4°

34
'17

"W

74.88'

N18°55'57"E

NE COR
A CORYELL
DLC 59

10
0'

18

11
2.9

1'

1'

100'

3 6.4 4'

S77°47'51"E

64.70'

9

66.72'

60
'

10
4.7

6'

10
0'

36.1 8'

123.72'

N46°49'41"E

99'

N89°41'35"W

ST
AT

E  
    

    
 H

IG
HW

AY
    

    
    

    
    

 N
O 

  2
25

28.02'

61.68'

67.87'

N1
5°3

4'3
6"E

8.8
6'

2.0'

S88°07'38"W

84.98'

3

2

101.11'

8'

10
0.5

0'

19.83'

21

39

N80°25'27"W

24
5

S87°58'30"W

FILBERT     G
ROVE

98'

30.02'

N60°47'47"E

R=
10

60
'

43

PA
RC

EL
 A

10
0'

10
0'

S53°50'58"W

S1
0°

04
'38

"W

CE
NT

RA
L

OR
EG

ON
PA

CI
FIC

RA
ILR

OA
D

2

10
8.5

6'

60
'

95'

N89°25'36"W

10
0.5

'

8

S0
0°

32
'48

"E

15

77.73'

PARCEL D

18.71'

R=16'

75
'

100'

6WI
LL

AM
ET

TE 60
'

60'

S77°46'36"E

10
7.6

'

S81°53'04"E

65'

R=45'

4

41
.51

'

66.42'

58
'

65'

S85°47'20"E

N80°36'08"W

40.38'

1

N36°
35'

34"
E

S77°19'19"E

N69°22'22"W     128.43'

42

41.83'

34.34'

PARCEL H

127.75'

S06°14'09"W

RI
VE

R

S87°00'40"E

S46°52'22"E

69
.54

'

IN
LA

ND
    

    
    

    
    

 W
AY

15
7.7

2'

FILBERT     G
ROVE

24

64.51'

19

36

10
.35

'

S0
8°

16
'25

"W

49.73'

7

76
.20

'

N89°55'07"W
60.13'

S1
4°

20
'E

11
0'

10
0'

57
'

N1
3°

56
'30

"E

18

60
'

R=16'

28.23'

S1
0°

54
'08

"W

51
.42

'

34

65'

87
.25

'

S38°50'44"E

10
0'

13

60
'

S45°58'E

105'

S1
4°2

0'W

S75°40'E

S85°48'20"E

S87°58'30"W

N87°40'E

N0
2°

28
'4 7

"E

S0
4°

57
'35

"W

75
'

75
'

100'

54
.65

'

50
'

S0
7°

18
'31

"W

56.68'

60.96'57.26'

60
'

10
0'

95'

S68°06'38"E

80'

S89°56'47"E

41

N20 °
51

'37
" E

12.94' N1
2 °

07
'16

"E

S0
1°

52
'22

"E

71
.68

'

S18°52 '44"E

10
0.5

9'

64.61'

6

KREMONT AVE

97
.21

'

4TH  ADDITION

N81°26'E

57'

29.52'

S82°54'43"E

34

28

82
.02

'

110'

34

10
0'

N70°55'27"E

N29°15'46"W

50
'

19

R=45'

75
'

54.08'

60
'

60'

43'

S0
2°

20
'E

N1
5°0

5'0
5"E

    
 72

4.3
0'

60
'

S0
1°

24
'22

"W

60
.93

'

PARCEL C

10
0'

29

60
'

S89°53'48"E

60
'

S89°17'23"E

S05°17'34"E

125'

64.70'

35

S0
7°

59
'55

" W

33
.02

'

57.74'

3 5
'

64.42'

10
0'

100'

64.79'

N8
6°4

4'3
5"E92'

N75°40'W

75
'

N80°45'W

125.3
5'

PARCEL  J

56.63'

N25°57'48" W

30

63.53'

ST
AT

E  
    

    
 LA

ND
    

    
   B

OA
RD

60
'

S83°50'45"E

80'

S87°40'W

2

S80°40'50"E

S7
5°

52
'20

"E

8

N41°18'37"E

4

19.83'

97
.8'

2

75
'

10
5'

147.44'

82.78'

11

37.88'

25

115'

SECOND     A
DDITION

60.20'

71.94'

44

N45°07'16"E

15
0'

R=16'

10
0'

5

32

S0
6°

09
'27

"W

5
S1

6°5
9'5

0"W

31

S78°02'46"E

50
'

LC=49.98'

112.53'

10
.38

'

HA
RB

OR
    

    
    

    
    

 D
RI

VE

60
'

59
6.5

'

S1
3°

49
'51

"W

16

95'

4

60'

S1
4°

20
'W

40.40'

N14°20'E
18.49'

N89°37'40"E

75
'

65'

10

6

110'

64.99'

N76°35'31"W   140.16'

90'

S85°48'26"E

60.93'

S1
3°

31
'37

"W

S89°54'51"E

12
.96

'

74.07'

8401
0.18 AC

0.25 AC

0.14 AC
0.35 AC

0.18 AC

0.17 AC
0.23 AC

0.37 AC

0.18 AC

0.14 AC 0.15 AC

0.42 AC
0.13 AC

0.47 AC

0.42 AC
0.17 AC0.15 AC0.15 AC

0.14 AC0.15 AC
0.17 AC

0.41 AC

0.14 AC
0.38 AC

0.21 AC 0.15 AC0.15 AC 0.14 AC0.15 AC0.15 AC
0.14 AC

0.21 AC

0.14 AC0.16 AC0.15 AC0.21 AC 0.15 AC
0.16 AC

0.14 AC0.21 AC

0.21 AC
0.14 AC

0.15 AC0.15 AC
0.19 AC

0.15 AC 0.14 AC

0.19 AC

0.14 AC
0.19 AC 0.16 AC

0.19 AC

0.18 AC
0.14 AC

0.15 AC
0.18 AC

0.42 AC

0.19 AC

0.45 AC

0.25 AC

0.15 AC

7900 80007800

7700

8100
8200

6300 6400
6200 7500

7600

6000 7400
6500

6100
6600

5800
6700

5700 7300
7200

5500 7100

5400
700069006800

5300
4300

5100

5200
440045004600 420047004800

5000

41004900

3400 39003800 400037003600
3500

3300

2400250026003200 27002800

23003000

2900 2200
21002000

1700 1900
1800 1000

1600
1100

1200
1500

3100

1300

1400 900

700300 600500
400

200

5600

100

4801

8300

8400

019-24

01
9-0

2
01

9-0
8

019-17

004-80

01
9-0

6
SEE MAP
18030232

SEE MAP
18030340

SEE MAP
18030200

SEE MAP
18030220

SEE MAP
18031100

SEE MAP
18031010

SEE MAP
18031122

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY S.W.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC. 2 T.18S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
800
5900
8401

18030233
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
18030233

LCATJCG - 2018-11-01 15:42

REVISIONS
11/20/2009 - LCAT167 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
06/10/2014 - LCAT155 - NTL 4801 OUT OF GAP
05/12/2016 - LCAT142 - MAP COR TL 500 & 1803023203800 AND TCA
11/09/2017 - LCAT155 - ANNEXATION PORTION FRANKLIN BLVD
12/04/2017 - LCAT174 - ACRE CORRECTION TL 7500
11/01/2018 - LCAT174 - ACRE AND MAP CORRECTION TL'S 8300 & 8400

  

Exhibit A 
7 of 9

Attachment 3

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Line

bobh
Text Box
TAX LOT 18-03-02-33-05100

bobh
Highlight
18030233

bobh
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

bobh
Callout
1090'+/-

bobh
Arrow

bobh
Callout
1075'+/-

bobh
Arrow

bobh
Text Box
ANNEXATION MAP FOR TAX LOT 5100(PARCEL 3)



(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
( (((((((((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

((((((((((((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(

((
((

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

(((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

( ((
(

(
(
(

(

( (
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((((((((

( ( ( ( ((
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( (( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

R

R

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

17.21'

95'

S77°31'03"E

S81°50'25"W

100'

80'

S83°50'45"E

34.
44'

78.43'

60
'

S6 2°11 '12 "E

3

60'

7.7
5'

60.98'

1

NEPTUNE AVE

S86°30'09"E

THIRD     A
DDITION

7

S0
2°

01
'30

"E
    

 32
1.7

2'

S37°02'05"E

59
.16

'

10
6.1

3'

S87°41'15"W     214.64'

N87°00'40"W

25

1

66
.20

'

3

800

N2
9°2

6'3
5"E

S2
0°3

7'3
7"W

S0
2°

18
'45

"E

S69°22'22"E

10
0'

17'

PA
RC

EL
  E

32

10.59'

S0
7°

44
'13

"W

14

4

84
.24

'

35

33

60
'

10
0'

S81°53'03"E

L=52.24'

S75°40'E

3 4.44 '

11
5'

64.70'

N79°16'34"W

N82°19'39"W

10
5'

N0
2°

20
'W

36.52'

S0
7 °

32
' 22

"W
LC

=1
11

.7 2
'

60.94'

80'

43.26'

56
.36

'
60

'

N77°25'52"W

N45°29'20"W

N86°30'32"W

10
0'

N87°58'30"E

11
8.3

3'

PARCEL  A

103.67'

10
8.2

2'

3

94.52'

22

2

S1
7°0

1'0
4"W

88
.06

'

38

115'

41.83'

67.77'

17

107.12'

N87°41'15"E

30'

2

37.08' 27

36
.29

'

FILBERT       
    GROVE

10
1.4

6 '

7

57
.06

'

N69°30'37"W

11
1'

65.99'

95'
27

S82°56'19"E

15.65'

FIRST   ADDITION

28
.49

'

28.24'

30

15.84'

S77°26'26"E

139.1
9'

N87°58'30"E

R=16'

L=49.10'

97
.87

'

S87°58'30"W

36

60
'

60
'

N4
5°2

9'2
0"W

75.16'

60
'

88'

66.42'

N75°40'W

101.21'

122
.28

'

N83°50'45"W

75
'

S1
1°

19
'45

"W

60'

29

S81°51'45"E

N72°44'31"W

45

60
'

26

36.44'

S89°53'48"E

5900

60.22'

100'

80'

2.0'

N16°34'28"W

23

R=
28

8.3
1 '

S2
8°3

4'0
8"W

37

9

N86° 44'3 5"E

75
'

L=
66

.34
'

30'

39.94'

N33°41'52"W

3 71.94'

115'

10

S52°42'53"E

10
0.6

4'

10
0.0

5'

17.21'

17

S0
2°

14
'15

"W

62
'

31

105'

6

S0
9°

18
' 04

"W

67
.53

'

10
0'

LC=46.8'

S0
2 °0

2' 0
8 "W

79
.35

'

N82°32'57"E

PARCEL  B

31
.51

' 

11

60
'

S1
4°

20
'01

'W

110'

100'

57'

34
.44

'

N78°01'42"W

110'

75
'

2
11

6.0
1'

95'

90'

N87°05'13"W

60
'

10
0.2

6'

162.18'
12

.96
'

80'

100'

29.52'

N83°00'57"W

50'
N1

5°1
5 '2

2"E
12

1.3
5' N67 °27 '03 "E

S4
3°0

7'3
8"W

3

N87°58'30"E

N1
0°

00
'03

"E

S83°34'42"E

10
0.5

9'

81.41'

87.92'

N0
0°

42
'48

"W

S87°41'15"W     226.07'

23

6

26

40

8'

80.80'

N2
0°3

7'3
8"E

30.02'

4

36.52'

33

57
.37

'

147.08'

S0
2°

01
'30

"E
    

   1
26

7.5
6'

58.02'

20

60
'

10
0'

28

N89°40'W

5

10
0'

S0
4°

34
'17

"W

74.88'

N18°55'57"E

NE COR
A CORYELL
DLC 59

10
0'

18

11
2.9

1'

1'

100'

3 6.4 4'

S77°47'51"E

64.70'

9

66.72'

60
'

10
4.7

6'

10
0'

36.1 8'

123.72'

N46°49'41"E

99'

N89°41'35"W

ST
AT

E  
    

    
 H

IG
HW

AY
    

    
    

    
    

 N
O 

  2
25

28.02'

61.68'

67.87'

N1
5°3

4'3
6"E

8.8
6'

2.0'

S88°07'38"W

84.98'

3

2

101.11'

8'

10
0.5

0'

19.83'

21

39

N80°25'27"W

24
5

S87°58'30"W

FILBERT     G
ROVE

98'

30.02'

N60°47'47"E

R=
10

60
'

43

PA
RC

EL
 A

10
0'

10
0'

S53°50'58"W

S1
0°

04
'38

"W

CE
NT

RA
L

OR
EG

ON
PA

CI
FIC

RA
ILR

OA
D

2

10
8.5

6'

60
'

95'

N89°25'36"W

10
0.5

'

8

S0
0°

32
'48

"E

15

77.73'

PARCEL D

18.71'

R=16'

75
'

100'

6WI
LL

AM
ET

TE 60
'

60'

S77°46'36"E

10
7.6

'

S81°53'04"E

65'

R=45'

4

41
.51

'

66.42'

58
'

65'

S85°47'20"E

N80°36'08"W

40.38'

1

N36°
35'

34"
E

S77°19'19"E

N69°22'22"W     128.43'

42

41.83'

34.34'

PARCEL H

127.75'

S06°14'09"W

RI
VE

R

S87°00'40"E

S46°52'22"E

69
.54

'

IN
LA

ND
    

    
    

    
    

 W
AY

15
7.7

2'

FILBERT     G
ROVE

24

64.51'

19

36

10
.35

'

S0
8°

16
'25

"W

49.73'

7

76
.20

'

N89°55'07"W
60.13'

S1
4°

20
'E

11
0'

10
0'

57
'

N1
3°

56
'30

"E

18

60
'

R=16'

28.23'

S1
0°

54
'08

"W

51
.42

'

34

65'

87
.25

'

S38°50'44"E

10
0'

13

60
'

S45°58'E

105'

S1
4°2

0'W

S75°40'E

S85°48'20"E

S87°58'30"W

N87°40'E

N0
2°

28
'4 7

"E

S0
4°

57
'35

"W

75
'

75
'

100'

54
.65

'

50
'

S0
7°

18
'31

"W

56.68'

60.96'57.26'

60
'

10
0'

95'

S68°06'38"E

80'

S89°56'47"E

41

N20 °
51

'37
" E

12.94' N1
2 °

07
'16

"E

S0
1°

52
'22

"E

71
.68

'

S18°52 '44"E

10
0.5

9'

64.61'

6

KREMONT AVE

97
.21

'

4TH  ADDITION

N81°26'E

57'

29.52'

S82°54'43"E

34

28

82
.02

'

110'

34

10
0'

N70°55'27"E

N29°15'46"W

50
'

19

R=45'

75
'

54.08'

60
'

60'

43'

S0
2°

20
'E

N1
5°0

5'0
5"E

    
 72

4.3
0'

60
'

S0
1°

24
'22

"W

60
.93

'

PARCEL C

10
0'

29

60
'

S89°53'48"E

60
'

S89°17'23"E

S05°17'34"E

125'

64.70'

35

S0
7°

59
'55

" W

33
.02

'

57.74'

3 5
'

64.42'

10
0'

100'

64.79'

N8
6°4

4'3
5"E92'

N75°40'W

75
'

N80°45'W

125.3
5'

PARCEL  J

56.63'

N25°57'48" W

30

63.53'

ST
AT

E  
    

    
 LA

ND
    

    
   B

OA
RD

60
'

S83°50'45"E

80'

S87°40'W

2

S80°40'50"E

S7
5°

52
'20

"E

8

N41°18'37"E

4

19.83'

97
.8'

2

75
'

10
5'

147.44'

82.78'

11

37.88'

25

115'

SECOND     A
DDITION

60.20'

71.94'

44

N45°07'16"E

15
0'

R=16'

10
0'

5

32

S0
6°

09
'27

"W

5
S1

6°5
9'5

0"W

31

S78°02'46"E

50
'

LC=49.98'

112.53'

10
.38

'

HA
RB

OR
    

    
    

    
    

 D
RI

VE

60
'

59
6.5

'

S1
3°

49
'51

"W

16

95'

4

60'

S1
4°

20
'W

40.40'

N14°20'E
18.49'

N89°37'40"E

75
'

65'

10

6

110'

64.99'

N76°35'31"W   140.16'

90'

S85°48'26"E

60.93'

S1
3°

31
'37

"W

S89°54'51"E

12
.96

'

74.07'

8401
0.18 AC

0.25 AC

0.14 AC
0.35 AC

0.18 AC

0.17 AC
0.23 AC

0.37 AC

0.18 AC

0.14 AC 0.15 AC

0.42 AC
0.13 AC

0.47 AC

0.42 AC
0.17 AC0.15 AC0.15 AC

0.14 AC0.15 AC
0.17 AC

0.41 AC

0.14 AC
0.38 AC

0.21 AC 0.15 AC0.15 AC 0.14 AC0.15 AC0.15 AC
0.14 AC

0.21 AC

0.14 AC0.16 AC0.15 AC0.21 AC 0.15 AC
0.16 AC

0.14 AC0.21 AC

0.21 AC
0.14 AC

0.15 AC0.15 AC
0.19 AC

0.15 AC 0.14 AC

0.19 AC

0.14 AC
0.19 AC 0.16 AC

0.19 AC

0.18 AC
0.14 AC

0.15 AC
0.18 AC

0.42 AC

0.19 AC

0.45 AC

0.25 AC

0.15 AC

7900 80007800

7700

8100
8200

6300 6400
6200 7500

7600

6000 7400
6500

6100
6600

5800
6700

5700 7300
7200

5500 7100

5400
700069006800

5300
4300

5100

5200
440045004600 420047004800

5000

41004900

3400 39003800 400037003600
3500

3300

2400250026003200 27002800

23003000

2900 2200
21002000

1700 1900
1800 1000

1600
1100

1200
1500

3100

1300

1400 900

700300 600500
400

200

5600

100

4801

8300

8400

019-24

01
9-0

2
01

9-0
8

019-17

004-80

01
9-0

6
SEE MAP
18030232

SEE MAP
18030340

SEE MAP
18030200

SEE MAP
18030220

SEE MAP
18031100

SEE MAP
18031010

SEE MAP
18031122

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY S.W.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC. 2 T.18S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
800
5900
8401

18030233
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
18030233

LCATJCG - 2018-11-01 15:42

REVISIONS
11/20/2009 - LCAT167 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
06/10/2014 - LCAT155 - NTL 4801 OUT OF GAP
05/12/2016 - LCAT142 - MAP COR TL 500 & 1803023203800 AND TCA
11/09/2017 - LCAT155 - ANNEXATION PORTION FRANKLIN BLVD
12/04/2017 - LCAT174 - ACRE CORRECTION TL 7500
11/01/2018 - LCAT174 - ACRE AND MAP CORRECTION TL'S 8300 & 8400

  

Exhibit A 
8 of 9

Attachment 3

bobh
Polygon

bobh
Text Box
TAX LOT 18-03-02-32-03800

bobh
Highlight
18030233

bobh
Text Box
         COURSES15. S73°15'42"E, 103' +/-16. 930' +/-17. EAST 69' +/-18. N08°10'54"E, 328.85'19. N19°28'27"E, 59.05'20. N20°13'18"E, 130.40' 21. N19°10'01"E, 91.41'22. N07°43'12"E, 335.38'

bobh
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

bobh
Callout
15.

bobh
Callout
16.

bobh
Callout
17.

bobh
Callout
18.

bobh
Callout
19.

bobh
Callout
20.

bobh
Callout
21.

bobh
Callout
22.

bobh
Text Box
ANNEXATION MAP FOR TAX LOT 18-03-02-32-03800(PARCEL 2)



(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

((((((((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

((((((((((((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(

((((
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(((((((((((((((((((((((((

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(

(
((

(
(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
((

(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( (( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

R

(

(

(

( R
(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

( (

(

(

( (

(

(

S75°40'13"E

12
0.3

3'

110.86'

S75°40'E

115'

R=45'

17

N7
8°

50
'48

"E
LC

=3
4.1

2'

29
0'

12
0'

34
.43

'

PROPOSED LAKE

127+11.4 PT

800

120'

100'

84
.76

'

14
6.9

2'

66.66'

8

14

28'

6

FILBERT

16'

60
'

22.83'

S55°56'05"E

LC=35.97'

S77°17'13"W

36.22'

S1
4°2

0'W
70'

60
'

S29°26'E

N0
6°

32
'W

    
  3

01
.4'

RI
VE

R

95
.1'

73
'

3

S0
°2

7'2
1"W

DEL=26°27'
R=107.57'
T=46.43'

60
'

124+89.5 PC

94.52'

9

10
4.2

8'

20

100'

60
'

14
5'

98
.61

'

30'

89.23'

10
'

11

84
.01

'

S8
4°

21
'40

"W
LC

=3
6.3

1'
20

'

65'

S51°54'56"W

LC=58.71'

110'

10
0.1

'

S0
°2

9'1
5"W

L 122+48.1 POT=

3

5

34.2'

NO
. 2

25

115'

60'

30'

10
1.9

5'

117.43'

POINT IS S89°35'30"W 150'
& S16°11'46"W 1376.51'
FROM INITIAL POINT

132.32'

DR
IVE

14

1

S04°13'30"E
LC=76.67'

N0
1°

38
'25

"E
    

  1
30

7.1
3'

33
.41

'

N 86°53'05" E  432.27'

8

SB 125+63.27 PSC

125'

25
'

45
.83

'

N29°13'30"E
LC=48.82'

16
.51

'

30
'

264.89'

2

N5
0°

17
'02

"W
LC

=3
4.1

3'

12

98'

33'

S67°48'33"E

S02°31'08"E
LC=22.32'

115'

72'

L 122+50.00 POT AH

S37°38'54"W
LC=35.05'

6

S1
4°2

0'W

70'

27
.07

'

110'

110'

154.58'

N2
5°2

2'0
2"E

N21°09'02"W

27
.51

'

61
.17

'

GROVE

CHANNEL EASEMENT

(FLOODWAY)

S55°56'35"W
LC=35'

WEST

S75°40'E

S00°24'44"W
LC=61.82'

90'

60
'

25
'

11

TOP OF BANK

63
.15

'

130+84.1 PC

S60°00'W

50'

N78°32'16"E
LC=33.67'

SB 120+73.73 PT

N75°40'W

5

S68°58'14"ELC=35.6'

50'

S0
3°

05
'30

"W
    

    
 62

3.6
5'

9

65'

DEL=47°45'50"

N54°52'56"W
3

60
'

S1
4°

20
'W

S75°16'12"E

R=16'

129.47'

S0
4°

51
'E 

(TR
UE

)   
 S

03
°0

2'3
9"E

  (G
RI

D)

104.59'

110'
90.05'

1

N53°13'04"E
LC=22.32'

2

40'

400.14'

S0
9°

00
'W

    
16

1'

EAST - 311.62'

90'

9.92'

60
'

S11°24'26"W
LC=64.64'

15

10

150'

SB 121+63.27 PS

S75°40'E

60
'

17
.08

'

21

S4
9°5

2'1
7"E

LC
=3

3.6
8'

S04°13'30"E 104.13'

25
'

R=45'

60
'

65'

S55°
34'

16"
E

LC
=35

.6'

N75°40'W

50'

45
1.9

5'

30'

169.59'

S89°35'30"W

4

N0
3°

18
'04

"E

N46°33'29"W

3

C.O.P.R.R.

60
'

13

N57°37'12"E

1

145.74'

DEL
=5

1°
R=23

8.7
5'

T=
113

.87
'

S54°52'56"E     206.12'

S1
4°2

0'W
    

 69
5'

18

7

12
0'

125'

18
7.4

1'

S01°33'30"E 201'

S10°15'41"W
LC=43.6'

22.83'

100'

EAST

GROVE

14
6'

S38°50'44"E

7

DEL=47°46'10"

60
'

S8
4°

13
'05

"W
LC

=3
5.6

'

93.42'

172'

120.13'

12
0'

11
6.5

9'

110'

60
'

70'

11
5'

S1
4°

20
'W

61
.17

'

12

2 S10°10'20"W
LC=35'

S54°52'56"E     208.31'

125'

26
0'

DE L= 31°4 7'
R =33 7.03'

T=95.95'

12
0'

SB 129+37.53 PCS

LOW WATER LINE

19

72'

33
.41

'

60
'

S3
4°3

0'W
 23

1.3
8'

60'

11
4.3

4'

180'

10

S37°37'47"W

LC=35.6'

115.8'

4

R=45'

110'

R=16'

12
0'

84.59'

65'

S54°52'56"E

N57°43'45"E

ST
AT

E H
WY

HA
RB

OR

N75°40'W

40'

2

S88°08'10"W
LC=14.55'

POINT S0°40'W 2849'
FROM NW COR SEC 2(GRID)

301.15'

40'

73
'

16
25

'

157.66'

S0
2°

01
'30

"E

141.89'

S0
5°

44
'W

    
   2

84
.99

'

22

S35°51'34"E

67'

1

13

74.74'

115'

125'

65'

353.35'

S75°40'E

16'

N54°52'56"W

S08°49'30"E
LC=35.97'

S28°39'38"E
LC=24.73'

155.79'

S75°40'E

70'

N14°20'E
18.49'

10
1.9

5'

700

FILBERT

S29°04'11"E

WI
LL

AM
ET

TE

S.43384

N73°15'42"W
103'

0.14 AC
0.18 AC

0.14 AC
0.18 AC

0.18 AC

0.22 AC

0.21 AC

0.81 AC

0.48 AC

0.24 AC

0.21 AC

0.65 AC

0.31 AC

1.56 AC

3300
32003400

35003700

3600 3100

30002700
2900

2800
2600

21002500
2000

2200
2400

2300 1900

1100

1600 1800
1700

1500
1300

1400
1200

1000

900

701
600

500 400

300

200

100

3900

800

3800

00
4-2

6
01

9-0
2

01
9-2

4

01
9-0

8
004-80

SEE MAP
18030340

SEE MAP
18030220

SEE MAP
18030200

SEE MAP
18030233

SEE MAP
18030314

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY N.W.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC. 2 T.18S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
700

18030232
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
18030232

LCATJCG - 2022-11-28 11:40

REVISIONS
10/09/2008 - LCAT167 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
10/10/2008 - LCAT167 - LLA BTWN 500, 700 & 701; TL 700 CANCEL
05/25/2010 - LCAT174 - TAXCODES UPDATED
01/30/2012 - LCAT113 - MISC GRAPHIC CORRECTIONS
10/13/2015 - LCAT142 - LLA BETWEEN 3800 & 18030220-03200
05/12/2016 - LCAT142 - MAP COR TL 3800 & 1803023300500 AND TCA
05/27/2020 - LCAT174 - ADJUST TL 3800 TO MATCH SURVEY AND DESC
11/28/2022 - LCAT174 - AC CORR TL 800

  

Exhibit A 
9 of 9

Attachment 3

bobh
PolyLine

bobh
Highlight
.56 AC

bobh
Highlight
18030232

bobh
Text Box
SEE TAX MAP LAYOUT ON 18-03-02-33

bobh
Arrow

bobh
Text Box
FOR ANNEXATION MAP OF 18-03-02-32-03800             (PARCEL 2)           SEE ATTACHED MAP



TYPE 4 – ANNEXATION
STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

File Name: EWEB Glenwood Annexation

Case Number:  811-24-000309-TYP4

Proposal Location: Four vacant parcels
on both sides of Franklin Boulevard between the
Central Oregon Pacific Railroad bridge and
5470 Franklin Boulevard (Map 18-03-02-32,
TL 3800; Map 18-03-02-33, TL 5100; and Map
18-03-03-40, TL 300 & 700)

Current Zoning & Comprehensive
Plan Designation:
Glenwood Employment Mixed Use (GEMU)

Applicable Comprehensive Plan:
Springfield Comprehensive Plan

Application Submittal Date:
December 17, 2024

Public Hearing Meeting Date:
February 18, 2025

Associated Applications: 811-23-000049-PRE  (Development  Initiation  Meeting);  811-24-000225-PRE
(Completeness Check Meeting)

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE
Project Manager Planning Andy Limbird 541-726-3784
Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034
Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-736-1036
Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293
Building Official Building Chris Carpenter 541-744-4153

Review Process (SDC 5.7.115):  The subject annexation territory is not zoned or designated R-1,  is  larger than
10,000 ft2 in size and does not contain a failing septic system.  Additionally, the annexation territory includes land
affected by the Hillside Development Overlay District and the Floodplain Overlay District.  Therefore, the request
is being reviewed under Type 4 procedures in accordance with SDC 5.7.115(A)(4).

In accordance with SDC 5.7.115(A)(4), the Director has provided a recommendation to the City Council under SDC
5.7.140 below.

Development Initiation Meeting (SDC 5.7.120):  A Development Initiation Meeting (DIM) is required of all public
agency and private landowner-initiated annexation applications, unless waived by the Director.

Finding:  In response to the applicant’s submittal, the City held a Development Initiation Meeting on April 11, 2023.
Subsequently, a completeness check meeting for the annexation request was held on October 1, 2024 (File 811-24-
000225-PRE).

Franklin Blvd

W
ill

am
et

te
 R

iv
er

Territory
Proposed for
Annexation

Central Oregon Pacific Railroad

Exhibit B
1 of 8

Attachment 3



Conclusion:  The requirement in SDC 5.7.120 is met.

Annexation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.7.125):  In  accordance  with  SDC  5.7.125(A)(1) and
ORS 222.125, an annexation application may be initiated by Owner Consent which includes submittal of a petition
for annexation signed by all of the owners and not less than 50% of the eligible electors, if any, within the subject
territory.

Finding:  The  property  owner  (Eugene Water & Electric Board, referred to herein as EWEB) who  owns  all  of  the
land  and  real  property,  and  full  assessed  value  of  real property comprising the territory, has filed an application and
petition requesting annexation to the City of Springfield (Attachment 2).

Finding:  The subject property is vacant and therefore no eligible electors reside in the territory.

Conclusion:  The application requirements in SDC 5.7.125 have been met.

Site Information:  The subject annexation area consists of four irregular-shaped parcels on the east and west sides
of Franklin Boulevard near the southern edge of Glenwood.  The territory is bounded on the southwest by I-5, on the
northeast by  the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad  line, on  the east by  the Willamette River, and on  the south by
unincorporated properties not owned by the applicant.  The two larger, contiguous properties on the west side of
Franklin Boulevard comprise approximately 23.7 acres.   Two smaller,  linear parcels on the east side of Franklin
Boulevard comprise approximately 2.9 acres; the eastern parcels are bisected by the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad
line.  In aggregate, the total annexation territory is approximately 26.6 acres.

The parcels are vacant and the western properties serve as a maintenance access driveway for EWEB powerline
facilities  located  north  of Franklin Boulevard  and  bounded by  I-5  and  the  railroad  line.    Physical  access  to  the
properties are via maintenance driveways on both sides of Franklin Boulevard.  The annexation territory is inside the
Springfield Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and it is contiguous to the City limits along the eastern edge.  The
purpose for annexing the property is to facilitate development of a water intake facility on the Willamette River
and a public water utility installation on the western side of Franklin Boulevard.

Current zoning for the property is Glenwood Employment Mixed Use (GEMU) with an Urbanizable Fringe Overlay
District (UF-10) applied.  After annexation, the UF-10 overlay will be removed and the subject property will remain
within the GEMU District.

Existing  public  services  are  provided  to  the  annexation  area  as  follows:  police  (Lane  County  Sheriff),  schools
(Springfield School District for Tax Lots 700, 3800 & 5100; Eugene 4J School District for Tax Lot 300), roads (Lane
County and City of Springfield), and Fire (Eugene-Springfield Fire under contract with the Glenwood Water District
for Tax Lots 3800 & 5100;  and Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District for Tax Lots 300 & 700).  Springfield
Utility Board (SUB) provides electrical and water service to incorporated portions of Glenwood.  The Glenwood
Water  District  under  contract  with  SUB Water  currently  provides  water  service  to  this  unincorporated  area  of
Springfield.  SUB Water has existing water lines within Franklin Boulevard along the boundary of the annexation
area.  The property requires annexation for a future service connection to be extended to the nearest available public
sanitary sewer system located on the north side of the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad line near Newman Street.  The
developer will  be  responsible  for  connecting  to  necessary  public  utilities  (water  and  sanitary  sewer)  located  in
Franklin Boulevard or Newman Street to serve the annexation area.  Upon annexation, the City of Springfield will
be responsible for all urban services, including sanitary sewer, water and electricity (through SUB), transportation
and police/fire response to the subject area.

Notice Requirements (SDC 5.7.130):  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, notice was provided as follows:

Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed January 23, 2025, which is more than 20 days prior
to  the public hearing date  to owners  and occupants of properties  located within 300  feet  of  the perimeter of  the
proposed annexation territory; affected special districts and all other public utility providers; and the Lane County
Land Management Division, Lane County Elections, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners.   The list of
recipients of the mailed notice is included with the Affidavit of Mailing for this annexation application and is retained

Exhibit B 
2 of 8

Attachment 3



as part of the public record for Planning Case 811-24-000309-TYP4.

Newspaper Notice.  Notice  of  the  February  18,  2025  public  hearing  was  published  in  the  print  version  of  The
Chronicle on  February  6  and  13,  2025.    The  notification  meets  the  requirements  of  SDC  5.7.130(B)  for  two
consecutive notices in the two-week period before the hearing.

Posted Notice.  Notice of the February 18, 2025 public hearing was posted in four physical places in the City:  on
the west side of Franklin Boulevard at the northern edge of Tax Lot 700; on the west side of Franklin Boulevard at
the southern edge of Tax Lot 700; on the east side of Franklin Boulevard near the midpoint of Tax Lot 5100; and on
the Public Notices bulletin board in the lobby of City Hall.  The public hearing notice was also digitally posted on
the  electronic  display  in  the  foyer  of  the Development & Public Works office  and on  the City of Springfield
website.

Conclusion:  Notice of the public hearing was provided consistent with SDC 5.7.130.

Public Testimony Received.  The applicant’s representative appeared at the public hearing meeting on February 18,
2025 and testified in support of the proposed annexation.  No other written or verbal testimony was received.

Criteria (SDC 5.7.140):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal conforms
to the following criteria:

A.  The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth boundary; and is
1.   Contiguous to the city limits; or
2.   Separated from the City only by a public right of way or a stream, lake or other body of water.

Finding:  The subject annexation territory is located within the acknowledged urban growth boundary (UGB) of the
City of Springfield (see additional discussion in Subsection B below).  The property on the west side of Franklin
Boulevard comprises Tax Lots 300 and 700, which in combination are contiguous with the City limits along the east
side which is the Franklin Boulevard right-of-way.  Tax Lot 5100 is located on the east side of Franklin Boulevard
and  has  contiguity  with  the  right-of-way  along  the  western  edge.    Tax  Lot  3800  is  isolated  from  the  Franklin
Boulevard right-of-way by the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad line.  However, Tax Lot 3800 abuts the City limits
along the northern boundary so this parcel also has contiguity in accordance with this requirement.  The proposal
meets the requirements of SDC 5.7.140(A)(1) for contiguity to the current City limits.  Therefore, this annexation
application  meets the statutory definition of contiguity as found in ORS 222.111(1).

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion (A)(1) of SDC 5.7.140.

B.  The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan,
Metro Plan, and in any applicable refinement plans or Plan Districts;

Finding:  In December 2016, Springfield adopted the Springfield Comprehensive Plan - Urbanization Element as a
component of Springfield’s comprehensive plan in compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 14, Urbanization.  The
Urbanization Element explicitly retains the Metro Plan’s long-standing urbanization policy criteria for approving
annexations.  The Urbanization Element has been acknowledged by LCDC.

Finding:    In  July  2024,  the  Springfield Comprehensive Plan  was  adopted  as  the  City’s  comprehensive  plan,
effectively replacing and superseding many of the provisions of the Metro Plan.  The Springfield Comprehensive
Plan – Land Use Element and parcel-specific Comprehensive Plan Map has made the Springfield Comprehensive
Plan the  principal  policy  document  that  creates  the  broad  framework  for  land  use  planning within  the  City  of
Springfield.  Therefore, only the elements of the former Metro Plan that have not been superseded by the Springfield
Comprehensive Plan and that would apply specifically to the subject site should be considered herein.  In this case,
the Urbanization and Economic Elements of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan generally replace and supersede
the policies of the Metro Plan.

Finding:   The territory requested for annexation is within an area that is zoned Glenwood Employment Mixed Use

Exhibit B 
3 of 8

Attachment 3



which  is  consistent with  the  comprehensive  plan  designation.    The  adopted Springfield Comprehensive Plan
applies to areas within the Springfield UGB, particularly the Urbanization Element adopted by Ordinance 6361.
The Urbanizable Fringe (UF-10) overlay will be effectively removed upon annexation.  Following annexation, the
applicant may initiate additional land use actions and entitlements necessary for constructing a public water utility
facility on the site.

Finding:    The  continued  annexation  of  properties  to  the  City  of  Springfield  is  consistent  with  Policy  29  of  the
Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element which specifies annexation as the preferred mechanism for
provision of urban services to properties within the UGB, which will  result  in the elimination of  special districts
within the urbanizable area.

Finding:  More detailed discussion of Public Facilities and Services in the Metro Plan (Section III-G) and the Eugene-
Springfield Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP) – a refinement plan of the Metro Plan – contemplates eventual
elimination of special service districts within each city’s UGB as annexation occurs incrementally.  Policy G.9 of the
Eugene-Springfield PFSP states that Eugene and Springfield and their respective utility branches, Eugene Water &
Electric Board (EWEB) and Springfield Utility Board (SUB), shall ultimately be the water service providers within
their respective urban growth boundary.  The requested annexation is consistent with this adopted policy.

Finding:   The territory requested for annexation is currently within the service areas of the Glenwood Water District
and  the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District.   The Glenwood Water District  has  a  contractual  service
arrangement with Eugene-Springfield  Fire Department  for  provision  of  fire  response  to  unincorporated  areas  of
Glenwood.  After the public hearing and Council adoption of the annexation  Ordinance,  the  annexation  area  will  be
withdrawn  from  the Glenwood Water District and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District consistent with
ORS 222.520 and 222.524 and the City of Springfield will provide fire and life safety services to the annexation area
via the consolidated Eugene-Springfield Fire department.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 33 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
SUB is the exclusive water service provider within the Springfield city limits.

Finding:  The Glenwood Water District, under contract with SUB Water, provides water service to unincorporated
areas of Glenwood.  Therefore, upon annexation, the City by and through the Springfield Utility Board will provide
water service to the annexation area.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 34 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
when unincorporated territory within the UGB is provided with any new urban service, that service shall be provided
by  one  of  the  following  methods  in  this  priority  order:    a)  Annexation  to  City;  or  b)  Contractual  annexation
agreements with City.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 35 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
the City shall not extend water or wastewater service outside City limits to serve a residence or business without first
obtaining a valid annexation petition, a consent to annex agreement, or when a health hazard abatement annexation
is required.

Finding:  The requested annexation is to facilitate future installation of a water intake and pump station from the
Willamette River on the east side of Franklin Boulevard, and a public water utility installation (i.e. treatment plant)
on the west side of Franklin Boulevard.  Annexation will also facilitate connection to the nearest available public
sanitary sewer line which is located in Newman Street to the north of the subject property.  There is no proposal to
extend sewer or water to a non-annexed area.  Further discussion about the water system is found in Section C below.

Finding:  The subject site is within the Phase 1 Glenwood Refinement Plan and it is part of the McVay Riverfront
sub-area.   Adopted  open  space  policies  of  the Phase 1 Glenwood Refinement Plan  include:    development  of  a
riverside park corridor containing multi-use pathways; maintaining viewsheds and public accessibility to the river;
and avoiding development that will restrict accessibility to the riverside park corridor.  The proposed annexation does
not preclude the extension of a river park or pathway system through the area nor would it prevent public access in
the future.

Exhibit B 
4 of 8

Attachment 3



Finding:  The City’s adopted Transportation System Plan (TSP) and the Phase 1 Glenwood Refinement Plan identify
a Willamette River multi-use path along the west bank of the river from the Main and South A Street bridges south
to the City’s UGB.  The multi-use path alignment passes through the proposed annexation area.  Project PB-18 for
the new 12-foot wide multi-use path has no specific timeline for completion.

Finding:  Similar to the project listed above, the Willamalane Park & Recreation District 2023 Comprehensive Plan
also identifies Project L17 which is a Glenwood Riverfront multi-use path that runs southward from the Main and
South A Street bridges to Seavey Loop Road.  The multi-use path alignment passes through the proposed annexation
area.  Annexation of the subject property does not preclude extension of a multi-use pathway along the Willamette
River, and incorporation of the riverfront property into the City limits would facilitate planning and construction of
the project to satisfy the Glenwood Refinement Plan, the City’s TSP and the Willamalane Comprehensive Plan.

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion B of SDC 5.7.140.

C.  The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities and
services as defined in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and
timely manner; and

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 29 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
annexation shall continue to be a prerequisite for urban development and the delivery of City services in accordance
with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan and Springfield Development Code.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 31 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
key urban facilities and services are defined as wastewater service; stormwater service; transportation; solid waste
management; water service; fire and emergency medical services; police protection; citywide park and recreation
programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools on a districtwide basis.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 32 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
urban  services  provided  by  the  City  upon  annexation  to  Springfield  include  storm  and  sanitary  sewer;  water;
transportation systems; police and fire protection; planning, building, code enforcement and library services; and
public infrastructure maintenance of City owned or operated facilities.

Finding:   Urban utilities including water and electricity are available within the Franklin Boulevard corridor or via
connections to adjoining properties.  The urban service delivery systems are already available and in place or can be
logically extended from points on the periphery to serve the subject property.  The following urban utilities, facilities
and services are either available or can be extended to this annexation area:

Water  –  The  Springfield  Utility  Board  operates  the  public  water  utility  system  within  incorporated  areas  of
Glenwood.  SUB Water also operates and maintains the water delivery system in unincorporated areas of Glenwood
under contract with the Glenwood Water District.  As noted above, SUB is the exclusive water service provider for
properties within  the City  limits.   Upon  annexation,  the  subject  property will  be  eligible  to  receive SUB Water
service.  SUB Water service for the proposed public water utility installation would be necessary for both potable
water used for sinks and restrooms and also for fire protection (e.g. fire hydrants or building sprinklers).

Electricity – SUB owns and operates underground and overhead electrical transmission lines that have been installed
along the Franklin Boulevard frontage of the site.  Additionally, EWEB operates an electrical transmission line that
runs from the northern edge of 5120 Franklin Boulevard westward to an intertie point in Tax Lot 300.  Both SUB and
EWEB electrical facilities are within or adjacent to the applicant’s property.  However, SUB Electric has the exclusive
right to provide service to the subject property because it is within the SUB service territory.  Upon annexation of the
subject territory, electrical system facilities can be extended to serve any future development on the site.   Existing
electrical system infrastructure within the public rights-of-way and easements will continue to be maintained by the
affected utility provider.

Police Services – Springfield Police Department currently provides service to areas of Glenwood that are already
inside the City limits.  The annexation territory is currently within the jurisdiction of the Lane County and served by

Exhibit B 
5 of 8

Attachment 3



the Sheriff’s Department.  Upon annexation, this area will receive Springfield Police services on an equal basis with
other properties inside the City.

Fire and Emergency Services – Fire protection is currently provided to portions of the annexation area (i.e. Tax Lots
3800 & 5100) by Eugene-Springfield Fire Department under contract with the Glenwood Water District.  The other
portions (i.e. Tax Lots 300 & 700) are within the service territory of the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District.
Upon annexation, the property will be withdrawn from the rural water and fire districts and the Eugene-Springfield
Fire Department will directly provide fire and emergency services to the subject territory.

Emergency medical transport (ambulance) services are provided on a metro-wide basis by the Eugene-Springfield
Fire Department.   The  annexation  area  will  continue  to receive  this  service  consistent  with  the  adopted  ambulance
service area  (ASA) plan.   Mutual  aid  agreements have been adopted by the three regional ASA providers to provide
backup coverage for each other’s jurisdictions.

Parks and Recreation – Park and recreation services are provided within the City of Springfield by the Willamalane
Park & Recreation District.  The park district operates several indoor recreation facilities, such as the Willamalane
Park Swim Center, Lively Park Swim Center, Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation, and Willamalane Adult
Activity Center.  The  park  district offers various  after-school  and other programs for children at schools and parks
throughout the community.  Also available are pathways and several categories of parks, including community parks,
sports parks, special use parks, and natural area parks.  Because the annexation territory is zoned Employment Mixed
Use and the future development plans propose a water utility installation on the site, it is not expected to generate
any population.

As stated above, the subject property is identified as part of a multi-use pathway corridor running from the Main and
South  A  Street  bridges  southward  to  Seavey  Loop  (Project  L17,  2023 Willamalane Comprehensive Plan).
Annexation of the subject territory would be an initial step in developing the site with future urban uses including
utility infrastructure and park and recreation facilities.

Concurrent with annexation to the City of Springfield, the subject property will be annexed to the Willamalane Park
& Recreation District consistent with City policy, an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Springfield
and Lane County, and the adopted 2023 Willamalane Comprehensive Plan.

Library Services – Upon annexation to  the City of Springfield, the subject area will be served by the Springfield
Public Library.

Schools – Both the Eugene 4J School District and the Springfield School District serve this area of Glenwood.  The
District Boundary splits Tax Lots 300 and 700 on the west side of Franklin Boulevard such that three of the four parcels
(Tax Lots  700,  3800  and 5100)  are within Springfield School District.   Because  the  properties  are  not  zoned  for
residential use and the proposed future development on the site is for a public utility facility, it is not expected that the
annexation territory will generate any population requiring public school services.

Sanitary Sewer – The annexation  territory is proximate to existing public sanitary sewer lines in Newman Street and
in the Franklin Boulevard right-of-way north of the railroad bridge.  Both locations for connection to sanitary sewer
require passage across the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad line.  The applicant will require public sanitary sewer
service for the proposed use of water utility installation because of process water discharge and restroom facilities
for operations staff.  It is possible that the applicant will design a connection to the Newman Street sewer line which
is located directly north of the property.  The existing sanitary sewer lines in Newman Street and Franklin Boulevard
have been designed and sized to accommodate full buildout of  the adjacent Glenwood Employment Mixed Use
properties.  However, only a fraction of the total development area on both sides of Franklin Boulevard has been
developed with employment uses.  For this reason, the existing sewer lines should have sufficient excess capacity
to  accommodate  normal  sewage  flows  from  the  proposed  annexation  territory.    The  volume  and  frequency  of
process water discharge to the public sanitary sewer system could exceed the anticipated flows which are based on
modeling the build-out of contributing properties in the Employment Mixed Use zone.  If the sewer system flows
exceed the modeled downstream capacity, the proposed development could trigger the requirement for the applicant
to pay for or construct certain public sewer system facilities to increase capacity.

Exhibit B 
6 of 8

Attachment 3



Stormwater  –  The  subject  annexation  territory is not currently served by a public stormwater  management system.
The  applicant  will  be  required  to  construct  and  maintain  a  stormwater  management  system  for  any  future
development on the annexation territory.  Currently, the annexation territory is sloping, wooded and almost entirely
pervious surface because of existing vegetation.  City regulations require stormwater runoff to be managed on-site
to the greatest extent possible, including provision for treatment and infiltration.  Overflow to the public stormwater
system north of the subject property may be allowable depending on the final on-site stormwater system design prepared
by the applicant and as permitted under the City’s stormwater development regulations in effect on the date of submittal.
Review and approval of the proposed stormwater system will be done in conjunction with a future Site Plan Review for
construction of a public utility installation.

Streets – The boundary of the annexation territory is bisected by Franklin Boulevard which is an urban arterial
street.  The southern segment of Franklin Boulevard between the Central Oregon Pacific Railroad bridge and the
I-5 onramp is not developed to urban standards and lacks curb, gutter, sidewalk, street trees, continuous street
lighting  and  piped  stormwater  facilities.    There  are  no  other  existing  or  planned  public  streets  within  the
annexation territory.  Future development on the subject property will derive access from Franklin Boulevard.  In
addition to construction of one or more commercial driveway approaches to serve the annexation area, the applicant
will be responsible for a proportional contribution to frontage improvements along Franklin Boulevard.  There are
no curbs, gutters,  sidewalks or bicycle  facilities planned for  the southern segment of Franklin Boulevard  in  the
City’s transportation planning horizon.  Street improvements may be limited to the installation of street lighting to
improve safety at the future commercial driveway approach(es) serving the annexation territory.

Solid Waste Management – The City and Sanipac have an exclusive franchise arrangement for garbage service inside
the City limits.  Upon annexation, solid waste disposal service would be provided by Sanipac.

Communication Facilities – Various providers offer both wired and wireless communication services in the Eugene-
Springfield metropolitan area.  Existing providers and those entering the market have the capability to provide service
to this area.

Land Use Controls  –  The  annexation  area  is  within  Springfield’s  urban  growth  boundary.    Through  an
intergovernmental  agreement  between Lane County  and  the City of  Springfield,  the City  already has  planning and
building jurisdiction for unincorporated areas of Springfield.  The City will continue to administer land use controls
after annexation.

Finding:   The minimum level of key urban facilities and services, as outlined in  the Springfield Comprehensive Plan
– Urbanization Element  are  available  to  the  site,  or  there  is  sufficient  capacity  that  will  exist  at  the  time  of
development.

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion C of SDC 5.7.140.

D.  Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an Annexation Agreement, a
Development Agreement per SDC 5.1.1200, a waiver of remonstrance, or other mechanism approved by
the City Council.

Finding:  The area proposed for annexation is a vacant property currently zoned for Glenwood Employment Mixed
Use.  The subject annexation area is at the extreme southern end of Glenwood near the edge of the Urban Growth
Boundary  and  the  boundary  with  the  City  of  Eugene  (represented  by  the  centerline  of  I-5).    As  discussed  in
Subsection C (above), there may be anticipated transportation improvements along the property frontage on Franklin
Boulevard, particularly for street lighting to improve the visibility of future driveway approaches.  The anticipated
street lighting improvements are reasonable and proportional to the proposed future use of a water utility installation
on the site which will be addressed through the Site Plan Review process. No Annexation Agreement is necessary to
ensure mitigation of fiscal impact because these will all be addressed through application of the Site Plan review
standards.

Conclusion:    The proposal meets and complies with Criterion D of SDC 5.7.140.

Exhibit B 
7 of 8

Attachment 3



City Council Decision (SDC 5.7.145):   City  Council  approval  of  the  annexation  application  shall  be  by Ordinance.

Finding:  The subject annexation is initiated by Owner Consent and the property contains natural resource
areas including Hillside Development Overlay and Floodplain Overlay.  For this reason, the City Council
is requested to process the request as a quasi-judicial land use action.  The City Council gave first  reading
of  the  Annexation  Ordinance  and  held  a  quasi-judicial  Public  Hearing  on  February  18,  2025  for  the  subject
annexation  request.    Based  on  the  staff  analysis  and  recommendations,  and  on  testimony  provided  at  the  Public
Hearing,  the City Council may now  take action to approve, modify, or deny the Annexation Ordinance at the regular
meeting on  March 3, 2025.

Zoning (SDC 5.7.150):  The area requested for annexation is zoned and designated Glenwood Employment Mixed
Use  (GEMU)  in  accordance  with  the  Springfield  Zoning Map  and  the  adopted Springfield Comprehensive Plan
diagram.   Properties that are outside the City limits have the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District (UF-10) applied to
the zoning.  Upon the effective date  of  the  annexation,  the  UF-10  overlay  will  be  automatically  removed and the
property will retain the GEMU zoning.

Effective Date and Notice of Approved Annexation (SDC 5.7.155):  The subject annexation request was presented
to the City Council for consideration at an initial quasi-judicial public hearing on February 18, 2025.  Second reading and
potential adoption of the annexation Ordinance is scheduled for March 3, 2025.  Therefore, the annexation and special
district  withdrawal  will  become  effective  30  days  following  signature  by  the Mayor  (i.e.  April  2,  2025),  or  upon
acknowledgement of filing with the Secretary of State – whichever date is later.

Withdrawal from Special Service Districts (SDC 5.7.160):  Withdrawal  from  special  districts  may  occur
concurrently with the approved annexation Ordinance or after the effective date of the annexation of territory to the
City.  The Director shall recommend to the City Council for consideration of the withdrawal of the annexed territory
from special  districts  as  specified  in ORS 222.   In  determining whether  to withdraw  the  territory,  the City Council
shall determine whether the withdrawal is in the best interest of the City.  Notice of the withdrawal shall be provided
in the same manner as the annexation notice in SDC 5.7.130.

Finding:   The annexation area is within the delineated service territories of the Glenwood Water District (contracted
water and fire response to Tax Lots 3800 & 5100) and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District (Tax Lots
300 &  700).    The  Eugene/Springfield  Fire  Department  will  directly  provide  fire  and  emergency  services  after
annexation.    Consistent  with  SDC  5.7.160,  notice  was  provided  for  the  public  hearing  on  February  18,  2025.
Withdrawal from the Glenwood Water District and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District concurrently
with annexation of the territory to the City of Springfield is in the best interest of the City.  The withdrawal from
the rural water and fire districts is necessary to implement Policies 31 and 32 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan
– Urbanization Element whereby annexation is prioritized for the City of Springfield to provide urban services to its
incorporated territory, and existing special service districts within the City’s UGB are to be dissolved over time.

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  The proposal complies with the annexation criteria of approval listed
in SDC 5.7.140, and Council is within its authority to adopt the Ordinance annexing the subject territory to
the City of Springfield and Willamalane Park and Recreation District and withdrawing of the subject territory
from the Glenwood Water District and the Pleasant Hill Goshen Fire & Rescue District.

Exhibit B 
8 of 8

Attachment 3



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Andrew Larson/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel while

Focusing on Livability and Environmental Quality

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee Appointment

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Appoint Tonya Mildon to the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee for a three-year term, ending on December
31, 2027.

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) currently has one vacant position, one due to a resignation.

One person was interviewed for the BPAC on February 18, 2025, and Council gave direction to appoint Ms. Tonya
Mildon. 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC), which typically consists of nine voting members, is
seeking new members for two vacant seats. The BPAC advises City Council and city staff on pedestrian and bicycle
plans. The committee was established to provide input on bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure, policies, programs,
education, and enforcement. The committee has one vacancy due to the resignation of Paul Metzler on January 7,
2025.

Appointing one new member will complete the 9-member committee.



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Amanda Clinton/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Award For Harbor Drive Pump Station Consultant Contract, C3828. 

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approve or reject the following motion:TO AWARD THE SUBJECT CONTRACT TO THE DYER
PARTNERSHIP ENGINEERS AND PLANNERS, INC. FOR $137,900.

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
We received 1 proposal which was scored for the Harbor Drive Pump Station Design project. A contract award is
now necessary to enable design work to proceed. 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The City of Springfield requested proposals through the formal RFP process to establish a contract with a consultant
or firm for engineering, geotechnical, and environmental services to design the new Harbor Drive Pump Station. The
work will include the investigation and evaluation of the proposed service area, equipment and vehicular site access,
flooding and inclement weather resiliency, impervious surface and stormwater management requirements, review of
the current codes and standards, preparation of operation & maintenance manuals, preliminary & final design, along
with startup & commissioning. It will also include investigation, data collection, and pre-design to be performed in
sufficient detail to determine lift station location options, vault type and size options, sewer line size, routing,
permitting and easement needs, odor control, generator sizing, and influent gate design.

The following design firms provided proposals: 
The Dyer Partnership Engineers and Planners, Inc. 

The internal review committee scored the Dyer Engineers and Planners Inc. and determined they are qualified and
capable of completing the design. It is now necessary for the Council to award the contract. Funding for this project
will utilize budgeted local sewer funds. 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Design Contract



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
Contract #C3828 Project # P21204 

 
 
Dated:   3-4-2025 
 
Parties: City of Springfield                                        “CITY” 

A Municipal Corporation of the State of Oregon  
225 5th Street 
Springfield, OR 97477                

         and 
   

The Dyer Partnership Engineers and Planners, Inc.  
  

 “Contractor” 

  
Additional Contractor Information: 

 
a) Type of Entity:    Sole Proprietorship   Partnership 

 Limited Liability Comp         Corporation 
 

b)   Address:      1330 Teakwood Ave, Coos Bay, OR 97420 
   
c) Telephone:   541-269-0732 

 
d) If Applicable, Listed among the Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-

Procurement Programs found at: https://www.sam.gov/content/exclusions:  Yes   No   
 

City Account Number(s) To Be Charged (Include Percentages):  
 

Account Number Percentage 

617-07600-8800-800005-P21204 100% 
  
  

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree to the following terms, 
provisions, and conditions, in addition to the terms and conditions in any attached addenda: 

 
1. Services to be Delivered.  Contractor shall perform the Services and deliver to the City the 

Deliverables specified in Attachment 1.  The Statement of Work (Attachment 1) includes the 
delivery schedule for the Deliverables and Services. Contractor will perform the Services in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

 
2. Payment by City.  The maximum, not-to-exceed compensation payable to Contractor under this 

Contract, which includes any allowable expenses, is $137,900. City will not pay Contractor any 
amount in excess of the not-to-exceed compensation of this Contract and will not pay for Services 
performed before the Effective Date or after the expiration or termination of this Contract. If the 
maximum compensation is increased by amendment of this Contract, the amendment must be 

Attachment 1
1 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

fully effective before Contractor performs Services subject to the amendment. City will pay 
Contractor for only for completed Deliverables and Services performed according to the schedule 
and rates in Attachment 1.   
 

3. Expenses. City will not pay or reimburse any expenses incurred by Contractor during the 
completion of the Services except as authorized in the Statement Work or elsewhere in this 
Contract.   
 

4. Term. This Agreement is effective as of the date first set forth above and will continue until 
December 31st, 2025 unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement 
or by mutual consent  of the parties.  
4.1. ☒ Renewal. This Agreement may be extended for three (3) additional one-year terms upon 

mutual agreement of the parties in writing. 
 

5. Invoice.  City will pay Contractor’s invoices on Net 30 day terms upon City acceptance of Services 
performed and Goods delivered as stated in section 7. Contractor must send invoices to: Amanda 
Clinton - City of Springfield, 225 5th Street, Springfield, OR 97477 or email to aclinton@springfield-
or.gov.  The invoice must reference this contract #C3828 and approval code #760 
 

6. Overdue Charges. Contractor may assess overdue account charges to City on unpaid invoices 
only as stated in this section. Overdue account charges must be the same as the usual overdue 
account charges to the general clientele of the vendor.  Overdue claims are only those claims that 
have not been paid within 45 days of: the date of the City’s receipt of the invoice, the date of the 
initial billing statement if there is no invoice, or the date the claim is made certain by agreement 
of the parties or by operation of law. However, no overdue account charges will accrue on any 
purchases made by City during time of civil emergency or in the event of a natural disaster which 
prevents the timely payment of accounts. In such instances accounts shall be paid in as timely a 
manner as possible.  The date of the check or automatic funds transfer in payment of the claims 
will be used to determine if the claim has been paid in a timely manner. It is a rebuttable 
presumption that the check was correctly dated. 
 

7. Rejection of Deliverables. If City determines that a Deliverable does not have the 
characteristics or otherwise meet the acceptance criteria set forth in the Statement of Work in all 
material respects, City will notify Contractor in writing of City’s rejection of the Deliverable(s), and 
describe in reasonable detail in such notice the City’s basis for rejection of the Deliverable(s). 
Within 21 days of receiving notice of non-acceptance, the Contractor must modify or improve the 
Deliverables at Contractor’s sole expense so that the Deliverable(s) meets the acceptance criteria 
in all material respects, notify the City in writing that it has completed such modifications or 
improvements, and re-tender the Deliverables to City. Within 21 days of Contractor’s re-tender of 
the Deliverable(s), City will review the modified or improved Deliverable(s). Failure of the 
Deliverables to meet the acceptance criteria in all material respects after the second submission 
will constitute a default by Contractor. In the event of such default, Agency may either, (i) notify 
Contractor of such default and instruct Contractor to modify or improve the Deliverables as set 
forth in this Section, or (ii) notify Contractor of such default and pursue its remedies for default 
provided for by law or the terms of this Contract. 
 

8. Contractor’s Representations.   Contractor represents that: 
 
8.1. Contractor has the authority to enter into and perform according to this Contract, and 

 that this Contract, when executed and delivered, is a valid and binding obligation of 
 Contractor that is enforceable according to its terms; 

8.2. Contractor has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its industry, 
trade or profession and Contractor will apply that skill and knowledge with care and diligence 
and perform Services in a timely, professional, and skillful manner according to standards 
applicable to Contractor’s industry, trade, or profession; and 

Attachment 1
2 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

8.3. Contractor is, and must be at all times during the term of this Contract, qualified, 
professionally competent, and duly licensed to perform Services. 

 

9. Sourcing.  This contract is being awarded to Contractor as the most qualified consultant based 
upon a formal selection procedure under RFP #3727.  This contract awards only a portion of the 
scope of work described in RFP #3727.  City may, in the future, award additional phases of work 
identified RFP #3727 to Contractor through written amendment to this Contract as provided in 
OAR 137-048-0200.  The City finds that preserving the ability to amend this contract for additional 
phases of work that were identified in RFP 3727 promotes the efficient use of public funds and 
resources and may result in substantial cost savings as compared to issuing a new RFP, while also 
not encouraging favoritism or diminishing competition in the award of this Contract or any future 
amendments. 
 

10. First Point of Contact.   
  

CONTRACTOR:  
The Dyer Partnership Engineers and Planners, Inc.  
1330 Teakwood Ave  
Coos Bay, OR 97420 
P. 541-269-0732 
  
CITY:  
Jesse Jones, Senior Civil Engineer 
225 Fifth Street, Springfield, OR 97477 
P. 541-726-3720 

 
11. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.   

11.1. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its officers, 
agents and employees from and against all claims, actions, liabilities, loss, and costs including 
attorney’s fees and costs of defense, to the extent caused by the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor, and Contractor’s subcontractors, officers, agents, and employees, in performance 
of this contract. 

11.2. In the event any such action or claim is brought against City, upon tender by City, 
Contractor will defend the same at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly satisfy any 
judgment adverse to City or to City and Contractor, jointly, and reimburse City for any loss, 
cost, damage or expense, including attorney fees, suffered or incurred by City. City shall 
notify Contractor, within a reasonable time, of any claim, threat of claim or legal action.  
 

11.3.  For professional liability claims, to the extent allowed by law, Contractor will 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any liability, damages, and costs 
resulting from a negligent act or omission in the course of the provided services. 
The Contractor’s defense obligations under this indemnity paragraph means the 
reimbursement of reasonable defense costs to the proportionate extent of 
Contractor’s actual liability thereunder. 

 
11.4. Notwithstanding subsections 11.1 and 11.2, neither Contractor nor any attorney engaged 

by Contractor will defend any claim in the name of the City, nor purport to act as legal 
representative of the City, without the prior written consent of the City Attorney’s Office. 
CITY may, at any time and at its election, assume its own defense and settlement of any 
claims. City reserves all rights to pursue any claims it may have against Contractor if the City 
elects to assume its own defense. 

11.5. This Section 11 does not include indemnification by Contractor for losses, claims, or 
actions resulting from the sole negligence of City or its officers, agents, and employees, 
whether within the scope of the Contract or otherwise.  

 

Attachment 1
3 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

12. Insurance.  
12.1. Required Coverages. Contractor must obtain at Contractor’s expense, and require its 

first tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, to obtain the insurance specified in this 
section 12 prior to performing under this Contract, and must maintain it in full force and at its 
own expense throughout the duration of this Contract, as required by any extended reporting 
period or tail coverage requirements, and all warranty periods that apply. Contractor must 
obtain and require its first-tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, to obtain the following 
insurance from insurance companies or entities acceptable to City and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance and issue coverage in Oregon.  Contractor acknowledges that 
insurance specified in this section does not limit indemnification responsibilities specified in 
section 11 Indemnification.  

12.1.1. General Insurance.  Commercial general liability insurance covering bodily 
injury and property damage in a form and with coverage that are satisfactory to City. 
This insurance must include personal and advertising injury liability, products and 
completed operations, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under 
this Grant, and have no limitation of coverage to designated premises, project or 
operation. Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less 
than $2,000,000 per occurrence. Annual aggregate limit may not be less than 
$3,000,000. 

12.1.2. Automobile Liability Insurance. Automobile liability insurance covering 
Contractor’s business use including coverage for all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles 
with a combined single limit of not less than $2,000,000 for bodily injury and property 
damage. This coverage may be written in combination with the commercial general 
liability insurance (with separate limits for commercial general liability and automobile 
liability). Use of personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable if 
Contractor provides evidence that the policy includes a business use endorsement. 

12.1.3. Workers’ Compensation. Contractor must provide and maintain workers’   
compensation coverage with limits not less than $500,000 for its employees, officers, 
agents, or partners, as required by applicable workers’ compensation laws as defined in 
ORS 656.027 and ORS 701.035(5).  If Contractor is exempt from coverage, a written 
statement signed by Contractor so stating the reason for exemption must be provided to 
the City.  

12.2. Additional Coverages.  
12.2.1. ☒ Professional Liability.  Contractor shall maintain a professional liability 

insurance policy reflecting limits of not less than $2,000,000 for claims for professional 
acts, errors or omissions arising from the Work. The policy may be written on a “claims 
made” form. Contractor shall maintain the professional liability insurance coverage for at 
least one year after the completion of the work. The policy shall contain an endorsement 
entitling the City not less than 60 days prior written notice of cancellation of such policy 

12.2.2. ☐ Cybersecurity.  Contractor shall maintain in force during the duration of this 

agreement a cybersecurity policy with limits not less than $2,000,000.  
12.3. Excess/Umbrella Insurance. A combination of primary and excess/umbrella insurance may 

be used to meet the required limits of insurance. 
12.4. Additional Insured. All insurance, except for workers’ compensation, professional liability, 

and network security and privacy liability (if applicable), required under this Contract must 
include an additional insured endorsement specifying the City and its officers, employees and 
agents as Additional Insureds, including additional insured status with respect to liability arising 
out of ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with respect to Contractor’s 
activities to be performed under this Contract. Coverage must be primary and non-contributory 
with any other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional Insured endorsement with respect to 
liability arising out of Contractor’s ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07 04 or 
equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect to completed operations must be 
on ISO form CG 20 37 04 13 or equivalent. 

12.5. Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor waives, and must require its first tier contractors 
and subcontractors waive, rights of subrogation which Contractor, Contractor’s first tier 

Attachment 1
4 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

contractors and subcontractors, if any, or any insurer of Contractor may acquire against the 
City by virtue of the payment of any loss. Except for Professional Liability, Contractor must 
obtain, and require its first tier contractors and subcontractors to obtain, any endorsement 
that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from 
the Contractor or the Contractor’s insurer(s). 

12.6. Tail Coverage. If any of the required insurance is on a claims made basis and does not 
include an extended reporting period of at least 24 months, Contractor must maintain, and 
require its first tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, maintain, either tail coverage or 
continuous claims made liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
claims made coverage is on or before the Effective Date of this Contract, for a minimum of 
24 months following the later of (i) Contractor’s completion and City’s acceptance of all 
Goods and Services provided under this Contract, or, (ii) City or Contractor termination of this 
Contract, or, (iii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Contract. 
 

12.7. Evidence of Insurance Coverage.  Evidence of the required insurance coverages 
issued by an insurance company satisfactory to the City shall be provided to the City by way 
of a City approved certificate of insurance before any work or services commence. 

 
12.8. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage.  The certificate of insurance 

shall contain a requirement that the Insurance company notify the City 30 days prior to any 
cancellation or material change in coverage.  If the approved insurance company will not 
provide this 30 day notice, the Contractor shall provide written notice to the City contract 
manager within two days after the Contractor becomes aware that their coverage has been 
canceled or has been materially changed.  The Contractor shall either fax 541-726-3782 said 
notice or email it directly to City Finance Department at purchasing@springfield-or.gov.  
Regardless of what circumstances cause Contractor’s insurance coverage to cease or be 
modified, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to notify the City.   Failure to maintain proper 
insurance or provide notice of cancellation or modification shall be grounds for immediate 
termination of this contract.________(Contractor initials) 

 
12.9. Equipment and Material. Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, damage, or 

destruction of its own property, equipment, and materials used in conjunction with the work. 
 

13. Independent Contractor Status, Tax duties and Liabilities.   
13.1. Contractor will perform all Services as an independent contractor.  Although City may (a) 

determine and modify the delivery schedule for Goods to be delivered and Services to be 
performed and (b) evaluate the quality of the completed performance, City cannot and will 
not control the means or manner of Contractor's performance. Contractor is responsible for 
determining the appropriate means and manner of performing any Services required under 
this Contract.  Contractor is not an "officer," "employee," or "agent" of City as those terms 
are used in ORS 30.265. 

13.2. Contractor shall be responsible for all federal, state, and local taxes, if any, applicable to 
any payments received pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to corporate 
activities tax, income tax, payroll tax, social security and self-employment tax.  City will not 
withhold, pay, or in any other manner be responsible for payment of any taxes on behalf of 
Contractor.  City will not pay any surcharges, fees, or taxes to Contractor except where 
required by law or explicitly provided for in this Agreement. Contractor is not eligible for any 
social security, unemployment insurance, or workers' compensation benefits from 
compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract. 
 

14. Legal Representation.  This Agreement was prepared by the City.  Contractor has had the 
opportunity to have this Agreement reviewed by its own legal counsel prior to its execution. 
 

Attachment 1
5 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

15. Venue and Choice of Law.  Venue for litigation concerning this Agreement rests exclusively with 
the court of the State of Oregon for Lane County. Any dispute arising under this Agreement will be 
governed by the law of the State of Oregon. 

 
16. Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed by reason of weather, fire, riot, strikes, acts of God or 

other circumstances beyond Contractor’s reasonable control, City may terminate this Agreement in 
writing to Contractor after determining such delay or default will unreasonably prevent successful 
performance of the Contract.  If City elects not to terminate the Contract, Contractor will be 
entitled to additional time to complete the Contract equal to that lost by an or all of the above 
causes. 
 

17. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will not be affected; the rights 
and obligations of the parties will be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain 
the particular provision held to be invalid.  

 
18. Records & Data.   

 
18.1. Access to Data. City and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to books, 

documents, papers and records of Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Agreement 
for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 
 

18.2. ☒ Rights in Data. All original written material in whatever form, whether print or digital, 

prepared for City pursuant to this Agreement, is an instrument of service in relation to this 
projects the exclusively the property of the City. The ideas, concepts, know-how, or 
techniques developed during the course of this Agreement by Contractor personnel can be 
used by either party in any way it may deem appropriate. Material already in Contractor's 
possession, independently developed by Contractor outside the scope of this Agreement, or 
rightfully obtained by Contractor from third parties, belong to Contractor. This Agreement 
does not preclude Contractor from developing materials which are competitive, irrespective of 
their similarity to materials which might be delivered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  
Contractor will not, however, use any written materials developed under this Agreement in 
developing materials for others, except as provided in this section. Such documents are not 
intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the City or others on extensions of the 
project or on any other project. Any reuse without written verification of the Contractor will 
be at the City’s sole risk. The City shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and 
Contractor’s Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney 
fees arising out of or resulting, therefore.  

 
19. Confidentiality. During the course of performance hereunder, Contractor or its agent, 

employees, or contractors, may receive confidential information.  Contractor agrees to use its best 
efforts to maintain the confidentiality of such information and to inform each agent and employee 
performing services of the confidentiality obligation that pertains to such information. 
 
19.1. Additional Provisions. Contractor must comply with the terms and conditions in the 

followed addenda, incorporated by reference, in the receipt and handling of confidential 
information:  
☐ Confidential Information Addenda 

☐ Business Associate Agreement (HIIPAA Compliance) Addenda 

 
20. Waiver.  Failure of City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by City of the right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce 
any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

Attachment 1
6 of 19 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

21. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever, without prior written approval of City.  No 
modification of this Agreement shall bind either party unless reduced to writing and subscribed by 
both parties, or ordered by a Court. 

 
22. Termination. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by City, in 

whole or in part, whenever for any reason City shall determine that such termination is in the best 
interest of City.  Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Contractor of a Notice of 
Termination specifying the extent to which performance of the work under the Agreement is 
terminated and the date on which such termination is effective.  Upon delivery to the Contractor 
of a Notice of Termination under this paragraph, the Contractor and City shall, by agreement, 
make an appropriate written modification to this Agreement governing completion of portions of 
the Contractor’s work and payment therefore by CITY. 

 
23. Assignment/Subcontract.  Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or sublet 

rights, or delegate responsibilities under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written approval of City.  No such written approval shall relieve Contractor of any obligations of 
this Agreement, and any transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of Contractor.  
Contractor shall remain liable as between the original parties to this Agreement as if no such 
assignment had occurred. 
 

24. Compliance with All Government Regulations.  Contractor shall comply with all Federal, 
State and local laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to the work performed under 
this Agreement.  Failure to comply with such requirements shall constitute a breach of contract 
and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  Damages or costs resulting from 
noncompliance shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor.  This section includes, but is not 
limited to, compliance with all applicable requirements of Federal and State civil rights statutes, 
rules, and regulations, and all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 
42 USC Section 12101 et seq. and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 
 

25. Attorney Fees.  Except for defense costs and expenses pursuant to section 12, neither City nor 
Contractor is entitled to recover attorney's fees, court and investigative costs, or any other fees or 
expenses associated with pursuing a remedy for damages arising out of or relating to this 
Contract. 

 
26. Construction of Agreement.  This Contract shall not be construed more favorably to City due 

to the preparation of this Contract by City.  The headings and subheadings in this Contract are for 
convenience, do not form a part of this Contract, and shall not be used in construing this Contract. 

 
27. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement signed by both parties is the parties’ final and entire 

Agreement and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written communications 
between the parties, their agents and representatives.  There are no representations, promises, 
terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained herein. 

 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:  CONTRACTOR:     
   
By:   By:  

Name:   Name:  

Title:   Title:  

Date:   Date:  

     

Attachment 1
7 of 19 

kskraaz
Typewriter
2/26/2025



 

{00023719:1}  

City of Springfield Public Contract Addendum 
Required Contract Terms Under ORS 279B – Goods, Services, and Personal Services 

 
Pursuant to Oregon law, this public contract includes the following terms and conditions, when applicable: 
 
1. The contractor must make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for 

the performance of the work provided for in the contract.  ORS 279B.220(1). 

 
2. The contractor must pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or 

subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.  ORS 279B.220(2). 

 
3. That contractor must not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school 

district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished.  ORS 

279B.220(3). 

 
4. The contractor must pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167.  ORS 

279B.220(4). 

 
5. If the agreement is for lawn and landscape maintenance, Contractor must salvage, recycle, compost or mulch yard 

waste material at an approved site, if feasible and cost-effective.  ORS 279B.225. 

 
6. The contractor must promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, association or corporation 

furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or 

injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the contractor agrees to pay for the services and all 

moneys and sums that the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract or 

agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.  All employers shall comply with ORS 656.017.  

ORS 279B.230. 

 
7. A person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases 

of necessity, emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, except in cases of 

contracts for personal services designated under ORS 279A.055, the employee shall be paid at least time and a half 

pay: 

a. For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is five 

consecutive days; or 

b. For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is four 

consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and 

c. For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.   

 
8. An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract, either at the time of hire or 

before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the 

number of hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.235(1)-(2). 

 
9. If the agreement is for personal services, the contract shall contain a provision that the employee shall be paid at 

least time and a half for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under 

personal services contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201-209 from 

receiving overtime.  ORS 279B.235(3). 

 
10. If the contract is for services, persons employed under contracts shall receive at least time and half pay for work 

performed on the legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 279B.020(1)(b)(B)-(G) and 

for all time worked in excess of 10 hours in any one day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week, whichever is 

greater.  Contractor shall give notice in writing to employees who work on a contract for services, either at the time 

of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by 

employees, of the number hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 

279B.235(5). 

Attachment 1
8 of 19 



 
 

City of Springfield 
Harbor Drive Pump Station 

Predesign Report Scope of Work 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: The City of Springfield plans to design and construct a new Harbor Drive 
Pump Station project will provide sanitary sewer service to areas currently served by septic systems 
and other developable land in southwestern Springfield, specifically the areas off Oak, Ash, and 
Dorris Streets, along with the existing neighborhood at the end of Harbor Drive. This project is 
identified as Project CIP #9 in the City’s Wastewater Facilities Plan. The Harbor Drive Pump Station 
will utilize an existing 5-inch dry force main, which is near the intersection of Dorris and Harbor 
Drive. The existing force main discharges to Manhole (MH) #24898 on S 2nd Street. 
 
This phase of the project is to provide a 30 percent preliminary design package for the new pump 
station. The recommended improvements and preliminary design will be compiled in a predesign 
report technical memorandum outlining the proposed pump station location. Final design will be 
addressed in a future task order amendment or task order. 
 
A future phase of the project may include the design and construction of the gravity sewer system, 
which includes 7,684 feet of 8-inch gravity pipe that will ultimately feed the new Harbor Drive Pump 
Station. 

SCOPE OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
The City requires engineering services for a Predesign Report addressing the proposed Harbor Drive 
Pump Station, the associated sanitary sewer force main, and the future gravity collection system that 
will covey wastewater to the pump station.   
 
Predesign Report Services 
 

• Coordinate with City staff, affected utilities, and Dyer subconsultants. 
 

• Call in utility locates for the project area and proposed gravity sewer collection system. 
Identify potential construction conflicts and utilities requiring relocation. A potholing plan for 
utilities that may be in conflict or require relocation will be provided to the City and the 
potholing items critical for final design will be provided.    
 

• Field verify utilities, and survey the utilities with a survey crew, incorporating the utilities 
into the base map information provided by the City.  
 

• Review City record drawings and plans. 
 

• Determine future flows to the pump station. Develop an estimated flow rate for the areas 
contributing wastewater to the station, and ultimately develop an Equivalent Dwelling Unit 
calculation for the system. Determine and apply a population growth rate to the calculated 
flows and develop a 20-year project flow rate for the pump station. Calculate the estimated 
peak hourly flow rate of the station for use in pump station sizing.  
 

• Provide a preliminary gravity collection system layout for the outermost regions of the area to 
serve the pump station. The preliminary design will review existing topographic and LIDAR 
data, and layout a simplified gravity sewer system to determine if an intermediate pump 
station is needed to covey wastewater to the proposed Harbor Drive Pump Station location, or 
confirm if a gravity sewer system can convey the wastewater to the station without the need 
of an intermediate pump station.      

    
     

   
  

Attachment 1

Attachment 1
9 of 19 



 
 

• Perform preliminary hydraulic calculations using City record drawings of the existing 5” dry 
force main. It is assumed that a condition assessment for the existing 5” dry force main has 
been completed by others and the pipe is in adequate condition.   
 

• Select submersible pumps and controls for the pump station. 
 

• Review existing site surveys and construct base maps for the pump station, force main, and 
gravity collection system. 

 
• Determine alternatives and locations for the proposed pump station site. Review and provide 

elevation recommendations for the pump station to ensure compliance with work within a 
floodplain is addressed. 

 
• Provide preliminary design of the pump station mechanical piping and wet well, control 

building, and site layout. 
 

• Provide preliminary electrical design and sizing for a standby generator system/diesel driven 
backup pump of adequate size to power the pump station.  

 
• Conduct preliminary meetings and investigations with the permitting agencies to identify 

required permits, timelines for permitting, and required investigations. 
 

• Provide a construction cost estimate for both the preliminary gravity collection system and 
pump station. If a second intermediate pump station is identified as being required, we will 
review this with the Owner and a task order amendment may be issued should planning and 
preliminary design be required for an intermediate pump station. Provide estimated time line 
for construction. 
 

• Provide preliminary pump station data calculations and tables for predesign report. 
 

• Develop a predesign report memo for the pump station (excluding gravity collection system) 
that complies with the Oregon DEQ Wastewater Pump Station Design Standards: 
 
https://www.oregon.gov/deq/FilterRulemakingDocs/div52-designwwps.pdf 

 
• Conduct predesign review meetings at project kickoff, 30% completion (Progress Meeting), 

60% completion (Progress Meeting), and 90% completion (Final design review) with City 
staff.  

 
• Submit Predesign Report (2 hard copies and PDF) to City and DEQ for review and approval.  

Copies will not be sent to DEQ until City has approved the report. 
 

• Prepare and send out SHPO clearance form. It is assumed SHPO to be a 30-day 
process.  
 

• Upon selection of a preliminary pump station location, conduct geotechnical investigations 
(Foundation Engineering) and boring to review geotechnical concerns with the site. 
Geotechnical investigation will consist of one boring at the proposed pump station site to be 
identified. If findings are not favorable and further borings and geotechnical engineering are 
required, they will be addressed in a task order amendment.   

 
 
 
 

Attachment 1
10 of 19 

https://www.oregon.gov/deq/FilterRulemakingDocs/div52-designwwps.pdf


 
 

Assumptions:  
 

• City will pothole utilities identified as potential conflicts or items that are not shown on the 
as-built and record drawings. A potholing plan will be provided as outlined above. 

 
• City will pay all regulatory agency review, DEQ, and permit fees. 

 
• Right-of-way acquisition and easement procurement are excluded from this task order. If 

these items are identified as needed, they will be addressed in a future task order for final 
design. 

 
• Final design, bidding, and construction administration are excluded from this task order. 

 
• City to coordinate with all private property owners and businesses. 

 
• No environmental storm water permitting or flood plain certificates during this phase. The 

City will pay all permit fees if required by regulatory agencies.  
 

• Design and relocation of existing utilities that are in conflict or need to be relocated are 
excluded from this task order. If these items are identified as needed, they will be addressed 
in a task order amendment. 
 

• Clearing of brush if needed for onsite surveying is to be completed by the City. 
 

• The project is City funded with no special funding requirements. 
 

• All environmental permitting and coordination (US Army Corps and Oregon DSL for 
example), and archeological studies and permits are excluded, if these items are identified as 
needed, they will be address in a task order amendment. 
 

• Coordination with tree boards, planning commissions, architectural review committees, etc. is 
excluded. 
 

• Tribal Coordination and additional requirements that may arise from submission of SHPO 
Clearance Form are excluded.  Should additional requirements be identified, Dyer will notify 
the City for direction. 

 
Project Schedule  
 

• City provides Notice to Proceed: March, 2025 
 
• Project Kickoff Meeting: March, 2025 

 
• Site Survey Utilities: March/April, 2025 

 
• Geotechnical Investigation: April/May 2025* 

 
• Provide 60% Predesign report to City for review: May 2025* 
 
• Provide 90% Predesign Report to City for review:  June 2025* 
 
• Submit Predesign Report to City:  July 2025* 

 
• Submit Predesign Report to DEQ:  July 2025* 

Attachment 1
11 of 19 



 
 

 
*   Dependent upon completion of geotechnical report. 

 
Proposed Fee 
 
Services will be performed and billed on a time and materials basis, in accordance with the 
conditions of the Professional Services Agreement and fee listed herein.  The fee for these 
services is a not to exceed maximum of $137,290 including all professional services and 
reimbursable expenses.  
 
PAYMENT METHOD:  Monthly Billing 

Attachment 1
12 of 19 



Attachment 1
13 of 19 



Attachment 1
14 of 19 



Foundation Engineering, Inc.
Professional Geotechnical Services Memorandum

820 NW Cornell Avenue • Corvallis, Oregon 97330 • 541-757-7645 
7857 SW Cirrus Drive, Bldg 24 • Beaverton, Oregon 97008 • 503-643-1541 

Date: December 23, 2024

To: Andrew Hall, P.E.
The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc. 

From: David Running, P.E., G.E.
James K. Maitland, P.E., G.E.

Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical Investigation 

Project: Harbor Drive Pump Station 
Proposal No.: 24161

Please consider this memorandum as our proposal to provide a geotechnical 
investigation for the above-referenced project. Details of our scope of work, costs 
and schedule are provided below. For brevity, the symbol “±” is used herein to 
represent the words approximate or approximately.

BACKGROUND 

The City of Springfield is planning to build a new wastewater pump station and 
electrical building on Harbor Drive.  The location for the new pump station on Harbor 
Drive has not yet been selected. For purposes of preparing this proposal, we have 
assumed the new pump station will include a ±20-foot deep wet well and the site 
will be accessible with a truck-mounted drill rig.

The Dyer Partnership Engineers and Planners, Inc. (Dyer) is the civil designer. Dyer 
requested Foundation Engineering, Inc. (FE) prepare a proposal to complete a 
geotechnical investigation for the project.

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK

Subsurface Investigation

Previous explorations by FE west of the river encountered relatively shallow bedrock. 
Logs of water wells near Harbor Drive report sandstone within ±12 to 14 feet of the 
ground surface. Bedrock is also exposed in portions of the riverbed immediately east 
of Harbor Drive. Based on the available information, we anticipate the planned pump 
station site is underlain by predominantly fine-grained soils (e.g., silts and clays) over 
relatively shallow bedrock. We have assumed this profile is preparing our proposal
and cost estimate.

We propose to drill one boring at the selected pump station site using a track or 
truck-mounted drill rig. We have assumed the City or Dyer will coordinate 
right-of-entry for our field exploration.  

Attachment 1
15 of 19 



Proposal for Geotechnical Investigation  December 23, 2024 
Harbor Drive Pump Station 2. Proposal No.: 24161 
Springfield, Oregon  The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Panners, Inc. 

A nominal drilling depth of ±30 feet is planned for the boring. However, the actual 
depth may be modified in the field based on the actual subsurface conditions 
encountered. The boring will be advanced using mud-rotary drilling methods. We 
anticipate sampling at 2½-foot intervals to a depth of ±10 to 15 feet or to the 
bedrock surface. Disturbed soil samples will be taken with a split-spoon as part of 
the Standard Penetration Test (SPT). Relatively undisturbed specimens may also be 
obtained at selected depths using Shelby tubes. The soil samples will be retained for 
examination in our office and possible laboratory testing.  

If competent bedrock is encountered, we plan to core the bedrock to at least 5 feet 
below the base of the planned wet well. Rock core samples will be returned to the 
office and photographed. The drilling fluid and cuttings will be drummed and hauled 
off-site. 

Due to the proximity to the river, we anticipate that groundwater levels may be a 
construction consideration. Therefore, upon completion of the boring, we plan to 
install a PVC standpipe piezometer. We will install a data logger to monitor 
fluctuations in the groundwater levels. We have also allowed in our cost estimate for 
up to four months of data collection and one site visit to retrieve the data logger.  

Depending on the subgrade conditions and weather at the time of drilling, some 
rutting or surface disturbance may occur. Our scope does not include surface 
restoration. 

Laboratory Testing 

The laboratory testing may include moisture contents, percent fines, and Atterberg 
limits tests on selected samples to classify the overburden soils and evaluate their 
overall engineering properties. Field vane tests may be completed on Shelby tube 
samples, if obtained, to estimate the undrained shear strength of the fine-grained 
soil. We anticipate the wet well will terminate in bedrock. Therefore, we plan to run 
up to two unconfined compressive strength (Qu) tests on core specimens to establish 
the rock hardness.

Engineering Analysis and Report

We will conduct analyses to develop design and construction recommendations for 
the new pump station. The findings of our investigation will be summarized in an 
engineering report. The report will include a description of our work, a discussion of 
site conditions, and recommendations for site preparation and foundation and 
construction. The report will also include the boring log and a summary of laboratory
test results. 

We assume a site-specific seismic hazard study in accordance with the 2022 Oregon 
Structural Specialty Code (OSSC) guidelines will not be required. If a seismic study 
is required, the scope and cost of that contingency work are provided below.  

Attachment 1
16 of 19 



Proposal for Geotechnical Investigation  December 23, 2024 
Harbor Drive Pump Station 3. Proposal No.: 24161 
Springfield, Oregon  The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Panners, Inc. 

We anticipate the report will address the following:

Site preparation
Removal/mitigation of existing site fill or unsuitable soil
Considerations for shoring 
Construction access and wet weather construction (if needed)

Foundation design (at-grade electrical building)
Allowable bearing pressure
Estimated settlement (total and differential)
Sliding and passive foundation resistance
Over-excavation beneath foundations and placement of structural fill
Floor slab design
Foundation drainage

Wet well design
Shoring considerations
Allowable bearing pressure
Anticipated soil and rock profile

 Rock hardness 
 Anticipated groundwater levels 
 Recommended bottom stabilization (if required) 
 Lateral earth pressures for the design of wet well walls 

 Site-specific seismic hazard study and seismic design (contingency work item) 
 Review of the local and regional geologic, tectonic, and seismic setting  
 Review of regional seismic and earthquake history
 Selection of seismic sources and recommended design earthquakes  
 Evaluation of site-specific seismic hazards, including liquefaction risk
 Recommended seismic design parameters, IBC/OSSC response spectra,

and Site Class

ESTIMATED COSTS

Table 1 provides a breakdown of the estimated costs for the proposed scope of work. 
These costs are based on our normal hourly rates shown on the attached information 
sheet and the driller’s estimated fee. 

Attachment 1
17 of 19 



Proposal for Geotechnical Investigation  December 23, 2024 
Harbor Drive Pump Station 4. Proposal No.: 24161 
Springfield, Oregon  The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Panners, Inc. 

Table 1. Estimated Costs 

Item Estimated Costs 

Coordination, field exploration and sampling $4,635 

Laboratory testing $880

Engineering analysis and report preparation $6,400

Collection of piezometer data $690 

Reimbursable expenses $955 

Foundation Engineering subtotal $13,560 

Drilling subcontractor $7,440 

TOTAL $21,000 

The cost of the contingency seismic hazard study is estimated to be $2,690.
Therefore, if a seismic hazard study is required, our estimated costs would be 
$23,690. This total represents our best estimate of the project costs based on our 
current understanding of the project elements and the anticipated subsurface 
conditions. We will notify you immediately following the field exploration in the event 
we encounter unanticipated conditions that would require modifying our proposed 
scope of work or estimated costs.  

SCHEDULE 

Our first task will be to coordinate the fieldwork and arrange for utility locates. We 
will call for the location of underground public utilities but assume the City will locate 
any private buried utilities not covered by the public locates. We anticipate the field 
work can be completed with a single day on-site. The actual start date will depend 
on drilling equipment availability. An additional four weeks following the completion 
of the fieldwork will be required for laboratory testing, engineering analysis, and 
report preparation. To expedite the design work, we will provide the draft boring log 
and other interim information to you as soon as it becomes available. 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working 
with you on this project. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any 
questions regarding the proposed scope of work, estimated costs, or schedule. 

Attachment 

Attachment 1
18 of 19 



Foundation Engineering, Inc.
Professional Geotechnical Services

820 NW Cornell Avenue • Corvallis, Oregon 97330  •  541-757-7645
7857 SW Cirrus Drive, Bldg 24 • Beaverton, Oregon 97008  •  503-643-1541

BILLING RATES AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Effective January 1, 2024

Professional Staff Hourly Rate Field Charges Rate
Principal Engineer (1) $230 Datalogger $150/month
Senior Engineer (2) $198 Dynamic Cone Penetrometer $125/day
Senior Project Engineer $172 Dynamic Cone Penetrometer $7/tip
Senior Geologist $168 Field Vane $20/half-day
Project Engineer $157 Field Vane $40/day
Project Geologist $157 Gas-Powered Auger $150/day
Staff Engineer/Geologist $135 Inclinometer $150/half-day
Clerical $88 Inclinometer $300/day

Inspection Camera $10/half-day
Reimbursable Expenses Methane or PID Meter $200/week
Mileage (3) $0.67/mile PDA $700/day
Copies $0.30/page pH Meter $25/day
Subcontractors (4) Cost plus 15% Resistivity Meter $100/day

Shelby Tubes $25/each
Traffic Control Signs & Cones $125/day

Per Diem Rates Water Level Indicator $100/project
Half Day $30 Water Tank Rental $60/day
Full Day $70 Water Transducers $125/month
Overnight $180 Misc. Project Supplies Cost plus 15%

Notes:

(1)       Legal and expert witness consultation by Principal Engineer is billed at an hourly rate of $275.
(2)       Legal and expert witness consultation by Senior Engineer is billed at an hourly rate of $235.
(3)       Mileage billed at current ODOT approved rate and may differ from the rate listed above.
(4)       Subcontractors (i.e., drillers, backhoe, flaggers, concrete cutting, etc.) billed at cost plus 15%.

Federal ID:  93-1124584 
Oregon Registry No.: 366331-8 Rev. 6/20/2024

Attachment 1
19 of 19 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Vahana Horn/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Mandate

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
October 2024 Disbursements For Approval

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approval of the following motion to:
Approve the OCTOBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The OCTOBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and approval.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Checks totaling $4,675,559.42 were issued in OCTOBER 2024.  Documentation supporting these payments has
been reviewed. 

 

AttachmentsAttachments
RS FIN DISBURSEMENTS OCTOBER 2024
CERT OF APPROVAL OCTOBER 2024





























































































































AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Vahana Horn/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Mandate

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
November 2024 Disbursements For Approval

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approval of the following motion to: Approve the NOVEMBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The NOVEMBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and approval.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Checks totaling $3,450,561.00 were issued in NOVEMBER 2024.  Documentation supporting these payments has
been reviewed. 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Disbursements November 2024
2. Certificate of Approval November 2024

























































































































AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Vahana Horn/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Mandate

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
December 2024 Disbursements For Approval

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approval of the following motion to: Approve the DECEMBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The DECEMBER 2024 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and approval.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Checks totaling $4,915,862.23 were issued in DECEMBER 2024.  Documentation supporting these payments has
been reviewed.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Disbursements December 2024
2. Certificate of Approval December 2024

























































































































AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Vahana Horn/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Mandate

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
January 2025 Disbursements For Approval

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approval of the following motion to: Approve the JANUARY 2025 Disbursements for Approval
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The JANUARY 2025 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and approval.
 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Checks totaling $5,294,028.84 were issued in JANUARY 2025.  Documentation supporting these payments has
been reviewed. 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Disbursements January 2025
2. Certificate of Approval January 2025





































































































































AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Christopher Sarrett/Information Technology

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: Consent Calendar
Council Goals: Council Goals: Financially Responsible and Stable Government

Services

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Contract Approval - Peoplesoft / Oracle Managed Services

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Approve Contract and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement with Beacon Inc.

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The IT Department has completed an RFP for managed services to provide high-level maintenance and support of
the HR and Financial PeopleSoft environments. Beacon Inc. was selected based on price of services as well as their
demonstration of skills and experience relative to the City's needs.  This service was previously provided by ERPA
Inc.  

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The City has maintained managed services to act as a staff supplement to City IT staff providing high-level
PeopleSoft managed services for the last 5 years.  These services provide highly specialized skill sets that are difficult
and inefficient to maintain within City staff.  

The total cost of this agreement is not to exceed $100,000 / year.  

Staff requests Council authorize the contract and give the City Manager approval to enter into agreement with
Beacon Inc.  

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Contract 3818-Beacon



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

Contract #3818 

Dated:   January 30, 2025   
 
Parties: City of Springfield                                “CITY” 

A Municipal Corporation of the State of Oregon  
225 5th Street 
Springfield, OR 97477                

         and 
   

Beacon Application Services Corporation   “Contractor” 
  

Additional Contractor Information: 
 

a) Type of Entity:    Sole Proprietorship   Partnership 
 Limited Liability Comp         Corporation 

b)   Address:     40 Speen Street, Suite 104, Framingham, MA 01701 
   
c) Telephone:   781.856.0109 

   
d) Fax No:    

 
e) If Applicable, Listed among the Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-

Procurement Programs found at: https://www.sam.gov/content/exclusions:  Yes   No   
 

City Account Number(s) To Be Charged (Include Percentages):  
 

Account Number Percentage 

100-7081-03100-611008 100% 

  

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree to the following terms, 
provisions, and conditions, in addition to the terms and conditions in any attached addenda: 

 
1. Services to be Delivered.  Contractor shall perform the Services and deliver to the City the 

Deliverables specified in Attachment 1.  The Statement of Work (Attachment 1) includes the 
delivery schedule for the Deliverables and Services. Contractor will perform the Services in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

 
2. Payment by City.  The maximum, not-to-exceed compensation payable to Contractor under this 

Contract, which includes any allowable expenses, is $100,000.00. City will not pay Contractor any 
amount in excess of the not-to-exceed compensation of this Contract and will not pay for Services 

performed before the Effective Date or after the expiration or termination of this Contract. If the 

maximum compensation is increased by amendment of this Contract, the amendment must be 
fully effective before Contractor performs Services subject to the amendment. City will pay 

Contractor for only for completed Deliverables and Services performed according to the schedule 
and rates in Attachment 1.   

Attachment 1
1 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

 
3. Expenses. City will not pay or reimburse any expenses incurred by Contractor during the 

completion of the Services except as authorized in the Statement Work or elsewhere in this 
Contract.   

 

4. Term. This Agreement is effective as of the date first set forth above and will continue until 2-30-
2026, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or by 

mutual consent of the parties.  

4.1. ☒ Renewal. This Agreement may be extended for three (3) additional one-year terms upon 

mutual agreement of the parties in writing. 

4.2. ☐ Non-Appropriation. The obligation of the City to make payments beyond June 30, 2025 

is subject to annual appropriation. To the extent that funds are appropriated to make those 

payments for a given fiscal year, the full faith and credit of the City is pledged to the 
payments for such fiscal year. The obligation of the City to make those payments is not 

secured by the unlimited taxing power of the City and is not a general obligation of the City, 
The City's obligation to make those payments in any year is subject to future appropriation of 

funds by the City Council for the fiscal year in which the payment is due. In the event that 

funds are not so appropriated, payments will not be made and this Agreement will be 
terminated as of the date noted in this subsection 4.2.  

 
5. Invoice.  City will pay Contractor’s invoices on Net 30 day terms upon City acceptance of Services 

performed and Goods delivered as stated in section 7. Contractor must send invoices to: Accounts 
Payable - City of Springfield, 225 5th Street, Springfield, OR 97477 or email to ap@springfield-

or.gov.  The invoice must reference this contract #3818 and approval code #232. 

 
6. Overdue Charges. Contractor may assess overdue account charges to City on unpaid invoices 

only as stated in this section. Overdue account charges must be the same as the usual overdue 
account charges to the general clientele of the vendor.  Overdue claims are only those claims that 

have not been paid within 45 days of: the date of the City’s receipt of the invoice, the date of the 

initial billing statement if there is no invoice, or the date the claim is made certain by agreement 
of the parties or by operation of law. However, no overdue account charges will accrue on any 

purchases made by City during time of civil emergency or in the event of a natural disaster which 
prevents the timely payment of accounts. In such instances accounts shall be paid in as timely a 

manner as possible.  The date of the check or automatic funds transfer in payment of the claims 

will be used to determine if the claim has been paid in a timely manner. It is a rebuttable 
presumption that the check was correctly dated. 

 
7. Rejection of Deliverables. If City determines that a Deliverable does not have the 

characteristics or otherwise meet the acceptance criteria set forth in the Statement of Work in all 
material respects, City will notify Contractor in writing of City’s rejection of the Deliverable(s), and 

describe in reasonable detail in such notice the City’s basis for rejection of the Deliverable(s). 

Within 21 days of receiving notice of non-acceptance, the Contractor must modify or improve the 
Deliverables at Contractor’s sole expense so that the Deliverable(s) meets the acceptance criteria 

in all material respects, notify the City in writing that it has completed such modifications or 
improvements, and re-tender the Deliverables to City. Within 21 days of Contractor’s re-tender of 

the Deliverable(s), City will review the modified or improved Deliverable(s). Failure of the 

Deliverables to meet the acceptance criteria in all material respects after the second submission 
will constitute a default by Contractor. In the event of such default, Agency may either, (i) notify 

Contractor of such default and instruct Contractor to modify or improve the Deliverables as set 
forth in this Section, or (ii) notify Contractor of such default and pursue its remedies for default 

provided for by law or the terms of this Contract. 
 

8. Contractor’s Representations.   Contractor represents that: 

 

Attachment 1
2 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

8.1. Contractor has the authority to enter into and perform according to this Contract, and 
 that this Contract, when executed and delivered, is a valid and binding obligation of 

 Contractor that is enforceable according to its terms; 
8.2. Contractor has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its industry, 

trade or profession and Contractor will apply that skill and knowledge with care and diligence 

and perform Services in a timely, professional, and skillful manner according to standards 
applicable to Contractor’s industry, trade, or profession; and 

8.3. Contractor is, and must be at all times during the term of this Contract, qualified, 
professionally competent, and duly licensed to perform Services. 

 
9. Sourcing.  A formal request for proposal (RFP) was initiated by the City of Springfield on October 

16, 2024. Competitive sealed proposals were accepted from interested respondents until 
November 15, 2024, at 2 p.m. pacific standard time. Proposals were evaluated using proposals 
evaluation criteria outlined in the RFP. The proposal with the highest score was received from 
Beacon Application Services Corporation. 

 

10. First Point of Contact.   
  

Contractor: Madeline Osit, Chief Operating Officer, mosit@beaconservices.com, PH: 781-
856-0109   

 
City Contact: Timothy Allen, Programmer Analyst II, tallen@springfield-or.gov, PH: 541-

726-3644  

 
11. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.   

11.1. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its officers, 
agents and employees from and against all claims, actions, liabilities, loss, and costs including 

attorney’s fees and costs of defense, arising in whole or in part from the acts or omissions of 
Contractor, and Contractor’s subcontractors, officers, agents, and employees, in performance 

of this contract. 

11.2. In the event any such action or claim is brought against City, upon tender by City, 
Contractor will defend the same at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly satisfy any 

judgment adverse to City or to City and Contractor, jointly, and reimburse City for any loss, 
cost, damage or expense, including attorney fees, suffered or incurred by City. City shall 

notify Contractor, within a reasonable time, of any claim, threat of claim or legal action.  

11.3. Notwithstanding subsections 11.1 and 11.2, neither Contractor nor any attorney engaged 
by Contractor will defend any claim in the name of the City, nor purport to act as legal 

representative of the City, without the prior written consent of the City Attorney’s Office. 
CITY may, at any time and at its election, assume its own defense and settlement of any 

claims. City reserves all rights to pursue any claims it may have against Contractor if the City 
elects to assume its own defense. 

11.4. This Section 11 does not include indemnification by Contractor for losses, claims, or 

actions resulting from the sole negligence of City or its officers, agents, and employees, 
whether within the scope of the Contract or otherwise.  

 
12. Insurance.  

12.1. Required Coverages. Contractor must obtain at Contractor’s expense, and require its 

first tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, to obtain the insurance specified in this 
section 12 prior to performing under this Contract, and must maintain it in full force and at its 

own expense throughout the duration of this Contract, as required by any extended reporting 
period or tail coverage requirements, and all warranty periods that apply. Contractor must 

obtain and require its first-tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, to obtain the following 

insurance from insurance companies or entities acceptable to City and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance and issue coverage in Oregon.  Contractor acknowledges that 

Attachment 1
3 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

insurance specified in this section does not limit indemnification responsibilities specified in 
section 11 Indemnification.  

12.1.1. General Insurance.  Commercial general liability insurance covering bodily 
injury and property damage in a form and with coverage that are satisfactory to City. 

This insurance must include personal and advertising injury liability, products and 

completed operations, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under 
this Grant, and have no limitation of coverage to designated premises, project or 

operation. Coverage must be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less 
than $2,000,000 per occurrence. Annual aggregate limit may not be less than 

$3,000,000. 
12.1.2. Automobile Liability Insurance. Automobile liability insurance covering 

Contractor’s business use including coverage for all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles 

with a combined single limit of not less than $2,000,000 for bodily injury and property 
damage. This coverage may be written in combination with the commercial general 

liability insurance (with separate limits for commercial general liability and automobile 
liability). Use of personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable if 

Contractor provides evidence that the policy includes a business use endorsement. 

12.1.3. Workers’ Compensation. Contractor must provide and maintain workers’   
compensation coverage with limits not less than $500,000 for its employees, officers, 

agents, or partners, as required by applicable workers’ compensation laws as defined in 
ORS 656.027 and ORS 701.035(5).  If Contractor is exempt from coverage, a written 

statement signed by Contractor so stating the reason for exemption must be provided to 
the City.  

12.2. Additional Coverages.  

12.2.1. ☐ Professional Liability.  Contractor shall maintain a professional liability 

insurance policy reflecting limits of not less than $2,000,000 for claims for professional 
acts, errors or omissions arising from the Work. The policy may be written on a “claims 

made” form. Contractor shall maintain the professional liability insurance coverage for at 
least one year after the completion of the work. The policy shall contain an endorsement 

entitling the City not less than 60 days prior written notice of cancellation of such policy 

12.2.2. ☒ Cybersecurity.  Contractor shall maintain in force during the duration of this 

agreement a cybersecurity policy with limits not less than $2,000,000.  
12.3. Excess/Umbrella Insurance. A combination of primary and excess/umbrella insurance may 

be used to meet the required limits of insurance. 
12.4. Additional Insured. All insurance, except for workers’ compensation, professional liability, 

and network security and privacy liability (if applicable), required under this Contract must 

include an additional insured endorsement specifying the City and its officers, employees and 
agents as Additional Insureds, including additional insured status with respect to liability arising 

out of ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with respect to Contractor’s 
activities to be performed under this Contract. Coverage must be primary and non-contributory 

with any other insurance and self-insurance. The Additional Insured endorsement with respect to 

liability arising out of Contractor’s ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07 04 or 
equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect to completed operations must be 

on ISO form CG 20 37 04 13 or equivalent. 
12.5. Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor waives, and must require its first tier contractors 

and subcontractors waive, rights of subrogation which Contractor, Contractor’s first tier 

contractors and subcontractors, if any, or any insurer of Contractor may acquire against the 
City by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor must obtain, and require its first tier 

contractors and subcontractors to obtain, any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the City has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the Contractor or the Contractor’s 
insurer(s). 

12.6. Tail Coverage. If any of the required insurance is on a claims made basis and does not 

include an extended reporting period of at least 24 months, Contractor must maintain, and 
require its first tier contractors and subcontractors, if any, maintain, either tail coverage or 

Attachment 1
4 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

continuous claims made liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
claims made coverage is on or before the Effective Date of this Contract, for a minimum of 

24 months following the later of (i) Contractor’s completion and City’s acceptance of all 
Goods and Services provided under this Contract, or, (ii) City or Contractor termination of this 

Contract, or, (iii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Contract. 

12.7. Evidence of Insurance Coverage.  Evidence of the required insurance coverages 
issued by an insurance company satisfactory to the City shall be provided to the City by way 

of a City approved certificate of insurance before any work or services commence. 
12.8. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage.  The certificate of insurance 

shall contain a requirement that the Insurance company notify the City 30 days prior to any 
cancellation or material change in coverage.  If the approved insurance company will not 

provide this 30-day notice, the Contractor shall provide written notice to the City contract 

manager within two days after the Contractor becomes aware that their coverage has been 
canceled or has been materially changed.  The Contractor shall either fax 541-726-3782 said 

notice or email it directly to City Finance Department at purchasing@springfield-or.gov.  
Regardless of what circumstances cause Contractor’s insurance coverage to cease or be 

modified, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to notify the City.   Failure to maintain proper 

insurance or provide notice of cancellation or modification shall be grounds for immediate 
termination of this contract. _______(Contractor initials) 

12.9. Equipment and Material. Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, damage, or 
destruction of its own property, equipment, and materials used in conjunction with the work. 

 
13. Independent Contractor Status, Tax duties and Liabilities.   

13.1. Contractor will perform all Services as an independent contractor.  Although City may (a) 

determine and modify the delivery schedule for Goods to be delivered and Services to be 
performed and (b) evaluate the quality of the completed performance, City cannot and will 

not control the means or manner of Contractor's performance. Contractor is responsible for 
determining the appropriate means and manner of performing any Services required under 

this Contract.  Contractor is not an "officer," "employee," or "agent" of City as those terms 

are used in ORS 30.265. 
13.2. Contractor shall be responsible for all federal, state, and local taxes, if any, applicable to 

any payments received pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to corporate 
activities tax, income tax, payroll tax, social security and self-employment tax.  City will not 

withhold, pay, or in any other manner be responsible for payment of any taxes on behalf of 
Contractor.  City will not pay any surcharges, fees, or taxes to Contractor except where 

required by law or explicitly provided for in this Agreement. Contractor is not eligible for any 

social security, unemployment insurance, or workers' compensation benefits from 
compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract. 

 
14. Legal Representation.  This Agreement was prepared by the City.  Contractor has had the 

opportunity to have this Agreement reviewed by its own legal counsel prior to its execution. 

 
15. Venue and Choice of Law.  Venue for litigation concerning this Agreement rests exclusively with 

the court of the State of Oregon for Lane County. Any dispute arising under this Agreement will be 
governed by the law of the State of Oregon. 

 

16. Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed by reason of weather, fire, riot, strikes, acts of God or 
other circumstances beyond Contractor’s reasonable control, City may terminate this Agreement in 

writing to Contractor after determining such delay or default will unreasonably prevent successful 
performance of the Contract.  If City elects not to terminate the Contract, Contractor will be 

entitled to additional time to complete the Contract equal to that lost by an or all of the above 
causes. 

 

17. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will not be affected; the rights 

Attachment 1
5 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

and obligations of the parties will be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain 
the particular provision held to be invalid.  

 
18. Records & Data. 

18.1. Access to Data. City and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to books, 

documents, papers and records of Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Agreement 
for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

18.2. ☒ Rights in Data. All original written material in whatever form, whether print or digital, 

prepared for City pursuant to this Agreement, is the exclusively the property of the City. The 
ideas, concepts, know-how, or techniques developed during the course of this Agreement by 

Contractor personnel can be used by either party in any way it may deem appropriate. 

Material already in Contractor's possession, independently developed by Contractor outside 
the scope of this Agreement, or rightfully obtained by Contractor from third parties, belong to 

Contractor. This Agreement does not preclude Contractor from developing materials which 
are competitive, irrespective of their similarity to materials which might be delivered to the 

City pursuant to this Agreement.  Contractor will not, however, use any written materials 
developed under this Agreement in developing materials for others, except as provided in this 

section. 

 
19. Confidentiality. During the course of performance hereunder, Contractor or its agent, 

employees, or contractors, may receive confidential information.  Contractor agrees to use its best 
efforts to maintain the confidentiality of such information and to inform each agent and employee 

performing services of the confidentiality obligation that pertains to such information. 

19.1. Additional Provisions. Contractor must comply with the terms and conditions in the 
followed addenda, incorporated by reference, in the receipt and handling of confidential 

information:  

☒ Confidential Information Addenda 

☒ Business Associate Agreement (HIIPAA Compliance) Addenda 

 

20. Waiver.  Failure of City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by City of the right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce 
any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
21. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 

supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever, without prior written approval of City.  No 

modification of this Agreement shall bind either party unless reduced to writing and subscribed by 
both parties, or ordered by a Court. 

 
22. Termination. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by City, in 

whole or in part, whenever for any reason City shall determine that such termination is in the best 
interest of City.  Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Contractor of a Notice of 

Termination specifying the extent to which performance of the work under the Agreement is 

terminated and the date on which such termination is effective.  Upon delivery to the Contractor 
of a Notice of Termination under this paragraph, the Contractor and City shall, by agreement, 

make an appropriate written modification to this Agreement governing completion of portions of 
the Contractor’s work and payment therefore by CITY. 

 

23. Assignment/Subcontract.  Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or sublet 
rights, or delegate responsibilities under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior 

written approval of City.  No such written approval shall relieve Contractor of any obligations of 
this Agreement, and any transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of Contractor.  

Contractor shall remain liable as between the original parties to this Agreement as if no such 

assignment had occurred. 
 

Attachment 1
6 of 102 



 

  

      
  

 REV MAY 2024 

24. Compliance with All Government Regulations.  Contractor shall comply with all Federal, 
State and local laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to the work performed under 

this Agreement.  Failure to comply with such requirements shall constitute a breach of contract 
and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  Damages or costs resulting from 

noncompliance shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor.  This section includes, but is not 

limited to, compliance with all applicable requirements of Federal and State civil rights statutes, 
rules, and regulations, and all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 

42 USC Section 12101 et seq. and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 
 

25. Attorney Fees.  Except for defense costs and expenses pursuant to section 12, neither City nor 
Contractor is entitled to recover attorney's fees, court and investigative costs, or any other fees or 

expenses associated with pursuing a remedy for damages arising out of or relating to this 

Contract. 
 

26. Construction of Agreement.  This Contract shall not be construed more favorably to City due 
to the preparation of this Contract by City.  The headings and subheadings in this Contract are for 

convenience, do not form a part of this Contract, and shall not be used in construing this Contract. 

 
27. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement signed by both parties is the parties’ final and entire 

Agreement and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written communications 
between the parties, their agents and representatives.  There are no representations, promises, 

terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained herein. 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:  CONTRACTOR:     

   
By:   By:  

Name:   Name:  

Title:   Title:  

Date:   Date:  

     

2/13/2025

Beacon Application Services Corporation
Madeline Osit, COO

February 18. 2025

Attachment 1
7 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

City of Springfield Public Contract Addendum 
Required Contract Terms Under ORS 279B – Goods, Services, and Personal Services 

 
Pursuant to Oregon law, this public contract includes the following terms and conditions, when applicable: 

 

1. The contractor must make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for 

the performance of the work provided for in the contract.  ORS 279B.220(1). 

 

2. The contractor must pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or 

subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.  ORS 279B.220(2). 

 

3. That contractor must not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school 

district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished.  ORS 

279B.220(3). 

 

4. The contractor must pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167.  ORS 

279B.220(4). 

 

5. If the agreement is for lawn and landscape maintenance, Contractor must salvage, recycle, compost or mulch yard 

waste material at an approved site, if feasible and cost-effective.  ORS 279B.225. 

 

6. The contractor must promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, association or corporation 

furnishing medical, surgical and hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or 

injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the contractor agrees to pay for the services and all 

moneys and sums that the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract or 

agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.  All employers shall comply with ORS 656.017.  

ORS 279B.230. 

 

7. A person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases 

of necessity, emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, except in cases of 

contracts for personal services designated under ORS 279A.055, the employee shall be paid at least time and a half 

pay: 

a. For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is five 

consecutive days; or 

b. For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is four 

consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and 

c. For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.   

 

8. An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract, either at the time of hire or 

before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the 

number of hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.235(1)-(2). 

 

9. If the agreement is for personal services, the contract shall contain a provision that the employee shall be paid at 

least time and a half for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under 

personal services contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201-209 from 

receiving overtime.  ORS 279B.235(3). 

 

10. If the contract is for services, persons employed under contracts shall receive at least time and half pay for work 

performed on the legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 279B.020(1)(b)(B)-(G) and 

for all time worked in excess of 10 hours in any one day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week, whichever is 

greater.  Contractor shall give notice in writing to employees who work on a contract for services, either at the time 

of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by 

employees, of the number hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 

279B.235(5). 

  

Attachment 1
8 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

Confidential Information Addendum 
 

1. “Protected Information” shall be defined as data or information that has been designated as private or confidential by law or by 

the City. Protected Information includes, but is not limited to, employment records, medical records, personal financial records 

(or other personally identifiable information), trade secrets, and classified government information. To the extent there is any 

uncertainty as to whether any data constitutes Protected Information, the data in question shall be treated as Protected 

Information until a determination is made by the City or proper legal authority. 

 

2. Data Confidentiality. Independent Contractor shall implement appropriate measures designed to ensure the confidentiality and 

security of Protected Information, protect against any anticipated hazards or threats to the integrity or security of such 

information, protect against unauthorized access or disclosure of information, and prevent any other action of unauthorized 

disclosure that could result in substantial harm to the City or an individual identified with the data or information in Independent 

Contractor’s custody or access.   

 

To the extent that Independent Contractor may have access to City protected health information (as the same is defined in the 

privacy regulations promulgated pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as 

amended, and the implementing regulations known and referred to as Privacy Rule, Security Rule, Enforcement Rule and 

Breach Notification Rule, referred to herein collectively as “HIPAA”), Independent Contractor agrees to protect such 

information in compliance with HIPAA and represents that it has the processes, systems and training to assure compliance with 

the same.   

 

3. Data and Network Security. Independent Contractor agrees at all times to maintain commercially reasonable network security 

that, at a minimum, includes:  network firewall provisioning, intrusion detection/prevention and periodic third party penetration 

testing. Likewise Independent Contractor agrees to maintain network security that at a minimum conforms to current standards 

set forth and maintained by the National Institute of Standards and Technology, including those at:  

http://checklists.nist.gov/repository.  Independent Contractor agrees to protect and maintain the security of data with protection 

security measures that include maintaining secure environments that are patched and up to date with all appropriate security 

updates as designated by a relevant authority. 

 

4. Security Breach. In the event of a security breach of data owned or developed by the City, Independent Contractor will notify 

the City IT Director without unreasonable delay and in no case later than 30 days after discovery of the breach or incident. 

Independent Contractor will be responsible for all remedial action necessary to correct the breach; provided however, that 

Independent Contractor will not undertake ligation on behalf of the City without prior written consent. 

 

5. Data Storage and Backup. Independent Contractor agrees that any and all City data will be stored, processed, and maintained 

solely on designated servers and that no City data at any time will be processed on or transferred to any portable or laptop 

computing device or any portable storage medium, unless that storage medium is in use as part of the Independent Contractor's 

designated backup and recovery processes.  All servers, storage, backups, and network paths utilized in the delivery of the 

service shall be contained within the states, districts, and territories of the United States unless specifically agreed to in writing 

by a City officer with designated data, security, or signature authority.  An appropriate officer with the necessary authority can 

be identified by the City Information Security Officer for any general or specific case. 

 

Independent Contractor agrees to store all City backup data stored as part of its backup and recovery processes in encrypted 

form, using no less than AES 256. 

 

6. Data Re-Use.  Independent Contractor agrees that any and all Customer data exchanged shall be used expressly and solely for 

the purposes enumerated in the Agreement. Customer data shall not be distributed, repurposed or shared across other 

applications, environments, or business units of Independent Contractor. Independent Contractor further agrees that no Customer 

data of any kind shall be revealed, transmitted, exchanged or otherwise passed to other Independent Contractor or interested 

parties except on a case-by-case basis as specifically agreed to in writing by a City officer with designated data, security, or 

signature authority. 

 

7. PCI Compliance.  Independent Contractor agrees to comply with PCI DSS (Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard).  

As evidence of compliance, Independent Contractor shall provide upon request a current attestation of compliance signed by a 

PCI QSA (Qualified Security Assessor). 

 

8. End of Agreement Data Handling. Independent Contractor agrees that upon termination of this Agreement it shall erase, 

destroy, and render unreadable  all  City  data  in  its  entirety  in  a  manner  that  prevents  its  physical reconstruction through 

the use of commonly available file restoration utilities, and certify in writing that these actions have been completed within 30 

days of the termination of this Agreement or within 7 days of the request of an agent of City whichever shall come first. 

 
Attachment 1

9 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

9. Mandatory Disclosure of Protected Information.  If Independent Contractor becomes compelled by law or regulation 

(including securities' laws) to disclose any Protected Information, Independent Contractor will provide City with prompt written 

notice so that City may seek an appropriate protective order or other remedy.  If a remedy acceptable to City is not obtained by 

the date that Independent Contractor must comply with the request, Independent Contractor will furnish only that portion of the 

Protected Information that it is legally required to furnish, and the Independent Contractor shall require any recipient of the 

Protected Information to exercise commercially reasonable efforts to keep the Protected Information confidential. 

 

10. Remedies for Disclosure of Confidential Information.  Independent Contractor and City acknowledge that unauthorized 

disclosure or use of the Protected Information may irreparably damage City in such a way that adequate compensation could not 

be obtained from damages in an action at law.  Accordingly, the actual or threatened unauthorized disclosure or use of any 

Protected Information shall give City the right to seek injunctive relief restraining such unauthorized disclosure or use, in 

addition to any other remedy otherwise available (including reasonable attorneys' fees).   Independent Contractor hereby waives 

the posting of a bond with respect to any action for injunctive relief.   Independent Contractor further grants City the right, but 

not the obligation, to enforce these provisions in Independent Contractor's name against any of Independent Contractor's 

employees, officers, board members, owners, representatives, agents, contractors, and subcontractors violating the above 

provisions. 

 

11. Non-Disclosure.  Independent Contractor is permitted to disclose Confidential Information to its employees, authorized 

subcontractors, agents, consultants and auditors on a need-to-know basis only, provided that all such subcontractors, agents, 

consultants and auditors have written confidentiality obligations to both Independent Contractor and City. 

 

12. Criminal Background Check.  City shall perform criminal background checks on all talent assigned to this project before a 

person is allowed to work on any of the City’s Criminal Justice Information System (CJIS) protected data, software systems or 

facilities.  For access to any area where CJI information is stored or transmitted Independent Contractor’s employees shall 

possess Level 4 certification. 

 

13. Survival.  The confidentiality obligations shall survive termination of any agreement with Independent Contractor for a period 

of ten (10) years or for so long as the information remains confidential, whichever is longer and will inure to the benefit of City. 

 

  

Attachment 1
10 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

 
 City of Springfield Business Associate Agreement  

Between - City of Springfield and INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
  

 
This Business Associate Agreement (“Agreement”) between City of Springfield (Springfield) and  

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is executed to ensure that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR will appropriately 
safeguard protected health information (“PHI”) that is created, received, maintained, or transmitted on behalf 
of Springfield in compliance with the applicable provisions of Public Law 104-191 of August 21, 1996, known as 
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Subtitle F – Administrative Simplification, 
Sections 261, et seq., as amended ("HIPAA"), and with Public Law 111-5 of February 17, 2009, known as the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Title XII, Subtitle D – Privacy, Sections 13400, et seq., the 
Health Information Technology and Clinical Health Act, as amended (the “HITECH Act”).   
 
A. General Provisions 

 
1. Meaning of Terms. The terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms 

defined in HIPAA. 
 
2. Regulatory References. Any reference in this Agreement to a regulatory section means the section 

currently in effect or as amended. 
   
3. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be interpreted to permit compliance with 

HIPAA. 
 
B. Obligations of Business Associate 

 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR agrees that it will: 
 
1. Not use or further disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as 

required by law; 
 
2. Use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 to 

prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement; 
 
3. Report to Springfield any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this Agreement of which it 

becomes aware, including any security incident (as defined in 45 CFR 164.304) and any breaches of 
unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410.  Breaches of unsecured PHI shall be reported to 
Springfield without unreasonable delay but in no case later than 60 days after discovery of the 
breach; 

 
4. In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), ensure that any subcontractors that 

create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on behalf of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR agree to the 
same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR with 
respect to such information; 

 
5. Make available PHI in a designated record set to Springfield as necessary to satisfy Springfield’s 

obligation under 45 CFR 164.524 in no more than 30 days of a request;  

Attachment 1
11 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

 
6. Make any amendment(s) to PHI in a designated record set as directed by Springfield, or take other 

measures necessary to satisfy Springfield’s obligations under 45 CFR §164.526 in no more than 30 
days of a request; 

 
7. Maintain and make available information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to 

Springfield or an individual who has a right to an accounting within 60 days and as necessary to 
satisfy Springfield’s obligations under 45 CFR §164.528; 

 
8. To the extent that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is to carry out any of Springfield’s obligations under 

Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of 
Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164  that apply to  Springfield  when it carries out that obligation; 

 
9. Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary of the Department of Health 

and Human Services for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA rules;  
 
10. Springfield shall notify INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR of any restriction on the use or disclosure of 

PHI that Springfield has agreed to or is required to abide by under 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent 
that such restriction may affect INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR’s use or disclosure of PHI; and  

 
11. If Springfield is subject to the Red Flags Rule (found at 16 CFR §681.1 et seq.), INDEPENDENT 

CONTRACTOR agrees to assist Springfield  in complying with its Red Flags Rule obligations by: (a) 
implementing policies and procedures to detect relevant Red Flags (as defined under 16 C.F.R. 
§681.2); (b) taking all steps necessary to comply with the policies and procedures of Springfield’s  
Identity Theft Prevention Program; (c) ensuring that any agent or third party who performs services 
on its behalf in connection with covered accounts of  Springfield  agrees to implement reasonable 
policies and procedures designed to detect, prevent, and mitigate the risk of identity theft; and (d) 
alerting Springfield of any red flag incident (as defined by the Red Flag Rules) of which it becomes 
aware, the steps it has taken to mitigate any potential harm that may have occurred, and provide a 
report to  Springfield  of any threat of identity theft as a result of the incident.  

 
12. If INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR is part of a larger organization, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR will 

implement policies and procedures to protect PHI from unauthorized access by the larger 
organization. 

 
 
C. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate  
 

The specific uses and disclosures of PHI that may be made by INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR on behalf of 
Springfield are limited to: 
 
1. The review of patient care information in the course of INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR conducting 

risk and compliance assessment activities, or providing Springfield with a Control Activity Gap 
Analysis, or the review of PHI and other information necessary to assist Springfield in developing its 
HIPAA compliance program; and 
 

2. Other uses or disclosures of PHI as permitted by the HIPAA rules as necessary to perform the 
services set forth in the Service Agreement.   

Attachment 1
12 of 102 



 

{00023719:1}  

 
3.  Uses or disclosers of protected health information as required by law 

   
D. Termination  
 

1. Springfield may terminate this Agreement if Springfield determines that INDEPENDENT 
CONTRACTOR has violated a material term of the Agreement. 

 
2.   If either party knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the other party that constitutes a 

material breach or violation of the other party’s obligations under this Agreement, that party shall 
take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps are 
unsuccessful, terminate the Agreement, if feasible. 

 
3.    Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall return to 

Springfield or destroy all PHI received from Springfield, or created, maintained, or received by 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR on behalf of Springfield that INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR still 
maintains in any form.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the PHI. If return or 
destruction is infeasible, the protections of this Agreement will extend to such PHI. 

 
4. The obligations under Section D are perpetual and shall survive termination of this agreement. 

 
 
 

 

Attachment 1
13 of 102 



 

Page 1 

Response to 

PeopleSoft Managed Services Provider 

RFP No. 3747 

 
November 15, 2024 

For 

City of Springfield 

 
 

 

 

 

Beacon Application Services Corporation 

40 Speen Street, Suite 104 
Framingham, MA 01701 

Primary Contact: Madeline Osit, Chief Operating Officer 
mosit@beaconservices.com 

Cell: 781 856 0109 
 
 

 
  

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 89

Attachment 1
14 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 2 

 

 

 

November 15, 2024 

 

City of Springfield 

225 5th Street 

Springfield, OR 97477 

 

Att:  Yueyin Lin 

 

RE:  RFP #3747 Information Technology (IT) PeopleSoft Managed Services Provider 

 

Subject: Beacon Application Services Corporation Proposal  

  

Dear Ms. Lin et al:  

 

On behalf of Beacon Application Services Corporation (“Beacon”), let me begin by saying it is a pleasure 

to be writing this letter of transmittal to The City of Springfield (“the City”).  We are eager to partner with 

you in achieving the goals set forth in RFP #3747, PeopleSoft Managed Services Provider. 

  

As the executive sponsor responsible for our Company and the professionals that stand behind me, I 

commit that we will bring the breadth of our resources to meet the needs of the City from both a technical 

and business standpoint.  Our team of seasoned staff has upwards of 25 years experience devoted 

exclusively to PeopleSoft solutions.  From a technical perspective we are adept at all aspects of  

PeopleTools (including customization creation and support), supporting infrastructure, on-going 

maintenance and support for bug fixes, regulatory updates, security patches, integration and straight 

through processing.  Our function teams are skilled at creating an environment for your business 

community where best practices are adopted, recommendations for enhanced functionality are 

demonstrated, and the system is optimized, which may include changes to current practices, expanding 

functionality and enhancing third-party product integrations. 

 

Yet it is not just about us actively working with the City in partnership to achieve these goals.  We take 

our responsibility of knowledge transfer and training seriously so that the City increases its self-

sufficiency to continue to grow with the system after we are gone. 

 

We are excited about the opportunity to build on your successful and long-standing deployment of your 

PeopleSoft ERP solutions with proven innovative approaches to supporting and growing its value and 

reducing time and money in its support. Our intent is to demonstrate to the City that Beacon is the most 

qualified Systems Integrator to deliver the FSCM and HCM services requested, supported by 

infrastructure and technology solutions, with experienced and talented PeopleSoft-focused consultants; a 

proven approach; a focus on quality, knowledge transfer, change management and risk mitigation; all at a 

highly competitive price to the City.    

  

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to partner with you and also the information that you have 

shared.  We take seriously our obligation to this potential relationship and recognize your decision may be 

a difficult one.  We intend to prove throughout this RFP that we are best qualified to serve your needs and 

that we have the best approaches to the various roles you desire in the diversified categories of support.  

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 89

Attachment 1
15 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 3 

   

Our response and approach highlight the unique value proposition of Beacon:  

 

Company Profile:  Beacon was formed in 1990 upon the basic business premise that organizations 

wanted consultants who possess deep and broad understanding of both the delivered software 

functionality and how to leverage it for best practice.  Beacon has been in business for more 34 years with 

approximately 30 of those exclusively dedicated to PeopleSoft implementations, upgrades, optimizations, 

and expansions.  Throughout the years, we were awarded every recognition status that both PeopleSoft 

and Oracle bestowed upon their partners.  This includes being one of the original 13 Implementation 

partners of PeopleSoft at the inception of that program.  Other honors included being named a Certified 

Alliance Partner (for consulting); Validated Integration Partner (for our tools); PeopleSoft Specializations 

in HCM, FSCM and PeopleTools, as well as our Oracle Platinum Partnership. 

 

Experienced Team:  Beacon has assembled a team that has a wealth of insight and experience with 

infrastructure and PeopleTools upgrades and maintenance, PeopleSoft architecture, PeopleSoft Module 

Implementation and Optimization from a functional standpoint, application update/upgrade and technical 

expertise, supported by solid deployment strategies.  We are proposing specific, senior, experienced 

resources all of which have 25+ years of experience in each of their disciplines.  We offer the agility, 

fresh ideas and expertise of a “boutique-like firm” while offering the stability, resources and opportunities 

commonly only found in a Global Tier-1 consulting firms.   

 

Proven Methodology & Approach:  We will leverage our proven methodology, tools and accelerators 

for this engagement. Our approach includes planning, change management and quality management 

strategies that will control cost, schedule, and risk to ultimately keep the total cost of ownership as low as 

possible.  We bring with us tools and templates used in dozens of similar Managed Service and Upgrade 

customers. 

Reputation, Quality, and Flexibility:  Our team has an unparalleled reputation of the highest level of 

integrity, paired with the highest level of quality and flexibility in the industry, as will be demonstrated by 

our client references.  We take a conservative approach to estimating that allows us to focus on a quality 

implementation while maintaining flexibility. As a matter of course, we frequently engage in fixed bid 

agreements that habitually come in on-time, on-scope and on-budget. 

 As part of our commitment to the City, the overall relationship will be managed by myself, Madeline 

Osit, COO of Beacon, as I own all the resources that will make you successful.  Understanding your goals  

will allow me to guide my Project Manager to your metrics for success. 

 

Collaboration is a hallmark for Beacon.  We will work towards our goals as one combined team with the 

City’s project, technical, and business teams to guarantee the correct balance and focus.   

 

In this response, we have tried to demonstrate the quality of our work product from a content and form 

standpoint.  Be assured that we will adopt City standards and adjust, if necessary, our templates and 

approach to match your proven standards.  We will, however, make recommendations where we think 

value can be added. 

  

I am an officer and authorized representative of Beacon, fully authorized to contractually bind the 

firm. Additionally, I affirm: 

• We accept all terms and conditions of the RFP, including Attachment 2 Sample Contract terms 

and conditions as clarified in the Addendum #1 to RFP 3747 PeopleSoft Managed Services 

Provider, 

• We do not qualify as a resident bidder, though licensed to do business in the State of Oregon, 

• We confirm our ability to begin work January 1, 2025, 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 89

Attachment 1
16 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 4 

• Our submission is a firm offer for a 90-day period, 

• We do not currently or have ever had any past, pending or threatened litigation, nor have ever had 

to make a business insurance claim on behalf of our customers or ourselves for any reason, 

• There is no conflict of interest in submission of our bid, and 

• Representation of our capabilities and qualifications are as stated in this response 

As you designated contract, if you have any questions regarding the content of this proposal, please feel 

free to contact me.  

  

Very truly yours  

 

 
 

Madeline Osit  

Chief Operating Officer  

  

Beacon Application Services Corporation  

40 Speen Street  

Suite 104 
Framingham, MA 01701 
781-856-0109 
  

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 89

Attachment 1
17 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 5 

 

CONTENTS 

1 QUALIFICATIONS ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

2 APPROACH ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

3 RESUMES ................................................................................................................................................. 21 

4 FEE PROPOSAL ......................................................................................................................................... 84 

5 ADDITIONAL SERVICES ............................................................................................................................. 84 

6 REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................ 85 

7 SAMPLE CONTRACT ................................................................................................................................. 87 

8 APPENDIX A ............................................................................................................................................. 87 

9 ATTACHMENT 1 – SAMPLE WORK PRODUCT ........................................................................................... 87 

 

  

Attachment 1, Page 5 of 89

Attachment 1
18 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 6 

1 QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Beacon Application Services,  incorporated in 1990, has been exclusively engaged in the delivery of 

PeopleSoft solutions since 1995 when we first partnered with PeopleSoft to assist them in the 

development of FSCM. Our business premise was simple.  We believed organizations such as the City of 

Springfield wanted teams of experienced professions, well versed in both the software and the business 

processes to be improved through that software.  It was our vision that we could deliver a higher value of 

service to our customers through a lower total price point by employing only senior consultants 

who would partner with our customers – promoting knowledge transfer to foster independence 

for continuous improvement long after we were gone – professionals who had the maturity and 

experience to deliver, backed by a strong methodology built for PeopleSoft and the tools and 

templates to ensure quality. 

Since that time, we’ve built all of our internal processes around successfully delivering 

PeopleSoft solutions, from talent acquisition and retention to Organizational Change and Project 

Management, to predictable cost model that delivers on-time, on-scope and on-budget.  A team 

that understands our success is dependent upon our customer’s success, and we settle for nothing 

less. 

Our longstanding relationship with PeopleSoft confirms our company experience.  In 1992, when 

PeopleSoft was developing their initial suite of financial products, Mike Kaiser [then Exec Vice 

President of PeopleSoft Financials] asked Beacon, because of our reputation and enterprise 

systems expertise, to review and assist with their first version of PeopleSoft financials.  Beacon 

began dedicating resources to PeopleSoft and to delivering high quality implementation services 

to PeopleSoft customers.  Beacon was asked to join PeopleSoft’s Global Alliance Program as 

one of the original 13 system integrator vendors.  It is due to meeting and exceeding customer 

satisfaction through our Certified staff that we were named an Oracle Platinum Partner with 

recognition of our specialization in PeopleSoft.  We remain and trusted and valuable partner for 

our roster of over 400 PeopleSoft customers across the public and private sectors. 

Upon entering PeopleSoft’s Global Alliance Program, in 1995, Beacon made a total commitment 

to PeopleSoft and dedicated our entire practice to improving the productivity, efficiency, analytic 

capability, and overall performance of our customers through the implementation of PeopleSoft 

applications. 

The first ten years of the Beacon-PeopleSoft alliance strengthened our relationship and created 

the foundation for who we are today.  Significant milestones included the development of 

methodology (ATK/Compass) for guiding PeopleSoft implementations and upgrades (1998); 

PeopleSoft representation on our Advisory Board (Baer Tierkel, Sr. VP Corporate Strategy and 

Mike Kaiser 1998); among the first to be named a PeopleSoft Express Certified Solutions 

Provider (1999); being named a Certified Implementation Partner (2000); participation in the 

development and testing for PeopleSoft 8 Web applications (2000), Preferred partner for 

EPM/Budgeting (2001); assisted PeopleSoft in the construct and testing of PeopleSoft 8.8 

Commitment Control – having a combined product suite for E&G and commercial organizations 

(2003); named Platinum partner for Oracle after the acquisition of PeopleSoft (2004); that same 

year, Beacon and Oracle celebrated our 250th customer success.  While we can continue our list 

Attachment 1, Page 6 of 89

Attachment 1
19 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 7 

of achievements, the conclusion is clear: we are PeopleSoft people.  We value expertise and deep 

understanding that enable delivery of high value solutions.   

We are a project-oriented consulting firm.  As such, our methodologies and experience allow us 

to right-size the task without ignoring the deliverables that allow us to transfer knowledge to 

your team to foster independence for continuous improvement long after we are gone.  We, as an 

organization, manage our consultants and harness the power of their expertise to form cohesive 

solutions. 

What sets us apart? 

Our company.  Beacon has always been a results-oriented consulting firm with a strong 

methodology developed exclusively for PeopleSoft implementations, upgrades and 

optimizations. We build strong partnerships with our clients on software and technology; 

but, as importantly, on business benefit, risk mitigation and change management.   

 

Our people.  Our staff of under 50 consultants possess the talent to successfully discern 

specific features and technical approaches that will bring the City benefit.  Our voluntary 

retention rate is 93% allowing our teams to have established a long-term working 

relationship.  

 

Our approach. We believe the key to success is twofold:  bringing the right talent to the 

table and providing the right solution for the task.  All of our consultants have 15+ years 

with PeopleSoft, all having done more than 20 Projects over that time.  We understand 

the importance of minimal disruption to your staff during this project.  We carefully 

consider the need and the criticality for consensus building, change management, 

standards, communication, training, and knowledge transfer necessary to make this 

project a success. This is integral to the fiber with which we conduct all engagements. 

 

How does the above commitment and reputation translate into proving that we are the right 

choice for City of Springfield?  We submit that the content of this response, our approach and 

our people, as well as our commitment to partnership and the flexibility that we offer, will 

convince you that we are the right choice for consideration. 

2 APPROACH 

Our approach enforces partnership with our customers.  We lend our customers product, 

technical and business and best practice expertise.  We then leverage our customers’ knowledge 

of their organization, goals, capabilities, standards and strategic objects and translate them into 

PeopleSoft software solutions.  We know there may be some critical issues that must be 

addressed and have a methodology and approach which facilitates the construct of a concrete 

plan to address them. Like the City, because we have a deep understanding of the capabilities 

and design of PeopleSoft, our approach continues to show bias towards non-customization with 

only personalization and limited modifications being incorporated into the software.  We will 

therefore strive to deliver functionality in such a way as to be of minimal support burden, ease 

the adoption of enhancements to the base system through future PUM Images, and do so while 

delighting the end users with tangible improvements to their existing system.    

We value the interconnection of the four primary areas of focus during any engagement, and we 

are a partner that can deliver the requisite balance to achieve maximum benefit. 

Attachment 1, Page 7 of 89

Attachment 1
20 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 8 

 

We believe focus with balance is the operative concept.  Beacon’s approach to engagements 

enforces the appropriate level of consideration for each of these areas.  We do not view this 

opportunity as an intellectual (versus practical) exercise – we do not assume the City is like all 

other organizations – we do not assume technology will support any design nor that a design 

applies to any technology.  We consider your goals, culture, capabilities, and desires to 

recommend change that is actionable, consumable, manageable, and brings tangible benefits. 

Beacon team members enjoy specialization in particular disciplines.  We take pride in our ability 

to deliver best-in-class service by having the framework to work as a team as we have many 

times over, with tools, templates and technology innovation that enforces on-time, on-scope, on-

budget deployments, not sometimes but every time. 

 

The Beacon approach differs not only in how we will deliver the solution but also in the skills 

and people that will do so.  While discipline is important, it is only through a team of mature 

professionals that you can realize flexibility within that discipline.  The willingness and 

capability to work as a team, meeting the unique needs of the City, while keeping work-effort 

contained to a reasonable and justifiable timeframe, sets Beacon apart.  Starting with the premise 

that optimizing existing processes or implementing new features must be broken down into clear 

and manageable steps that can be executed by our team and validated and absorbed by yours.   

The structure of the RFP indicates that there are several different needs and types of projects 

being considered for your chosen vendor(s).  Therefore, the approach to these varied requests 

may, in fact, result in differing approaches. 

 

The five main areas are: 

• Regulatory Updates and Quarterly Security Patching 

• PeopleSoft business process optimization and enhancements, or implementation of 

modules or features not currently used or under-utilized. 

• Critical on-demand assistance (be that on-call support and/or emergency production 

down) for issue resolution  

• Strong infrastructure skills to include PeopleSoft Admin, DBA and general support for 

third party tools used by PeopleSoft on an on-going basis. 

• Technical Upgrades and Application updates and potentially selective adoption of bug 

fixes 

 

People Process Technology Data

Attachment 1, Page 8 of 89

Attachment 1
21 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 9 

Therefore, we would like to address the question of how Beacon approaches these areas in 

context of the skillsets you require and the approach, or methodology used for each. 

 

While it is easy to think of methodology exclusively in terms of implementations or upgrades, 

the disciplines of a methodology and standard tools and templates are used in all the above areas 

with the exception of on-demand assistance as described below.   

 

Regulatory Updates and Quarterly Security Patching: This is a very prescriptive process that 

follows Oracle delivered methodology supported by documentation supplied by the Beacon 

technical resource, an example of which is included in Attachment 1.  You will find the history 

of the patches applied following by instructional documentation for knowledge transfer purposes. 

Since Oracle has published the schedule for both tax and security patching for 2025, the Beacon-

City team can review the timing against other updates that will be occurring by the City team 

(such as SQL/S, windows updates, etc.) and plot out a schedule of when we are targeting these to 

occur.  The Beacon Technical resource, Brian Taylor, assigned to providing this service currently 

performs these tasks for several of our managed services clients including the Government of 

Yukon, Artesian Water, and Hancock-Whitney permitting our knowledge base to house the work 

effort data that validates our cost provided in our submission. 

The schedule for 2025 is as follows: 

 
Though you did not mention this in the RFP, our managed services customers frequently ask us 

to perform 1099 updates.  A sample document of this is also included in Attachment 1. 

 

PeopleSoft business process optimization and enhancements: The approach to this area 

includes teaming with the appropriate cross functional teams (including IT) to understand 3 key 

areas of need: (1) existing pain points that can be alleviated through reconfiguration, training, 

tuning, reporting, etc.  (2) adoption of new functionality on existing modules (either never 

implemented, such as self-service options, or new in a PUM release), including promoting 

integrations and workflows for efficiency purposes (3) Adding additional modules that have been 

purchased but remain unused.  

Attachment 1, Page 9 of 89

Attachment 1
22 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 10 

 

In these cases, the Beacon team would utilize Business Process Review sessions to further clarify 

the details of these needs.  

 

Beacon’s approach puts significant weight to clear and comprehensive definition of user 

requirements to determine business processes and best practice approaches for the subsequent 

enhancement or implementation of new features/process flows.   

 

In addition to discussing known pain point or desired items during the Business Process Review 

activity, Beacon would facilitate delta reviews to educate the City team on new features and 

jointly assess how/if users could benefit. Some customers wish to review details of a particular 

enhancement, when far reaching in impact or requiring more than a casual implementation effort.  

These Functional Reviews are far more detailed in nature.  It allows us to transfer knowledge of 

a particular new business process and leave the audience with documentation they can refer to 

when we are gone.  Attachment 1 includes a work product example of a Functional Review for 

GL Account Reconciliation. This type of review outlining the requirements, fit/gap and work 

effort generally is a week (spread over a few weeks). 

 

To provide more detail on this, when the Beacon team conducts these Business Process Reviews, 

the goal is to identify opportunities to better leverage available functionality in our customer’s 

current release as well as educating users on newly available features in recent PUM Images. The 

key component to the Business Process Review is where a Beacon functional expert will 

facilitate a discussion with key users of their core process flows and how they accomplish them 

in order to identify pain points, determine underutilized features, recommend process change 

and/or suggest enhancements to support user productivity.  Having conducted these reviews for 

many clients over the years, our consultants have identified trends, or patterns, where particular 

functions were deferred in the initial implementation only to be forgotten as time wore on.  We 

are skilled in both the process of analyzing customer needs and making recommendations as well 

as architecting solutions that maximize straight through processing and minimize non-value-add 

activities. In addition to desired functionality, frequently these solutions include tighter 

integration with non-PeopleSoft solutions, particularly in the areas of Imaging/OCR, non-

PeopleSoft modules, self-service, workflow, as well as data warehouse and data mart services. 

 

Any desired enhancement should pass the test of the value brought by the effort.  Value is 

measured by: 

• Efficiencies (saving City personnel quantifiable time) 

• Effort to process (ease of use and enhanced integration) 

• Dollars (saving concrete dollars for the organization) 

• Delivering Active Intelligence (better decision making) 

 

For these functional enhancements or implementations, definition of detailed requirements 

allows the Beacon team assess’ the fit (or gap) against the delivered solution.  Below you will 

find a high level diagram of the process. When producing the Gap Solutions document, wherever 

possible we will promote business process change in lieu of customization. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 10 of 89

Attachment 1
23 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 11 

Once the improvement candidates and fit/gaps are identified, Beacon and the customer team can 

then collaborate to determine potential impact, level of effort to implement, and prioritize within 

the customer’s future roadmap to assess a logical sequencing of work for optimal effectiveness.  

 

Below you will find a diagram of the process and in Attachment 1 are work product examples of 

an approved enhancement discovery report and the associated gap solution for PO-5, a custom 

enhancement we recently did for a customer during an upgrade, including the details of the 

project to be migrated during test moves and into production. 

 

 

Fit/Gap Process  

PeopleSoft

Best Practices

Scope

Fit Analysis

Future Operations 

Model

Gap Alternatives & 

Recommendations

What

How

Results

Goals and Objectives

Business Process 

Reviews

Fit / Gap Analysis
Construct Phase

Current Work 

Practices

Business Processes

Policies and 

Procedures

Current Operations 

Model

Preliminary

Requirements

Gap Preliminary 

Design Specifications

Control and 

Transaction Table 

Definitions

Work Practice 

Changes

Steering 

Committee 

Approval

Steering 

Committee 

Approval

System Interface 

Programming 

Specifications

Data Conversion Plan 

and Design 

Specifications

Technical Approach

Remaining 

Construct,  

Transition and 

Deploy

Final Scope and 

Project Plan

 

 

Below you will find a diagram of standard deliverables for implementing and upgrading 

modules, enhancements or system optimizations.  While we maintain templates for all the 

deliverables below, we rarely will produce all of them.  Note that the table shows deliverables by 

user role (Project Management Deliverable, Design and Development Deliverables, etc.) An 

alternate view of deliverables by Phase can be found in Attachment 1. 

  

 

Attachment 1, Page 11 of 89

Attachment 1
24 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 12 

 
 

Critical on-demand assistance (be that on-call support and/or emergency production down) 

for issue resolution: Typically, the types of on-going support tasks to be performed include by 

Managed Services include:  

• Providing technical and functional support to City Tech and users as required  

• Troubleshoot any integration issues related to inbound or outbound interfaces to the PeopleSoft 

environment  

• Leverage available Beacon functional consultants to assist with troubleshooting and resolution to 

functional issues with the production environment.  

• Apply Application Updates and Fixes from Oracle when the City is experiencing issues  

• Knowledge transfer  

• Additional technical tasks as required under the direction of the City Project Manager  

In addition, Beacon will provide second level Production support 24 x 7 for any outages or issues related 

to the City production environment.  

We expect the initial review and triage for outages or issues will be the responsibility of the City.  

• If you are not able to resolve the issue, the designated Beacon support resource will be contacted. 

Both a primary and secondary contact will be specified to you.   

• Beacon will acknowledge the initial contact within 2 hours and will respond via email or 

telephone to triage the issue and work on a resolution.  

A key component to delivery of critical support services is to collaborate with the City on specifics of 

expections.  Below you will find an example of this definition for one of our current clients.  We 

acknowledge  

Severity Level Definitions:  

  

Attachment 1, Page 12 of 89

Attachment 1
25 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 13 

Incident Category  Incident Category Definition  Priority Affected  

Critical Business Function 

(“CBF”)  

Acknowledgement within 2 hours 

• Unable to complete batch 

processing for any PSFT 

application 

• Batch processing errors 

that have caused a 

complete stop to further 

processing  

• Unable to complete 

inbound/outbound 

interface processing  

• Unable to print AP checks 

• Unable to process payroll  

• Unable to access the PS 

system and perform daily 

functions in all 

applications  

• Any declared disaster that 

would require the system 

to be functional from a 

remote location  

• Production Down (Total 

Loss CBF)  

• Production Impacted 

(Significant Loss CBF)  

• Standard Problem (Partial 

Loss CBF)  

Non Critical Business Function 

(“NCBF”)  

• By default, anything not 

defined as a Critical 

Business Function is 

defined as a Non Critical 

Business Function  

Standard Problem (Total Loss 

NCBF)  

Non Critical Problem (Partial Loss 

NCBF)  

Individual Productivity (“IP”)  

• An individual User’s 

activity being impacted or 

impeded; not a general 

Business Function 

affecting ALL Users.  

• Individual unable to 

perform assigned tasks  

Standard Problem (Total Loss IP)  

Non Critical Problem (Partial Loss 

IP)  

Time Available Basis (“TAB”)  

• Problems or requests that 

can be worked on a time 

available basis  

• Beacon and Client will 

meet periodically to 

identify and prioritize a 

list of Time Available 

Basis projects that can be 

As assigned by the Client Project 

Manager  

Attachment 1, Page 13 of 89

Attachment 1
26 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 14 

addressed as resources 

have availability  

• Not a loss of Critical 

Business Function, Non 

Critical Business Function 

or Individual Productivity  

  

Severity Levels  

  

Severity Levels  SLA Standard  

Severity One - Production Down  

Immediate and total loss of Critical Business 

Function (CBF)  

Production Down  

S1: In any 3-month period, 98% of Severity One problems 

will be responded to and resolution commenced within 2 

hours.  

  

Severity Two – Production Impacted  

Significant Loss of Critical Business Function 

(“CBF”)  

Production Impacted  

S2: In any 3-month period, 95% of Severity Two problems 

will be responded to and resolution commenced within 4 

hours  

Severity Three – Standard Problem  

Partial loss of Critical Business Function 

(CBF)  

Total loss of Non-Critical Business Function 

(NCBF)  

Total loss of Individual Productivity (IP)  

  

S3: In any 3-month period, 90% of severity three problems 

will be responded to within 4 hours (during work hours) 

and resolution commenced within 2 business days.  

Severity Four – Non-Critical Problem  

Partial Loss of Non-Critical Business 

Function (NCBF)  

Partial Loss of Individual Productivity (IP)  

S4: In any 3-month period, 90% of severity four problems 

will be responded to within 4 hours (during work hours) 

and resolution commenced within 5 business days.  

Severity Five – Time Available Basis  

Problems/Requests that can be worked on a 

Time Available Basis (TAB)  

No response standard identified  

  

 

Strong infrastructure skills to include PeopleSoft Admin, DBA and general support for third 

party tools used by PeopleSoft on an on-going basis: 

Attachment 1, Page 14 of 89

Attachment 1
27 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 15 

As you will see in the enclosed resumes, our technical team has significant experience in 

technologies that surround PeopleSoft and have managed the necessary components to deliver 

Admin, DBA, network and several third part tools (Load Balancing, SSL, SSO, On-base 

Imaging, etc.).  

  

Typically, we provide configuration support for our Client’s installations, configurations 

especially when there are new releases of SQL/S or Windows, for example. 

 

Technical Upgrades and Application updates and potentially selective adoption of bug fixes:  

Beacon executes Tools Upgrades and PUM updates in six phases as follows: 

• Strategy 

• Structure 

• Technical Upgrade 

• Construct 

• Transition 

• Deploy 

 

The Strategy phase encompasses tasks required to define the overall scope and objectives of the 

project and to prepare for the upgrade and deployment of the PeopleSoft applications.  Beacon 

conducts a Strategy Workshop (example Attachment 1) to solidify the project approach and 

agree on strategies and direction for non-product specific items such as customizations, 

interfaces, reporting, audit, control and compliance, testing and training as well as project 

administrative processes.  Additionally, communication with end users to prepare them before 

the upgrade begins will kick off the change management activities.  Timeframes for production 

freezes, testing, training, deployment and any other required user involvement are communicated 

to facilitate user understanding and help them to plan for the upgrade.   

 

The Structure phase is comprised of a Business Process Review, described earlier, if so desired, 

and recommended for Application Updates.  

In addition, we would want to understand if this were performed in prior upgrades as if no new 

functionalities were delivered since the initial move to 9.2, a review that encompasses more than 

just comparing your system to the current the Image may not be sufficient. Additionally, as we 

evaluate your current state, we will make recommendations for improvement which may also be 

deployed immediately.  A review of customizations will further determine if any can be replaced 

by delivered functionality, and an assessment of deprecated product features will determine 

impact, if any, on the City business processes.  Beacon prepares a recommendation for 

presentation to the Steering Committee, and associated costs, for new functionality once this 

phase is finalized. For a sample report for a recent HCM Upgrade, please see Attachment 1. 

It is also during this phase that we will conduct a focused Security Review, to verify existing 

Roles/Permissions grant access to appropriate functionality and recommend changes where 

appropriate, as we frequently find that user_IDs, roles and privileges may not be reflective of 

your current state. 

Attachment 1, Page 15 of 89

Attachment 1
28 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 16 

Beacon has deep experience in PeopleSoft security design and troubleshooting as these are 

typical activities we have performed in every upgrade and implementation project. We can also 

offer the following standard service: 

1. Security workshop – during the initial Structure phase of the project, a Beacon lead 

consultant will facilitate a session with the City technical resources who are closely 

involved with security administration and environment management.  This interactive 

session will focus on a current state analysis of maintenance processes related to security 

configuration changes and environment change control, with particular emphasis on 

when the portal sync job is typically used.    

2. Analysis & Recommendations – Using the feedback from the above workshop, Beacon 

will review the City PeopleSoft Development instance that contains evidence of the 

issues to be resolved in order to assess the root cause and prepare recommendations (with 

alternate options, if appropriate).  The documented recommendations will be reviewed 

with the City InfoSec and technical teams for feedback and approval. Note that the 

solutions may involve configuration updates or process changes, or most likely a 

combination of both. 

3. Configuration and Process Redesign – during the Construct phase of the project, the 

approved recommendations will be developed, and a testing & deployment approach 

created.   

4. Testing & Deployment – once the initial solutions are unit tested, the testing and 

deployment plan can be executed.  Depending upon the root cause and solution, the City 

may be able to deploy the changes immediately to production or decide to roll out the 

changes in conjunction with the upgrade. 

 

The Technical Upgrade phase begins with the new system installation, executing the tools 

upgrade, running and analyzing the compare reports, and executing the application upgrade. This 

first execution of the entire upgrade process is referred to as the Initial Pass (IP).  Prior to the 

project kickoff, the Beacon Upgrader will provide the City with a pre-upgrade checklist that will 

outline the technical information that will be required for the installation as well the technical 

environment specification so that can ensure that a sufficient technical environment is in place 

for the upgrade to begin and also that the expectations for additional environments 

(specifications and timing) are understood.  

It is followed by two Test Moves to Production (MTPs (moves to production). The multiple 

MTPs provide the mechanism to refine and tune the upgrade scripts to ensure they can be 

executed within the time allotted for the go-live process.  It also tests the migration of retrofits 

and new functionality to ensure that all changes to the system have been incorporated in the 

upgrade project. If a PeopleTools only upgrade is desired, this can usually be performed with 

only one Test Move to Production. 

MTP1 testing is staffed by Beacon and Core Users along with IT and MTP2 is used for User 

Acceptance Testing. 

The Technical Upgrade phase runs concurrently with the Strategy, Structure, Construct and 

Transition phases of the project.  Interdependent activities are coordinated between the Technical 

Upgrade phase and the overlapping phases.  For example, test plans and test scripts are 

Attachment 1, Page 16 of 89

Attachment 1
29 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 17 

developed and fine tuned as part of Structure/Construct and are used for all regression Testing in 

the subsequent upgraded environments. 

During the Construct phase, customizations are retrofitted and applied to the Initial Pass (IP) 

instance.  Should the City decide on additional functionality to be adopted, these would also get 

built in this phase.  Necessary reconfiguration required for the upgrade occurs and reports are 

upgraded or rewritten if necessary and unit tested. The updated objects are incorporated into the 

Move-to-Production 1 (MTP1) environment in preparation for subsequent SIT and UAT testing.  

Test plans are built and procedures are updated to ensure a smooth deployment with minimal 

business interruption. 

The Beacon project team conducts unit testing and key business process testing in the IP 

environment to validate the system at a high level before involving the City in testing activities, 

to ensure that their first experience with the new system is a pleasant one.  Test scripts are 

prepared to support all types of Acceptance Testing.  Training materials and job aids (such as 

Quick Reference Cards or video training) are prepared in order to provide them to the super users 

during upgrade testing in preparation to be distributed on a broader basis to all end users. 

Training and Test plans are constructed for the City approval. 

During Transition, the system and all affected personnel are prepared for deployment of the new 

release.  Cutover plans are prepared and circulated so that all impacted staff are aware of the 

deployment schedule.   

In this Phase, we will transition the organization and users for acceptance of the system once 

cutover occurs. The project team conducted system testing in the MTP1 environment to ensure 

that the system meets all requirements, that all integrations and interfaces function as expected 

and set acceptance criteria for go-live.  In Transition training materials are adjusted or 

constructed as requested, and training is delivered.   Necessary updates are made to the 

production support and disaster recovery procedures as well as to any other reference materials 

and procedures.   

In upgrades of this nature, we recommend this first cycle of Testing to include the core, or power 

users of the system. Finally, the results of all activity during this phase are evaluated and the 

deployment is approved. 

 

During Deploy, the cutover plan is executed and the new system is put into production.   

After go-live, as a matter of course, Beacon conducts a retrospective of the Project and formally 

turns over the Project documentation to the City. 

 

The Upgrade Project phases and activities by phase are depicted in the diagram below: 

Attachment 1, Page 17 of 89

Attachment 1
30 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 18 

 

 

Cross Phase Activities 

Project Management 

Throughout all phases of the project, it is the responsibility of the Beacon-City Project 

Manager/Lead to collaborate on project management activities to ensure that the work required 

to meet the project objectives is performed in a timely and high-quality manner. This activity 

also ensures that the project performance is monitored, issues and risks are periodically reviewed 

and any impacts to the project schedule, scope and budget are identified early and brought to the 

attention of the Client sponsor and Beacon management.  In support of this, on-going tasks 

include: 

• Monitor project issues and risks 

• Monitor Project Scope and Budget 

• Update Project Plan as Required 

• Produce bi-weekly status reporting and on-going communication 

Maintaining Customer Communication:  We view the Beacon-City partnership as one of trust, 

transparency, and shared goals with shared risk.  Therefore, in order to manage an upgrade 

project effectively, comprehensive and consistent communication must be managed between 

Beacon and the City.  It is the responsibility of the Beacon Project Manager, Jeff Pearsall, to set 

the structure and follow through on this communication plan.  As an integral part of the project, 

communicating the accurate status and accomplishments, issues and upcoming events, Jeff will 

produce bi-weekly reports that outline the Tasks Accomplished, Planned Tasks Not 

Accomplished, Upcoming Activities and any Issues or Risks (along with a mitigation approach 

and timing).  Additionally, communicating the right message to the right audience is paramount 

in maintaining a team that remains focused on achieving our goal.  Participation from the City 

Attachment 1, Page 18 of 89

Attachment 1
31 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 19 

finance, HR, and technical staff (depending upon the scope of the upgrade) must be planned and 

communicated, without the expectation that they are available at all times. 

 

Knowledge Transfer: Throughout all phases of the project, it is the responsibility of the Beacon 

team to promote knowledge transfer so as to leave the City ready for on-going support of the 

new release.  This will be done through a variety of means, including presentations, 

documentations and collaboration on work products needed during the migration.  While mostly 

focused on the new PeopleTools changes, our functional team will work with your users in 

construct and support of testing activities which, most likely, will lead to opportunities where the 

consultants can share “tips and techniques” to make their jobs easier. We can also supply a set of 

standard business functions to be tested. 

Testing Approach: Beacon’s testing approach includes a series of successive testing phases 

which are closely integrated with all other project activities and has the final objective of 

organizational readiness for go live.   The Test Strategy document produced in the Construct 

Phase will outline, for each test stage, the staffing, daily schedules and task assignments, defect 

resolution processes and approvals.    

  

Beacon has a formal approach to testing with different test cycles dependent upon the type of test 

and stage in the development cycle.  Identification of what testing will occur (appropriate to the 

magnitude of the upgrade/enhancement/implementation) to be used will be contained in the Test 

Strategy document prepared under the appropriate SOW.  In addition to the types of testing 

performed, Beacon will need to better understand the City’s standards (including your non-

conformance ticketing system)  in place and if automated test scripts can/should be used.  Lastly, 

from a tester perspective, understanding if the City has a Q/A group who manages the test effort 

needs to be factored into the plans.   

  

The testing lifecycle begins during the Construct phase where individual application components 

are unit tested following their initial design and build.  Data conversion and custom development 

(i.e. integrations, extensions, reports) follow a similar process.  The Unit Testing process ensures 

that the configuration, interfaces, customizations, and reports meet their functional and 

technical design requirements.  The person creating that unit performs unit testing. Unit Testing 

does not follow formal test scripts and is completed in Construct Phase.  

  

After Unit Testing, testing is typically organized into cycles each with their own primary 

objectives, including  integration testing, data conversion validation and executing strings of test 

scripts to confirm the integrity of the new environment.  Testing then progresses into cycles with 

the goal of confirming application readiness, and human readiness, for go live by running full 

business process scripts that cover all configuration, reports, converted data, integrations and 

extensions.  User Acceptance Testing (UAT) then represents the final test cycles in a separate 

production-like environment and is focused on organizational readiness by including end users 

who perform day-in-the-life-of scenarios to validate both their training and the continued 

stability of the application.  

  

Beacon promotes the use of the following test cycles:  

  

• Application Testing validates the overall business cycle processes within an application, 

and between PeopleSoft applications, to ensure that business processes perform as 

Attachment 1, Page 19 of 89

Attachment 1
32 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 20 

designed.  This testing, performed by the Beacon Application Leads, signifies the 

conclusion of Construct.  We also ensure that test scripts are correct and validated during 

this activity and before turning them over to the the City SIT testers.  In essence, this 

final activity in Construct allows the Project Team to cross a major quality checkpoint 

and indicates readiness for the Transition Phase. While the City may not have enjoyed 

this layer of testing before, we believe that it increases the quality of the system and test 

scripts delivered to SIT testers and it has been proven to increase testers confidence in the 

system.    

• System Testing focuses on the overall use of the PeopleSoft application and the 

surrounding interfaces and processes. System Testing includes all components:  

o All PeopleSoft functionality  

o Remote site processing  

o Local and remote printers  

o Local and remote web servers  

o Interfaced data  

o Third-party software  

This testing is performed by Power Users and Project Team members with Beacon 

providing support, using scripts developed in Construct.  

• User Acceptance Testing (UAT) is performed by a subset of end users (key users, 

including the Change Champions) with assistance from their supporting business process 

experts. This will allow the key users the opportunity to develop their skills and 

knowledge of the new system and to verify the accuracy of the user procedures.  the 

City Team Members and core users will perform this test.   

• Security Testing – During the System and UAT testing, we must test the ability to 

control user access and prevent unauthorized user penetration into the system and the 

application itself.  This will be a subset of the above tests.   

• Performance Testing is usually performed by IT in the production environment to 

obtain accurate response and processing times.  Acceptable results focus on user 

experience and nightly processing window.    

• Parallel Testing mimics daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, and/or annual processing for 

comparative purposes.  Typical parallel tests include monthly/quarterly/annual close; 

payroll parallel; etc.  Most organizations will not perform dual entry (live system and 

new system) but rather “mimic” the corresponding timeframe.  Parallel Testing is usually 

performed as the last Cycle of SIT, if at all.  

 

The Beacon Business team will assist the City in the support of the new system for an agreed 

upon period. Attachment 1 includes an example of a detailed technical configuration of the 

newly upgraded system for reference and audit. 

 

Data cleansing:  We have assisted customers many times in understanding and correcting data 

anomalies or issues in their PeopleSoft systems.   

Interface issues:  At a recent client, as we were testing the upgrade of their PeopleSoft FSCM 

system, we saw that vouchers from a particular feeder system were not integrating into Payables 

without manual intervention from the technical team.  They informed us they have been living 

with that since the last upgrade – but we did not want to perpetuate this in the newly upgraded 

system. While it was obvious that something in the interface needed to be changed, the question 

was “why” as every other feed worked seamlessly.  It appeared, after research, that this custom 

interface added a row number associated with an earlier release that was not being accepted by 

Attachment 1, Page 20 of 89

Attachment 1
33 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 21 

the system any longer.  It was a simple fix at that point to get it working, we corrected the 

history, and they no longer needed technical help for the system to consume the transactions.  

Data Clean up when implementing new features:  When working with a small community 

college that had been using Purchasing but now wanted to implement ePro we reviewed the 

current configuration and saw that they had hundreds of item categories.  This caused great 

confusion in the user community and was unnecessary for their needs.  We reviewed the history 

and made a recommendation to bring it from over 300 item categories to 30, trained requisition 

users and implemented workflow to further streamline the process.   

Prior tax updates: During an upgrade of HCM from PUM 6 to PUM 44, we tested applying the 

latest tax update, and it was not applying correctly.  The customer informed us that the prior 

vendor recommended to selectively adopt the pieces of the tax update that was applicable to 

them rather than install the whole thing.  They had done this for many years before we came in.  

We saw that the maintenance log table noted that the FULL tax updates were applied (when they 

had not been) and was causing many issues.  Through a methodical plan we cleaned up the 

system, taught them how to properly apply tax updates, and brought them back to compliance. 

There are many additional examples of issues of this nature and would welcome working with 

the City to resolve any issues you may have. 

Additional services provided to our customers also include archiving, lift and shift to Cloud 

hosting,  

3 RESUMES 

The Beacon staff is representative of best-in-class consulting resources.  All of our consultants 

have years of PeopleSoft consulting expertise, and are Oracle and Beacon certified. They are 

trained in assisting clients unify PeopleSoft into their current environments while stressing and 

suggesting best practice recommendations to optimize use and processing.  

Beacon consultants are specialists in particular applications, and therefore maintain deep 

understanding the functionality and how to best configure the system. They are deliverables-

centric and ensure that not just the system, but that the documentation and training leave their 

clients fully self-sufficient. Likewise, our technical resources are experts at upgrading and/or 

development activities and host periodic knowledge-transfer sessions so as to ensure 

supportability after we are gone.     

The Beacon team is accountable to both internal management and to the client for delivering on-

time, on-scope and on budget. They are accurate in their estimation of time to delivery because 

they have done this so many times. They are skilled at working with our customer resources and 

transferring knowledge throughout the process.  

A summary overview of the consultants proposed is provided in the table below for a high level 

view of their skills. Please note these are not representative resumes but rather those of 

consultants we would intend to use, depending upon the work effort, in various roles outlined by 

your RFP. Should the City deem any proposed individuals unacceptable, we would be more than 

willing to work with you on their substitute. 

Attachment 1, Page 21 of 89

Attachment 1
34 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 22 

Consultant Role/Specialty #Years PS 

Experience 

# PS 

Projects 

Madeline Osit Executive Sponsor, Change Management 28 42 

Jeff P. Project Manager 27 36 

Amy B. Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 27 21 

Lynn S Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 25 20 

Kevin K. Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 29 24 

Tom K. Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM 29 29 

Gary H Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM 24 25 

Alex M Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM  30 23 

Pam K. Technical Developer 33 26 

Karthik S. Technical Developer 21 35 

Brian T. Technical Upgrader/Developer 26 41 

Ken F. Technical DBA/PS System Admin 30 36 

 

Resumes follow. 

  

Attachment 1, Page 22 of 89

Attachment 1
35 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 23 

Jeff P. 

Proposed Role: Project Manager 

 

Jeff is a Project Manager with 30 years of experience in management and Information 

Technology, with over 25 years specifically focused on system design and oversight of 

PeopleSoft FSCM and HCM projects.  He has demonstrated strengths in understanding 

organizational objectives, technical functions, mitigating project risks and formulating solutions 

that deliver to all of these objectives.  Jeff has managed has managed both smaller, targeted and 

large, complex projects.  His expertise includes business processes, application implementations, 

test planning, global implementations, upgrades, mergers/acquisitions/additional deployments, 

production support and managed services, change management, business transformation, PMO 

set up and cost/benefit analysis.  He has excellent oral and written communication skills and is 

capable and experienced in delivering projects on time and within budget while maintaining a 

positive work environment for both team members and clients.   

 

PeopleSoft: 

Program Management:  Project Oversight, Budget Management, Project Setup, PMO Setup  

Project Management:  Project Planning and Administration, Scope and Issue Management, 

Risk identification and mitigation, Budget Management, Testing Planning and Oversight, 

Production Management and Transition. 

System Design and Deployment:  Business Process Analysis, Integration, Conversion, 

Requirements and Fit/Gap Analysis, Reporting Solutions, System Design, Test Planning and 

Execution, Deployment Strategies, Planning and Execution 

Project Experience: Over 20 years of PeopleSoft project experience, including Requirement 

Studies/Assessments, Business Process Redesign, Implementations, Upgrades, Enhancement   

Applications:  PeopleSoft Human Capital Management, PeopleSoft Financial Management 

Releases:  all from 4x through 9.2 

Reporting:  Query, BI Publisher, Kibana 

Technical:  Security/Compliance 

 

Representative  Projects: 

Hancock Whitney Bank 

 

Multiple Upgrades 

 

Support 

Project Manager for PeopleTools 8.61 and 

Image 50 upgrade for GL, AP, Expenses and 

ePro. Responsible for managing staffing, 

scope control, project plans, methodology, 

security design, quality control, change 

management, testing, deployment and status 

reporting to management. 

 

Project Manager for PeopleTools 8.59 

upgrade for GL, AP, Expenses and ePro. 

Responsible for managing staffing, scope 

control, project plans, methodology, security 

design, quality control, change management, 

testing, deployment and status reporting to 

management. 

 

Project Manager for PeopleTools 8.58 

upgrade and new PUM Image for GL, AP, 

Attachment 1, Page 23 of 89

Attachment 1
36 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 24 

Expenses and ePro, plus deployment of new 

functionality.  Responsible for managing 

staffing, scope control, project plans, 

methodology, security design, quality control, 

change management, testing, deployment and 

status reporting to management. 

 

Account management of ongoing production 

support services to provide steady state 

support each month. 

 

Government of Yukon 

 

Upgrade  

 

Support 

Project Manager & HCM Lead for 

PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, new PUM Image 

44, and implementation of Fluid UI and other 

enhancements. Responsible for managing 

staffing, scope control, project plans, 

methodology, security design, quality 

control, change management, testing, 

deployment and status reporting to 

management.  Applications include: HR, 

Benefits, Payroll, Time & Labor. 

 

Manager and HCM Lead providing 

production support, including issue 

resolution, security and tax updates, and 

custom development. 

Transcontinental 

 

Multiple Upgrades 

 

Project Manager & HCM Lead for 

PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, plus 

implementation of Fluid UI and other 

enhancements. Applications include: HR, 

Benefits, Payroll, Time & Labor. 

 

Security Administrator for PeopleSoft 

FSCM 9.1 to 9.2 and PeopleTools 8.59 

upgrade, responsible for implementation of 

Fluid UI as well as supporting security design 

& configuration for all new enhancements.   

Applications upgraded include: General 

Ledger, Payables, Asset Management, 

Purchasing, Receivables/Billing. 

 

Herff Jones 

 

Reengineering 

 

Project Manager for reengineering project 

to segregate 2 organizations due to 

divestiture, enabling both to operate in a dual 

tenancy PS environment.  Responsible for 

project planning, staffing, status reporting, 

quality control, methodology, testing and 

deployment, as well as security design.  

Attachment 1, Page 24 of 89

Attachment 1
37 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 25 

Applications included General Ledger, 

Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable. 

 

Artesian Water Company 

 

Upgrade 

 

Support 

 

Project Manager for PeopleTools 8.60 

Upgrade of PS FSCM. Responsible for 

project planning, status reporting, test and 

deployment plans. 

 

Project Manager for PeopleTools 8.58 

upgrade PUM38 update, implementation of 

Fluid UI, and remediation of multiple 

business pain points. Responsible for 

managing staffing, scope control, project 

plans, methodology, security design, quality 

control, change management, testing, 

deployment and status reporting to 

management.  Applications upgraded 

include: General Ledger, Payables, Asset 

Management, eProcurement, Purchasing, 

Inventory, Projects, and Cash Management. 

 

Account management of ongoing 

production support services to provide steady 

state support each month. 

 

Intact Specialty Solutions (OneBeacon) 

 

Upgrade 

 

Support 

Project Manager, providing testing support 

for PeopleTools 8.58 upgrade.  Responsible 

for overseeing execution of test plan. 

 

Security Administrator, responsible for 

implementing Chartfield Security to support 

customer’s redesign of accounts to comply 

with new IFRS17 regulations. 

 

Westchester Community College 

 

Implementation 

 

Project Manager for an implementation 

project of eProcurement and Asset 

Management plus Payables workflow.  

Responsible for managing staffing, scope 

control, project plans, methodology, security 

design, quality control, change management, 

testing, deployment and status reporting to 

management. 

 

Federated Investors 

 

Upgrade 

 

Cloud Migration 

Project Manager responsible for leading and 

executing functional review activities as well 

as project strategy and planning for the 9.2 

upgrade of Talent Acquisition, Human 

Resources, Benefits Administration and 

Attachment 1, Page 25 of 89

Attachment 1
38 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 26 

Payroll Interface.  Responsible for all 

functional assessment and solution 

recommendations, fit/gap analysis as well as 

design and configuration of selected options. 

 

Project Manager / HCM Lead for a 

business requirements assessment in support 

of a software selection inititave for a new 

Cloud HCM solution. 

 

IDB Invest 

 

Multiple Projects 

Project Manager for multiple projects 

including new ACBS Subledger, assessment 

and delivery of process improvements for 

GL, AP and Treasury, and production 

support.  Responsible for managing staffing, 

scope control, project plans, methodology, 

security design, quality control, change 

management, testing, deployment and status 

reporting to management. 

 

Grant Thornton 

 

Custom Development 

Project Manager leading a development 

project for custom solution between multiple 

product suites and central BI Analytics 

system.  Responsible for leading 

development teams, quality control, testing 

oversight, staffing, budget and status 

reporting. 

 

The Navigators Group 

 

Implementation 

Project Manager responsible for leading 

testing and deployment activities for the 

implementation of General Ledger and 

Payables. Responsible for project plan 

maintenance, methodology, testing, security 

design and SOX compliance, deployment and 

status reporting to management.   

 

Brown Brothers Harriman 

 

Upgrade 

Project Manager responsible for the 

upgrade from 9.0 for General Ledger, 

Payables and Asset Management.  

Responsible for staffing, scope control, 

project plans, methodology, quality control, 

change management, testing, deployment and 

status reporting to management. 

 

Boston Water & Sewer Commission 

 

Upgrade 

Project Manager/Functional Lead 

responsible for the upgrade from 9.1 for 

Human Resources, Recruiting, Benefits, and 

Payroll.  Responsible for staffing, scope 

control, project plans, methodology, quality 

Attachment 1, Page 26 of 89

Attachment 1
39 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 27 

control, change management, testing, 

deployment and status reporting to 

management. 

 

Pacific Life Insurance 

 

Upgrade 

Test Manager responsible for leading all 

testing activities for a business 

transformation project of PeopleSoft FSCM 

9.2, DRM (data relationship manager); Close 

Manager (FCM) and Hyperion Financial 

Manager (HFM) for external consolidated 

reporting and OBIEE. Developed Test Plans, 

supervised script development, worked 

closely with QA group in execution of 

System Test.  Managed all UAT test 

activities.  Coordinated issue resolution and 

tracked and reported defects and test status. 

 

International Monetary Fund 

 

Upgrade 

Solution Architect responsible for leading 

and executing activities related to 

requirements analysis and identifying process 

change opportunities as part of upgrade of 

Human Resources, Benefits, Payroll, Time & 

Labor, Absence Management, Pension, 

Recruiting, Learning and Talent Management 

as well as several in-house developed 

modules.  Conducted fit/gap analysis across 

full HCM suite and co-presented findings to 

IMF leadership. 

 

Ropes & Gray 

 

Upgrade 

Project Manager responsible for leading and 

executing functional review activities as well 

as project strategy and planning for upgrade 

of Human Resources, Benefits 

Administration, Time & Labor and Payroll.  

Functional review consisted of delta 

presentations on new 9.2 features and fit/gap 

analysis.   Advised on strategy for selection 

and deployment of options. 

 

Health First 

 

Upgrade 

Project Manager responsible for leading and 

executing functional review activities for 

upgrade of Human Resources, Benefits 

Administration, Time & Labor and Payroll.  

Functional review consisted of delta 

presentations on new 9.2 features and fit/gap 

analysis.  Advised on strategy for selection 

and deployment of options. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 27 of 89

Attachment 1
40 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 28 

Rady Children’s Hospital, San Diego 

 

Testing 

Testing Manager responsible for leading all 

testing activities for a PeopleSoft 

implementation of HCM, Financials and 

SCM.  Responsible for establishing a test 

strategy, defining tools and approach, 

providing a detailed test plan, and providing 

daily management and communications 

through all project test phases. 

 

Trustmark 

 

Implementation 

Project Manager responsible for leading a 

PeopleSoft HCM implementation of HR, 

Benefits Administration, Payroll, Time and 

Labor, Absence Management and eApps.  

Responsible for staffing, scope control, 

project plans, methodology, quality control, 

change management, testing, deployment and 

status reporting to management. 

 

Amazon 

 

Upgrade 

Project Manager responsible for leading a 

PeopleSoft HCM upgrade and providing 

PMO.  Managed business and technical 

teams. Responsible for staffing, budget, 

scope control, project plans, methodology, 

quality control, change management, testing, 

deployment and status reporting to 

management. 

 

Emory Healthcare 

 

Design/Analysis 

Functional Lead responsible for leading 

design and analysis for compliance and 

enhancements to Benefits, and transition of 

Workers Comp administration to new 

vendor. 

 

Educational Testing Service 

 

Implementation/Upgrade 

Project Manager responsible for separate 

implementation and upgrade projects for 

PeopleSoft Financials, SCM and HCM.  

Managed business and technical teams.  

Responsible for staffing, budget, scope 

control, project plans, methodology, 

assessment, quality control, process 

improvement, change management, testing, 

training, deployment and status reporting to 

management. 

 

Emory University & Healthcare 

 

Various Projects 

Project Manager responsible for leading a 

series of PeopleSoft implementations, 

assessments, and reorganization projects.  

Managed business and technical teams.  

Responsible for project plans, staffing, scope 

Attachment 1, Page 28 of 89

Attachment 1
41 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 29 

control, design, process reengineering, 

change management, testing training, and 

status reporting. 

 

HCR ManorCare 

 

Various Projects 

Project Lead responsible for various IT 

projects during a merger.  Projects included 

conversion, testing, and T&A system 

deployment. 

 

Calpine 

 

Testing 

Testing Manager responsible for managing 

the test phase for a Financials upgrade. 

 

 

Education: 

PeopleSoft:  PeopleTools, PeopleSoft Certification, Oracle HCM Cloud Certification 

 

BS, Applied Psychology, Georgia Institute of Technology 

 

  
  

Attachment 1, Page 29 of 89

Attachment 1
42 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 30 

Amy B. 

Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 

 

Amy is a PeopleSoft HCM Senior Consultant with experience in implementation of HCM 

including ESS and MSS, production support, technical development specs, testing and 

troubleshooting for the PeopleSoft HCM suite. She has experience with interfaces, reapplication 

of customizations, documentation of new customizations, unit and functional testing, presenting 

code reviews to technical and functional audiences and working with business resources to 

analyze and review business process decisions related to the upgrades and implementation of 

new functionality involved in all facets of PeopleSoft HCM such as fit/gap analysis, 

configuration, system analysis and design, modification design, testing, business process design, 

and development of training curriculum and execution.  Amy has led implementation and 

upgrade projects for higher education, federal agencies as well as a broad array of private sector 

clients. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Applications: HCM, Integration Hub 

Project Management:  Project Planning and Administration, Scope and Issue Management, 

Risk identification and mitigation, Budget Management, Testing Planning and Oversight, 

Production Management and Transition. 

System Design and Deployment:  Business Process Analysis, Integration, Conversion, 

Requirements and Fit/Gap Analysis, Reporting Solutions, System Design, Test Planning and 

Execution, Deployment Strategies, Planning and Executio 

Releases 7x thru 9.2 

Reporting:  Query, BI Publisher 

Technical:  Security/Compliance 

 

Representative  Projects: 

University of Minnesota 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS HCM, FSCM, CS 

and Interaction Hub, providing production 

support.  Led Manager Self-Service 

Requirements gathering for providing 

managers with capability to promote, transfer, 

terminate employees within their department. 

This would include creating a workflow 

process and setting up different events and 

members who need notifications. Received 

tickets, inquiry calls and emails from both HR 

and Finance business side departments. 

Assisted with logging, tracking issues in 

SharePoint and providing detailed 

analysis/issue resolution documentation while 

also keeping the customer informed regarding 

status. Worked with Functional and 

Development teams to identify and resolve 

defects; assisted in system testing as 

necessary. Led the process of analyzing and 

streamlining complex business processes to 

best align technology solutions with business 

Attachment 1, Page 30 of 89

Attachment 1
43 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 31 

strategies. Defined and completed complex 

user stories; consider the current and future 

business and technology environment when 

designing these solutions. Ensured processes 

and systems, including system integrations 

and 3rd party systems were documented and 

met enterprise and security standards. Ensured 

the quality of solutions; worked with other 

service team members and business units to 

design and execute quality checks (via testing 

and other quality control measures). Utilized 

technology trends and vendor product 

roadmaps to determine how they best fit the 

demands/requests of customers and how 

delivered functionality could be best 

leveraged. Communicated OIT’s business 

processes and resources when discussing 

functional business needs. Reviewed 

functional design documents ensuring 

business needs were met  

 

Federated Investors 

 

Conversion 

Functional Lead for Peoplesoft HCM, 

supporting a software selection project. 

Modules included HR, Benefits 

Administration, Recruiting, Payroll Interface 

and ESS/MSS. Conducted user requirements 

sessions and fit gap analysis. 

Ahold Delhaize 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

providing production support. Performed 

Analysis, Configuration and Design of 

Employee Self-service and Manager Self-

service using Fluid UI as well as security 

pertaining to administrator and other approval 

roles, modification of roles and permission 

lists and other security access based upon 

approval process.  Analysis and configuration 

of roles and routings for the Workflow E-Mail 

notifications such as address change requests, 

direct deposit changes, and marital status 

change notification, and emergency contact 

information changes.. Analysis of 

requirements from the business users on 

Manager and Employee self-service 

application, identifying Peoplesoft gaps and 

solutions/ Created workflow matrix that 

identified groups/roles in approval chain 

receiving notification during approval 

process. Configured/Tested ESS (ePay) self-

service for employees to be able to view their 

Attachment 1, Page 31 of 89

Attachment 1
44 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 32 

pay check. Configured/Tested MSS to permit 

managers to review direct reports for 

compensation – merit, STI. Partnered with HR 

Services leadership for provisioning 

PeopleSoft application security. Assisted 

HRIS management in partnering with IT and 

vendors in ensuring customer’s business 

needs have been met. Completed complex 

analytical request leveraging advanced 

reporting techniques. Managed help desk 

SLAs and the ticket management system. 

Documented modifications and customized 

business process to the application. Developed 

robust analytics and reporting capabilities for 

HR business process owners.  

 

Department of PA Treasury 

 

Upgrade 

Support 

Sr Functional Lead/ Project Manager for 

PS HCM 9.2 upgrade project.  Modules 

included HR, Payroll, Base Benefits and 

Absence Management. Conducted 

functional/technical/testing and project 

management for application version 9.2 and 

PTools 8.54.  Configured application, 

developed Functional and Technical Designs, 

and demonstrated functionality as delivered.as 

well as fit-gap sessions along with testing of 

requirements and customizations, Configured 

and customized PeopleSoft HCM/AM 

including Employee and Manager Self-

Service modules. Conducted PeopleTools 

8.52 - 8.54 Prototyping / testing / training / 

QC / documenting acceptance criteria. 

 

SUIT Growth Fund 

 

Upgrade 

Implementation 

Support 

Sr Functional Analyst  for PS HCM 9.2 

upgrade project.  Modules included Payroll, 

TAM, Candidate Gateway, Benefits Open 

Enrollment. Responsible for project managing 

the PeopleSoft HCM Upgrade application 

from 9.1 to 9.2 and simultaneously 

implementing Candidate Gateway and TAM 

for Online Applicant Apply. Led team 

through requirements, analysis, development, 

and testing for both projects. Created and 

updated project plans for all implementations 

and upgrades. Managed multiple projects and 

supported PeopleSoft HCM production for 

HR, Payroll and Benefits. Lead Senior 

PeopleSoft project manager for a technical 

team of 5 and functional team of 2. Supported 

Attachment 1, Page 32 of 89

Attachment 1
45 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 33 

multiple business units and interfaced with 

Operations and Database Administration to 

identify tasks, resources, and timelines . Also 

responsible for hiring of PeopleSoft 

consultants and full-time resources when 

appropriate Configuration of full/partial 

position management and analysis, design, 

testing and security related to the custom 

functionality. Assisted in PeopleSoft FSCM 

upgrade to application version 9.2, providing 

analysis, design and project management 

expertise 

 

 

Other PeopleSoft Experience 

Unisys 

Department of Labor 

HHS 

Pennsylvania Office of the Auditor General 

QVC 

Allegis Group 

Select Medical Corporation 

 

Education: 

Bachelor of Science in Computer Science, Minor in Accounting.  Millersville University, 

Millersville, PA, 1988 

MBA, Pennsylvania State University, 2000 

Honors: Deans List, Millersville University (1986- 1988) 

Deans Committee, Millersville University (1987) 

Chairman’s Advisory Committee, Millersville University  

Sigma Iota Epsilon Honors Fraternity, Pennsylvania State University (1997-1998) 
  

Attachment 1, Page 33 of 89

Attachment 1
46 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 34 

Lynn S. 

Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 

 

Lynn is an experienced PeopleSoft Functional Lead with  25 years focused on Benefits 

Administration and Human Resources.  Her projects have varied from upgrades, 

implementations and production support for clients primarily in higher education, healthcare, and 

government. She has excellent organizational, analytical, customer service and communication 

skills, working with all levels of management, staff and union employees in pressured 

environments. Lynn has worked with multiple project methodologies where she was responsible 

for requirements gathering, analysis, design and configuration, conversion mapping, test 

planning and execution, training development and delivery, and production support. 

 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Applications: HR, Benefits, Payroll 

Releases:  all since 8x, including 9.0, 9.1, 9.2 

Reporting:  Query, BI Publisher 

Technical:  Security/Compliance 

 

 

Representative  Projects: 

Nicklaus Children's Health System 

 

Implementation 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, 

serving as Benefits lead for this re-

implementation project. Review/update 

benefits and payroll configuration for 

PeopleSoft 9.2 implementation that was 

originally configured by another consulting 

firm. Review code and provide updates to 

technical resource for customizations. Set up 

and run Snapshots to move employees to 

PeopleSoft Benefits Administration module, 

Perform data validation of conversion 

information, Create test scripts and test 

scenarios, perform system and regression 

testing, and coordinate UAT testing efforts. 

Provide user training and documentation of 

Ben Admin processing.  Troubleshoot 

Production Support issues after Go-Live.  

Performed Open Enrollment configuration, 

testing, support, training.  Wrote requirements 

documents for multiple user enhancements. 

 

City of Fort Worth 

 

Support 

Enhancements 

Functional Lead for PS HCM, providing 

production support for Benefits.  Assisted 

client with Open Enrollment efforts including 

configuration, system testing and preparation 

of test scripts and scenarios for UAT. Updated 

configuration in custom tables for vendor 

interfaces. Tested interfaces pertaining to 

Attachment 1, Page 34 of 89

Attachment 1
47 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 35 

benefit plan changes. Prepared requirements 

and training documentation for new 

procedures related to benefit plan changes.  

System tested and coordinated UAT testing 

for new hire and auto finalize customized 

processes. Troubleshot issues related to 

Production Support. Modified Transformation 

Mapping of data to outside vendors. 

Implemented Benefits piece of IHub, an 

employee facing online Benefits Enrollment 

product, utilizing the Agile approach. 

 

Ascension Healthcare 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

focused on Ben Admin.  Provided production 

support for benefits issues, questions and user 

requests.  

 

Columbia University 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

focused on Benefits. Assist in the 

implementation of a new Retirement Program.  

Configured new retirement plans, created test 

scripts and test scenarios, tested custom 

programs to calculate service dates, created 

training documentation and process 

flowcharts. 

 

St. Paul Public School System 

 

Upgrade 

Implementation 

 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM 

implementation and upgrade projects.  

Responsible for Benefits Administration 

requirements, design, configuration, and 

testing.  

University of Texas Medical Schools 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM 

upgrade 

 project.  As Benefits lead, addressed 

configuration changes, testing and training for 

changes.  

 

Other PeopleSoft Experience 

Ferguson Enterprises 

Advantec 

Santa Rose County Sherriff’s Office 

MedQuist Inc 

 

Kevin K. 

Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft HCM 

 

Kevin is a PeopleSoft HCM Functional Consultant with expertise in Time & Labor, Payroll and 

Absence Management along with background in the overall HCM suite.   His projects have 

spanned implementations, upgrades, production support and reengineering initiatives across 

Attachment 1, Page 35 of 89

Attachment 1
48 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 36 

multiple industries including higher education, government, financial services and healthcare.  

Kevin has deep experience in providing operational support and resolving issues for Payroll 

departments via process redesign, custom Time & Labor rules and configuration, and training.  

He has been involved in all facets of PeopleSoft HCM implementations such as fit/gap analysis, 

configuration, system analysis and design, modification design and technical development, 

testing, business process design, and development of training curriculum and execution. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Applications: HR, Benefits, Payroll, Time & Labor, Absence Management 

System Design and Deployment:  Business Process Analysis, Integration, Conversion, 

Requirements and Fit/Gap Analysis, Reporting Solutions, System Design, Test Planning and 

Execution, Deployment Strategies, Planning and Execution 

Releases: Release 4.x through 9.2 

Technical:  Security/Compliance 

 

Representative  Projects: 

Government of Yukon 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, 

providing production support of Payroll and 

Time & Labor.  Supported issue resolution, 

enhancements, tax updates, and custom 

development. 

Anderson Windows 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

providing support for Benefits, Payroll and 

Time & Labor.  Designed, built and tested 

new Enhancements and Time & Labor Rules.  

Addressed new California OT and PTO 

Enhancements. 

Progressive Insurance 

 

Support 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

providing production support for Benefits, 

Payroll and Time & Labor.  Assisted upgrader 

with upgrade of retrofit to 9.2 PUM 33 to 41.  

Supported new Enhancements and Time & 

Labor Rules 

 

UTHSC 

 

M&A Support 

Functional Lead for PS HCM for acquisition 

project.  Supported implementation of 

PeopleSoft for a new Acquisition and 

integrate with parent organization. 

 

Lawrence Livermore National Labs 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

focused on Time & Labor and Absence 

Management. Reviewed configuration, 

troubleshoot, design and code new and 

existing formulas. Conducted Fit/Gap session 

for Time & Labor and Absence Management.  

Responsible for configuration and 

Implementation Time & Labor and Absence 

Management.  Implemented Fluid UI in 9.2. 

Build and tested new Time & Labor rules as 

Attachment 1, Page 36 of 89

Attachment 1
49 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 37 

well as Absence Entitlement and Take build 

and testing. Conducted PUM and Tax Update 

reviews. 

 

Maricopa Community College   

 

Reimplementation 

Support 

Functional Lead /Program Manager for 

cleaning up and fixing PS HCM system post 

implementation after implementing company 

was removed from Project.   Managed 5 

consultants and 10 college resources. Served 

as SME for Payroll, Time and Labor and 

Absence Management Reimplementation – 

Reviewed configuration, troubleshoot, design 

and code new and existing time and labor 

rules.  Addressed Time and Labor integration 

to PeopleSoft SIS, PeopleSoft Projects, 

PeopleSoft GL. Conducted PeopleSoft GL 

setup review and transaction process review. 

Configured Commit Accounting on HR side 

to interface with Commitment Control on the 

Finance side. Performed functional design of 

changes to PAYGL01 to provide additional 

data to finance for budgets. Transformed 

client to Fluid screens versus classic.  

Reimplemented PS Security.  Assisted with 

PUM Application and Review as well as Tax 

Update Application review. 

 

Energy Transfer 

 

Support  

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

focused on Payroll, Time & Labor and 

Absence Management. Assist Payroll team 

with bringing in Acquisitions and establishing 

standards for payroll processing. 

Supported consolidation of Payroll, Time and 

Labor, and Absence Management process 

across 4 companies into 1 more streamlined 

process. Responsible for Configuration and 

Implementation of Absence Management and 

Time and Labor 9.1. Created custom 

integration with ADP, Kronos and other time 

collection devices. Supported workflow 

integration with new location setup to handle 

mandatory sick leave in Northeast states 

Attachment 1, Page 37 of 89

Attachment 1
50 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 38 

Baylor, Scott & White Healthcare 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for upgrade of PeopleSoft 

HCM 9.2, focused on Time & Labor and 

Absence Management.  Conducted Fit/Gap 

session for Absence Management and Time 

and Labor 9.2 Upgrade.  Designed, configured 

and tested Absence Management 

implementation. Updated Time & Labor and 

Absence Management to Fluid UI. Design, 

build and testing of new Time & Labor rules 

and security. Assist in Support of Commit 

Accounting on HR side. Conducted 

PeopleSoft GL transaction process review. 

 

Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian 

Community 

 

Upgrade 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM 9.2 

upgrade, focused on Time & Labor.   

Supported Time and Labor Rules build and 

Testing.  Provided Time and Labor 9.1 

Production Support.  Implemented additional 

Peoplesoft Security.  Built custom hire and 

termination workflow in PeopleSoft 

Workflow Engine 

 

CIGNA Healthcare 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft HCM, 

providing production support.  Managed 

offshore payroll processing team to gain 

performance and process improvements.  . 

Managed full system integration with 

Onshore, Offshore development teams, 

Offshore operations teams and Call Centers. 

Managed full integration between HRMS and 

Financials. Managed, Designed and 

Architecture 27 pay Implementation for 

biweekly payroll with a team consisting of 15 

onshore and 30 offshore resources. Managed 

Steady State Support for Payroll, Time and 

Labor and Compensation with a team of 6 

onshore and 15 offshore plus 15 matrixed 

payroll ops team in Jamaica. Designed and 

Architecture Multi-Threaded Payroll 

Calculations for Multiple Paygroups. 

Functional Design and Clean-up of existing 

Absence Management implementation. 

Conducted Security review and configuration. 

Address and correct Multi-State taxation setup 

and issues. Cleaned up errors in the way 

payroll was being processed to better conform 

with PeopleSoft standards. PeopleSoft GL 

troubleshooting of HR transactions. 

Attachment 1, Page 38 of 89

Attachment 1
51 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 39 

Implemented Same Sex Spouse taxation with 

outside benefit provider. Reduced payroll 

calculation from 6 hours to 2 hours. Tuned 

time and labor to run in 1:30 from 4 hours. 

Wrote custom time and labor rules to support 

27 pays. Tuned ad troubleshot Payroll to GL 

interface. Support for ePerformance, 

eCompensation, Employee and Manager Self-

Service. 

 

United Airlines 

 

Reengineering 

Functional Lead / Project Manager for 

PeopleSoft HCM reengineering project to 

move Payroll from Chicago to Houston.  

Managed timeline and team of Consultants on 

analyzing client’s current system compared to 

a vanilla implementations. Support client in 

resolving their NA Payroll issues, multi-state 

taxation and multiple paygroup setup. 

Conducted Current State Assessment , 

identified Problem Areas and 

Recommendations for PeopleSoft Payroll of 

customized system versus PeopleSoft 

delivered, and prepared Fit Gap, Process 

Flow, RICEW, and Integration analysis.  

Rewrote process and procedures  for a more 

efficient payroll process. Trained legacy 

payroll staff on how to process payroll 

through PeopleSoft. Designed and developed 

HR to GL interface. 

 

 

Other PeopleSoft Experience 

Oklahoma Heart Hospital                                                                                         

HCC Insurance                                                                                                                  

Air Liquide  

State Street Financial                                                                                                    

SCI                                                                                                                                    

Freddie Mac                                                                                                                     

Santander  

Shoe Source                                                                                                      

Southeastern Louisiana  

Sterling Commerce                                                                                                        

TPI                                                                                                                                     

Southern Ute Indian Tribe                                                                                            

SAIC                                                                                                                                  

Dynegy                                                                                                                              

Henry M Jackson Foundation                                                                                            

Alliant Energy    

Intermedia Communications                                                                                                    

Attachment 1, Page 39 of 89

Attachment 1
52 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 40 

Marriott Vacation Club Int’l                                                                                                       

Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond                                                                               ] 

Capital One Financial Services                                                                                           ] 

 

 

Education: 

B.S., Computer Science – Georgia Institute of Technology, Atlanta, GA     

M.B.A. Technology Management – University of Phoenix                                                                                                            

  

Attachment 1, Page 40 of 89

Attachment 1
53 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 41 

 

THOMAS K. 

Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM 

 

Tom is a Senior Level Transformational Leader and Consultant with over 25 years of experience 

in business, technology, and strategy to provide process and technology solutions. Driver of end-

to-end business transformation through design, development, and delivery of financial systems, 

business planning and budgeting. Tom is skilled in migration from legacy applications to cloud-

based solutions including analysis, customer centered design, and migrations. He has guided 

organizations through re-implementation and upgrades of PeopleSoft, assessed the process and 

systems landscape, documented the issues, gaps, and process challenges, advised and developed 

roadmaps to resolve issues and implement new and refined designs and business processes. He 

has performed multiple optimization and readiness assessments. He facilitated sessions and 

observation of client personnel performing their duties to notate and document the issues and 

challenges using the systems. He then identified areas of the business process that could be 

performed more effectively, and created and delivered roadmaps of activities to use for future 

implementations and optimization initiatives.   

 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: All releases 3x through 9.2 

Applications:  General Ledger, Asset Management, Accounts Payable, Purchasing/ePro, 

Inventory, Expenses 

Reporting:  PSQuery, BI Publisher, nVision 

Security: PeopleSoft Security 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

Nicklaus Childrens Hospital 

 

Optimization 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 Optimization Project.  

Performed assessments of functional processes and software 

modules: General Ledger, Accounts Payable, Purchasing, 

eProcurement, Inventory, and Reporting.  Created and managed 

a Project Plan and governance process for the assessment 

period. Identified issues and challenges the client were 

experiencing by observation of the client team performing their 

processes and using the software module function. Documented 

the current state configuration and the process flows into flow 

diagrams.  Delivered a roadmap of optimization opportunities, 

training areas, and current state documentation.  Provided 

progress reports to all internal and external stakeholders. 

Oklahoma State Department 

of Health 

 

Implementation 

Finance Lead for ERP Assessment and Migration Project.  

Assessment of the stability of the current legacy financial 

system to remain in while determining the replacement software 

applications and to evaluate the State PeopleSoft (PS) system as 

a replacement.   Migration from the legacy system to the State 

PeopleSoft system.  Current state systems were evaluated and 

established the high-level requirements of functionality 

necessary for the replacement systems to accommodate. Several 

Attachment 1, Page 41 of 89

Attachment 1
54 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 42 

options were delivered as protentional solutions with each 

option diving into the advantages and disadvantages of each. 

Migration’s objective was to move from the legacy software to 

PS and reduce dual use of legacy and PS systems. It also 

addressed adding new functionality within PS for the agency, 

the new functions for the agency were adding Grants 

Management into the PS system and retiring the legacy 

SharePoint and MS access tools used to track and report on 

grants. Implementation effort required intricate design and 

analysis to design the complex requirements around the 

established grants in use by the agency and the heavily 

customized State PeopleSoft system 

Navigators Insurance 

 

Business Transformation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM Business Reorganization 

project to close multiple United Kingdom business entities and 

re-establish those entities in Belgium and ensure the business 

unit operations and financial reporting and currencies for 

global, regional, and local requirements were established. 

Analysis was performed to define the scope and impacts to the 

software, and a project plan was established to perform the 

work in a 12-week period.  The detail work involved designing 

and implementing configuration, integration, and conversion to 

close the UK entities, create new Belgium entities, establish 

new alternative chart field dimensions for statutory reporting of 

global, regional, and local reporting. Reports were redesigned 

and modified for the impact of all the changes in the business 

entities. This work followed our original implementation 3 

years earlier. 

Guardian Insurance 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 project to onboard their 

Indian subsidiary into their Global PeopleSoft (PS) financial 

system and accommodate existing reporting requirements for 

the subsidiary. Created the software implementation plan and 

governance model for a 16-week program..  Created and 

analyzed the subsidiary requirements and developed the 

business entity configuration, established designs for merging 

the subsidiary into the existing global design of the PS system. 

Completed configuration for the new business unit across 

General Ledger, Accounts Payable and Purchasing.  Performed 

configuration, tested, and implemented the subsidiary into the 

global PS system. Provided executive readouts and updates for 

leadership management and stakeholders. 

Toyota Motor Credit 

Corporation 

 

Business Transformation 

 

 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 assessment for TMCC to 

determine the viability and functional needs of a separation 

from Toyota Motor’s shared services support for TMCC’s 

PeopleSoft financial systems, processes and hardware.  Held 

facilitated sessions with Toyota Motors Shared service center 

departments to identify the challenges and roadblocks, the 

required PeopleSoft functionality, the hardware and to define 

the IT support services that TMCC would need to acquire and 

implement prior to separation. Provided TMCC with the 

Attachment 1, Page 42 of 89

Attachment 1
55 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 43 

documented PeopleSoft Modules and support required, 

identified the hardware required, and provided all the IT 

support processes and required personnel support for IT. 

Documented the pros and cons for the viability model of 

separation from Toyota’s Shared Service Center. 

Raymond James 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 Transformation project to 

implement PeopleSoft (PS) ERP Finance and Supply Chain 

functions to establish greater efficiencies and replace legacy 

financials software. Functionality included, General Ledger, 

Accounts Payable, Fixed Assets, Travel Expenses, Purchasing, 

eProcurement. The program was a full life cycle program from 

initiating requirements, identifying fit/gap, design of 

configurations for all modules, reporting, interfaces, and 

conversion from legacy software. Directed and managed the 

phases of the implementation, requirements and analysis, 

development, testing and implementation. Facilitated design 

sessions, for requirements, analysis of processes and managed 

the build phase to configure the functional module and unit test 

the functionality. Provided hands on development of reporting 

content – interfaced with client members to determine 

requirements, developed reports, reviewed and tested with 

client members. Coordinated with technical team to review 

deliverables for reporting and interface development and testing 

schedules, and to create plans for completion and turnover to 

functional teams. Coordinated with the Testing Team Lead to 

deliver test cases and execution plans as well as perform testing 

cycles.   Directed and managed the deployment planning and 

development of the deployment schedule. Directed the 

implementation activities during the go-live time period.  

Coordinated with the Change Management team to determine 

the aspects used to create training for the client teams and the 

project plan and timing for fulfilment of knowledge and 

training content and sessions. 

Entergy 

 

Re-implemementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 transformation and re-

implementation for Financials and Human Capital systems– 

focused on upgrading to most current version and 

transformation of business processes to gain efficiencies from 

reorganization, software updates and reduction of 

customization.  Facilitated sessions for process improvement 

and design, by analyzing current state, identifying desired 

future state, evaluating fit/gap to the latest version of PS 9.2 

Evaluated and designed the Chart of Accounts (COA), to 

rationalize the dimensions and values used for the organization 

to support operations and operational and statutory reporting for 

both Financial and FERC regulatory bodies. Facilitated design 

sessions for global functionality across the ERP feature and 

functions that allow for integration across all functions in the 

Financial and Human Capital Management software. Facilitated 

process design sessions to establish requirement gaps in 

Attachment 1, Page 43 of 89

Attachment 1
56 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 44 

functionality and define the General Ledger configuration based 

on collected requirements.  Coordinated with the Process 

transformation team to identify the macro processes state of 

maturity and efficiency and to define the directional activities to 

meet the desire state of the future 

Cincinatti Financial 

Corporation 

 

Upgrade 

 

Project Manager for PS FSCM 9.2 Upgrade from v9.1 he 

assessment objective was to analyze CFC’s existing current 

state processing and to recommend new business processes and 

configuration to enhance the functionality for the following 

PeopleSoft version 9.2 modules, Accounts Payable, Asset 

Management, General Ledger, Purchasing, and Accounts 

Receivable. Performed current state analysis of the business 

processes, module configuration and system processes, 

identified impacts to reports, interfaces and customization. 

Completed future state workshops with the client team to 

review the current state, review and identify challenges, discuss 

leading practices and review the new PS 9.2 features and 

functions. Delivered a Roadmap of business process 

improvements and impacted features and functions to modify 

while CFC performed the upgrade and a roadmap of items to 

implement after the upgrade 

Freddie Mac 

 

Business Transformation 

QA Lead for quality assessment of Procure to Pay project.  

Performed a quality assessment on the project and address issue 

that were found. Used facilitated workshops with Executive 

Stakeholders, Project Leaders, and Project team members to 

identify and documented issues with project plans around 

missing tasks, identifying responsible task owners and the 

timeline and deficiencies of project governance, particularly in 

deliverable reviews and turnover. Developed corrective 

measures to resolve the project issues and directed the team in 

completing the corrective actions until a new project manager 

joined the team. Communicated and provided progress reports 

to internal and external stakeholders. 

Finish Line 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 implementation project.  

Conducted assessment to define the impact and necessary 

modifications to the PeopleSoft (PS) Financial system as a 

reimplementation to PS version 9.2, and to integrate with 

Inventory and Retail Software packages that were in flight as an 

implementation. Scope of the financials was General Ledger, 

Fixed Assets, Accounts Payable and Purchasing.  Performed 

current state analysis to define and structure the existing 

module design and developed current state documentation for 

process flows and configuration. Used facilitated sessions to 

review current state and discuss future state direction and 

requirements. Used results of these sessions to document high 

level designs for the PS 9.2 modules and produces future state 

process flows. Provided documented Roadmap and Design 

documents to allow Finish Line to start their reimplementation 

Attachment 1, Page 44 of 89

Attachment 1
57 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 45 

for PS, and the conversion impacts to migrate from current state 

to PS 9.2 and produced a conversion approach and guide. 

Northwestern Mutual 

 

Re-implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM re-reimplementation of the 

PeopleSoft (PS) Financials software from an earlier customized 

version of PS Financials. The project included financial 

functionality, bolt-on customizations, data warehouse 

development, integration across 3rd party software and a 

change management program. Responsible for the entire 

PeopleSoft Financial Modules Teams, the Technical 

Development Team, and the Technical Architecture and 

Administration Team.  Managed the project from inception 

through deployment for all the phases of the project life cycle, 

Scope, Requirements, Design, Development, Testing, Training 

and Deployment. Served as the point person in coordinating 

System and Integration Testing. Reported on metrics weekly for 

all testing events during the cycle. • Managed the deployment 

phase and planning aspects to ensure the deployment activities 

were managed and operated in accordance with the deployment 

plans. Served as the point person on the PeopleSoft project to 

provide guidance and issue resolution during all phases of the 

project. Provided architectural structure guidelines for the 

design and development for the implementation deliverables. 

 

 

 

Additional PeopleSoft Projects: 

Northern Trust  2010-2011 

Entap 2010 

Enterprise Fleet Management 2010 

Agrex 2009-2010 

Ace Insurance 2008-2009 

Direburgs 2008 

Veolla 2007-2008 

BCBS Florida 2006-2007 

Turner Broadcasting 2005-2006 

Premera BCBS  2004-2005 

 

  

Attachment 1, Page 45 of 89

Attachment 1
58 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 46 

GARY H. 

PEOPLESOFT FSCM LEAD 

 

Gary is a certified PeopleSoft FSCM Lead with 34 years of experience in accounting and 

financial systems, with 20+ years focused on implementations, upgrades and support of 

PeopleSoft Financials, primarily General Ledger and Payables.  He is highly skilled in all phases 

of upgrades and implementations from requirements definition, through design and 

development to end user training and production support.  Gary has served as the Financials 

Team Lead for multiple upgrades with a focus on customization review and fit/gap analysis.  He 

has expertise in all aspects of General Ledger and Payables with a particular specialty in 

reporting, consolidations, allocations, equitization and multi-currency systems, as well as use of 

nVision and Query, 1099 set up and processing, and voucher and payment processing. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: 5x through 9.2 

Applications: General Ledger, Payables 

Reporting: nVision, Report Books, PSQuery, BI Publisher 

 

Key Projects: 

Oklahoma Department of 

Transportation 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for a process improvement project that included 

the implementation of PeopleSoft FSCM.  Responsible for working 

with the state SME’s to validate the completeness of the 

Requirements, Fit/Gap and Design documents created by the 

implementation partner.  Additional implementation responsibilities 

included process mapping that identified improvements for 

Subledger Reporting, Right of Way/Utilities and Project Finance. 

Also, gathered the training requirements and created the strategy 

and project charter documents, as well as the training  project plan.   

For agencies not included in the Phase 1 implementation, created 

current state process maps that included pain points, recommended 

process improvements and future state maps for specific topic areas 

such as General Ledger Reporting and Reconciliations, Accounts 

Payable and Budget Planning and Reporting.  Requirements were 

also defined for these agencies that would be used for the Phase 2 

implementation of PeopleSoft.   

 

Herff Jones 

 

Reengineering 

Functional Lead for reengineering project to segregate 2 

organizations due to divestiture, enabling both to operate in a dual 

tenancy PS FSCM environment.  Responsible for General Ledger and 

Payables application design and configuration, conversion design, 

security design, testing and deployment support.  Also expanded 

Attachment 1, Page 46 of 89

Attachment 1
59 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 47 

 analytics capabilities by enabling nVision drilldowns in financial 

reports. 

 

Tokio Marine 

 

Support 

Corporate Financial Systems Manager responsible for 

coordinating programs/projects involving multiple departments or 

cross-functional teams that focus on the integration of technology 

with business requirements and processes that meet both company 

and regulatory guidelines and principles. Key deliverables include:  

The rollout of PeopleSoft Expenses to smart devices, implementation 

of the PeopleSoft Lease Administration module, automating manual 

general ledger journals using allocations and standard journals, 

updating key allocations for the IFRS conversion project, and 

managing a staff of two responding to on-going production support 

issues. 

 

Public Utility (name 

withheld per client 

request) 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead on PS FSCM upgrade project, responsible for all 

functional activities General Ledger.  The activities include fit/gap 

design, development testing, training and cutover activities.  

Designed and configured General Ledger functionality including, 

Workflow, Allocations and Consolidation.  Developed test scripts and 

training materials.  Performed deployment tasks and provided post 

implementation support. 

 

Hancock Whitney Bank 

 

Upgrade 

Enhancements 

Implementation 

 

Functional Lead on PS FSCM project to replace an aging, 

unsupported reconciliation system - Recon Plus – using PeopleSoft 

Open Item functionality with some customization.  The new 

reconciliation process in PeopleSoft provides functionality to track 

and reconcile the Bank’s Official Checks (Cashier’s checks) accounts 

on a daily basis. The process automatically closes matched items 

(paid and issued), allowing managers to focus on exceptions; for 

example, to report fraudulent activity to the Fed or close items that 

have been tagged for escheatment. In addition, the process was 

designed to scale to the Trust department and other areas of the 

Bank to manage their reconciliations. User maintainable reason 

codes and comments were created to track both open/unreconciled 

transactions and closed/reconciled items.  Reason codes and 

comments are automatically assigned based on the type of 

transaction, and they can be updated manually.  Specific tables and 

views were created for reporting.  Additionally, roles and permission 

lists were created to control access to the custom process.  Updated 

GL configuration rules, as needed to support the new solution. 

Responsible for unit testing of the solution. 

 

Functional Lead on PS FSCM implementation project.  General 

Ledger Consultant responsible for requirements, fit/gap design, 

development testing and cutover activities.  Directed client on 

mapping procedures, specifically those related to intercompany, 

Attachment 1, Page 47 of 89

Attachment 1
60 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 48 

investment and equity earnings accounts.  Designed and configured 

General Ledger functionality including, ADB, Consolidation and 

Equitization.  This was part of an implementation of General Ledger, 

Payables and Asset Management. 

 

American Fidelity Assurance 

 

Enhancement 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM enhancement project for the 

following Accounts Payable processes:  Vendor Management 

(including, scrubbing duplicate vendors and audit logging), Automate 

Check Request using PeopleSoft forms, Invoice Management 

(streamline process for PO invoices), Training for managing Match 

Exceptions, Designed and Configured Match Tolerances/Rules and 

provided training, Explored the development and approval of 

Voucher Approval Workflow, Reviewed the use of Vendor Location. 

 

Brown BROTHERS HARRIMAN 

 

Implementation 

 

Support 

Functional Lead 

Beacon’s Common Integration Processor (CIP) was extended for this 

project to include significantly enhanced functionality.  A custom 

Subledger Accounting Module (SLAM) was developed using the CIP 

platform to support interfaces with complex requirements for 

translating subsystem entries into accounting entries and supporting 

daily reconciliation activities.  Functional Lead responsible for all 

configuration of specialized rules for interoffice balancing, overdraft 

processing and netting and charges account reclasses to support 

daily banking operations.  Configured BI Publisher reports for daily 

proof activities and related reconciliation and subledger accounting 

reconciliation.  Updated GL configuration rules as needed.  

Responsible for unit testing of the solution. 

 

Functional Lead, providing support. Prepared documentation and 

conducted nVision and Query training. 

 

 

International Monetary Fund 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM upgrade project from 8.9 to 9.2. 

Responsible for all General Ledger functional tasks, including 

customization analysis, test planning and execution, training plans 

and documentation.  This global project involved Commitment 

Control and over 150 currencies.  Modules upgraded also included: 

Payables, Purchasing, Asset Management, Expenses and Project 

Costing. 

 

Primerica Life Insurance 

Co. 

 

Functional Lead for reimplementation of PS FSCM. General Ledger 

Lead responsible for all functional activities, including fit/gap design, 

development testing and cutover activities.  Designed and configured 

General Ledger functionality including: Consolidation, Equitization, 

Attachment 1, Page 48 of 89

Attachment 1
61 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 49 

Reimplementation Revaluation and Translation.  Applications reimplemented as part of 

this project included General Ledger, Payables, Purchasing, 

Inventory, and Order Management.  eProcurement was also 

implemented. 

 

OneBeacon Insurance 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM upgrade to 9.2, responsible for 

General Ledger.  Activities included upgrading test scripts and 

training materials and supporting test phases. 

 

Trustmark 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM implementation project.  General 

Ledger Lead responsible for leading all phases implementation from 

requirements through deployment.  For Wave 1, General Ledger was 

a pass-through for the journal entries from the sub-modules and 

interfaced to the legacy General Ledger.  Completed the set up of 

base tables, including Setid, Business Units, Ledgers, Chartfield, 

Combination Editing and various miscellaneous shared resource 

tables.  This implementation included General Ledger, Payables, 

Asset Management, Project Costing, Expenses, eProcurement, 

Purchasing and Supplier Contract Management as well as HCM. 

 

Providence Equity Partners 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM implementation project.   Completed 

initial set up for translation and revaluation. 

 

UMB Financial Corp (UMB 

Bank) 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM and HCM implementation project.   

General Ledger Consultant responsible for requirements, fit/gap 

design, development testing and cutover activities.  Directed client 

on mapping procedures, specifically those related to intercompany, 

investment and equity earnings accounts.  Designed and configured 

General Ledger functionality including, ADB, Consolidation and 

Equitization.  This was part of an implementation of General Ledger, 

Payables, Asset Management, Project Costing and Procurement. 

 

The Nasdaq Stock Market 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for international deployment of PS FSCM.  Financials 

Consultant responsible for designing, constructing and deploying 

international set up for General Ledger and Payables.  This set up was 

done for VAT and multicurrency processing, including revaluation and 

translation. 

 

Apollo Management 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.0 implementation. Financials Consultant 

responsible for the construction and deployment of Payables as part of a 

global Financials implementation including General Ledger, Expenses and 

Asset Management.  Also assisted in troubleshooting issues related to 

General Ledger set up.  Assisted Project Manager in creating and managing 

task lists for mission critical deadlines most often related to the General 

Attachment 1, Page 49 of 89

Attachment 1
62 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 50 

Ledger. 

 

FINRA 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM and HCM upgrade project. General 

Ledger/Payables Lead responsible for all functional tasks in support of an 

upgrade from 8.0 to 8.9.  Modules being upgraded included: General Ledger, 

Payables, Purchasing, Asset Management, Receivables and Billing as well as 

HCM.  Responsible for customization analysis, test planning and execution, 

training plans and documentation. 

 

AMERIGROUP 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM upgrade project. Financials Team Lead and 

General Ledger resource for an upgrade.  Modules included: Purchasing, 

Payables, Asset Management and General Ledger.  Delivered fit/gap 

requirements document and Conceptual Solution Design document. 

 

Goldman Sachs 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 8.9 implementation project. General Ledger 

Consultant for a global multinational fit/gap analysis. International locations 

included: Hong Kong, Japan, England, France and Italy.  Delivered fit/gap 

requirements document and customizations document. 

 

Federal Aviation 

Administration 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 8.8 upgrade project. Fit/Gap Team Lead for 

an upgrade from 7.0 to 8.8.  Identified customizations that could be replaced 

with new functionality.  Delivered fit/gap document and Upgrade Approach 

document, including options for upgrade or reimplementation.  

 

ICG Commerce 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 8.8 upgrade project.  General Ledger and 

Payables Lead for a fit/gap analysis for an upgrade from PeopleSoft 7.5 to 

8.8.  Identified customizations that could be replaced with new functionality 

and defined business process changes required in PeopleSoft 8.8.  Performed 

and documented fit/gap analysis for FSCM functionality. 

 

 

Education: 

PeopleSoft: PeopleTools I & II, General Ledger, Payables, Commitment Control, Query/Crystal Power 

Combo, Inventory 

BS, Business Management and Marketing, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY 

Certification:  Certified Public Accountant 

  

Attachment 1, Page 50 of 89

Attachment 1
63 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 51 

 

Brett T. 

Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM 

 

Brett has over 30 years of Information Technology experience. He has extensive experience in 

leading upgrades and implementations, Financial Systems, fit/gap analysis, and Financial data 

analysis.  He is skilled at assessing client needs and recommending strategies that enhance 

efficiency and maximize system performance for the client.  An experienced facilitator, he excels 

at leading group discussions and in facilitating group decision-making.  His area of deep 

experience include Project Costing, Grants, Maintenance Management, and Billing/Accounts 

Receivable. He has performed system design and analysis, and has supervised appropriate 

system modifications.  Brett has served in a supervisory role for post-production activities and 

on-going support. He has developed and implemented new financial system policies and 

procedures, and has trained staff.  Brett has experience in both public and private sectors. 

 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Applications: Project Costing, Program Mgt, Resource Mgt, Billing, Accounts Receivable, Cash 

Mgt, Travel & Expenses 

Releases:  3x through 9.2 

Reporting:  Query, BI Publisher 

Technical:  Security/Compliance 

 

 

Representative  Projects: 

Boston College 

 

Upgrade 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 upgrade 

project.  Responsible for Project Costing (PC) 

/ Customer Contracts (CA) / Billing (BI) / 

Receivables (AR) / Grants (GM). Worked 

with client to review which new features 

would be rolled out, and updated 

configuration to support new 9.2 features.  

Updated test scripts and managed Integration 

and User Acceptance testing. Completed 

Functional Upgrade Tasks and documented 

business process changes impacts. Prepared 

the client for rollout new features and 

functions during go live. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 51 of 89

Attachment 1
64 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 52 

Pepperdine University 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2.  

Conducted fit/gap and demo for PS Program 

Mgt functionality. Gathered requirements, 

reviewed new features available in 9.2, and 

customized a 9.2 Program Management 

Demo. 

 

OPPD 

 

Reimplementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 

Assessment and Reimplementation project.  

Responsible for Project Costing.  Reviewed 

new features available in 9.2 to implement.  

Document which customizations need to stay 

or be replaced as part of 9.2. Created a 

timeline project plan. Analyze / Document 

current configuration looking for redesign 

opportunities. Identified future system 

requirements. Implemented new functions 

from Program Management to support Project 

Requests. Delivered redesigned system. 

Provided post production support 

First Citizens Bank 

 

Reimplementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 

reimplementation project, responsible for 

Travel and Expenses. Completed a system 

review of previous implementation 

configuration. Provided Travel and Expenses 

overview to help identify and solve business 

problems. Provided end user support during 

UAT and Go Live. 

 

Transamerica 

 

Upgrade 

Enhancements 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 upgrade, 

responsible for Billing and Accounts 

Receivable. Review new features available in 

9.2, and implemented selected new 

enhancements. Created WorkCenters and 

Home pages. Document which customizations 

need to stay or be replaced as part of 9.2. 

Created and executed test plans. Provided end 

user support during UAT and Go Live. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 52 of 89

Attachment 1
65 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 53 

Artesian Water 

 

Upgrade 

Enhancements 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 upgrade, 

responsible for Project Costing and Cash 

Management. Review new features available 

in 9.2, and implemented selected new 

enhancements 

Created WorkCenter and Home pages. 

Document which customizations need to stay 

or be replaced as part of 9.2. Created and 

executed test plans. Provided end user support 

during UAT and Go Live. 

 

Omaha Power 

 

Upgrade 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 upgrade 

project, responsible for Project Costing, 

Program Management and Billing.  Review 

new features available in 9.2 and document 

which customizations need to stay or be 

replaced as part of 9.2. Created a timeline 

project plan. Presented findings and made 

recommendations on upgrade next steps. 

Identify plan for each customization (Keep / 

Drop / Adjust). Document business processes 

changes.  Create business user training 

documents. Conduct Unit, System, and User 

Acceptance testing. Support go live 

 

Hartford Insurance 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 for Travel 

and Expenses (TE) Implementation project for 

newly acquired Navigators Insurance division, 

followed by rolling out Expenses to Hartford 

and Navigators in the United Kingdom and 

Hong Kong. Converted Navigators data from 

Concur. Gathered requirements for Travel and 

Expenses International and created a T/E 

project plan.  Conducted a Fit/Gap on the 

requirements. Wrote functional specs for 12 

new integration points including Workday and 

AMEX. documented future state. Created 

Rally user test stories. Implemented credit 

card integration with AMEX, and enhanced 

VAT functionality to track and report taxes in 

the UK. Provided Go Live End User Support 

for the UK and Hong Kong 

 

Attachment 1, Page 53 of 89

Attachment 1
66 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 54 

OneBeacon (Intact) 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2, 

supporting 

Treasury / Cash Management / Travel and 

Expenses.  Documented the current Cash 

Management and Expense module business 

process flows. Analyze / Document current 

configuration. Identified future system 

requirements. Document integration 

touchpoints. Created security document. 

Delivered final system overview document 

PA Consulting 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 

implementation of Proposal Management PM 

/ Project Costing (PC) / Customer Contracts 

(CA) / Billing (BI). End user Training on 

process flow from PM > PC > CA > BI. 

Created / Updated User Training.  Executed 

test scripts. Documented business process 

changes impacts. Managed rollout of new 

features and functions during go-live.  Create / 

Update / Resolve / Close trouble tickets. 

Provided Go Live End User Support for the 

USA.  

 

LCRA 

 

Reimplementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 

reimplementation project, responsible for 

Project Costing (PC) / Customer Contracts 

(CA) / Billing (BI) / Receivables (AR). 

Gathered updated requirements and updated 

configuration to support new business 

requirements. Created test scripts, and 

managed Integration and User Acceptance 

testing. Created functional specifications and 

documented business process changes 

impacts. Addressed data integration with 

Maximo, Time & Labor, Payroll, AP, PO, and 

GL Managed rollout of new features and 

functions during go-live. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 54 of 89

Attachment 1
67 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 55 

Provisur 

 

Reimplementation 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 for 

reimplementation project.  Responsible for 

Project Costing (PC) / Customer Contracts 

(CA / Travel and Expenses (TE). Gathered 

updated requirements, and demonstrated the 

enhanced features and functions within 

Project Costing based on a new design.  

Created Fit/Gap and RICE Log. Conducted a 

Project Costing Proof of Concept for new 

design. Identified and resolved 

reimplementation issues in AP, CA, and PO. 

Specifically focused on the ability to integrate 

costs from the entire global organization to 

create a total project profitability picture 

including; Labor, Vouchers, Commitments, 

Journal Adjustments, and Expenses. Created 

test scripts and managed overall global testing 

effort. Created new SOPs.  Executed cutover 

to new system. 

 

Jefferson County School District 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 providing 

support for PS Program Management (PGM). 

Conducted a Program Management Proof of 

Concept by creating a mocked up future state 

using customer data.  Demonstrated Program 

Budgets, Program Trees, Dashboards, Tools, 

and Analytics, with specific focus on new 

budgeting available in Program Management. 

 

USAA 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM 9.2 

supporting a Project Costing (PC) and Asset 

Management (AM) Proof of Concept. 

Assessed Project Costing to Asset Mgt 

integration.  Demonstrated the features and 

functions within Project Costing. Specific 

focus on the ability to create assets from costs 

stored in Project Costing 

 

Kaiser Permanente 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead for Peoplesoft FSCM 9.2.  

Assisted with multiple Project Costing 

Projects.  Gathered requirements related to 

Manager Transaction Review (MTR) in 

Project Costing, and configured for pilot 

project.  Documented Project Costing 

configuration changes to support MTR. 

Preesented possible Resource Management 

solution for the IT group 

 

Attachment 1, Page 55 of 89

Attachment 1
68 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 56 

State of Ohio 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, 

focused on Project Costing (PC) / Customer 

Contracts (CA) / Grants (GA). Analyzed 

current customer configuration of Project ID 

as a chartfield. Created test cases to test 

current state against future state. Configured 

future state Project Costing and Grants. 

Executed testing of Procure to Pay process 

(Current State). Executed testing of Procure to 

Pay process (Future State). Created business 

process maps. Tested Grants integration with 

Project Costing / Contracts / Budgets.  

Analyzed the impact of enabling Grants and 

Project Costing across the enterprise. Created 

Project ID impact analysis document. 

Presented findings to State stakeholders 

 

inVentiv 

 

Support 

Functional Lead for PS FSCM for Asset 

Management support. Setup new book in AM 

to support 50% asset sale. Loaded new book 

data through Component Interface.  Tested 

asset book build (Unit / System test). 

Processed assets through month close to 

verify data for UAT testing. Presented new 

configuration to IT and business team for final 

approval 

 

Sutherland Global 

 

Enhancements 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2 

for Proof of Concept of PS Resource Mgt. 

Setup Project Costing / Customer Contracts / 

Resource Management in PeopleSoft to 

support the Conference Room Pilots (3). 

Translated existing requirements into a 

working configuration. Built new 9.2 business 

process flows. Created Business process 

mapping legacy to PeopleSoft Resource 

Management.  Configured scenarios to prove 

the new 9.2 functionality during CRPs. 

Documented future processes and pros and 

cons of new design elements and presented to 

IT and business team 

 

CGI 

 

Reimplementation 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2 

for reimplementation project. Responsible for 

Project Costing (PC) / Customer Contracts 

(CA) / Billing (BI) / Travel and Expenses 

(TE).  Setup PC / CA / TE in PeopleSoft to 

support the Conference Room Pilots (3). 

Gathered requirements for PC / CA / TE. 

Attachment 1, Page 56 of 89

Attachment 1
69 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 57 

Updated PC / CA process flows to reflect new 

9.2 features and business processes. Created 

scenarios to prove the new 9.2 functionality 

during CRPs. Configured 9.2 ESA to 

demonstrated ESA through 50+ scenarios. 

Created Fit/Gap document, Configuration 

Guide, Design Documents, Business Process 

Maps, and RICE log for PC / CA. Lead 

redesign of project budget process. Presented 

new configuration to global advisory board. 

 

Appian 

 

Implementation (multiple) 

Functional Lead/Project Mgr for PeopleSoft 

FSCM 9.2 projects.  Led Global Expenses 

rollout.  Gathered Expense requirements, and 

Configured, Tested, and Rolled out Travel and 

Expenses to support time and expense 

processing for ITA/FRA/UK/DEU/AUS 

 

Led Vertex implementation with PeopleSoft 

Contracts & Billing.  Worked with Vertex and 

the technical team to get Vertex installed. 

Updated PeopleSoft configuration in 

Customers & CA & BI to support Vertex 

calculation of taxes. Created testing guide and 

facilitated global testing. Created cutover 

guide to support deployment. 

 

Allegis Group 

 

Reengineering 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2 

for Proof of Concept project with Project 

Costing Program Mgt, Resource Mgt, and 

Proposal Mgt.  Created design documents for 

PGM / PC.  Configured PGM / RM / PC / PM 

in PeopleSoft for use case review.  Created 

40+ Use Case documents which included 

Assumptions / Requirements / Current State / 

Future State / Actor / Actions.  Presented to be 

business process maps. Executed Use Cases 

for multiple different constituencies and 

documented findings.  Prepared an executive 

overview for Executive Management which 

resulted in large multiple year 

reimplementation 

 

Covanta 

 

Enhancements (multiple projects) 

 

Functional Lead for PeopleSoft FSCM, 

responsible for AP, PO, EX , IN, AM, MM, 

GL, PC.  For a Maintenance Management 

project, addressed Multi- Currency setup and 

testing via a rapid 6 week project to 

implement Canadian Dollars and Euros to 

Attachment 1, Page 57 of 89

Attachment 1
70 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 58 

support global MM rollout.  Configured 

multiple new business units in 

AP/PO/EX/INV/AM/MM/GL/PC to support 

operations in Canada and Europe. Updated 

documentation to reflect new global design. 

Created 100+ test scripts to validate 

CAD/EUR throughout supply change. 

Managed User Acceptance testing for the new 

design 

 

Conducted analysis project for Project 

Costing and Contracts.  Analyzed Project 

Costing/Contracts changes in 9.2 and 

documented new features to support future 

upgrade options and assessed how 

customizations would be impacted by 

upgrading to 9.2. Setup a pilot to show the 

interface between Microsoft Project and 

PeopleSoft Project Costing. 

 

Conducted conference room pilot for Program 

Management. Designed and configured 

Program Management and conducted pilot to 

identify which features and functions would 

be used in PM. Documented requested 

customizations, recommended business 

process changes and findings of the pilot 

 

Tervita 

 

Multiple Enhancements 

Functional Lead for Peoplesoft FSCM, 

responsible for Project Costing, Contracts, 

Billing and Asset Mgt.  Let reporting project 

for PC and AM - analyzed business 

requirements to find best reporting solutions 

to business process problems.  Solved major 

Asset Management tracking and costing 

problems with better analytic reports. Updated 

AM configuration to allow for accurate asset 

pricing. Created report mockups for approval. 

Defined reporting specifications and worked 

with the development staff to create accurate 

reports. Balanced the financial results of the 

new reports vs. the current system of record. 

 

Led Fit/Gap for PC, Contracts and Billing to 

define requirements and formulated solutions 

to business problems in existing production 

PeopleSoft system. Configured PC/Contracts, 

documented new business processes and 

configuration, analyzed and configured Time 

Attachment 1, Page 58 of 89

Attachment 1
71 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 59 

and Labor Interface to PC, and provided 

Business Analyst training 

 

 

Other PeopleSoft Experience 

Ensco 

Calpine 

Nevada Energy 

Kendle Inc Research 

Norwood Promo Products 

Cherokee Nation Enterprises 

Quintiles 

Wynn Resorts 

State of New Mexico 

Petco 

Metlife 

University of Florida-Gainesville 

Corio Inc 

Charles Schwab 

City of Oklahoma City 

USinternetworking / AT&T 

Romac International 

 

Education: 

Iowa State University - BBA Degree in Finance 

  

 

Attachment 1, Page 59 of 89

Attachment 1
72 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 60 

ALEX M. 
Proposed Role: Business Expert PeopleSoft FSCM 

 

Alex is an experienced FSCM Lead with 30 years of PeopleSoft functional and technical 

background in implementations, upgrades, optimizations and production support for clients in 

multiple industries including government, healthcare, and financial services.   His PeopleSoft 

expertise is primarily focused on Procure to Pay and supporting business processes.  Alex has 

deep expertise in complex client environments working with users for requirements gathering 

and issue resolution as well as design, configuration and testing of PeopleSoft solutions.  He has 

addressed challenging requests involving commitment control, budget checking, multi-

organization, 3rd party systems integration, Fluid UI and approval workflow. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: Release 3 through 9.2 

Applications:  ePro and Purchasing, Payables, Supply Contract Management, Inventory, 

Contracts, eSupplier and eSettlements 

Reporting:  PSQuery, BI Publisher 

Security: PeopleSoft Security 

Technical: Page Composer, AWE, Component Interface, Integration Broker, App Designer, 

PeopleTools 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

 

 

Intact Specialty Solutions 

 

Upgrade and Implementation 

Supply Chain Functional Lead, created use cases, testing (SIT) 

and UAT testing support for PeopleTools 8.58 upgrade.   

 

Supplier Contracts Management Lead – currently 
implementing SCM for procurement of goods and services.  
Customer is currently using Ariba which is not integrated with 
their ERP.  This project is expected to create significant savings 
for the organization. 

•  

Attachment 1, Page 60 of 89

Attachment 1
73 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 61 

Hennepin County Hospital 

 

Implementation 

• Functional/Technical Lead (PeopleSoft 9.2) for the 

implementation of the Supplier Contracts module. Project Planning. 

Fit-Gap Analysis, Design & Build. Test planning, development, and 

execution. Working with business community to facilitate 

participation in UAT. Go-live and post go-live support. 

 

 

Nicklaus Children Health 

System 

 

Implementation 

Functional/Technical Lead for the PS Upgrade of the Financials 

modules. Responsible for the Purchasing, Inventory, Project Costing, 

Commitment Control modules. Test planning, development, and 

execution. Working with business community to facilitate 

participation in UAT. Go-live and post go-live support. 

 

Jack Henry & Associates 

 

Implementation 

• Functional Lead for implementation of the eSupplier and 

eSettlements portals. Fit/Gap Analysis, Configuration, Testing and 

Documentation Development. Training Development and delivery to 

customer and Suppliers. Go-Live and Post Go-live Support, 

knowledge transfer and transition to customer support team. 

City of Hope (network of 

hospitals) 

 

BPR/Optimization 

 

• Functional Lead for 9.2 Business Process Reengineering (BPR) 

within Inventory (Replenishment), Procurement (ePro/PO/Supplier 

Contracts/eSupplier/AP, CM) modules; Upgrade and Post Upgrade 

production Support, Inventory Replenishment fix & setup in 

Inventory; Trouble-shooting Voucher EDI interface. Day-to-day 

system stabilization, data cleansing and other improvements. 

•  

Seattle Cancer Care Alliance 

 

Implementation 

Functional Lead PeopleSoft 9.2 FSCM. 

Supplier Contracts module Implementation and migration from 

legacy document management software (CONGA). Integration with 

Procurement and Contracts. Production support of the Supply Chain  

University of CA Berkeley 

 

Production Support 

Functional Lead for implementation of PeopleSoft  9.2 

SCM/AP/PO/AM/GL/ePro Production support for the University 

finance department. Supplier management/on-boarding. 

Implementation of the eSupplier portal. Maintenance of multiple 

Voucher EDI interfaces and AP/PO (Voucher Build & Matching) 

production support 

Additional PeopleSoft Projects: 

• Savanah River Nuclear Solutions (DOE site) 

• Washington Metro Transit Authority 

• University System of GA 

Attachment 1, Page 61 of 89

Attachment 1
74 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 62 

• US House of Representatives 

• Vistana 

• Kaiser Permanente 

• Freddie Mac 

• State of WI 

• Genuine Parts 

• Covanta Energy 

• UVA Medical Center 

• InterContinental Hotel Group 

• Hilton 

• City University of NY 

• The Children’s Hospital 

• Bank for International Settlements 

• Quest Diagnostics 

 

Education: 

Kiev Institute of Technology, Electrical Engineering  

Georgia Institute of Technology, Computer Science 

 

  

Attachment 1, Page 62 of 89

Attachment 1
75 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 63 

 

Pam K. 

Proposed Role: PeopleSoft Certified Technical Developer 

 

Pam is a Senior Technical Consultant with expertise in all technical aspects of PeopleSoft and an 

in-depth understanding of PeopleSoft’s architecture, with 29+ years of extensive functional and 

technical experience in implementation, upgrade, development, customization and production 

support of PeopleSoft Financials CRM, and HCM.  She is an expert in PeopleSoft technology, 

including PeopleTools, Integration Broker, Data Migration Workbench, Event Mapping, iScripts, 

Application Packages, Component Interface, App Engine, Approval Framework and Change 

Assistant.  Her report development background includes BI Publisher and SQR.  Pam started her 

PeopleSoft career working in the development organization at PeopleSoft. 

 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: All releases since 1x, including 8 through 9.2 

PeopleTools:  Application Designer, PeopleCode, Approval Framework, Workflow, Utilities, 

DataMover, Change Assistant 

Integration: Integration Broker, Component Interfaces, Application Engine, File Layouts, SQR 

Security: PeopleSoft Security 

Reporting:  BI Publisher, Query 

 

 

Technical: 

Databases: Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server, DB2 

Programming Languages: PL/SQL, Java, COBOL, SQR 

Operating Systems: UNIX, Windows 

Web Technology: Portal technology, Serverless Architecture, XML, SOAP, XSLT, HTML, 

PHP 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

Hancock Whitney Bank 

 

Support 

Functional Lead & Technical Developer for PeopleTools 

8.61 and Image 50 upgrade of PS FSCM.  Modules included 

GL, AP, AM, EX and ePro.  Responsible for retrofits of all 

client customizations.  Provided functional support of 

regression, systems and user testing. 

 

Functional Lead & Technical developer supporting production 

and non-production environments, including issue resolution 

and custom development.  Applications include: GL, AP, AM, 

EX, and ePro. 

Artesian Water Company 

 

Upgrade 

Support 

Functional Lead & Technical developer supporting 

production and non-production environments, including issue 

resolution and custom development.   Applications include: GL, 

AP, AM, PO, IN, PC and CM. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 63 of 89

Attachment 1
76 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 64 

Government of Yukon 

 

Support 

Technical developer supporting production and non-production 

environments, including security patching, tax updates, issue 

resolution and custom development.  Applications include: HR, 

Benefits, Payroll, Time & Labor. 

Herff Jones 

 

Reengineering 

 

Functional Lead and Technical Developer for reengineering 

project to segregate 2 organizations due to divestiture, enabling 

both to operate in a dual tenancy PS environment.  Responsible 

for application design and configuration, conversion design and 

development, security design, testing and deployment support.  

Applications included General Ledger, Accounts Payable, 

Accounts Receivable. 

Lifeline Systems 

 

Multiple projects, Support 

 

Functional Lead and Technical Developer for PS FSCM 

Upgrade from 8.9 to 9.1.  Responsible for support of Accounts 

Receivable and Billing modules.   

 

Design and development of custom solution for Medicaid EDI 

billing and authorizations. 

 

Provided general PS system administration and support in 

production. 

 

Environmental Systems 

Products 

 

Multiple projects, Support 

 

Technical Developer responsible for customizations, 

maintenance and user support of PS Financials, Supply Chain 

and CRM applications in SQL Server environment. 

 

Development and maintenance of custom interface for field rep 

service tickets. Download of daily service tickets and routing 

and upload of completed repair data and parts inventory to/from 

handheld devices via integration broker into CRM. 

 

Qualcomm 

 

Independent Consultant 

Technical developer for customizations on Order Management 

and Inventory project. 

Coastal Corporation 

 

Independent Consultant 

Technical Developer on Project Costing to Asset Management 

interface for tax cost adjustments for FERC.  Added group asset 

transfer functionality and modifications to depreciation SQR for 

group asset processing. 

 

PeopleSoft 

 

Development Team Asset 

Management 

PeopleSoft Asset Management v5.0 – Multiple platforms 

Developed and maintained complex SQR programs for batch 

updating and reporting. 

 

Product support, as lead analyst for Asset Management, and 

secondary support for GL, AP and Tools 

 

 

 

Education: 

Attachment 1, Page 64 of 89

Attachment 1
77 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 65 

Business Education Institute – Certificate in Information Technology 1980 

 

Peoplesoft Training General Ledger I & II, PeopleTools I & II, Asset Management Accounts 

Payable, nVision, Application Engine   

 

Oracle Training DBA classes 

 

 

  

Attachment 1, Page 65 of 89

Attachment 1
78 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 66 

Karthik S. 

Proposed Role: PeopleSoft Certified Technical Developer 

 

Karthik is a Senior Technical Consultant with expertise in all technical aspects of PeopleSoft and 

an in-depth understanding of PeopleSoft’s architecture, with 20+ years of extensive functional 

and technical experience in Implementation, Upgrade, Development, Customization and 

Production Support of PeopleSoft Financials, HCM and Campus Solutions.  He is an expert in 

PeopleSoft technology, including PeopleTools, Integration Broker, Data Migration Workbench, 

Event Mapping, iScripts, Application Packages, Component Interface, App Engine, Approval 

Framework, SOAP messaging, and Change Assistant.  His report development background 

includes BI Publisher, SQR, and Crystal.  Karthik has additional technical expertise in jQuery, 

PHIRE, NEWMERIX, Tableau, Remedy, Amazon Cloud, Azure Cloud, iOS and Blockchain 

POCs using Hyperledger, Stellar, and Solidity Frameworks.  His recent experience includes 

automating processing of incoming invoice PDFs by implementing AI-driven OCR technology.  

He extracted data from the PDF’s data elements and used the result to input directly into ERP, 

eliminating the need for manual data entry and validation. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: 7x, 8, 8.3, 8.4, 8.8, 8.9, 9.0, 9.1, 9.2 

PeopleTools:  Application Designer, PeopleCode, Approval Framework, Workflow, Utilities, 

DataMover, Change Assistant, Data Migration Workbench  

Integration: Integration Broker, Component Interfaces, Application Engine, File Layouts, SQR 

Security: PeopleSoft Security 

Reporting:  BI Publisher, Query 

 

Technical: 

Databases: Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server 

Programming Languages: PL/SQL, Java, Node JS 

Operating Systems: UNIX, Windows 

Web Technology: Portal technology, Serverless Architecture, React JS, XML, SOAP, XSLT, 

HTML, JavaScript, CSS, PHP 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

Government of Yukon 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

Technical Developer for PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, new PUM 

Image 44, and implementation of Fluid UI and other 

enhancements. Responsible for technical retrofit of 

customizations and provided technical support during system 

testing. Applications include: HR, Benefits, Payroll, Time & 

Labor. 

 

University of Connecticut 

 

Upgrade/ Support 

PeopleSoft Campus 9.2/ Peopletools 8.6, Oracle Database 

Technical Developer for PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, new PUM 

Image and implementation of several custom Campus modules. 

Responsible for retrofits, and implemented several REST 

webesrvices between CS and 3rd party providers. Worked on 

several Activity guides for students and faculties. Applications 

Attachment 1, Page 66 of 89

Attachment 1
79 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 67 

include: Student Financials, Student Records, Curriculum 

Management, Academic Advising 

Juilliard School 

 

Implementation 

PeopleSoft Campus 9.2/ Peopletools 8.56, Oracle Database 

Technical Developer for Campus 9.2 Implementation. Worked 

on several 3rd party integrations like StarRez (a Cloud based 

community management system), CCURE, Oracle Cloud GL, 

RMS (Recital Management System) Applications include: 

Student Financials, Student Records, Curriculum Management, 

Academic Advising 

Herff Jones 

 

Reengineering 

 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.2, Oracle Database 

Technical Developer for reengineering project to segregate 2 

organizations due to divestiture, enabling both to operate in a 

dual tenancy PS environment.  Responsible for data conversion 

programs to transform open AP and AR transactions during the 

transition.  Applications included General Ledger, Accounts 

Payable, Accounts Receivable. 

 

Lifeline Systems 

 

Development 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

Development and optimization:  Automated claims purge 

process by modifying existing SQR to read input files from 

shared location, and create summary output report for business 

to verify. Create job from current manual On-hold release 

process, enabling FinOps team to process on-holds by 

providing input file to a shared location as input to a daily 

scheduled job. Automated loading of authorization data by 

modifying existing SQR  to read input files from shared 

location, and create output report of all successfully added 

authorizations and errors. 

 

Transcontinental 

 

Upgrade 

 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.2, Oracle Database 

Technical Developer for PeopleSoft 9.1 to 9.2 and PeopleTools 

8.59 upgrade, including implementation of Fluid UI and several 

enhancements.  Responsible for technical retrofit of 

customizations and provided technical support during system 

testing. Applications upgraded include: General Ledger, 

Payables, Asset Management, Purchasing and 

Receivables/Billing. 

 

Artesian Water Company 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle 

Technical developer on PeopleTools upgrade of PS FSCM from 

8.57 to 8.58 and PUM Image 38.  Responsible for technical 

retrofit of customizations.  Developed custom solutions to 

address business pain points with Payables ACH File Layout, 

Inventory locations, Purchasing Item maintenance and Project 

Costing Reports. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 67 of 89

Attachment 1
80 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 68 

North Dakota State 

University 

 

Implementation 

PeopleSoft HR 9.2/ Peopletools 8.57 Recruiting Module  

Technical developer on implementation of Recruiting Module. 

Responsible for building (Fluid UI) complex scheduling 

module to allow recruiters to send interview dates to applicants. 

Worked on Dropzone configuration, Page and Field 

Configurator, Event Mapping etc to reduce customization to 

delivered objects. Built REST Integration with Twilio to send 

text alerts to candidates on Job Offer, Interview Schedules, etc 

 

Westchester Community 

College 

 

Implementation 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle 

Technical developer on implementation of eProcurement and 

Asset Management plus Payables workflow.   Developed 

custom solutions for complex workflow routing rules. 

 

Hancock Bank 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle 

Technical developer on PeopleTools upgrade of PS FSCM from 

8.57 to 8.58 and PUM Image 36.  Responsible for technical 

retrofit of customizations.   

 

Advantage 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft FSCM & HCM 9.2, Oracle 

Technical developer on upgrade of PS HCM and FSCM from 

8.9 to 9.2 and Peopletools from 8.47 to 8.55.  Developed 

multiple integrations between PeopleSoft Staffing/Finance and 

Erecruit VMS vendor. Implemented SSO authentication 

between erecruit (Azure cloud) and PeopleSoft using RPS 

setup. Built a custom Rapid Time Entry page and custom 

payroll processing dashboard.  Retrofitted 8.9 objects to 9.2 

System in Billing, AR and AP modules. Rewrote Crystal 

Report Check printing as BI Publisher in PeopleSoft AP.  

Architected integration between PeopleSoft HR and Symmetry 

for real time tax information.  Developed integration between 

PeopleSoft Staffing/Finance and recruiting vendor using Azure 

bus. Integrated PeopleSoft to their company portal. 

 

Grant Thornton 

 

Special Project 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

Developed BI Publisher solution using eText templates to 

support extracting data from customer PeopleSoft GL, AP, 

Purchasing, Asset Mgt and Inventory modules.  Also wrote 

alternative SQL-based extract solutions for both Oracle and 

SQL Server customers. 

 

Harvard University 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft Campus 9.2/ Peopletools 8.56, Oracle Database 

Technical developer on project to implement PS Campus 

Solutions for different schools within Harvard and brought 

them under PeopleSoft Campus system. This was a large scale 

project with multiple stake holders, huge complexity and 

competing priorities and the need to build complex custom 

systems.  Architected AAWS (Admissions Applications Web 

Service) framework, created several custom PS modules, 

Attachment 1, Page 68 of 89

Attachment 1
81 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 69 

developed REST-based integration with internal and external 

systems, created custom reporting solution, implemented CAF 

framework for questionnaires, configured workflow, and 

developed various custom PeopleTools enhancements. 

 

 

 

 

North Dakota State 

University 

 

Implementation 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, Oracle 

Technical developer on implementation of PS 9.2 Recruiting 

Solutions.  Architected the module end to end (with Fluid 

development).  Built a complex scheduling module. Developed 

integrations with Sterling background screening system and 

Twilio alerts system. Leveraged new tools such as dropzones, 

page and field configurator and event mapping.  Collaborated 

with business team on AWE workflow configuration. 

Staffmark 

 

Support 

PeopleSoft FSCM, EPM and HCM 9.0, Oracle 

Technical developer for enhancements. Architected integration 

between PeopleSoft Finance and CallEmAll vendor.  

Architected integration between PeopleSoft Finance and Fyre 

Vendor to streamline integrations with different vendor 

management systems like IQN, Beeline, Fieldglass, etc. 

 

State Street Corporation 

 

Implementation, Support 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2 , Oracle Taleo 

Technical architect for PeopleSoft HCM and Taleo.  

Architected and built 20+ integrations between Taleo and 

PeopleSoft.   Built a framework using iScript -jQuery 

integration to address PeopleSoft Compensation grid 

performance issue to reduce processing time on a complex grid 

from 30 seconds to under 3 seconds, resulting in over $100,000 

savings to the client.  Implemented 9.2 Compensation module 

on 8.53 Peopletools.  Created Payroll Process Automation 

dashboard.  Designed the architecture and configured third 

party TAM integration using PeopleSoft Integration Broker and 

iScripts. Increased the performance of XML publisher reports 

by integrating Java Apache POI libraries. Implemented Canada 

Payroll GL Interface. Set up Online Check printing in Payroll 

using BI Publisher. Configured existing and created Integration 

Broker messages between HCM and ELM, and HR and eComp.  

Implemented CA Siteminder SSO. 

 

Brandeis University 

 

Support 

PeopleSoft HCM, EPM and Campus Solutions 9.0, Oracle 

Technical developer for enhancements.  Implemented MFA 

(Duo/ Shib) to login to PeopleSoft applications. Architected 

integration between PeopleSoft EPM and Brandeis Web portal 

to enable employees/ students access their PeopleSoft  HR/ 

Campus portals through mobile devices. Worked on Tableau in 

bringing data from the EPM data warehouse. Converted alumni 

data from their legacy Alumni system to PeopleSoft EPM. 

Attachment 1, Page 69 of 89

Attachment 1
82 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 70 

 

PepsiCo 

 

Support 

PeopleSoft HCM 

Technical developer supporting PS HCM upgrade.  Custom 

development of various enhancements, leveraging Integration 

Broker, App Engine, Component Interface, File Layout, 

PeopleTools, and SQR. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Education:  

Harvard University Extension School 

Master of Liberal Arts in Extension Studies, Information Technology, Information Management 

Systems  

 

Madras University  

Bachelor of Technology, Information Technology  

  

Attachment 1, Page 70 of 89

Attachment 1
83 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 71 

BRIAN T. 

Proposed Role: PeopleSoft Systems Administrator, Upgrader, Developer 

 

Brian is a Senior Technical Consultant with expertise in all technical infrastructure aspects of 

PeopleSoft and an in-depth understanding of PeopleSoft’s architecture .  He has 25 years of 

PeopleSoft upgrade experience, serving as the Technical Lead/Upgrader for multiple projects 

with responsibilities for executing the initial pass, all test moves, reapplying customizations and 

production cutover, as well as leading all technical activities surrounding the upgrade (SSL, 

implementing search facilities, etc).  His responsibilities have included application and technical 

upgrades, implementations, installations, custom application development, interfacing, data 

conversions, fit/gap assessments for the infrastructure, and server architecture planning into 

PeopleSoft and other enterprise applications.  Brian has designed and developed comprehensive 

system architectures for PeopleSoft in conjunction with upgrades and has implemented a variety 

of customizations to PeopleSoft applications.  He closely collaborates with internal and external 

resources to identify and document technical requirements and processes and provides front end 

project planning and strategy documentation to project ending knowledge transfer documentation 

and training. 

 

PeopleSoft: 

Releases: all from 5x through 9.2 

PeopleTools:  Application Designer, PeopleCode, Workflow, Utilities, DataMover, Change 

Assistant, PeopleTools DPK 

Integration: Integration Broker, Component Interfaces, Application Engine, File Layouts, 

Forms (Supplemental Data), SQR 

Security: PeopleSoft Security, LDAP Integration, Single Sign-on, SSL 

Reporting:  BI Publisher, REN Server, Query, Crystal Reports, Forms  

Infrastructure:  Application Server, Process Scheduler, Web Server, File Server, Portal, 

Performance Tuning, High Availability – WebLogic and App Server Clustering, Search Servers 

(SES and Elasticsearch), Portal Technology, Cloud Technology, PeopleSoft Update Manager 

(PUM), Kibana 

 

Technical: 

Databases: Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server, Informix 

Programming Languages:  PeopleCode, SQL, PL/SQL, TransactSQL, DTS, SQR, Perl, 

COBOL, Java, Visual Basic, VBA, VB.Net, C#, Unix/Linux Shell Scripting (various), DOS 

Batch scripting  

Operating Systems: Windows, Linux, UNIX 

Web Technology: Portal Technology, Cloud Technologies, XML, SOAP, HTML, DHTML, 

XHTML, CSS, XSLT, ASP, ASP.Net, JavaScript 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

Hancock Bank 

 

Multiple Upgrades 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for PeopleTools 8.61 and Image 50.   

Oversight for all non-production installations and configuration 

Attachment 1, Page 71 of 89

Attachment 1
84 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 72 

of all non-production application server, web server and 

scheduler domains as well as production.  Executed all upgrade 

passes and production cutover. 

 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for PeopleTools 8.59.   Oversight for all 

non-production installations and configuration of all non-

production application server, web server and scheduler domains 

as well as production.  Executed all upgrade passes and 

production cutover. 

 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

Most recent work included upgrading to PeopleTools 8.58 along 

with the latest PUM Image for PS FSCM.  Oversight for all non-

production installations and configuration of all non-production 

application server, web server and scheduler domains as well as 

production.  Provided knowledge transfer and consultation to 

customer for production installations and domain configurations.  

Executed all upgrade passes and production cutover. 

 

Previously performed patching of PeopleTools 8.56 for PS 

FSCM, and other upgrade engagements.  Provided knowledge 

transfer and consultation to customer for production installations 

and domain configurations.  Executed initial upgrade pass, 

oversaw test move to production, provided on-call assistance for 

and during production cutover. 

 

Technical developer supporting production and non-production 

environments, including issue resolution and custom 

development. 

Government of Yukon 

 

Upgrade and Support 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, new PUM 

Image 44, and implementation of Fluid UI and other 

enhancements. Performed all installations, created and 

configured all application server, web server and scheduler 

domains and resolved infrastructure issues (load balancing, SSL, 

firewall, performance).  Conducted multiple upgrade passes and 

facilitated cutover planning.  Applications include: HR, Benefits, 

Payroll, Time & Labor. 

 

Technical developer supporting production and non-production 

environments, including security patching, tax updates, issue 

resolution and custom development. 

Transcontinental 

 

Multiple Upgrades 

 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for PeopleTools 8.60 upgrade, plus 

implementation of Fluid UI and other enhancements. Performed 

all installations, created and configured all application server, 

web server and scheduler domains and resolved infrastructure 

issues (load balancing, SSL, firewall, performance).  Conducted 

Attachment 1, Page 72 of 89

Attachment 1
85 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 73 

multiple upgrade passes and facilitated cutover planning. 

Applications include: HR, Benefits, Payroll, Time & Labor. 

 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for PeopleSoft 9.1 to 9.2 and PeopleTools 

8.59 upgrade, including implementation of Fluid UI and several 

enhancements.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all application server, web server and scheduler 

domains and resolved infrastructure issues (load balancing, SSL, 

firewall, performance).  Conducted multiple upgrade passes and 

facilitated cutover planning. Applications upgraded include: 

General Ledger, Payables, Asset Management, Purchasing and 

Receivables/Billing. 

 

Intact/OneBeacon 

Insurance  

 

 Multiple Upgrades 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.60 Upgrade. Performed all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains. 

 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.58 Upgrade. Performed all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains. 

 

PeopleSoft Administrator for SSL and Tools upgrade patch 

project.  Performed setup, migration, testing, documentation and 

post-go live support of SSL for Test and Production servers.  

Also applied a critical PeopleTools patch and provided 

migration, testing and production support.  

 

Brown Brothers 

Harriman 

 

 Multiple Upgrades 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.60 Upgrade. Performed all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains and resolved infrastructure issues.   

 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.58 Upgrade. Performed all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains and resolved infrastructure issues.   

 

Artesian Water 

Company 

 

 Multiple Upgrades 

And Support 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.60 Upgrade.  Performed all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains and resolved infrastructure issues.  

Conducted multiple upgrade passes and facilitated cutover 

planning. 

 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for Tools 8.58 Upgrade & PUM38 update. 

Performed all installations, created and configured all 

Attachment 1, Page 73 of 89

Attachment 1
86 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 74 

application server, web server and scheduler domains and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Conducted multiple upgrade 

passes and facilitated cutover planning. 

 

Technical developer supporting production and non-production 

environments, including security patching, issue resolution and 

custom development. 

Boston College 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft FSCM 9.1 to 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Upgrader for this complex Financial/Supply Chain 

upgrade of 10 modules.  Performed all installations and 

configurations of production and non-production instances. 

Orchestrated re-application of existing customizations and 

several enhancements which eliminated customizations.  

Conducted knowledge transfer sessions to BC technical staff 

unfamiliar with supporting the new tools and 9.2 architecture.  

Due to the stay at home order presented from COVID-19, 

performed all production cutover tasks remotely, and on-time, 

utilizing a highly detailed cutover plan and frequent 

communication methods to keep Executive, technical and 

business staff engaged remotely.  

 

AmeriTrust Group 

 

Maintenance/Support 

PeopleSoft FSFCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

Responsible for reviewing the refresh process, completing a 

refresh of a non-production environment with a current copy of 

Production FSCM 9.2, provide knowledge transfer on manual 

configuration changes required during a refresh, development 

and delivery of scripts to automate much of the refresh process, 

complete a second refresh with AmeriTrust team using the 

automated scripts. 

 

Additional knowledge transfer was provided on the PeopleSoft 

architecture (high-level), the role of PUM environments and the 

process of downloading and installing a PUM environment. 

 

Boston Water and Sewer 

Commission 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1 to 9.2, Oracle Database 

Responsible for installing PeopleTools 8.56 and HCM 9.2.  

Performed all non-production installations.  Created and 

configured all non-production application server, web server and 

scheduler domains.  Provided knowledge transfer and 

consultation to customer for production installations and domain 

configurations.  Executed all upgrade passes and production 

cutover. 

 

Pacific Life Insurance 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.1 to 9.2, Oracle Database 

Responsible for installing PeopleTools 8.54 and FSCM 9.2 

across Linux and Windows servers.  Performed all non-

production installations.  Created and configured all non-

production application server, web server and scheduler 

domains.  Provided knowledge transfer and consultation to 

Attachment 1, Page 74 of 89

Attachment 1
87 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 75 

customer for production installations and domain configurations.  

Executed all upgrade passes. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Upgrade, Administration, 

Integration Development 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading PeopleTools from 8.51 to 8.54.  

Performed all installations, created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed three test upgrade 

passes and the production cutover.  Provided direction on 

integration efforts between HR/Payroll 9.1 and ELM 9.2, and 

(while evaluating the product) Portal 9.1. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Implementation, 

Administration, 

Integration Development 

PeopleSoft ELM 9.2, Oracle Database 

Responsible for implementing new Demo, Dev, Test, UAT and 

Production Enterprise Learning 9.2 environments on 

PeopleTools 8.54.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all new databases, application servers, web servers 

and scheduler domains.  Resolved infrastructure issues as they 

arose.  Provided assistance and direction on integration efforts 

between ELM 9.2 and HR/Payroll 9.1, and (while evaluating the 

product) Portal 9.1. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Implementation, 

Administration, 

Integration 

PeopleSoft Portal, Oracle Database 

Responsible for implementing new Demo, Dev, Test, UAT and 

Production Enterprise Learning 9.2 environments on 

PeopleTools 8.54.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all new databases, application servers, web servers 

and scheduler domains.  Resolved infrastructure issues as they 

arose.  Client eventually chose not to use the product. 

 

International Monetary 

Fund 

 

Upgrade 

PeopleSoft Financials 8.9 to 9.2, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading PeopleTools from 8.51 to 8.54 and 

Financials from 8.9 to 9.2.  Executed all upgrade passes.  

Customer performed all installations and other PeopleSoft 

Administrator functions. 

 

Order of Saint Francis 

Healthcare 

 

Conversion, Upgrade, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.2, SQL Server Database 

Responsible for upgrading HR/Payroll 8.8 SP1 to 9.1 and 

PeopleTools to 8.51.  HR 8.8 SP1 database was DB2, and part of 

the effort was to convert to SQL Server.  Performed all 

installations, created and configured all new application servers, 

web servers and scheduler domains.  Executed all database 

conversion and upgrade passes. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 75 of 89

Attachment 1
88 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 76 

Order of Saint Francis 

Healthcare 

 

Upgrade Consultation, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials, SQL Server Database 

Provided assistance, where needed, on upgrade of Financials 8.9 

to 9.1 on PeopleTools 8.51.  FSCM 8.9 database was DB2 and 

part of the effort was to convert to SQL Server.  Provided 

documentation to ensure FSCM installations and configuration 

mirrored what was done on HCM.  Reviewed upgrade logs when 

upgrade abended to aide in resolving issues and ensure upgrade 

could continue. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Upgrade, Administration, 

Lead Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading HR/Payroll from 8.9 to 9.1 and 

PeopleTools from 8.48 to 8.51.  Performed all installations, 

created and configured all application server, web server and 

scheduler domains, and resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed 

all upgrade passes.  Retrofit the majority of client customizations 

into new 9.1 application. 

 

Media General 

 

Major Update, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1 MP5, Oracle Database 

Responsible for updating HR/Payroll from 9.1 to 9.1 MP5.  Part 

of effort was re-hosting on upgraded servers, so also performed 

all installations, created and configured all application server, 

web server and scheduler domains, and resolved infrastructure 

issues.  Executed all update passes. 

 

Media General 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading Financials from 8.9 to 9.1 and 

PeopleTools to 8.51.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all application server, web server and scheduler 

domains, and resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all 

upgrade passes. 

 

Media General 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading HR/Payroll from 8.8 SP1 to 9.1 and 

PeopleTools to 8.51.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all application server, web server and scheduler 

domains, and resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all 

upgrade passes. 

 

Media General 

 

Tools Update, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.1 – PeopleTools 8.49, Oracle 

Database 

Responsible for updating Financials PeopleTools from 8.45 to 

8.49.  Performed all installations, re-created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains, and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all update passes. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 76 of 89

Attachment 1
89 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 77 

Crow Holdings 

 

Upgrade, Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.0, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading Financials from 8.8 to 9.0.  

Performed all installations, created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains, and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all upgrade passes. 

 

Crow Holdings 

 

Tool Update, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 8.8 – PeopleTools 8.49, Oracle 

Database 

Responsible for updating Financials PeopleTools from 8.48 to 

8.49.  Part of effort was re-hosting on new servers, so also 

performed all installations, created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains, and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all update passes. 

 

Crow Holdings 

 

Tool Update, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 8.8 – PeopleTools 8.48, Oracle 

Database 

Responsible for updating Financials PeopleTools from 8.45 to 

8.48.  Part of effort was re-hosting on new servers, so also 

performed all installations, created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains, and 

resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all update passes. 

 

Crow Holdings 

 

Tool Upgrade, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft Financials 8.8 – PeopleTools 8.45, Oracle 

Database 

Responsible for upgrading Financials PeopleTools from 8.42 to 

8.45.  Moving from pre-8.44 to post 8.44 PeopleTools is a 

PeopleTools Upgrade.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all application server, web server and scheduler 

domains, and resolved infrastructure issues.  Executed all 

upgrade passes. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 8.9, Oracle Database 

Responsible for all PeopleSoft Administration, development 

quality assurance and, when required, aiding on conversion 

script development for implementation of HR/Payroll 8.9.  

Performed all installations, created and configured all 

application server, web server and scheduler domains, and 

resolved infrastructure issues. 

 

DLA Piper 

 

Conversion, Upgrade, 

Administration 

PeopleSoft HCM 8.9, SQL Server 

Responsible for upgrading HR/Payroll 8.8 to 8.9 and 

PeopleTools to 8.46.  HR 8.8 database was Informix, and part of 

the effort was to convert to SQL Server.  Performed all 

installations, created and configured all new application servers, 

web servers and scheduler domains.  Executed all database 

conversion and upgrade passes. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 77 of 89

Attachment 1
90 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 78 

Educate, Inc. 

 

Major Update, 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft Financials 8.4, Oracle Database 

Responsible for updating Financials 8.4 to 8.4 MP4 on the tail-

end of an upgrade from 7.5 to 8.4.  Responsible for all 

installations, created and configured all application server, web 

server and scheduler domains, and resolved infrastructure issues.  

Executed MP4 update on all upgrade passes.  Retrofit most 

customizations into new 8.4 application. 

 

Educate, Inc. 

 

Lead Developer 

PeopleSoft Financials, Oracle Database 

Responsible for retrofitting most customizations into new 7.5 

application during an upgrade of Financials from 6.0 to 7.5 and 

PeopleTools to 8.4. 

 

Senior Campus Living 

 

Upgrade, Administration, 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM, Oracle Database 

Responsible for upgrading HR/Payroll from 5.0 to 6.0 and 

PeopleTools to 6.  Performed all installations, created and 

configured all scheduler domains, and resolved infrastructure 

issues.  Executed all upgrade passes.  Retrofit customizations 

into new 7.5 application. 

 

Senior Campus Living 

 

Implementation, 

Administration, Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM, Oracle Database 

Responsible for all installations, scheduler domain creations and 

development of customized objects to handle newly-

standardized processes and forms during implementation of 

HCM 5.0. 

 

 

Additional Projects: 

Erickson Living 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Administrator and Lead Developer responsible for 

development of customizations, changes to architecture and 

domain configuration, evaluation of PeopleTools 8.55 upgrade 

scope, patch application, performance tuning and refreshing 

non-production environments. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft Enterprise Learning 9.2, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Administrator and Lead Developer responsible for 

development of customizations, changes to architecture and 

domain configuration, evaluation of PeopleTools 8.55 upgrade 

scope, patch application, performance tuning and refreshing 

non-production environments. 

 

Order of Saint Francis 

Healthcare 

 

Lead Developer 

PeopleSoft Financials, SQL Server Database 

Research and report customizations within Financials 9.1 

application to client.  Reporting of customizations was done by 

object type and by module – using menu navigation as the 

method for categorizing customs by module. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 78 of 89

Attachment 1
91 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 79 

Media General 

 

Lead Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for applying all tax updates to HR/Payroll 9.1, 

including reapplication of all customizations where applicable. 

 

Media General 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for development and testing of disaster recovery 

process for HR/Payroll 9.1.  Efforts included installation of 

PeopleSoft, PeopleTools and 3rd party software on DR servers, 

development of scheduled batch scripts to keep DR server batch 

content in synch and development of SQL scripts to update 

PeopleSoft database to point to DR servers. 

 

Media General 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft Financials 9.1, Oracle Database 

Responsible for development and testing of disaster recovery 

process for Financials 9.1.  Efforts included installation of 

PeopleSoft, PeopleTools and 3rd party software on DR servers, 

development of scheduled batch scripts to keep DR server batch 

content in synch and development of SQL scripts to update 

PeopleSoft database to point to DR servers. 

 

Erickson Living 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 8.9, Oracle Database 

PeopleSoft Administrator and Lead Developer responsible for 

development of customizations, changes to architecture and 

providing support during unit testing efforts associated with 

implementation of additional Self Service functionality.  Efforts 

also included development of three 100% custom Self Service 

modules. 

 

DLA Piper 

 

Administration, Lead 

Developer 

PeopleSoft HCM 8.9, SQL Server 

Assisted in troubleshooting Workflow setup issues causing 

Workflow behavior inconsistent with desired behavior.  

Identified which PeopleCode programs would need to be 

modified to accommodate desired custom behavior. 

 

 

Education:  

PeopleTools I and II, Best Practices for Customizing PeopleSoft Applications, PeopleSoft 

Integration Tools (Application Engine, Application Engine Tuning and Performance), 

PeopleSoft Application Messaging Administration, PeopleSoft SQL/SQR, PeopleSoft Workflow, 

PeopleSoft Security, PeopleSoft Enterprise Portal, PeopleSoft Server Administration, PeopleSoft 

Upgrades (including best practices), Oracle Database Administration, Oracle SQL and PL/SQL, 

Microsoft SQL Server Database Administration, Data Modeling and Database Design, Core and 

Advanced Development with the Microsoft .NET Framework, Developing ASP.NET Web 

Applications, Visual Studio 

 

BS, Human Resource Management, University of Maryland 

  

Attachment 1, Page 79 of 89

Attachment 1
92 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 80 

Ken F. 

Proposed Role: PeopleSoft Systems Administrator, DBA, 

Cloud Infrastructure & Migration Certified 

 

Note:  May be used depending upon additional needs or category of other services 

 

Ken is a experienced IT professional with 30 years experience in PeopleSoft system 

administration and DBA services across multiple industries.  He has provided hands-on, training, 

and advisory services for upgrades, implementations, support and data/platform migration 

projects. Ken has deep experience in all areas of system administration from database creation, 

upgrade and tuning, virtualization, data archiving, integrations and OCI. 

 

 

 

Technical: 

Applications : PeopleSoft 9.2 HCM, FSCM, Interaction Hub (Portal) 

Databases: Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server 

Programming Languages: COBOL 74, Progress 7.3, Progress 8.0, SQL, C, C++ 

Operating Systems :  DOS, Windows 3.1, Windows 95, Windows 98, Windows NT, Windows 

Terminal Server, Windows 2000, Windows 2003 Enterprise, SCO UNIX, AIX UNIX, OS400, 

Sun Solaris, HP-UX 10.2, HP-UX 11.0  

Software :  MS SQL Server, Oracle 8i through current, Citrix Metaframe, HP Omniback, Front 

Page, PeopleSoft v7.0, 7.5x, 8.x, 9.0, Informix OnLine Dynamic Server, Sybase, PowerBuilder, 

MS Office, MKS Toolkit, MS Mail, MS Exchange, VSI-Fax, Tiny Term, Procomm Plus, 

ERWin, BPWin, Bradmark 

 

 

 

Representative Projects: 

Art Institute of Chicago 

 

Support / Upgrade 

Senior PeopleSoft Admin/Oracle DBA – provide Oracle DBA 

services for managed services client; support current 11g Oracle 

env’s for PeopleSoft HCM92/FSCM92/CS92; installations of 

Oracle 18c and upgrades of existing Oracle 11g databases to 

18c to support PeopleTools upgrade to 8.57; Oracle database 

monitoring, tuning; AIX 7.1 platforms; unix scripting; Provide 

Peoplesoft Admin services for FSCM 9.2, HCM 9.2, CS 9.2 

including PUM installations, PUM updates, Bugs/Patches, 

configurations/architecture for all PIA’s, application servers, 

schedulers, DMZ servers for modules such as Self-Service and 

Candidate Gateway.  Provide Oracle 19c upgrades/CPU 

patching/ ASM upgrades and patching. 

 

Energy Research and 

Development Authority 

 

Support / Upgrade 

Senior PeopleSoft Admin/SQL Server DBA providing 

Peoplesoft Admin and SQL Server DBA services for 

production and non-production support for efforts of tools 

upgrades, PUM updates, etc. 

 

Client name withheld 

upon request 

Senior PeopleSoft Admin/DBA for implementation of 

FSCM9.2/HCM9.2/PeopleTools 8.57.05/Oracle 18C in Oracle 

Attachment 1, Page 80 of 89

Attachment 1
93 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 81 

 

Upgrade / OCI Migration 

Cloud infrastructure.  Linux / Windows env, build out prod and 

non-prod architecture for web servers, app servers, schedulers 

and databases (both container and pluggable).  Apply PUM 

updates to HCM/FSCM env’s.  Provide Peoplesoft Admin 

services for FSCM 9.2, HCM 9.2 including PUM installations, 

PUM updates, Bugs/Patches, configurations/architecture for all 

PIA’s, application servers, schedulers, DMZ servers for 

modules such as Self-Service and Candidate Gateway.  Provide 

support and training of env’s as needed 

Logistics Health 

 

Upgrade 

Senior PeopleSoft Admin/DBA/Upgrade Specialist providing 

advisory services for SQL/Server FSCM 9.2/HCM 

9.2/PeopleTools 8.57.04 upgrade.  Install and configure all 

software/components necessary for the upgrade, support 

upgrade passes. 

 

University Systems of 

Georgia 

 

Support 

Senior Peoplesoft Admin/DBA assisting in bringing on 

Georgia University environments into a central Peoplesoft 

FSCM/HCM environment, building env’s for hosting of 

Augusta University FSCM and HCM env’s.  Migrated 

Augusta’s env’s to local hosted model, tools upgrades thru 

8.56.18, FSCM/HCM 9.2, Oracle 12c versions 12.1 and 12.2, 

Linux 7.2, PUM updates. Provided architecture assistance, 

knowledge transfer and documentation to existing team for 

Oracle/Tools/App, Puppet and Noodle updates for 

build/creation/clone of env’s, provision of new consultants on 

env standards 

 

Sentara 

 

Upgrade 

Senior PeopleSoft Admin providing advisory services to client 

in their efforts to upgrade to HCM 9.2, CRM 9.2; tools 

upgrades to 8.56.03, PUM updates for CRM PI 16 and HCM PI 

24; provide advisory services for implementation of Oracle 

ElasticSearch env to provide PeopleSoft search capability for 

9.2 env’s. 

 

MedStar Health 

 

Upgrade / Support 

System Administration Manger providing services and 

direction for PeopleSoft FSCM 9.1 / HCM 9.1 / PORTAL 9.1 

applications for group of 4 admins.  Provide system admin and 

project management services for PeopleSoft upgrade of FSCM 

9.1 to FSCM 9.2;  Peopletools 8.52 to 8.55.18; and PUM 

FSCM 9.2 PI 27 ; PUM FSCM 9.2 UI 3; Portal 9.1 Peopletools 

upgrade to 8.55.18 + MP 3 + PUM image updates for Portal. 

Provide services and direction for PeopleSoft upgrade of HCM 

9.1 to HCM 9.2 / Peopletools 8.52 to 8.55.18 / PUM HCM 9.2 

PI 24 ;API (Time and Labor) direction. Perceptive Content 

direction for architecture of Brainware and Content 

Management. Managed communication/support/direction of 3rd 

party hosting vendor (Dell – NttData) for 

servers/databases/tuning/technical resources. Provide 

direction/recommendations of Oracle database and licensing for 

Attachment 1, Page 81 of 89

Attachment 1
94 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 82 

PeopleSoft applications and Oracle 12c including licensing for 

virtual environments. Provide services for implementation of 

Oracle ElasticSearch env to provide PeopleSoft search 

capability for 9.2 env’s. Provide services of archiving legacy 

systems. Provide services for printers, performance tuning of 

Payroll system, performance tuning of nVision reporting; lead 

meetings regarding upgrade efforts and communications; 

support of all system applications for business with agendas for 

system administrators, VP’s and C level executives/sponsors; 

provide direction/recommendations/support for all aspects of 

systems for business. 

 

Kansas University 

Medical Center 

 

Upgrade / Support 

Technical Upgrader providing services for PeopleSoft 

Administration / Training and Knowledge Transfer / 

PeopleTools upgrade from 8.52 to 8.54.29 / Linux. 

 

Advent International 

 

Upgrade / Support 

Technical Upgrader providing services for support of FSCM 

9.1 / Tools 8.53.05, SQL Server 2008 R2, ImageNow support; 

Upgrade Tools from 8.53.15 to 8.55.06, build out on new VM’s 

running Windows 2012 R2, installations to support 8.55.06 

tools included Weblogic 12.1.3, Oracle JDK 1.7.0x, Tuxedo 

12c Release 2,  SQL Server 2014/2016.   Builds/Upgrades 

completed for DEMO/DEV/TST/UAT/PROD env’s.  IB 

configurations, appservers, schedulers, PIA’s.  Documented full 

installations and upgrades of all components and provided 

complete knowledge transfer.  Also updated environment 

refresh process and documented, as well as refreshing all non-

prod env’s after go-live. 

 

Green Mountain Coffee / 

Keurig 

 

Upgrade 

Technical Upgrader providing services for PeopleTools 

upgrade of 8.52 to 8.54.10 on Oracle 11g, Windows 2012 R2 

platform 

California Cedar / 

Duraflame 

 

Support 

Technical Lead providing PSAdmin / Oracle DBA services, 

FSCM 8.8 / Tools 8.16 / Oracle 8i / Virtualization of 

environments 

 

Piedmont Hospital 

 

Upgrade 

Technical Upgrader for HCM 9.2 / Tools 8.53.18 upgrade; 

Windows 2012 R2, SQL Server 2008 R2; PUM; Oracle SES; 

FSCM 9.2 / Tools 8.53.18 

 

New York University 

 

Upgrade / Implementation 

Technical Upgrader for FSCM upgrade/implementation 

project. Upgrade from PeopleSoft FSE&G 7.5/Peopletools 7.63 

to FSCM 9.0/Peopletools 8.49.08 (double upgrade). Integrated 

with data warehouse and accessed via Brio.  Implemented 

FSCM 9.0/Peopletools 8.49.08 including GL, AP, PO, KK and 

PC.  The project also involved architecting a new hardware 

platform migrating from AIX 5.3/Oracle 9i to IBM Blade 

Attachment 1, Page 82 of 89

Attachment 1
95 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 Page 83 

servers/Linux 4.0/Oracle 10g with ASM and RAC, non-unicode 

to Unicode conversion. 

 

 

Other Projects: 

Element Consulting 2014 - 2024 

Promedica Health Services 2014 – 2016 

Baptist Health South Florida 2014 – 2015 

Gentiva Health Services 2013 – 2014, 2011-2012 

GPC, Inc. - Atlanta, GA 2012 – 2013 

Promedica Health Services 2012 – 2013 

Colonial Pipeline 2012 

Centene Corp 2012 

Hilton Hotels 2012  

Piedmont Healthcare 2012 

RPC, Inc. 2010 – 2011 2002 - 2008 

Zanett 2009-2010 

Park ‘N Fly 2008 – 2010 

St. Luke’s Hospital 2002 – 2008 

TRX, Inc. 2007 – 2009 

Walkingstick Solutions 2007 

Deltek, Inc. – 2009-2010 

Walkingstick Solutions  2007-2008 

Employee’s Retirement System State of Georgia 2005-2007 

Impact Innovations Group, Inc. 2002 – 2004 

transchannel, Inc. 1999-2002 

Premiere Technologies, Inc. 1998-1999 

Intercall, Inc. 1995-1998 

 

 

 

Education: 

Troy State University, Phenix City, AL 

Dual B.S., Computer Information Services/Accounting, 1994 

 

 

Training: 

Princeton Softech Optim (2007), Oracle Enterprise DBA: Backup and Recovery (2000), Oracle 

Enterprise DBA: Architecture and Administration (2000), Oracle Enterprise DBA: Performance 

and Tuning (2000), Oracle Enterprise DBA: Network Administration (2000), Citrix Metaframe 

Administration (1999), PeopleTools I Class (1998), PeopleTools II (1998), Configuration and 

Administration Class (1998), Informix OnLine Dynamic Server System Administration Class 

(1997), Managing and Optimizing Informix OnLine Dynamic Server Database Class (1996), 

Relational Database Design Class (1996), Structured Query Language Class (1996), GUI Design 

Class (1995), Developing User Friendly Software Class (1995) 

Attachment 1, Page 83 of 89

Attachment 1
96 of 102 



 

Page 84 

 

4 FEE PROPOSAL 

The City requests a breakdown by type of employee assigned to Attachment 5, Price List. 

Given there was no Requirements or Specifications for the on-call support, Consultant will 

work with City of Springfield to determine the amount of on-call support is needed on an 

annual basis. The blended rate of $170 provided in the Price List will be applied to the hours 

consumed by the City. 

Job Title      Num

ber 

of 

Empl

oyee

s 

Estimated 

Hours 

Breakdow

n of Hours 

by As 

neededequ

irement 

Engagement 

Manager 

1   

Project Manager 1   

Senior Functional 

Consultants- HCM 

3   

Senior Functional 

Consultants - FSCM 

3   

Senior Technical 

Consultants 

3   

Additional 

Resources (as 

requested) 

N/A   

 

 

5 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Acknowledgement of understanding that should it become necessary for the City of Springfield 

to request additional services or supplemental services or to perform additional work as a result 

of specific recommendations, such additional work shall be performed only if set forth in an 

addendum to the contract between the City and Beacon.  This work will be performed at the 

same rates set forth in the Fee Proposal.  

Attachment 1, Page 84 of 89

Attachment 1
97 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 

Page 85 

 

 

6 REFERENCES 

Below please find references that have, and continue to use Beacon resources for both upgrades 

and managed services. 

 

Government of Yukon 
 
Satnam Gill 
Director, Human Resource 
Management System 
Public Service Commission 

 
 
Jim Smith Building   
2071 2nd Avenue   
Whitehorse, Yukon Y1A 1B  
satnam.gill@yukon.ca   
867-456-3976  
 
 

The Government of Yukon wanted to find a consulting firm who 
would partner to achieve success in a large upgrade HCM from 9.2 
Image 8 to the current release. Their system was highly customized, 
including the Payroll COBOL routines.  Additionally, they received 
some incorrect advice from a prior partner, leaving them with a 
system that was corrupt and unable to apply new tax updates 
properly.  Beacon worked with the Yukon technical staff to 
understand their process, and remediated all issues to bring the 
system up to date and correct so that moving forward tax updates 
would apply quickly and properly.  We worked significantly with the 
user community to test the system and correct pain-points in 
several areas. 
After the upgrade was complete, Yukon put out an RFP for Managed 
Services and we have been providing those services since. 

Artesian Water Company 
 
Jocelyn Beland GISP 
Senior IT Project Manager 

 
 
664 Churchmans Road  
Newark DE, 19702 
302.453.6900 
jbeland@artesianwater.com 
 

In 2021, Beacon partnered with Artesian to upgrade PeopleTools 
and PUM Image for their PS Financials (GL, AP, AM, PO, IN, PC, CM).  
Additionally, during that upgrade, a backlog of production issues 
were resolved; a PS Security audit was performed and a mitigation 
plan was recommended and deployed to address high risk areas; 
and numerous enhancements with the new release were assessed 
and implemented.   A subsequent PeopleTools upgrade was also 
performed in 2023, and planning for their next upgrade is underway. 
 
Upon successful completion of the initial upgrade, Beacon began 
providing managed services production support for both technical 
and functional needs. Examples of support include production 
defects, quarterly CPU security patching, and annual 1099 patching. 
 
We have continued to provide that ongoing support to this day, and 
per request, have increased the level of support each year. 

Attachment 1, Page 85 of 89

Attachment 1
98 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 

Page 86 

Hancock Whitney Bank 
  
Shannon Peltier 
SVP Finance  
 

 
 
701 Poydras St.  
New Orleans LA 70139 
504-539-7857 
Shannon.Peltier@hancockwhitney.com 
 

In 2009, Whitney Bank first contracted Beacon as transformation 
experts needing to implement a full suite of Financial applications.  
They then used a mainframe based solution that relied on their 
technical staff to support for even the smallest change.  Within 10 
months we had accomplished our goals.  PeopleSoft GL, AP, AM, 
Purchasing, and Expenses rolled out to the entire community.  They 
were subsequently acquired by Hancock Holding Company who had 
decided to use a different FSCM solution.  Within 4 months of that 
decision, Beacon was called in to implement PeopleSoft for the 
merged organization.  Since that time we have partnered through 4 
upgrades and have been providing managed services since 2018. 
We recently completed our fifth upgrade to 8.61 PeopleTools, PUM 
Image 50. 
 

Louisiana Children’s Medical Center 
 
Martin Levert 
Business Applications Manager 
 

 
 
LCMC 

4200 Houma Blvd. 

Metairie, LA 70006 

 

D 504.503.5513 

Paul.levert@LCMChealth.org 

ejgh.org 

 

In 2022 when LCMC was in the midst of a conversion from 
PeopleSoft to Workday, Beacon began providing managed services 
production support of their PeopleSoft FSCM and HCM applications.  
We essentially assumed full responsibility for daily support - user 
requests, resolving production support tickets, improving 
productivity via automation of manual processes, auditing and 
streamlining workflow approvals.  Additionally, we were asked to 
assist with M&A activities, business restructuring and support of the 
PS-Workday system conversion.  We have continued to provide PS 
support as those applications become retired and archived. 

Boston Water and Sewer Commission 
 
 
 
Paul Flynn 
IT Project Director 
Boston Water and Sewer Commission 

 
 
980 Harrison Avenue, Boston, MA 02119 
C: 617-831-8872 

Beacon has had a relationship with Boston Water and Sewer since 
their first PeopleSoft upgrade in 2003.  We worked seamlessly with 
them to upgrade both their HCM and FSCM applications 
simultaneously.  BWSC has limited staff and a rather larger 
PeopleSoft footprint and relied on Beacon to execute an upgrade 
plan that encompassed the technical upgrade and moderate process 
improvements and enhancements. 
In 2017, Boston Water and Sewer turned to Beacon for their latest 
upgrade which needed to be executed so as not to lose Oracle 
Support.  However, at the same time the technical staff was focused 
on implementing a new billing system.  Again, we provided a team 
of individuals well versed in new features of the software and a 
technical team that could perform the integrations with their new 

Attachment 1, Page 86 of 89

Attachment 1
99 of 102 



Beacon Proposal for City of Springfield RFP #3747 

 

Page 87 

flynnp@BWSC.ORG   
 

billing system, to conclude the upgrade on-time and on-budget to a 
fixed fee. 
Since that upgrade, Beacon has continued to provide BWSC with 
advice and guidance on a multitude of initiatives, frequently in an 
educational capacity, sometimes on product or technical features as 
well as guiding their future roadmap. 
 
Client since 2003. 
 

 

 

7 SAMPLE CONTRACT 

As stated in the cover letter, We accept all terms and conditions of the RFP, including Attachment 2 

Sample Contract terms and conditions as clarified in the Addendum #1 to RFP 3747 PeopleSoft 

Managed Services Provider, 

 

8 APPENDIX A  

Signed Attachment #3 – Authorization to Legally Bind Bidder 

Signed Attachment #4 – Minority Women Emerging Small Business Form (MWESB) 

Signed Attachment #5 – Price List 

Signed Attachment #6 – Addendum 1 to RFP 3747 

 

9 ATTACHMENT 1 – SAMPLE WORK PRODUCT 

The following are included as examples of work products Beacon has produced for our clients: 

• HCM Upgrade Discovery Report 

• Functional Review Enhancement 

• Gap Solution Document 

• Quarterly Security Patching Technical Document 

• Alternate View of Deliverables Table 

• Strategy Workshop 

• Technical System Configuration 

• 1099 Patching Documentation 

 

Attachment 1, Page 87 of 89

Attachment 1
100 of 102 



If needed:

Item # Requirements or Specifications Qualified Experience Est. Hours Total Cost

 High/Med/Low No. of Years

1 Required - Oracle PS Security Patching

1 1st Quarter PS FSMC Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

2 1st Quarter PS HCM Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

3 2nd Quarter PS FSMC Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

4 2nd Quarter PS HCM Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

5 3rd Quarter PS FSMC Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

6 3rd Quarter PS HCM Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

7 4th Quarter PS FSMC Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

8 4th Quarter PS HCM Security Patch High 26+ 15 2,550.00$       

2 Required - PS HCM Tax Updates

1 1st Quarter PS HCM Tax Update High 26+ 48 8,160.00$        

2 2nd Quarter PS HCM Tax Update High 26+ 48 8,160.00$        

3 3rd Quarter PS HCM Tax Update High 26+ 48 8,160.00$        

4 4th Quarter PS HCM Tax Update High 26+ 48 8,160.00$        

3 Optional - Other Products and Services Cost Per Hour

1 Oracle PS HCM PT Upgrade High 170.00$            

2 Oracle PS FSCM PT Upgrade High 170.00$            

3 Oracle PS HCM Application (PUM) Upgrade High 170.00$            

4 Oracle PS FSCM Application (PUM) Upgrade High 170.00$            

5 Oracle PS HCM Service Enhancements-Productivity Improvements NA

6 Oracle PS FSCM Service Enhancements-Productivity Improvements NA

7 Oracle PS Test Framework Implementation Low 170.00$            

8 Out-of-band PS FSMC Security Patch High 170.00$            

9 Out-of-band PS HCM Security Patch High 170.00$            

10 Local or Out-of-Band Tax Updates High 170.00$            

4 Service Categories Cost Per Hour

1 Systems Migration NA 

2 Systems Integration NA 

3 Systems Development NA 

4
Systems Planning (e.g., systems security, business continuity and 

disaster recovery)
NA 

5 Break-Fix NA 

6 Enhancements NA 

7 Systems Documentation NA 

8 Systems Testing (test and production servers) NA 

Out of Pocket Expenses
Type

Software

Hardware

Other (Please 

Specify)

Certification Information  

Certification # Description of Certification, name of Issuing Authority

All Beacon personnel are Oracle and Beacon Certified.  

Prior Experience  

Customer Name: Description and $ Value of Project Ph. # Email

Please see Section 7 for expanded details of work

Government of 

Yukon

Upgraded HCM from Version 9.2, Image 8 currently contracted for Managed 

Services 867-456-3976 satnam.gill@yukon.ca

Artesian Water Upgraded FSCM, currently contracted for Beacon for Managed Services 302-453-6900 jbeland@artesianwater.com

Hancock Whitney

Implemented FSCM and performed 5 upgrades, currently contracted for 

Managed Services 504-539-7857 shannon.peltier@hancockwhitney.com

Boston Water & 

Sewer

Upgraded both HCM and FSCM several times, provide on-call support when 

needed 617-831-8872 flynnp@BWSC.org

LCMC Health Managed Services for FSCM and HCM 504-503-5513 paul.levert@lcmchealth.org

Key personnel intended to be used for work under this contract, shall be certified by the product manufacture as described below.

Should City of Springfield request on-site delivery of services, actual out of pocket expenses may be charged 

upon mutual agreement.

N/A

N/A

Satnam Gill

Contact Name

Jocelyn Beland

Shannon Peltier

Paul Flynn

Martin Levert

Price List

Description, Amounts and Etc. of Expense Estimated Cost

Expiration Date

Attachment 1, Page 88 of 89

Attachment 1
101 of 102 



Special Instructions:
Valid for 90 Days from date submitted below.

Signer acknowledges that they have the legal authority to bind entity.

Madeline Osit

Chief Operating Officer

Submitted this ________________________________ day of ____________________ 202115th day of November, 2024

Unless otherwise specified, all items quoted are to be new, unused and not remanufactured in 

any way.

Signature of Proposer

Title of Proposer

Print Proposer Name
Proposer must clearly identify all products quoted. Brand name and model or number must be 

shown.
CITY reserves the right to make the award by item, groups of items or entire quote, whichever is 

in the best interest of CITY.

CITY may reject any Quote not in compliance with the RFP, attachments, and addenda, or if it is 

in the best interest of CITY.

Attachment 1, Page 89 of 89

Attachment 1
102 of 102 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Thomas Sievers/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 25 Minutes
Council Goals: Council Goals: Community and Economic Development and

Revitalization

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Glenwood Riverfront Annexations

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a legislative public hearing and first reading of the following ordinance:

An ordinance annexing certain territory (Map 17-03-34-41, TLs: 400, 500, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1300, & 1500;
Map 17-03-34-42, TLs: 100, 200, 300, 400, 500, 501, 502, 503, 504, 600, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1200, 1300,
1400, 1500, 1600, 1700, 1800, 1900, 2000, & 2100) to the City of Springfield; withdrawing the same territory
from the Glenwood Water District and the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District; adopting a
severability clause; and providing an effective date (first reading).

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City Council is requested to consider an ordinance to annex 21.11 acres of property zoned and designated
Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use and Glenwood Commercial Mixed-Use, which are located in west Springfield in
the Glenwood area north of Franklin Boulevard.  The proposed annexation was initiated by Council Resolution
2024-22 and is requested by SEDA to facilitate economic revitalization.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The City Council is authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 222 and Springfield Development Code
(SDC) Section 5.7.100 to act on annexation requests.  In accordance with SDC 5.7.155 and ORS 222.040, 222.180
and 222.465, if approved the annexation will become effective on the day following the general election, November
4, 2025, or upon acknowledgment by the State, whichever date is later.

The territory requested for annexation is a group of 32 tax lots between Franklin Boulevard and the Willamette
River.  The properties are zoned and designated for Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use and Glenwood Commercial
Mixed-Use with an Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10), and are located inside the City's Urban Growth Boundary
(UGB).  The UF-10 overlay will no longer apply upon annexation.

As outlined in the attached staff report (Exhibit D), the annexation area can be served with the minimum level of key
urban facilities and services as required in the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan -- Urbanization Element.  The
staff report also confirms the request meets the criteria of approval for annexations established in SDC 5.7.140.

Recommendation:  The subject properties comply with the standards and provisions of the SDC and applicable ORS
for annexation; Council is requested to conduct the first reading and public hearing of the ordinance annexing this
property to the City and withdrawing from the Glenwood Water District and the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire
Protection District.

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Location Maps
2. Annexation Ordinance
2a. Site Map and Legal Description
2b. Resolution 2024-22
2c. Annexation Petition
2d. Staff Report
3. Annexation Application Packet



8. PowerPoint Slides



LOCATION OF PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ANNEXATION 

 

 

 

  
SITE 

    

Attachment 1
1 of 2 



811-24-000310-TYP4 – PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF THIRTY-TWO (32) MIXED-
USE RESIDENTIAL MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL LOTS (MAP 17-03-34-41, TLs: 400, 
500, 700-1000, 1300 & 1500; MAP 17-03-34-42, TLs: 100-500, 501-504, 600-1000, & 

1200-2100) 
 

SITE CONTEXT MAP 
 

ANNEXATION AREA 

TL 500 

Attachment 1
2 of 2 



Attachment 2



Attachment 2

kskraaz
Typewriter
2/21/2025



PAGE1OF3ANNEXATIONDESCRIPTIONOF

Exhibit A
1 of 5 

Attachment 2 



Exhibit A
2 of 5 

Attachment 2 



Exhibit A
3 of 5 

Attachment 2 



R(((((

35.7' N20° 01'
ENORTH LINEDLC 82160' 90' 128.0'

N44° W 1049. 4' SOUTH

347. 93' S16° 46' 27" E(

385')
61.

0'

63' NE CORMCVAYDLC 82N01° 30' W2

44+ 89 .11105.

3'N66°57 1/2'ES65° 12'

30"
W314'

NORTH 89.63'S0 6° 15' E 98. 11'

Exhibit A
4 of 5 

Attachment 2 

tsievers
Polyline



Exhibit A
5 of 5 

Attachment 2 

tsievers
Polyline



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO.  2024- 22

INITIATING ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 30 ACRES OF TERRITORY IN THE

GLENWOOD URBAN RENEWAL AREA, NORTH OF FRANKLIN BOULEVARD TO THE

WILLAMETTE RIVER, TO THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD PURSUANT TO SECTION 5. 7 OF THE

SPRINGFIELD DEVELOPMENT CODE

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Section 5. 7. 125 of the Springfield Development Code to

initiate annexation of contiguous property to the City of Springfield;

WHEREAS, the property proposed to be annexed is depicted in Exhibit A, and includes property along

the Glenwood Riverfront, north of Franklin Boulevard, which is owned by the City of Springfield,

Springfield Economic Development Agency, Homes for Good Housing Authority, Lane County, and

additional private parties;

WHEREAS, the territory to be annexed is within the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary, and is

contiguous to the Springfield city limits along Franklin Boulevard and along the Willamette River;

WHEREAS, the owners of the subject territory have agreed to jointly cooperate in development of a

Glenwood Riverfront Master Plan who are engaged jointly in an effort to develop a Master Plan that will

govern future mixed- use development of the Glenwood Riverfront area, anticipated over the next five

to ten years;

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that initiating annexation of the subject territory is in the best

interest of the City to facilitate efficient adoption of the Master Plan and related amendments to the

Springfield Comprehensive Plan diagram, Springfield Zoning Map, and Glenwood Refinement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the annexation initiated herein will proceed as provided in SDC 5. 7. 100 only as to real

property for which the City receives written consent of the owner( s), and no annexation election is

authorized herein,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:

Section 1:      The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby announce its
intention to conduct a public hearing to consider annexation of certain property as generally depicted
on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 2:      The City Manager or designee is directed to review the territory depicted in
Exhibit A for any potential survey gaps and, if any exist, to close such gaps to create contiguous
annexation territory.

Section 3:      This Resolution will take effect upon adoption by the Council.

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this 1 st day of July, 2024, by
a vote of 6 for and 0 against.

ATTEST:

REVIEWED& APPROVED

AS TO FORM

City Recorder DATE:  7/ 1/ 2024
SPRINCHR D CITY ATTORNFY' S OFFTCF

Exhibit B
1 of 2 

Attachment 2



CD

Ix

d. 
0

uj

ld
IIOIIIV

n G

E

3

o¢

o CD

uaoa-    

k

b

g 9`
IWWWWVDN @14NOVpWPWN;; NNWNWN, W,V, N, N'NNI d

INTIIIY  
P   ,

w.r

V

F6NNRNNO NIIImiBFININN' NdNN

I

PiH,   o   .

g

owe
o

fi

yo

i8 r

rS, r
Io

mm

x Sa

M

M

CD
w

co 4

m

Exhibit B
2 of 2 

Attachment 2



Exhibit C
1 of 1 

Attachment 2



Page  of 1 8

TYPE 4 – ANNEXATION
STAFF REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT

File Name:  Glenwood Riverfront
Annexation
 
Applicant: City of Springfield –
Springfield Economic Development
Agency (SEDA)
 
Case Number:  811-24-000310-
TYP4

Proposal Location: V a r i o u s .
Assessor’s Map 17-03-34-41, TLs:
400, 500, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1300,
& 1500; Assessor’s Map 17-03-34-
42, TLs: 100, 200, 300, 400, 500,
501, 502, 503, 504, 600, 700, 800,
900, 1000, 1200, 1300, 1400, 1500,
1600, 1700, 1800, 1900, 2000, &
2100

Current Zoning & Comprehensive Plan Designation:
Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use, Glenwood Commercial Mixed-Use with Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10)

Applicable Comprehensive Plan:  Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan

Application Submittal Date:  December 17, 2024

Associated Applications:
811-24-000119-PRE (Development Issues Meeting); 811-24-000281-PRE (Completeness Check)

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE:
POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE
Project Manager Planning Tom Sievers 541-726-2333
Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034
Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-726-1036
Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293
Building Official Building Chris Carpenter 541-744-4153

Annexation Area

Exhibit D
1 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 2 8

Review Process (Springfield Development Code (SDC) 5.7.115):  The subject annexation request is being
reviewed under Type 4 procedures, as a legislative matter, without Planning Commission consideration.

Development Issues Meeting (SDC 5.7.120):  A Development Issues Meeting (DIM) is required of all public agency
and private landowner-initiated annexation applications, unless waived by the Director.

Finding 1:  A Development Issues Meeting for the subject annexation request was held on May 30, 2024 (Case 811-
24-000119-PRE).

Conclusion: The requirement in SDC 5.7.120 is met.

Annexation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.7.125):  In accordance with SDC 5.7.125(A), an
annexation application may be initiated by Council resolution or by written consents from electors or property
owners.

Finding 2:  On July 1, 2024, the City Council adopted Resolution 2024-22 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B) which initiated
the annexation of the proposed area detailed in this report.  Acting upon the Council resolution, the property owners
(SEDA and Roth & Roth, LLC) who own all the land and real property, and full assessed value of real property in
the contiguous territory, filed an official application and petition requesting annexation to the City of Springfield
(Attachment 2, Exhibit C).

Finding 3:  In addition to the petition, the submitted application includes the required documents listed under SDC
5.7.125(B).  This includes a Verification of Property Owners signed by the Lane County Department of Assessment
and Taxation, the Ownership Worksheet, and a Waiver Form in accordance with ORS 222.173 (all within
Attachment 2, Exhibit C).

Conclusion: The application requirements in SDC 5.7.125 have been met.

Site Information:  The subject annexation is comprised of 32 lots for a total of approximately 21.11 acres.  These
lots are owned by SEDA and Roth & Roth LLC and are a mix of vacant and developed.  The subject site is inside
the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and is contiguous to the Springfield city limits primarily along
its southern boundary.

Zoning for the property is Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use (GRMU) and Glenwood Commercial Mixed-Use
(GCMU) district with an Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10) applied according to the City’s Zoning Map.  Based
on the applicants’ submittal, the primary purpose of the annexation request is to facilitate future master plan
redevelopment.  A public sanitary sewer line is already available at the site’s southern property line in Franklin
Boulevard, which can be extended to serve future development, as shown in the image below (the purple lines and
circles show the existing sanitary sewer system).  An annexation agreement is not applicable in this instance as there
will be a Master Plan adopted in the future for the redevelopment of the annexation area.  The Master Plan will set
out obligations for infrastructure improvements once adopted and the property owners will be responsible for the
cost of constructing the public improvements necessary to serve the area.

Existing public services are provided to the annexation area as follows: police (Lane County Sheriff), schools
(Eugene School District), roads (City of Springfield and Lane County), and ambulance services (Eugene/Springfield
Fire)1.  The applicant currently receives water service and fire protection from the Glenwood Water District, and the
Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District (RFPD).  SUB operates the existing electric service and will
continue to after annexation.  Upon annexation, the City of Springfield will be responsible for all urban services,
including sewer, water (retained through SUB), electricity (retained through SUB), and police/fire response (through
Eugene/Springfield Fire) to the subject area.

1 The subject property currently receives emergency services from Eugene/Springfield Fire through long-standing contractual
agreements.  The standards of coverage can be found here: https://www.eugene-
or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId=

Exhibit D
2 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 3 8

The approximately 919,550 square foot annexation area consists of the 21.11-acre set of 32 lots.

Notice Requirements (SDC 5.7.130):  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, notice was provided as follows:

Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed on February 14, 2025, which was at least 14 days
prior to the public hearing date, to the affected property owner(s); owners and occupants of properties located within
300 feet of the perimeter of the proposed annexation territory; affected special districts (Eugene/Springfield Fire) and
all other public utility providers (Springfield Utility Board, CenturyLink Telecommunications); and the Lane County
Land Management Division, Lane County Elections, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners.  The list of
recipients of the mailed notice is included with the Affidavit of Mailing for this annexation application and is retained
as part of the public record for Planning Case 811-24-000310-TYP4.

Newspaper Notice.  Notice of the  March  3 ,  2025 ,  public hearing was published in The Chronicle, running for
two consecutive weeks on February 6th and February 13th prior to the hearing.

Posted Notice.  A total of seven (7) notices were posted for the March 3rd public hearing.  Two (2) digital
notices were posted on both the City of Springfield website on February 14th and the Department of Public Works’
Digital Display in City Hall on February 14th.  One (1) notice was posted on the physical display board in the City
Hall lobby on February 14th and four (4) notices were posted at the subject property along the Franklin Boulevard
frontage on February 14th.

Annexation Area

Sewer Connection

Exhibit D
3 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 4 8

Finding 4:  Staff did not receive written comments from the public at the time of this writing (2/21/25).

Conclusion:  Notice of the public hearing was provided consistent with SDC 5.7.130.

Recommendation to City Council (SDC 5.7.135):  The Director shall forward a written recommendation on the
annexation application to the City Council based on the approval criteria specified in SDC 5.7.140, which are
provided as follows with the SDC requirements, findings, and conclusions.  The Director’s recommendation follows
SDC 5.7.140, Criteria.

Criteria of Approval

Criteria (SDC 5.7.140):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal conforms
to the following criteria:

A.  The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth boundary; and is

1. Contiguous to the city limits; or

2.   Separated from the City only by a public right of way or a stream, lake, or other body of water.

Finding 5:  The subject annexation territory is located within the City of Springfield’s acknowledged urban growth
boundary (UGB).  The properties requested for annexation abut the Springfield city limits primarily along the
southern boundary.  Therefore, this annexation application meets the statutory definition of contiguity as found in
ORS 222.111(1).

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion A(1), Subsection 5.7.140.

B. The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Metro Plan and in any applicable
refinement plans or Plan Districts;

Finding 6:  The annexation area is located within the acknowledged Springfield UGB and as more specifically
delineated by the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan.  Territory within the delineated UGB ultimately will be
within the City of Springfield.

Finding 7:  The Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan amends the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General
Plan (Metro Plan) through adoption of ordinances since 2011.  Volume 1 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive
Plan includes the following elements: Economic, Residential Land Use & Housing, Recreation, Transportation, and
Urbanization.  In December 2016, Springfield adopted the Urbanization Element in compliance with Statewide
Planning Goal 14, Urbanization.  The Urbanization Element explicitly retains the Metro Plan’s long-standing
urbanization policy criteria for approving annexations.

Finding 8:  The territory requested for annexation is within an area that is zoned Glenwood Residential Mixed-
Use (GRMU) and Glenwood Commercial Mixed-Use (GCMU) districts and is designated for Residential and
Commercial Mixed-Use in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan (which became effective March 1, 2024,
replacing the Metro Plan Diagram within the Springfield UGB).  The adopted elements of the Springfield 2030
Comprehensive Plan apply to areas within the Springfield UGB, particularly the Urbanization Element adopted
by Ordinance 6361.  There are no proposed changes to the current zoning or plan designation for the property,
although the Urbanizable Fringe (UF-10) overlay will be removed upon annexation.

Finding 9:  The continued annexation of properties to the City of Springfield is consistent with Policies 27 and 29 of
the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, which will result in the elimination of special
districts within the urbanizable area.  The Metro Plan and the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization
Element recognize that as annexations to the City occur, the special district service areas within the UGB will

Exhibit D
4 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 5 8

diminish incrementally and eventually will be dissolved.

Finding 10:  The territory requested for annexation is currently within the service area of the Glenwood Water
District and receives fire protection service from the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District.  After
the public hearing and upon Council adoption of the Annexation Ordinance, the annexation area will remain in the
combined fire and life safety departments of the Cities of Eugene & Springfield for fire protection and emergency
medical service directly to the annexation area.

Finding 11:  In accordance with Policy 33 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
SUB is the exclusive water service provider within the Springfield City Limits.  The annexation area is currently
served by the Glenwood Water District.  As discussed below in more detail under Finding 19, water services provided
by SUB for the Glenwood Riverfront are planned for future development.

Finding 12:  In accordance with Policy 34 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
when unincorporated territory within the UGB is provided with any new urban service, that service shall be provided
by one of the following methods in this priority order: (a) Annexation to City; or (b) Contractual annexation
agreements with City.  If this annexation request is approved and executed, the subject property will be provided
with new urban services such as public sanitary sewer through the adoption of a master plan.

Finding 13:  In accordance with Policy 35 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, the
City shall not extend water or wastewater service outside city limits to serve a residence or business without first
obtaining a valid annexation petition, a consent to annex agreement, or when a health hazard abatement annexation
is required.  In conjunction with Council Resolution 2024-22 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B), the property owners applied
for annexation to the City (Attachment 2, Exhibit C), and an annexation agreement is not applicable in this instance
as there will be a Master Plan adopted in the future for the redevelopment of the annexation area.

Finding 14:  The annexation area is located within the Glenwood Refinement Plan and designated Residential Mixed-
Use and Commercial Mixed-Use.

Finding 15:  The Glenwood Refinement Plan does not contain any specific policies to guide annexation other than
by referring to the Springfield Development Code annexation process.

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion B, SDC 5.7.140.

C. The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities and
services as defined in the Metro Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely manner; and

Finding 16:  In accordance with Policy 29 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
annexation shall continue to be a prerequisite for urban development and the delivery of City services in accordance
with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan and Springfield Development Code.

Finding 17:  In accordance with Policy 31 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, key
urban facilities and services are defined as wastewater service; stormwater service; transportation; solid waste
management; water service; fire and emergency medical services; police protection; citywide park and recreation
programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools on a districtwide basis.

Finding 18:  In accordance with Policy 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
urban services provided by the City upon annexation to Springfield include storm and sanitary sewer; water;
transportation systems; police and fire protection; planning, building, code enforcement and library services; and
public infrastructure maintenance of City owned or operated facilities.

Finding 19:  The territory requested for annexation is contiguous with the City Limits primarily along its southern
boundary.  Urban utilities including sanitary sewer, electricity, and water service, are located within the Franklin
Boulevard ROW and can be extended to serve the subject property, adjacent properties, and areas beyond the

Exhibit D
5 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 6 8

annexation territory if needed to provide more convenient sewer connection to such properties.  Therefore, the urban
service delivery systems are already available and in place or can be logically extended from points in the vicinity to
serve the annexation area and future development.  In addition to urban utilities, the following facilities and services
are either available or can be extended to this annexation area in a timely, orderly, and efficient manner:

Water – As noted above, SUB is the exclusive water service provider for properties within the City limits.  The
annexation area currently receives water from the Glenwood Water District.  In an email dated December 26, 2024,
SUB Water stated that there are no concerns with providing water service to the annexation area and plans to extend
the existing water system as future development occurs.

Electricity – SUB provides electric service to the neighborhoods within incorporated areas of Springfield.  SUB
owns and maintains electrical system infrastructure in neighborhoods they serve.  SUB electric services are present in
the area and service needs will be evaluated through the Master Plan at the time of development.

Police Services – Springfield Police Department currently provides service to areas of Springfield that are already
inside the City limits.  The annexation territory is currently within the jurisdiction of the Lane County Sheriff’s
Department.  Upon annexation, this area will receive Springfield Police services on an equal basis with other
properties inside the City.

Fire and Emergency Services – Fire protection is currently provided to the annexation area by the Willakenzie-
Springfield Rural Fire Protection District.  Upon annexation, the Eugene/Springfield Fire Department will provide
fire and emergency services directly to the subject territory.  Per the Fire Marshal’s Office, both access and water
supply evaluations will take place at the time of future development of the Master Plan.  Concerning response time,
the subject property is within the 5 minute time of travel of Fire Station 4 located at 1475 5th Street in Springfield.

Emergency medical transport (ambulance) services are provided on a regional basis by the Eugene/Springfield Fire
Department.  The annexation area will continue to receive this service consistent with the adopted ambulance service
area (ASA) plan.  Mutual Aid Agreements have been adopted by the three regional ASA providers to provide backup
coverage for each other’s jurisdictions.

Parks and Recreation – Park and recreation services are provided by the Willamalane Park & Recreation District.
The park district operates several indoor recreation facilities, such as the Willamalane Park Swim Center, Lively Park
Swim Center, Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation, and Willamalane Adult Activity Center.  The park
district offers various after-school and other programs for children at schools and parks throughout the community.
Also available are pathways and several categories of parks, including community parks, sports parks, special use
parks, and natural area parks.  The subject property is currently within the special district territory of Willamalane and
will remain that way upon annexation.

Library Services – Upon annexation to the City of Springfield, the subject area’s residents will be served by the
Springfield Public Library.

Schools – Based on the provision of the Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use zoning district, the annexation territory
could generate a school-age population.  At the time of future development or redevelopment, the School District
would be referred any development plans including proposals.  In an email dated January 29, 2025, the Eugene 4J
District stated that there should be no issues with the possible enrollment impact of the future redevelopment of the
Glenwood Riverfront.

Sanitary Sewer – An existing public sanitary sewer system is located in Franklin Boulevard along the annexation
area frontage.  The public line will be extended into the annexation area at the time of future development and
execution of the Master Plan.  The sewer line has a depth of approximately 14.5-feet.

Stormwater – An existing public storm sewer system is located in parts of Franklin Boulevard.  The stormwater
system will be further developed as the Master Plan activates properties in the annexation area.  Individual site
needs will be determined at the time of development.

Exhibit D
6 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 7 8

Streets – The annexation area has legal and physical access to Franklin Boulevard along the southern boundary.  The
frontage of Franklin Boulevard is currently unimproved with paving, curb, and sidewalk.  There are street trees
present along the eastern portion of the annexation area along Franklin Boulevard.  The western part of the annexation
area frontage with Franklin Boulevard is also heavily impacted with existing overhead powerlines and poles.  The
future Master Plan will extend the road network internal to the annexation area.

Solid Waste Management – The City and Sanipac have an exclusive franchise arrangement for garbage service inside
the City limits.  Upon annexation, solid waste disposal service would be provided by Sanipac.

Communication Facilities – Various providers, such as CenturyLink, offer both wired and wireless communication
services in the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area.  Existing providers and those entering the market have the
capability to provide service to this area.

Land Use Controls – The annexation area is within Springfield’s urban growth boundary (UGB).  Through an
intergovernmental agreement between Lane County and the City of Springfield, the City already has planning and
building jurisdiction for unincorporated areas of Springfield.  The City will continue to administer land use controls
after annexation.

Finding 19:  The minimum level of key urban facilities and services, as outlined in the adopted Metro Plan and the
Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element are immediately available and have the capacity to
serve the site at the time of development.

Conclusion:  Based on the findings above, the proposed annexation, if approved, will result in a boundary in which
the minimum level of key urban facilities and services can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely manner
because of their availability and capacity levels meet the City’s requirements.  The proposal complies with
Criterion C, SDC 5.7.140.

D. Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an Annexation Agreement or
other mechanism approved by the City Council.

Finding 20:  This annexation has been initiated by the City Council on behalf of the City, SEDA, and Roth and Roth
LLC for the purpose of facilitating urban renewal of the Glenwood Riverfront.  The annexation area is part of a
proposed urban renewal project that also includes 1.35 acres already annexed property along the east side of Brooklyn
Avenue north of Franklin Blvd, owned by Homes for Good Housing Agency.  As an urban renewal project, it is
expected that SEDA will bear at least part of the fiscal impacts associated with future development, consistent with
the Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan.   These fiscal impacts include costs of constructing public infrastructure internal
to the site, such as public streets and paths, stormwater, water, sewer, and electricity.  A future Master Plan will set
out obligations for these infrastructure improvements and the property owners or SEDA will be responsible for the
cost of constructing the public improvements necessary to serve the area.  The property owners in the urban renewal
project area have entered a Joint Planning Agreement that requires the parties to cooperate toward creation and
adoption of the Master Plan.  The Joint Planning Agreement is sufficient to ensure fiscal impacts to the City will be
mitigated through the future Master Plan and obviates the need for a separate annexation agreement.

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion D, Subsection 5.7.140.

Withdrawal from Special Service Districts (SDC 5.7.160):  Withdrawal from special districts may occur
concurrently with the approved annexation Ordinance or after the effective date of the annexation of territory to the
City.  The Director shall recommend to the City Council for consideration of the withdrawal of the annexed territory
from special districts as specified in ORS 222.  In determining whether to withdraw the territory, the City Council
shall determine whether the withdrawal is in the best interest of the City.  Notice of the withdrawal shall be provided
in the same manner as the annexation notice in SDC 5.7.150.

Finding 21:  The annexation area is within the delineated service territory of SUB (electric), Glenwood Water District

Exhibit D
7 of 8 

Attachment 2



Page  of 8 8

(Water), and the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District (Fire).  The Cities of Eugene/Springfield will
directly provide fire and emergency services after annexation, and the City of Springfield by and through the
Springfield Utility Board will provide water service after annexation.  SUB will also retain electric service upon
annexation.  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, posted notice in City Hall and the City of Springfield webpage was
provided for the public hearing on February 14, 2025, and mailed notice on February 14, 2025.  Withdrawal from
the Glenwood Water District and the Willakenzie-Springfield Rural Fire Protection District concurrently with
annexation of the territory to the City of Springfield is in the best interest of the City.  The withdrawal from the
Glenwood Water District is necessary to implement Policies 31 and 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan
– Urbanization Element whereby annexation is prioritized for the City of Springfield to provide urban services to its
incorporated territory, and existing special service districts within the City’s UGB are to be dissolved over time.

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION: The proposal complies with the annexation criteria of approval listed
in SDC 5.7.140, and Council is within its authority to approve annexation of the subject territory to the City
of Springfield and withdrawal of the subject territory from the Glenwood Water District and the Willakenzie-
Springfield Rural Fire Protection District.

Exhibit D
8 of 8 

Attachment 2



City of Springfield
Development & Public Works
225 Fifth Street
Springfield, OR 97477

Annexation Application Type 4

3

Application Type ( Applic ant: Check one) 

Annexation A lication Com leteness Check: 

Multiple Owners - See Applicant List

Address: See Applicant List

Owner Signature: 

Owner Signature: 

A ent Name: Lorri Nelson

Rowell Brokaw Architects

Phone: 

E- mail:

Phone: 541-485-1003

Fax: 

Address: 1203 Willamette Street, Suite 210, Eugene, OR 97401 E- mail lorri rowellbrokaw. com

Agent
Signature: 
If the applicant is other than the owner, the owner hereby grants permission for the applicant to act in his or her behalf, except
where signatures of the owner of record are required, only the owner may sign the petition. 

ASSESSOR' S MAP
NO: Two Maps - See Inventory TAX LOT NO S: 

ome are addressed, some are not - See Tax Lot Inventory

Area of Re uest: Acres: 21.11

Existing Use: Various - Residential, Commercial, Vacant

S uare Feet: 

Proposed Use: 
Residential/Commercial Mixed-Use Master Planned Development

See Inventory

Required Property Information ( City Intake Staff: Complete This Section)
Reviewed

Case No.: Date: By: (
initials) 

Project No.: I Placard: 
Application Postage Fee: Total Fee: Fee: 

Revised 04/ 17/ 2023 slm Page 8 of 16Attachment 3
1 of 9 



Attachment 3
2 of 9 



Attachment 3
3 of 9 



Attachment 3
4 of 9 



Attachment 3
5 of 9 



Revised 04/ 17/ 2023 slm 13 of 16

FORM 2

OWNERSHIP WORKSHEET

This form is NOT the petition) 

Please include the name and address of ALL owners regardless of whether they
signed an annexation petition or not.   

OWNERS

Property
Designation

Map/ lot number) 
Name of Owner Acres

Assessed
Value

Imp. 
Y / N

Signed
Yes

Signed
No

TOTALS:      

TOTAL NUMBER OF OWNERS IN THE PROPOSAL

NUMBER OF OWNERS WHO SIGNED

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERS WHO SIGNED

TOTAL ACREAGE IN PROPOSAL

ACREAGE SIGNED FOR

PERCENTAGE OF ACREAGE SIGNED FOR

TOTAL VALUE IN THE PROPOSAL

VALUE CONSENTED FOR

PERCENTAGE OF VALUE CONSENTED FOR

See Tax Lot Inventory City of Springfield/ SEDA 12.83 $ 3,898,499. Some Yes

See Tax Lot Inventory Lane County 0.13 $ 969. N Yes

See Tax Lot Inventory Roth & Roth LLC 8.14 $ 2,577,643. YYes

21.11 $ 6,477,111.

3

3

100%

21.11

21.11

100%

6,477,111.

6,477,111.

100%

Attachment 3
6 of 9 



Revised 04/17/2023 slm Page 14 of 16

FORM 3

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION FORM

Complete all the following questions and provide all the requested information.  Attach
any responses that require additional space, restating the question or request for

information on additional sheets.) 

ContactPerson:         

E-mail:          

Supply the following information regarding the annexation area. 

x Estimated Population ( at present):       

x Number of Existing Residential Units:       

x OtherUses:           

x Land Area:      total acres

x ExistingPlanDesignation(s):           

x ExistingZoning(s):             

x ExistingLandUse(s):             

x Applicable Comprehensive Plan( s):           

x Applicable Refinement Plan(s):           

x Provide evidence that the annexation is consistent with the applicable

comprehensive plan(s) and any associated refinement plans.      

x Are there development plans associated with this proposed annexation?   

Yes No

If yes, describe. 

x Is the proposed use or development allowed on the property under the current

plan designation and zoning? 

Yes No

x Please describe where the proposed annexation is contiguous to the city limits

non-contiguous annexations cannot be approved under 5.7-140, Criteria).   

Lorri Nelson

Lorri@rowellbrokaw. com

soon to be none

10, soon to be vacant

Commercial

21.11

Commercial Mixed-Use, Residential Mixed-Use

Glenwood Commercial Mixed-Use, Glenwood Residential Mixed-Use

Commercial, Residential ( soon to be vacant), Vacant

Springfield Comprehensive Plan

Glenwood Refinement Plan

See application

written statement

Master planned residential/ commercial mixed-use development

The area included in the proposed annexation is contiguous along it's south boundary

which abuts the north boundary of the Franklin Blvd ROW which is inside the city limits

Attachment 3
7 of 9 



Revised 04/17/2023 slm Page 15 of 16

Does this application include all contiguous property under the same ownership? 

Yes No

If no, state the reasons why all property is not included: 

x Check the special districts and others that provide service to the annexation area: 

Glenwood Water District Rainbow Water and Fire District

Eugene School District Pleasant Hill School District

Springfield School District McKenzie Fire & Rescue

Pleasant Hill RFPD Willakenzie RFPD

EPUD SUB

Willamalane Parks and Rec District Other   __________________   

x Names of persons to whom staff notes and notices should be sent, in addition to
applicant( s), such as an agent or legal representative. 

Name)      ( Name) 

Address)      ( Address) 

City)    ( Zip)   ( City)     ( Zip) 

Name)      ( Name) 

Address)      ( Address) 

City)     ( Zip)  ( City)    ( Zip) 

Lorri Nelson, Rowell Brokaw Architects

1203 Willamette Street, Suite 210

Eugene, OR 97401

Rick Satre, The Satre Group

375 West 4th Avenue, Suite 201

Eugene, OR 97401

Attachment 3
8 of 9 



Attachment 3
9 of 9 



Attachment 4, Slide 1 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 2 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 4 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 3 of 5



SUMMARY OF APPROVAL CRITERIA

• Criterion A – Within UGB and Contiguous to City Limits

• Criterion B – Consistent with Policies of the Metro/Comp
Plan

• Criterion C – Within Boundary for Minimum Level of Key
Urban Facilities Provided in a Timely and Efficient Manner

• Criterion D – Joint Planning Agreement for Fiscal Impacts
through Master Plan Development

• Staff Recommendation - APPROVAL Attachment 4, Slide 5 of 5



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Jeremy Sherer/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 Minutes
Council Goals: Council Goals: Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY: Filling in the Gaps-- Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Capital Improvement Project
(P21147). 

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Adopt/not adopt the following Resolution: RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT
DOMAIN PURSUANT ORS 35.600 THROUGH 35.625 CONCERNING ACQUISITION OF PERMANENT
RIGHT OF WAY AND TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS NECESSARY FOR THE FILLING
IN THE GAPS -- SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (Project No. P21147)

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City of Springfield is in the final process of design for the Filling in the Gaps-- Safe Routes to School (SRTS)
Capital Improvement Project and is requesting the Council adopt a resolution authorizing the acquisition of right-of-
way and temporary construction easements needed for the project as required by law

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The City of Springfield approved the "Filling in the Gaps" -- Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Capital Improvement
Project, City Project No. P21147 (ODOT Key No. 20236), was adopted by the City of Springfield "Capital
Improvement Program 2025 to 2029" by motion on January 29, 2024, the appropriation of funds was approved on
June 17, 2024 for the FY25 budget by resolution 2024-17 and through the Intergovernmental Agreement ODOT
Contract No. 32511 (City of Springfield C2071) with the Oregon Department of Transportation, executed on June
9, 2018

The project is designed in a manner which is most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private
injury. The improvement will be of a general benefit in helping improve conditions for students walking to and from
school across Springfield and other people who wish to use sidewalks.  The project's right of way needs has been
determined based on engineering design plans for this project to accommodate the new infrastructure. 

Permanent right of way will be acquired from 12 separate properties under private ownership along 21st Street and E
Street (See Exhibit B). To initiate condemnation proceedings, a Resolution of Necessity is required by state law
(ORS35) to be adopted by the Council.

The purpose of the Resolution of Necessity places private property under the threat of condemnation to allow the
City to proceed with condemnation proceedings in those cases where agreement on public acquisition cannot be
reached.  Right of Way Staff will negotiate in good faith and in compliance with state and federal laws to reach an
agreement on just compensation.  Should negotiations fail, other alternatives will be explored. Nevertheless, Right of
Way Staff will work with the City Attorney's office to make every attempt to reach agreement before proceeding
with condemnation. 

The right-of-way process is the critical path of the project schedule, allowing for construction of this project to begin
in 2025.  Adopting the Resolution of Necessity currently aids in keeping the project on schedule.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Resolution of Necessity



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OR 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN PURSUANT ORS 35.600 

THROUGH 35.625 CONCERNING ACQUISTION OF PERMANENT RIGHT OF WAY AND 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS NECESSARY FOR THE FILLING IN THE GAPS – 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
(Project No. P21147) 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Springfield may exercise the power of eminent domain under the Springfield 
Charter and the laws of the State of Oregon, generally, when the exercise of such power is deemed 
necessary by the governing body to accomplish public purposes for which the City of Springfield has 
responsibility; 

WHEREAS, the City has the responsibility for providing safe transportation routes for commerce, 
convenience and to adequately serve the traveling public; 

WHEREAS, the project known as “Filling in the Gaps” – Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Capital 
Improvement Project, City Project No. P21147 (ODOT Key No. 20236), was adopted through the City 
of Springfield “Capital Improvement Program 2025 to 2029” by motion on January 29, 2024, the 
appropriation of funds were approved on June 17, 2024 for the FY25 budget by resolution 2024-17 and 
through the Oregon Department of Transportation Intergovernmental Agreement No. 32511 (City of 
Springfield C2071), executed on June 9, 2018;  
 
WHEREAS, said Project has been planned in accordance with appropriate engineering standards for 
the construction, maintenance, and improvement of a roundabout to improve circulation and safety 
such that property damage is minimized, economic development is promoted, and environmental laws 
are upheld; 
 
WHEREAS, to accomplish the project set forth above, it is necessary to acquire permanent right of 
way and temporary construction easements as described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit B, 
attached to this resolution and by this reference incorporated herein, to protect the full use and 
enjoyment by the public of the subject streets; 
 
WHEREAS, the public good realized by this Project far outweighs any damage that the property 
owners might sustain, particularly in light of the City’s obligation to provide just compensation to the 
affected property owners; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD: 
 
Section 1.  The foregoing statements of authority and need are, in fact, the case.  The project for 
which the property is required and is being acquired are necessary in the public interest, and the same 
have been planned, designed, located, and will be constructed in a manner which will be most 
compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 
 
Section 2.  The power of eminent domain is hereby exercised with respect to acquiring the permanent 
right of way and temporary construction easement interests in property described and depicted in 
Exhibits A and B.  Each is acquired subject to payment of just compensation and subject to procedural 
requirements of Oregon law. 

Attachment
Page 1 of 2



 
Section 3.  The City of Springfield’s staff and attorneys are authorized and requested to attempt to 
agree with the owner and other persons in interest as to the compensation to be paid for each 
acquisition, and, in the event that no satisfactory agreement can be reached, to commence and 
prosecute such condemnation proceedings as may be necessary to finally determine just compensation 
or any other issue appropriate to be determined by a court in connection with the acquisition.  This 
authorization is not intended to expand the jurisdiction of any court to decide matters determined 
above or determinable by the City of Springfield. 
 
Section 4.  If the City of Springfield and the owners or persons in interest as to the compensation paid 
for the acquisition as described and depicted in Exhibits A and B agree on the amount of just 
compensation, the City Manager is authorized to negotiate and execute acquisition agreements for 
those properties. 
 
Section 5.  Upon the trial of any suit or action instituted to acquire the real property or any interest 
therein, the attorneys acting for and on behalf of the City Springfield be and hereby are authorized to 
make such stipulation, agreement, or admission as in their judgment may be for the best interest of 
the Filling in the Gaps– Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Capital Improvement Project. 
 
Section 6.  The Common Council further declares that the real property interests described and 
depicted in Exhibits A and B shall be used by the City of Springfield for public purposes at the earliest 
possible date and, in any event, no later than ten years from the date this Resolution is adopted by the 
Council. 
 
Section 7.  This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption by the Council. 
 
 

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this ___ day of _________, ____, 
by a vote of _____ for and ____ against. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Recorder 
 

Attachment
Page 2 of 2

kskraaz
Typewriter
2/20/2025



Exhibit A
Page 1 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 2 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 3 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 4 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 5 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 6 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 7 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 8 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 9 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 10 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 11 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 12 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 13 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 14 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 15 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 16 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 17 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 18 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 19 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 20 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 21 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 22 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 23 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 24 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 25 of 26



Exhibit A
Page 26 of 26



Exhibit B
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B
Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARYAGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:     Meeting Date:     03/03/2025
 Meeting Type:      Meeting Type:      Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept: Staff Contact/Dept: Sandy Belson/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L DS P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I LC I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:Staff Phone No: 541-736-7135
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 5 Minutes
Council Goals: Council Goals: Mandate

ITEM TITLE:ITEM TITLE:
Planning Commission Appointment

ACTION REQUESTED:ACTION REQUESTED:
Appoint Jonathan Siegle to fill the Planning Commission vacancy.
Or
Appoint Deanna Jacobson to fill the Planning Commission vacancy.

ISSUE STATEMENT:ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Planning Commission has one vacancy as the result of Commissioner Rhoads' resignation, effective as of March
10th, 2025. His four (4) year term expires December 31st, 2026.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
On February 18th Council held three (3) interviews to fill one (1) vacancy on the Planning Commission, which is
the result of Commissioner Rhoads' resignation. The City received three (3) applications during a six-week
recruitment process. Council interviewed the three applicants on February 25. Subsequent to the interviews, Gary
Jones withdrew his application.

The Springfield Planning Commission is a seven-member volunteer Commission appointed by the City Council. 
The members serve four-year terms that are staggered to avoid more than two positions expiring at the same time. 
Positions are "at-large", and do not represent specific geographic areas. Of the seven members, two may live outside
the city limits (but within the Urban Growth Boundary) and two may be involved in the Real Estate profession.  At
present, Commissioner Rhoads is the only Commissioner involved in the Real Estate profession, and he is resigning
as of March 10th 2025; all Commission members currently reside within the city limits.   

The new appointment will be effective on March 11th, 2025 and end December 31st, 2026.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
1. Siegle Application
2. Jacobson Application
3. Jones Withdrawal
















	Agenda
	AI 136 Housing Related Code and Plan Update
	       ATT_2. Presentation Slides
	Slide 1: Springfield Housing-Related Code and Plan Update
	Slide 2: OVERVIEW
	Slide 3: Code and Plan Changes
	Slide 4: Does Council want to form a Governance Committee to guide this project?
	Slide 5: Code and Plan Audit
	Slide 6: Code and Plan Audit
	Slide 7: Code and Plan Audit
	Slide 8: Code and Plan Audit
	Slide 9: Code and Plan Audit
	Slide 10: Planning Commission and City Council Meetings

	AI 111 Women in Construction Week Proclamation 2025
	       ATT_Women in Construction Proclamation 2025
	AI 87 City Contracts Over Spring Recess
	       ATT_1. Contracts Over Spring Recess
	       ATT_2. Resolution Contracts Over Spring Recess
	AI 133 Annexation of EWEB Property in Glenwood
	       ATT_1. Location Maps
	location overview map
	site context map

	       ATT_2. Annexation Application
	EWEB Second Source Annexation Form
	EWEB Second Source Annexation Narrative
	City of Springfield
	EWEB
	Glenwood Second Source
	ANNEXATION APPLICATION
	INDEX
	1.0 project information
	2.0 Description of Proposal
	2.1  Overview
	2.2  Background
	2.3 Location and Context
	2.4  Purpose and Need
	2.5  Land Use Requirements

	3.0 Existing conditions
	3.1 Site

	There are four primary vegetation communities on the subject site: prairie-savanna, mixed oak-conifer forest, mixed oak-conifer woodland, and mixed conifer-hardwood.  Of the primary vegetation communities, the subject property most closely resembles t...
	3.2 Transportation
	3.3 Urban Services

	4.0 Submittal requirements
	4.1  Annexation Submittal Requirements

	5.0 APPROVAL CRITERIA
	5.1 Annexation Approval Criteria (SDC 5.7-140)
	5.2 Conclusion


	EXHIBITS

	Exhibit A Petition Signature Sheet
	Exhibit B Owners Worksheet
	Exhibit C Supplemental Information Form
	Exhibit D Deeds
	Exhibit E Preliminary Title Report
	Exhibit H Vicinity Map
	Exhibit I Waiver Forms

	       ATT_3. Ordinance
	       ATT_3a. Ordinance Exhibit A_ Maps and Legal Descriptions
	Exhibit F Legal Descripton
	Exhibit G Cadastral Map

	       ATT_3b. Ordiance Exhibit B_ Staff Report and Recommendations
	AI 132 BPAC Committee Appointment
	AI 113 Harbor Drive Pump Station Contract, C3828 (RFP#3727)
	       ATT_1. Design Contract
	AI 120 AIS FIN DISBURSEMENTS OCTOBER 2024
	       ATT_RS FIN DISBURSEMENTS OCTOBER 2024
	       ATT_CERT OF APPROVAL OCTOBER 2024
	AI 122 AIS FIN DISBURSEMENTS NOVEMBER 2024
	       ATT_1. Disbursements November 2024
	       ATT_2. Certificate of Approval November 2024
	AI 123 AIS FIN DISBURSEMENTS DECEMBER 2024
	       ATT_1. Disbursements December 2024
	       ATT_2. Certificate of Approval December 2024
	AI 124 AIS FIN DISBURSEMENTS JANUARY 2025
	       ATT_1. Disbursements January 2025
	       ATT_2. Certificate of Approval January 2025
	AI 130 Contract Approval - Peoplesoft / Oracle Managed Services
	       ATT_1. Contract 3818-Beacon
	C3818 Beacon Contract RFP 3747 2.12.2025 (00036143-2xF5DC7)
	CITY OF SPRINGFIELD
	CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
	Additional Contractor Information:
	City of Springfield Business Associate Agreement
	Between - City of Springfield and INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
	A. General Provisions
	B. Obligations of Business Associate
	C. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate
	D. Termination

	ATT1 SOW C3818 Beacon Contract
	Beacon Proposal for Springfield RFP#3747 PeopleSoft Managed Services
	1 Qualifications
	2 Approach
	3 Resumes
	PeopleSoft: PeopleTools I & II, General Ledger, Payables, Commitment Control, Query/Crystal Power Combo, Inventory

	4 Fee Proposal
	5 Additional Services
	6 References
	7 Sample Contract
	8 Appendix A
	9 Attachment 1 – Sample Work Product

	RFP3747-PeopleSoft-Managed-Services-Provider_Attachment-5-Price-List_Beacon
	RFP S2866 ATT2



	AI 78 Glenwood Riverfront Annexations
	       ATT_1. Location Maps
	       ATT_2. Annexation Ordinance
	       ATT_2a. Site Map and Legal Description
	       ATT_2b. Resolution 2024-22
	       ATT_2c. Annexation Petition
	       ATT_2d. Staff Report
	       ATT_3. Annexation Application Packet
	       ATT_8. PowerPoint Slides
	AI 106 RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY
	       ATT_1. Resolution of Necessity
	AI 137 Planning Commimssion Appointment
	       ATT_1. Siegle Application
	       ATT_2. Jacobson Application
	       ATT_3. Jones Withdrawal

